
1 May 8, 2023 
 

BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
MAY 8, 2023 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 
7:30 P.M. 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk  
 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS, 
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
• Proclamation Celebrating May as Jewish American Heritage Month 
• Proclamation Recognizing Astrein’s Creative Jewelers for 50 Years Serving Birmingham 
• On May 1, 2023, Mayor Longe recognized 33 high school and middle school students who 

performed community service as members of the Birmingham Youth Assistance Youth in 
Service Program. These students set an excellent example for their peers, and they are 
appreciated for their contributions to the community. 

• The DPS Open House will be on Saturday, May 13, 2023, from 10 a.m. to 2 p.m. at the Public 
Services facility at 851 S. Eton. The event promises to be a day of family fun, offering visitors 
the opportunity to meet City staff, view equipment displays, and peruse informational and 
educational exhibits. In addition, hot dogs and refreshments will be available to enjoy. 

• The 2023 Celebrate Birmingham Parade and Party will be held on Sunday, May 21, 2023 
beginning with the Parade at 1 pm on N. Old Woodward near Booth Park and concluding in 
Shain Park, where there will be a celebration with entertainment and family-friendly activities. 
The festivities in Shain Park will come to a close at 4 pm.  
 

APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointment to the Board of Building Trades Appeals 

1. Victor Saroki 
2. Bradley H. Klein 

To appoint _________________ to the Board of Building Trades Appeals as a regular member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire May 23, 2025.  

To appoint _________________ to the Board of Building Trades Appeals as a regular member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire May 23, 2025. 



2 May 8, 2023 

B. Appointment to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority
1. Robert Runco

To concur with the Mayor’s appointment of _________________, as a regular member to the 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority to serve a three-year term to expire May 23, 2026. 

To concur with the Mayor’s appointment of _________________, as a regular member to the 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority to serve a three-year term to expire May 23, 2026. 

To concur with the Mayor’s appointment of _________________, as a regular member to the 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire May 
23, 2024. 

C. Appointment to the Parks and Recreation Board
1. Jessica Einstein
2. Jane Hoffman

To appoint _________________ to the Parks and Recreation Board as an alternate member to 
serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire March 13, 2025. 

D. Employee Recognition
1. Assistant Director of Engineering – Cory Borton

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

V. CONSENT AGENDA
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless 
a Commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general 
order of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

*Budget Hearing meeting minutes of April 29, 2023 will be available at the May 22, 2023 City
Commission meeting. 

A. Resolution to approve the City Commission regular meeting minutes of April 24, 2023.

B. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments,
dated April 26, 2023 in the amount of $420,133.99.

C. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments,
dated May 4, 2023 in the amount of $577,736.42.

D. Resolution to set a public hearing date of June 5, 2023 for the proposed lot combination
of 36877 Woodward Ave, Gasow Veterinary Clinic, Parcel ID #19-25-101-008, 19-25-101-
009, 19-25-101-010, and 19-25-101-011.

E. Resolution to approve the Agreement with Birmingham Little League. In addition, to
authorize the Mayor and Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City.



3 May 8, 2023 

F. Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to complete the Local Approval Notice at the request 
of Old Woodward Ventures, LLC to approve the request of Lawrence and Eunice’s Living 
Trusts to transfer the membership of Old Woodward Ventures, LLC which is owned by 
Lawrence Bongiovanni, Trust, Kara Bongiovanni Trustee 50% and Eunice Bongiovanni, 
Trust Kara Bongiovanni Trustee 50%, which holds the Class C and SDM License with 
Sunday Sales (PM) and Outdoor Service Area located at 525 N. Old Woodward, 
Birmingham, Oakland County, MI to 33.34% Kara Bongiovanni Living Trust, 33.33%
Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust and 33.33% Joseph Bongiovanni.

G. Resolution to authorize the City Clerk to complete the Local Approval Notice at the request 
of Birmingham Ventures, Inc. to approve the request Eunice’s Living Trusts to transfer the 
stock of Birmingham Ventures, Inc. which the stock is currently held by Eunice 
Bongiovanni,  Living Trust Kara Bongiovanni Trustee, which holds the Class C and SDM 
License with Sunday Sales (PM) and Outdoor Service Area located at 505 N. Old Woodward, 
Birmingham, Oakland County, MI to Kara Bongiovanni Living Trust, 170 shares, Lawrence 
and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust 170 shares and Joseph Bongiovanni 170 shares.

H. Resolution to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Birmingham, 
the City of Auburn Hills, Bloomfield Township and the City of Rochester to establish a 
regional youth academy for residents and students of the four communities. Furthermore, 
to authorize the Chief of Police to sign the agreement on behalf of the City of Birmingham 
and the Birmingham Police Department.

I. Resolution to approve the Program Year 2023 High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area 
(HIDTA) sub recipient agreement between the County of Oakland and the City of 
Birmingham. Further, to authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City.

J. Resolution to appoint Jana Ecker as Representative and Scott Zielinski as Alternate 
Representative of the City of Birmingham on the SOCRRA Board of Trustee for the fiscal 
year starting July 1, 2023.

K. Resolution to appoint Melissa Coatta as Representative and Jana Ecker as Alternate 
Representative of the City of Birmingham on the SOCWA Board of Trustees for the fiscal 
year starting July 1, 2023.

L. Resolution to accept the resignation of Jane Schulak from the Public Arts Board, to thank 
her for her service and to direct the City Clerk to begin the process of filling the vacancy.

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
None 

VII. NEW BUSINESS

A. Hearing of Necessity for Sidewalk and Streetscape Special Assessment District
1. WHEREAS, Notice was given pursuant to Section 94-7 of the City Code, to each

owner or party-in-interest of property and lots to be assessed, by first class mail,
and by publication in a newspaper generally circulated in the City; and

WHEREAS, The City Commission has conducted a public hearing and has
determined to proceed with the project of replacing sidewalks, reconfiguring



4 May 8, 2023 
 

roadway, and street scape on Brown Street from S. Old Woodward to Woodward 
Ave.; and 

 WHEREAS, The City has previously established a policy requiring replacement 
or improvement of sidewalks and street scape when the City street is open for 
repairs or reconstruction in the Central Business District; and 

 WHEREAS, The City Commission, after the public hearing, has determined that 
the Brown Street Paving Project is a necessity and is in the best interest of the 
City; and  

 WHEREAS, The Commission has approved the detailed plans and estimates of 
cost prepared by the City Engineer; and 

 WHEREAS, Formal bids have been received and the actual cost for sidewalk 
and streetscape has been determined; and 

 WHEREAS,  The City Engineer has determined the boundaries of sidewalk and 
streetscape located within the limits of the following streets shall be installed as 
part of the Brown Street Paving Project (Contract #5-23(P)): 

  Brown Street – S. Old Woodward to Woodward Ave.; and  

 WHEREAS, The formula used in making the assessment is 75% of the 
contractor’s charge for replacing sidewalks, reconfiguring roadway, and street 
scape (calculated at the rate of $853.68 per foot of frontage property). 

 THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED, The City Commission has determined that 
the scope of the public improvement as described is in the best interest of the City 
and will be benefit the properties listed in the assessment roll, and the City 
Commission directs the Manager to prepare a Special Assessment Roll and present 
the same to the Commission for confirmation and further set a Public Hearing and 
give notice on May 22, 2023.  

 

Parcel ID Street Address Parcel ID Street Address 

08-19-36-208-015 325 S Old Woodward 08-19-36-206-021 255 S Old Woodward 

08-19-36-208-016 355 S Old Woodward 08-19-36-207-010 34901 Woodward 

08-19-36-208-004 34745 Woodward 08-19-36-206-024 Chester Parking Structure 

08-19-36-206-023 Alley  

B. Resolution to adopt the budget appropriations resolution for the City of Birmingham’s 
budget and establishing the total number of mills for ad valorem property taxes to be 
levied for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024. 



5 May 8, 2023 
 

C. Resolution to amend the Birmingham Fee Schedule to increase the rate for monthly 
parking at the City’s five parking garages from $50 to $70 at the Chester St. garage, from 
$70 to $90 at the N. Old Woodward, Park, and Peabody garages, and from $70 to $100 
at the Pierce garage. 

D. Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for 
future discussion at the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen 
tonight.  

 
E. Commission discussion on items from a prior meeting.  

None. 
 

 
VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

 
IX. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
X. REPORTS 

A. Commissioner Reports 
1. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Museum Board 
2. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board 
3. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee 
4. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Board of Ethics 
5. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Public Arts Board 

B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 

1. Birmingham Area Cable Board Annual Report, Budget, Financial Statement 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 

1. 3rd Quarter Investment Report 
2. 3rd Quarter Budget Report 
3. Recent Amendments to PA 33 - Police and Fire Protection Act 
4. Northwest corner of Maple and Fairfax Improvement – Pat Andrews Tribute 

 
INFORMATION ONLY 
 

 XI. ADJOURN 
Should you wish to participate in this meeting, you are invited to attend the meeting in person or 
virtually through ZOOM:   https://zoom.us/j/655079760       Meeting ID: 655 079 760  
You may also present your written statement to the City Commission, City of Birmingham, 151 Martin 
Street, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, Michigan 48012-3001 prior to the hearing.   
 
NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for 
effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-
5115 (TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 

https://zoom.us/j/655079760
tel:%28248%29%20530-1880


151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 
(248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org

PROCLAMATION 
Jewish American Heritage Month 

May 2023 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED 

Jewish American Heritage Month is an annual celebration of Jewish 
Americans who have helped weave the fabric of American history, 
culture and society; and 

2023 marks the 43rd annual celebration of achievements and 
contributions by Jewish Americans, starting with the establishment 
of “Jewish American Heritage Week in 1980” and expanded upon in 
2006, when Congress called on the country to observe annual Jewish 
American Heritage Month each May; and  

Jewish American Heritage Month acknowledges achievements of 
American Jews and recognizes their indispensable roles in our 
nation’s civic and community life, making invaluable contributions to 
our nation through their leadership and achievements; and 

Our city recognizes that the alarming rise in antisemitism and hatred 
is a threat not only to the Jewish people but to all of us, and that we 
must foster the conditions that allow our communities to be safe, 
healthy and vital; and 

We offer hope and optimism through the celebration of the vibrant 
heritage of the Jewish Americans who have enriched our country and 
our communities for hundreds of years by bringing Jewish 
American Heritage Month to our city; and  

that I, Therese Longe, Mayor of the City of Birmingham, on behalf of 
the citizens of Birmingham, do hereby proclaim the month of May 
2023 as Jewish American Heritage Month in Birmingham, Michigan. 

On behalf of the City of Birmingham and 
the residents of Birmingham this 8th day 
of May, 2023.  

Therese Longe, Mayor 

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
atappan
Line



 

151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 
(248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  

 

PROCLAMATION 
 

Recognizing Astrein’s Creative Jewelers for 50 Years Serving Birmingham  
 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Birmingham values long-standing businesses for their dedication and support 
of the Birmingham community; and 

 
WHEREAS, Astrein’s Creative Jewelers, locally owned and operated by Richard and Gary Astrein 

since 1973, have been successful business leaders in downtown Birmingham, providing 
exceptional personal service and products while sharing of their time and resources to 
make the community and the lives of the persons in the community a better place; and 

 
WHEREAS, Legendary for their giving nature, Astrein’s Creative Jewelers enthusiastically gave both 

volunteer time and financial support to countless local events, programs and charitable 
organizations; and  

 
WHEREAS,  Birmingham benefitted from their charity with notable events like the Fall Spectacular, 

the Village Fair, as well as creating and organizing new events that still carry on today 
such as Day on the Town; and  

 
WHEREAS,  Richard Astrein has been a vital and active Board of Director of the Birmingham Shopping 

District since its inception in 1992, being a founder member, a cheerleader and 
spokesperson for the need of a downtown management and marketing organization; and  

 
WHEREAS,  Richard Astrein serves in many leadership roles, including current Chairman of the BSD 

Special Events Committee and Member of the City of Birmingham Parking Committee, 
as well as beyond Birmingham serving as a Director of the  Beaumont Health System and 
Co- Chair of the Beaumont Foundation Stars & Guitars; and  

 
THEREFORE, be it resolved with this official proclamation that I, Therese Longe, Mayor of the City of 
Birmingham, on behalf of the City Commission, citizens and businesses of Birmingham, extend our sincere 
appreciation and gratitude to Astrein’s Creative Jewelers and Richard Astrein for 50 years of unconditional 
dedication and support of the downtown Birmingham community. We wish the Astrein family all the best as 
they set to retire. Their commitment and passion will be sorely missed in Birmingham.  

 
On Behalf of the City of Birmingham and the  
residents and businesses of Birmingham this 8th day of 
May, 2023.  
 
 
 
Therese Longe, Mayor 

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


 
  

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
 BOARD OF BUILDING TRADES APPEAL 
  
At the regular meeting of Monday, May 8, 2023 the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint to the Board of Building Trades Appeals two regular members to serve the remainder 
of three-year terms to expire May 23, 2025.  Applicants shall be qualified by experience or 
training in fields such as architecture, engineering, mechanical engineering, building, electrical 
plumbing, heating or refrigeration.  
 
Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, May 3, 2023.  These documents will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  
 
The Board of Building Trades Appeal hears and grants or denies requests for variances from 
strict application of the provisions of the Michigan Building, Residential, Mechanical and 
Plumbing Codes and the National Electrical Code. The board will decide on matters pertaining 
to specific code requirements related to the construction or materials to be used in the 
erection, alteration or repair of a building or structure.  
 
Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

 
NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   
 
  
SUGGESTED ACTION: 
 
To appoint _________________ to the Board of Building Trades Appeals as a regular member 
to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire May 23, 2025. 
 
To appoint _________________ to the Board of Building Trades Appeals as a regular member 
to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire May 23, 2025. 
 
 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Applicants shall be qualified by experience or training.  

Victor Saroki Architect 
Bradley H. Klein Electrical Contractor, Master Electrician 

3A

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


BOARD OF BUILDING TRADES APPEALS
Chapter 22, Article II, 1972 PA 230, MCL 125.1514  
Members shall be qualified by experience or training (such as Architect, Engineer, Mechanical 
Engineer, Building Contractor, Electrical Contractor, Plumbing Contractor, Heating Contractor, and 
Refrigeration Contractor).  
Term: Three years – 6 members 

The Board of Building Trades Appeal hears and grants or denies requests for variances from strict 
application of the provisions of the Michigan Building, Residential, Mechanical and Plumbing 
Codes and the National Electrical Code. The board will decide on matters pertaining to specific 
code requirements related to the construction or materials to be used in the erection, alteration 
or repair of a building or structure. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Afrakhteh Arya

490 Lakeside Dr.

(248) 635-9925

arya26@att.net
Builder/engineer
6/28/2021 5/23/2024

Birmingham 48009

Mando Dennis

5310 Heron Cove

(248) 767-0515
(248) 669-4338
denny@dennysonline.com

Heating contractor
1/30/2006 5/23/2026

Beaverton 48612

Sirich Scott H.

1756 Melbourne

(248) 385-5398

ssirich@plunkettcooney.com
Construction law attorney
8/10/2020 5/23/2026

Birmingham 48009

Vacated 5/23/2022 5/23/2025

Vacated 5/23/2022 5/23/2025

Tuesday, April 25, 2023 Page 1 of 2

3A

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Wiand Rick

956 Westwood Dr.

(248) 766-2275

rickw@hunterrobertshomes.com
Builder
6/28/2021 5/23/2024

Birmingham 48009

Tuesday, April 25, 2023 Page 2 of 2

3A



3A



Construction Review Board (Board of Building Trades Appeal)

Bradley H. Klein

5063 Parkside Drive

West Bloomfield, MI 48323

2044 Winner St.

Commerce, MI 48390

Interest in construction and the application of codes and prior member of this board

Familiar with the installation of electrical in both the residential and commercial 
installations and also have provided consulting services for repairs in the insurance restoration business.

Electrical Contractror (EC), also known at times as an Electrical Charity

Bachelor of Science, Psychology from The University of Michigan, Ann Arbor
State of Michigan Master Electrician, State of Michigan Electrical Contractor

(248) 863-6302 (Cell)

bklein@kleinelectric.net

13 years

Electrical Contractor/Master Electrician

No

Myself?

No

April 20, 2023

3A



STILLE-DEROSSETT-HALE SINGLE STATE CONSTRUCTION CODE ACT (EXCERPT)
Act 230 of 1972

125.1514 Construction board of appeals; creation; appointment, qualifications, and terms of
members; appeal to board; hearing; decision; statement of reasons for decision; appeal to
commission; copy of decision; additional powers or duties; procedures; conducting
business at public meeting; notice; availability of certain writings to public.
Sec. 14. (1) A construction board of appeals for each governmental subdivision enforcing the code shall be

created consisting of not less than 3 nor more than 7 members, as determined by the governing body of the
governmental subdivision. Unless otherwise provided by local law or ordinance, the members of the board of
appeals shall be appointed for 2-year terms by the chief executive officer of a city, village, or township and
the chairperson of the county board of commissioners of a county. A member of the board of appeals shall be
qualified by experience or training to perform the duties of members of the board of appeals. A person may
serve on the board of appeals of more than 1 governmental subdivision. If an enforcing agency refuses to
grant an application for a building permit, or if the enforcing agency makes any other decision pursuant or
related to this act, or the code, an interested person, or the person's authorized agent, may appeal in writing to
the board of appeals. The board of appeals shall hear the appeal and render and file its decision with a
statement of reasons for the decision with the enforcing agency from whom the appeal was taken not more
than 30 days after submission of the appeal. Failure by the board of appeals to hear an appeal and file a
decision within the time limit is a denial of the appeal for purposes of authorizing the institution of an appeal
to the commission. A copy of the decision and statement of the reasons for the decision shall be delivered or
mailed, before filing, to the party taking the appeal.

(2) This act does not prevent a governmental subdivision from granting its board of appeals additional
powers or duties not inconsistent with this act, or from establishing procedures to be followed by its board of
appeals insofar as the procedures do not conflict with this act. Except as otherwise provided by this act, or by
other laws or ordinances, a board of appeals may by rules establish its own procedures.

(3) The business which the board of appeals may perform shall be conducted at a public meeting of the
board of appeals held in compliance with Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of 1976. Public notice of the time,
date, and place of the meeting shall be given in the manner required by Act No. 267 of the Public Acts of
1976.

(4) A record of decisions made by the board of appeals, properly indexed, and any other writing prepared,
owned, used, in the possession of, or retained by the board of appeals in the performance of an official
function shall be made available to the public in compliance with Act No. 442 of the Public Acts of 1976.

History: 1972, Act 230, Eff. Jan. 1, 1973;Am. 1977, Act 195, Imd. Eff. Nov. 17, 1977;Am. 1978, Act 442, Imd. Eff. Oct. 9,
1978.

Popular name: Act 230

Popular name: Uniform Construction Code

Rendered Wednesday, December 9, 2015 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 202 of 2015

 Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

3A



 
 

 

 
 

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
  
 At the regular meeting of Monday, May 8, 2023 the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority two regular member to serve three-year 
term to expire May 23, 2026 and one regular member to serve the remainder of a three-year 
term to expire May 23, 2024.   
 
The authority shall have the powers and duties to the full extent as provided by and in 
accordance with the provisions of the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, being Act 381 
of the Public Acts of the state of Michigan of 1996, as amended.  Among other matters, in the 
exercise of its powers, the Board may prepare Brownfield plans pursuant to Section 13 of the 
Act and submit the plans to the Commission for consideration pursuant to Section 13 and 14 of 
the Act. 
 
Members shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to approval by the City 
Commission.   
 
Interested citizens may submit an application available at the city clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the city clerk's office on 
or before noon on Wednesday, May 3, 2023.  These documents will appear in the public agenda 
for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and 
may make nominations and vote on appointments.   
 
Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

 
NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, Article 
IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   
 
 
The following board member will not be continuing on the board. We thank them for their service 
to the community: 

• Beth Gotthelf, Appointed 2005 
 

Applicant Name Criteria/Qualifications 
Applicants shall, in so far as possible, be residents of the 
City of Birmingham.   

Robert Runco Current regular member, Resident at 1556 Lakeside Drive 

3B

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To concur with the Mayor’s appointment of ________, as a regular member to the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority to serve a three-year term to expire May 23, 2026. 

To concur with the Mayor’s appointment of ________, as a regular member to the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority to serve a three-year term to expire May 23, 2026. 

To concur with the Mayor’s appointment of ________, as a regular member to the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority to serve the remainder of a three-year term to expire May 23, 2024. 

3B



BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY

   Resolution # 04-123-05 
   5 members, three-year terms, appointed by the mayor subject to approval of the commission. 

 
The authority shall have the powers and duties to the full extent as provided by and in accordance with the 
provisions of the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, being Act 381 of the Public Acts of the state of 
Michigan of 1996, as amended. Among other matters, in the exercise of its powers, the Board may prepare 
Brownfield plans pursuant to Section 13 of the Act and submit the plans to the Commission for consideration 
pursuant to Section 13 and 14 of the Act. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Awdey Harry

1633 Graefield

(586) 453-4677

hawdey@gmail.com

5/23/20259/25/2017

Gotthelf Beth

363 Catalpa

(248) 227.6920

gotthelf@butzel.com

5/23/20235/9/2005

Runco Robert

1556 Lakeside

(248) 388-8100

rrunco@runcowaste.com

5/23/20235/9/2005

Torcolacci Daniella

2047 Windemere

(248) 217-4805

dtorcolacci@gmail.com

5/23/202510/27/2014

Vacated 3/1/2022 5/23/2024

Thursday, March 2, 2023 Page 1 of 1

3B

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, May 8, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint to the Parks and Recreation Board an alternate member to serve the remainder of a three-
year term expiring on March 13, 2025. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's office on 
or before noon on Wednesday, May 3, 2023.  These applications will appear in the public agenda 
for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may 
make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

Responsibilities 
The Parks & Recreation Board consists of seven members and two alternate members who serve for 
three-year terms without compensation. The goal of the board is to promote a recreation program 
and a park development program for the City of Birmingham.  The Board shall recommend to the 
City Commission for adoption such rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct and use of parks 
and public grounds as are necessary to administer the same and to protect public property and the 
safety, health, morals, and welfare of the public. 

The meetings are held the first Tuesday of the month at 6:30 P.M. 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code 
Chapter 2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.  

Applicant(s) Presented for City Commission Consideration: 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To appoint ______________ to the Parks and Recreation Board as an alternate member to serve the 
remainder of a three-year term to expire March 13, 2025. 

Applicant 
Name 

Criteria 
Members must be electors 
(registered voters) of the 
City of Birmingham 

Qualifications 

Jessica Einstein Birmingham Elector Start-Up Executive, Marketing background, young 
family focus 

Jane Hoffman Birmingham Elector Attorney, Masters in City Planning 

3C



PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD
Article II, Section 78 

Objectives:  The Parks and Recreation Board shall promote a recreation program and a park development 
program for the City. The Board shall recommend to the city commission for adoption such rules and 
regulations pertaining to the conduct and use of parks and public grounds as are necessary to administer 
the same and to protect public property and the safety, health, morals, and welfare of the public. 

Seven regular members, Three-year Terms, Appointed by the City Commission 
Two alternate members, Three-year Terms, Appointed by the City Commission 
Members must be electors of the City of Birmingham 
Meetings held the first Tuesday of each month at 6:30 PM. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Carmona Heather

887 Lakeview Ave.

(248) 867-1346

htcarmona@sbcglobal.net

Regular Member
3/13/20243/12/2018

Collins Susan

958 Pleasant

(248) 761-6873

sbdcollins@comcast.net

Regular Member
3/13/20243/9/2020

Glasier Kate
Student representative

12/31/20232/27/2023

Graham Pam

884 Knox

(248) 408-6277

pamcracker@gmail.com

Regular Member
3/13/20261/13/2020

Tuesday, April 4, 2023 Page 1 of 3

3C



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Kupczyk Sarah

592 W Lincoln

(773)414-4727

sc23carroll@gmail.com

Regular Member
3/13/20263/27/2023

Lipp Anne

2682 Buckingham

(248) 225-0136

aecubera@gmail.com

Regular Member
3/13/202511/23/2020

Reynolds Archie
Student representative

12/31/20232/27/2023

Rusche John

358 Henley St.

(248) 731-7068
(248) 219-8114

jprusche@aol.com

Regular Member
3/13/20249/6/2018

Sweeney Steve

160 Larchlea Ave

(248) 875-9973

stevesweeney22@yahoo.com

Regular Member
3/13/20263/28/2022

Vacated 3/27/2023
Alternate

3/13/2025

Tuesday, April 4, 2023 Page 2 of 3

3C

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Wrobel Joe

2665 Windemere

(248)225-5937

wrobel4j@aol.com

Alternate
3/13/20264/3/2023

Tuesday, April 4, 2023 Page 3 of 3

3C



APPLICATION FOR CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 

Thank you for your interest in serving on a Board or Committee.  The purpose of this form is to provide the City 
Commission with basic information about applicants considered for appointment.  NOTE: Completed applications are 
included in the City Commission agenda packets.  The information included on this form is open to the public.  All Board 
and Committee members are subject to the provisions of the Ethics Ordinance (Chapter 2, Article IX of the City Code). 

Information on various Boards and Committees and a list of current openings can be found on the City website at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities.      

(Please print clearly) 

Board/Committee of Interest ___________________________________________________________________________ 

Specific Category/Vacancy on Board ____________________________ (see back of this form for information) 

Name __________________________________________ Phone _________________________________ 

Residential Address _______________________________ Email *_________________________________ 

Residential City, Zip _______________________________ Length of Residence ______________________ 

Business Address _________________________________ Occupation _____________________________ 

Business City, Zip _________________________________ 

Reason for Interest:  Explain how your background and skills will enhance the board to which you have applied ________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

List your related employment experience _________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

List your related community activities ____________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

List your related educational experience __________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

To the best of your knowledge, do you or a member of your immediate family have any direct financial or business 
relationships with any supplier, service provider or contractor of the City of Birmingham from which you or they derive 
direct compensation or financial benefit?  If yes, please explain: ______________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Do you currently have a relative serving on the board/committee to which you have applied? __________________ 

Are you an elector (registered voter) in the City of Birmingham? ___________________ 

____________________________________________ _________________________ 
Signature of Applicant   Date 
Return the completed and signed application form to:  City of Birmingham, City Clerk’s Office, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI  48009 or by email to 
clerk@bhamgov.org or fax to 248.530.1080.              Updated 11/18/2020 
*By providing your email to the City, you agree to receive news & notifications from the City. If you do not wish to 
receive these messages, you may unsubscribe at any time.  

OFFICE USE ONLY 
Meets Requirements?   Yes   No  

Will Attend / Unable to Attend 

3C

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities
mailto:clerk@bhamgov.org
Parks & Recreation Board

Alternate Member

Jessica Einstein

419 Pilgrim Avenue

Birmingham, MI 48009

248-821-0306

jessicaeinstein@gmail.com

yes

no

I grew up here and have two young children who I'm raising in Birmingham. We spend a lot of time outside
at parks and I'm keenly interested in ways to bring the community together.

In Washington DC, I served on the board of the YMCA, Anthony Bowen
where I focused on supporting the YMCA in developing curriculum and resources for young families to come together and have support

I went to Birmingham Schools (quarton, derby, seaholm) - Studied Philosophy and Sociology at Denison University

I run customer experience and talent for a technology start up. My background is in building and scaling tech companies largely through marketing and community functions. 

no

Start up executive

2.5 years in Birmingham

4/5/2023



OFFICE USE ONLY 
Meets Requirements? Yes No

Will Attend/ Unable to Attend 

APPLICATION FOR CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 

Thank you for your interest in serving on a Board or Committee. The purpose of this form is to provide the City 
Commission with basic information about applicants considered for appointment. NOTE: Completed applications are 
included in the City Commission agenda packets. The information included on this form is open to the public. All Board 
and Committee members are subject to the provisions of the Ethics Ordinance (Chapter 2, Article IX of the City Code). 

Information on various Boards and Committees and a list of current openings can be found on the City website at 

(Please print clearly) 

Board/Committee of Interest ____ 'P_u..----'· ,:._;(----'----'s'---_0-'-'-·1. r'l.......;;_d_·K_e_c_r_f"_�_c_h· _�1Y""\.----'----'_l?>_c_:>_ctA__;_..;.:;d'---________ _ 
Specific Category/Vacancy on Board '½-eJ lrL, (11�m b,· t lr1 (see back of this form for information) 

Al i-u/\a.te rn,-,vd::;,.., r
Name � n e �:?,rr"" a. r--.. Phone __ c;)_4_'?_· -_8_i_o_-_4'_fo_D_'1�--

Residential Address J 3 d lf B ,H t, "5 \r, l.\ """' 

Residential City, Zip tr,rrr-, 
0 ..:. 1 \"·nI

Business Address _____________ _ 

Business City, Zip _____________ _ 

Email* di3 \-\ofG,g,o I y @ a {Y)CIJ f ·' {cJY"Y\ 

Length of Residence ___ ()�-�-r+-e_c_.v_v_3 __ 

Occupation __ ____,f�\�+�-\..,.,o'-'r�o ......... e----'<....,,___ __

Reason for Interest: Explain how your background and skills will enhance the board to which you have applied __ _ 

�b"';;� � S � (>c.rt·/ 'O � 1" rn 1' /'L?,1,,,.� CL,v.d � '.Pu.-� WA.J ./\.P CAPa.:./,,'--V\.... � d t>a uu"'V). 

J. , .b� , ,r a rY'p.,ili,� ,J;, c • ½ p 1� 'lf:: 0o � lln--o � � i2 , -1- "' bo,-J z ""' • "'1---
G,v\ d -1 \vvvv-, IL 'o-J J ct. l:,o � a.. ..J............, � _j �� r<\..J h.-,. �1 °, 
List your related employment experience '?A "m o,1 ,�, a.R en �/, /:ir::,� CW"\ cL

C1> er m ,..µ c 1 ,,t.J C VVl l,....,,c L <kYJ cl d op 

List your related community activities Vo I uo:HdA 1 in c., f u.J rY'I I n ,·.:, l/) 1 '-<' .., et..--1--
o,,"' J Q.. +- ...v,J � "'l-,,) f oulck 1 /'I� � � m 1.,, � I 01., '<.Jl e,a J.\.._ \nh.....JL 

01) I\-( 't q -a-ct,M.} 
:i

To the best oi your knowledge, do you or a member of your immediate family have any direct financial or business 
relationships with any supplier, service provider or contractor of the City of Birmingham from which you or they derive 
direct compensation or financial benefit? If yes, please explain: __ __,__,_,_,O::c...-_____________ _ 

Do you currently have a relative serving on the board/committee to which you have applied? _N_...,.O"------

ou an elector (registered voter) in the City of Birmingham? - -J--+. __.,t'_$_.__ ___ _

LI / I / a. Of} 3
Date 

r 1 

City of Birmingham, City Clerk's Office, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI 48009 or by email to 

3C



PART II - CITY CODE 
Chapter 78 - PARKS AND RECREATION 

ARTICLE II. PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD 
 
 

 
Birmingham, Michigan, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022-01-18 11:23:42 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 1 of 3 

ARTICLE II. PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD1 

Sec. 78-26. Created; composition. 

There is hereby created a parks and recreation board consisting of the city manager and the director of 
public services or their designated representatives as nonvoting ex-officio members, and seven members, who are 
electors in the city, appointed by the city commission.  

The city commission may appoint two alternate members to serve as needed on the parks and recreation 
board during their term of appointment. An alternate member may be called on a rotating basis to sit as a regular 
member of the parks and recreation board in the absence of a regular member. An alternate member may also be 
called to service in the place of a regular member for the purpose of reaching a decision on a case in which the 
regular member has abstained for reasons of conflict of interest. An alternate member having been appointed 
shall serve in the case until a final decision has been made. An alternate member shall have the same voting rights 
as a regular member of the parks and recreation board.  

(Code 1963, § 3.21; Ord. No. 2233, 5-22-17) 

Sec. 78-27. Terms of members; vacancies. 

The initial members of the parks and recreation board shall be appointed for the following terms: Two for 
one year, two for two years, and three for three years. Thereafter, all such appointments, except to fill vacancies, 
shall be for a term of three years. All appointments for the purpose of filling vacancies occurring otherwise than by 
expiration of term of office, shall be for the unexpired term.  

(Code 1963, § 3.21) 

Sec. 78-28. Organization. 

Within 15 days after the appointment of members to the original parks and recreation board and within 15 
days after the making of annual appointments to the board, the members of the board shall meet in regular 
session and elect from the members a chairman who shall be the presiding officer of the board, and a vice-
chairman who shall serve in the absence of the chairman. A secretary who shall keep and maintain the minutes 
and records of the board shall also be elected. The secretary need not be a member of the board. The terms of 
office for such officers shall be one year and until their successors have been elected, and there shall be no 
limitation upon successive elections of the same person to any office. The ex-officio members of the board may 
not act as chairman or vice-chairman but may act as secretary.  

(Code 1963, § 3.22) 

                                                                 

1Cross reference(s)—Boards and commissions, § 2-171 et seq.  

3C



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-01-18 11:23:42 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 2 of 3 

Sec. 78-29. Compensation. 

All members of the parks and recreation board, except ex-officio members, shall serve without 
compensation.  

(Code 1963, § 3.23) 

Sec. 78-30. Meetings and quorum. 

The parks and recreation board shall set a time for a regular meeting at least once each month and shall 
determine the manner in which special meetings may be noticed and held. The chairman may cancel a meeting if 
there is no matter requiring consideration by the board. A quorum for the transaction of business at the regular 
and special meetings shall be five members, at least one of whom shall be an ex-officio member or his designated 
representative.  

(Code 1963, § 3.24; Ord. No. 2022, 2-22-10) 

Sec. 78-31. Objectives and duties. 

The parks and recreation board shall promote a recreation program and a park development program for the 
city. In carrying out these objectives it shall:  

(1) Serve as a forum for the consideration of policy matters related to the operation of a park and 
recreation program.  

(2) Advise the public with regard to the policies established by the city commission relating to the park and 
recreation program.  

(3) Serve in advisory capacity to the city commission in regard to all matters affecting parks and recreation 
which are referred to it by the city commission.  

(4) Recommend to the city commission a recreation program, fee schedules, and the adoption of a long-
range program for the development of park areas and facilities.  

(5) Recommend to the city commission hours of operation and allocation of facility use.  

(Code 1963, § 3.25) 

Sec. 78-32. Regulations. 

The parks and recreation board shall recommend to the city commission for adoption such rules and 
regulations pertaining to the conduct and use of parks and public grounds as are necessary to administer the same 
and to protect public property and the safety, health, morals, and welfare of the public. The violation of any such 
duly adopted rule or regulation by any party shall be deemed to constitute a violation of this section.  

(Code 1963, § 3.26) 

Sec. 78-33. Scope of authority. 

The parks and recreation board is a nonadministrative board serving solely in an advisory capacity. In that 
capacity, the board may make recommendations to the city commission but may not assume any legislative or 

3C



 
 

 
    Created: 2022-01-18 11:23:42 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 45) 

 
Page 3 of 3 

administrative authority in the operation of any city department, park, or recreation facility except as specifically 
provided in this article.  

(Code 1963, § 3.27) 

Secs. 78-34—78-55. Reserved. 

 

3C



1  May 22, 2017 
 

EXCERPT 
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 

MAY 22, 2017 
MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 

7:30 P.M. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Mark Nickita called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
 ROLL CALL: Present,  Mayor Nickita 

Mayor Pro Tem Harris 
Commissioner Bordman 

     Commissioner Boutros 
      Commissioner DeWeese  

Commissioner Hoff 
    Commissioner Sherman 
  Absent, None 
 
Administration:  City Manager Valentine, City Attorney Currier, City Clerk Brown, Police 
Commander Grewe, City Planner Ecker, Finance Director Gerber, Assistant to the City Manager 
Haines, City Engineer O’Meara, Library Director Koschik 
 
05-139 -17      USE OF ALTERNATES, REPORTING BOARD ATTENDANCE, AND 

MODIFYING REQUIREMENTS FOR BOARD MEMBERS 
Assistant to the City Manager Haines presented results of a review of board and committee 
attendance suggesting that three groups might benefit from having two alternate positions 
added to increase attendance and/or achieve quorum: 1) Advisory Parking Committee, 2) Parks 
and Recreation Board, and 3) Public Arts Board.  
 
Assistant to the City Manager Haines also presented, based on review of current methods of 
using alternates, the following recommended process for use of alternates to be consistent for 
all boards and committees, with the exception of the Zoning Board of Appeals. 

1. Alternates are to be called on a rotating basis to sit as a regular member in the absence 
of a regular member. 

2. Alternates are provided the same access (printed or electronic) to the agenda packet as 
regular members, regardless if they have been called to sit in as an alternate or not. 

3. Alternates are to be contacted with as much lead time before the meeting date as 
possible. Staff will ask during each meeting if any regular member is planning to be 
absent at the upcoming meeting. Staff will also email regular members at least two days 
prior to the meeting date to confirm attendance. The appropriate alternate (using a 
rotating schedule) is contacted by staff and confirms or denies the offer to sit in. A 
record of their attendance is maintained by staff based on if they were called and turned 
down the opportunity; then it would count as an absence. Not being asked does not 
constitute an absence and would be left blank in the attendance record. 

4. Alternates are expected to be familiar with current board issues either by attending live 
meetings, watching live broadcast remotely, reviewing archived video recordings of the 

3C



2  May 22, 2017 
 

meetings, or by reading the meeting minutes. In meetings where an issue discussed will 
be continued at a future meeting, it is appropriate to require that same alternate to 
come back, and the regular member to recuse his or herself based on their earlier 
absence. 

5. Alternates under consideration for selection and addition to a committee or board, must 
meet one of the already established criteria for one of the regular members. 

 
Commissioner Hoff asked why the rosters for some boards were included in the packet, and 
Assistant to the City Manager Haines explained the Commission had asked which boards used 
the language “in so far as possible” in regards to qualifications for appointment.   
 
Commissioner Hoff stated the requirement for alternates to be aware of issues is an important 
point. 
 
Commissioner Bordman advocated for alternates being required to attend all meetings, 
explaining that being present in the meeting room will elevate the status of alternates, promote 
comradery between the alternates and the regular board members, establish continuity in 
discussions, and allow alternates to be fully prepared. She further proposed that every member 
of a board or committee who misses a meeting be required to either read the minutes or watch 
the video of the meeting in order to keep up.  
 
Regarding attendance: 

• Commissioner Boutros noted the importance of enforcing attendance of regular 
members as well as alternates, and suggested a minimum attendance requirement for 
reappointment eligibility.  

• Mayor Nickita said attendance is documented for all appointees. He was not in favor of 
instituting a minimum attendance requirement, but suggested the Commission review 
attendance to determine whether or not reappointing a member would be appropriate. 

• Commissioner DeWeese concurred that attendance be taken for both regular and 
alternate members, and believed recording attendance results in self-adjustment. He 
recommended the attendance recording document contain no blanks, as blanks signify 
something missed.  

 
The Commission was generally in favor of Commissioner Bordman’s requirement for alternates 
to attend all meetings and discussed ways in which to implement the requirement into 
recommended process for use of alternates. Commissioner Sherman suggested Assistant to the 
City Manager Haines revise the policy in conformity with the Commission’s discussion, rather 
than either the Commission trying to draft new language at the table, or having staff bring a 
revised policy back. 
 
Assistant to the City Manager Haines summarized the discussion, noting the Commission wants 
clarification that alternates are required to attend all meetings, that a record of attendance of 
both alternates and regular members be maintained, and that the language is clear that the 
expectation of the alternate is the same level as that of a regular member. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Bordman, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harris: 
To amend the ordinances of the Advisory Parking Committee, the Parks and Recreation 
Board, and the Public Arts Board, to add 2 alternate positions to each as follows: 
 
To amend Resolution No. 08-882-84 – August 6, 1984, Advisory Parking Committee, Members. 

3C



3  May 22, 2017 
 

AND 
To amend Part II of the City Code, Chapter 78, Parks and Recreation, Article II., Parks 
and Recreation Board, Section 78-26, Created; composition. 

AND 
To amend Part II of the City Code, Chapter 78, Public Arts Board, Article V., Public Arts 
Board, Section 78-103, Composition and terms of members. 

AND 
To direct the city clerk to standardize the attendance reporting of all city boards and 
committees as outlined in the May 12, 2017 memorandum to the city manager and as clarified 
by the Commission and to direct staff to amend the Recommended Process for Use of 
Alternates as clarified by Commissioner Bordman. 
 
VOTE: Yeas, 7 
 Nays, 0 
 Absent, 0 
 

3C



3C



 

 

 

 

Expectations of Alternates on City Boards or Committees 

The following guidelines have been adopted from the May 22, 2017 Birmingham City 
Commission meeting. The Commission gave direction regarding alternates being 
required to attend all meetings, explaining that by being present in the room, it will 
elevate the status of alternates, promote comradery between the alternates and the 
regular board members, establish continuity in discussions, and allow alternates to be 
fully prepared. Further, it was proposed that every member of a board or committee 
who misses a meeting be required to either read the minutes or watch the video of the 
meeting in order to keep up. The expectation of the alternate is the same level of that 
of a regular member. The expectations are as follows: 

1. Alternates are expected to attend all meetings of their appointed board just as 
regular members are expected to attend all meetings. Alternates are to be utilized on a 
rotating basis to sit as a regular member in the absence of a regular member, except 
the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) may continue the existing practice of utilizing 
alternates by seniority. 

2. Alternates are provided the same access (printed or electronic) to the agenda packet 
as regular members. 

3. A record of attendance for all members, regular and alternates, is maintained by the 
staff person assigned to each board. If a member or an alternate cannot make a 
meeting, he or she should contact the staff person and advise them of their intended 
absence. 

4. In meetings where an issue discussed will be continued at a future meeting, and an 
alternate was utilized for that specific meeting, it is appropriate that the same alternate 
be utilized for that issue, and the regular member to recuse his or herself for that issue 
based on their earlier absence. 

5. Alternates under consideration for selection and addition to a committee or board as 
a regular member, must meet one of the already established criteria for one of the 
regular members. 

 

3C



MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: May 8, 2023  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Melissa A. Coatta, City Engineer  

SUBJECT:  Introduction to City Commission – Assistant Director of Engineering 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Engineering Department had a vacancy for an Assistant Director of Engineering in December 
2022 when Scott Zielinski was promoted to Director of the Department of Public Services.  The 
City held external and internal job posting and an interview process, and Cory Borton was the top 
candidate for Assistant Director of Engineering.    

Cory Borton has over 23 years of experience in civil engineering.  For eighteen years, he worked 
at an engineering consulting firm specializing in municipal engineering.  His tasks include general 
engineering services, MS4 and NPDES permitting, soil erosion and sedimentation Control 
programs, sewer investigation and rehabilitation program, and plan reviews for several 
communities.  His last five and half years were at Charter Township of Bloomfield as their Asset 
Management Coordination in the Engineering and Environmental Services Department where he 
was responsible for the implementation of asset management plans for water and sewer systems, 
managing water and sewer projects, MS4 permitting, and plan reviews for water and sewer 
connection, ordinance compliance, wetland, and tree and natural features.   

Cory has a bachelor's degree in Environmental Science from Central Michigan University and a 
master's degree in Urban Planning from Wayne State University.   

3D



Birmingham City Commission Minutes 
April 24, 2023 

Municipal Building, 151 Martin 
7:30 p.m.

Vimeo Link: https://vimeo.com/820766927 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Therese Longe, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
City Clerk Bingham called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Longe 
Mayor Pro Tem McLain 
Commissioner Baller 
Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Haig  
Commissioner Host 
Commissioner Schafer  

Absent: None 

Staff: City Manager Markus; Senior Planner Cowan, Planning Director Dupuis, Assistant City  
Manager Ecker, Finance Director Gerber, City Attorney Kucharek, Fire Marshal Scaife, Fire 
Chief Wells 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Announcements 
● The City recommends members of the public wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19

or have a respiratory illness. City staff, City Commission and all board and committee members
must wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19 or actively have a respiratory illness.
The City continues to provide KN-95 respirators and triple-layered masks for attendees.

● Arbor Day Celebration Proclamation
● Arab American Heritage Month Proclamation
● Chaldean-American Month Proclamation
● Clerk Week Proclamation

Appointments 

Neither Dennis Mando or Scott H. Sirich were available for interviews for the Board of Building Trades 
Appeals Appointments. The Mayor noted these would be reappointments and asked the Commission if they 
were interested in making nominations. 

04-083-23 Board of Building Trades Appeals Appointment

5A

https://vimeo.com/820766927


2 April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

MOTION: Nomination by MPT Boutros:  
To appoint Dennis Mando to the Board of Building Trades Appeals as a regular member to serve a three-
year term to expire May 23, 2026.  

VOICE VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Host 
Mayor Longe 
Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

Nays, None 

04-084-23 Board of Building Trades Appeals Appointment

MOTION: Nomination by MPT McLain:  
To appoint Scott H. Sirich to the Board of Building Trades Appeals as a regular member to serve a three-
year term to expire May 23, 2026.  

VOICE VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Host 
Mayor Longe 
Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

Nays, None 

The Mayor noted that Messrs. Mando and Sirich would be sworn in at a later date. 

Employee Recognition 

FC Wells stated that he was informed earlier on April 24, 2023 that Birmingham’s ISO rating was raised to 
a two. He recognized the promotion of Jeff Scaife to Fire Marshal. 

FM Scaife briefly spoke and was acknowledged by the Commission. 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

V. CONSENT AGENDA
04-085-23 Consent Agenda

The following items were pulled from the Consent Agenda: 
Commissioner Haig: Item H – Amendment to Tennis Facility Lease 

Item K – Delinquent Special Assessments/Invoices to the Tax Roll 
MPT McLain:  Item D – Warrant List Dated 04/05/2023 

5A



3  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

    Item M – Temporary Art Installation - Piano in the Park 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by MPT McLain: 
To approve the Consent Agenda excluding Items D, H, K, and M. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
 

A. Resolution to approve the City Commission regular meeting minutes of March 27, 2023. 
 

B. Resolution to approve the City Commission workshop meeting minutes of April 3, 2023. 
 

C. Resolution to approve the City Commission regular meeting minutes of April 3, 2023. 
 

E. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated April 
12, 2023 in the amount of $633,448.28. 
 

F. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated April 
19, 2023 in the amount of $1,190,459.59. 

G. Resolution to approve the purchase of a Tandem-Axle Dump Truck from Wolverine Truck Group, 
located at 107 S. Groesbeck, Mt. Clemens, MI 48043, under the Rochester Hills Cooperative 
Agreement, RFP-RH-20-023, in the amount not to exceed $313,976.00. In addition, to authorize 
the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. Funds for this purchase are 
available in the FY 2022-2023 Auto Equipment Fund account #661.0-441.006.971.0100. 

I. Resolution to approve an extension of the public services and minor home repair contract with 
NEXT for the purpose of expending remaining program year 2020-2021 Community Development 
Block Grant funds for Minor Home Repair Services administered by NEXT through June 30, 2024; 
and further, to authorize the Mayor and the City Clerk to sign the amendment on behalf of the City. 

J. Resolution to award the 2022-2023 Public Services contract totaling $10,445.00 for Yard Services 
and Senior Outreach Services to NEXT under the Community Development Block Grant Program; 
and further, to authorize the Mayor to sign the contract on behalf of the City. 

L. Resolution WHEREAS, The City Treasurer, in accordance with Chapter 114, Section 114-303, of the 
city code has reported certain water/sewage accounts, including interest and penalty, unpaid and 
delinquent on May 1, 2023, and  

WHEREAS, Chapter 114, Section 114-303, of the city code provides that these payments shall be 
carried to the next annual city tax roll.  

5A



4  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the properties with unpaid and delinquent water/sewage 
accounts, listed in the Delinquent Water/Sewer Tax Roll, dated April 13, 2023, including interest 
and penalty, be transferred and reassessed to the 2023 city tax roll and authorization be given to 
remove from the list any bills paid or a payment plan agreement signed after commission approval.  

N. Resolution to approve the project budget increase for Contract #5-21 (P), 2021 Asphalt Resurfacing 
Program, by $382,510.00 to a total budget for Parking Lot No. 5 of $485,510.00, and approving 
the appropriation and amendment of the 2022/2023 budget as follows:  

Automobile Parking System:  
Revenues:     
Draw from Fund Balance 514.1-000.000-400.0000   $382,510.00 
 
Expenditures:  
Public Improvements  514.1-594.005-981.0100-21.ASPHALT $382,510.00 

O. Resolution to set the Public Hearing of Necessity for the construction of sidewalk and streetscape 
improvements adjacent to all properties within the project area on Brown Street, from S. Old 
Woodward Ave. to Woodward Ave., on Monday, May 8, 2023, at 7:30 P.M.; and 

If necessity is determined on May 8, 2023, to meet on Monday, May 22, 2023, at 7:30 P.M., for the 
purpose of conducting the Public Hearing to Confirm the Assessment Roll for construction of 
sidewalk and streetscape improvements adjacent to all properties within the project area on Brown 
Street, from S. Old Woodward Ave. to Woodward Ave. 

P. Resolution to accept the resignation of George Stern from the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board, 
to thank him for his service, and to direct the City Clerk to begin the process of filling the vacancy 
of this regular board member position with term expiration of July 6, 2024.  

Q. Resolution to accept the resignation of Robert Ziegleman, Chris McLogan and Luke Joseph from the 
Housing Board of Appeals, to thank them for their service, and to direct the City Clerk to continue 
to accept applications to fill vacancies on the Housing Board of Appeals. 

 
The City Manager recommended the Commission handle the items removed from the consent agenda 
after discussing the Proposed Ordinance Amending Chapter 66 – Establishing Tenants Rights for Senior 
Citizens. 
 
The Commission concurred. 
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
04-086-23 Proposed Ordinance Amending Chapter 66 – Establishing Tenants Rights for  

Senior Citizens 
 
CA Kucharek presented the item. She and CM Markus answered informational questions from the 
Commission.  
 
In reply to an inquiry from the Mayor, Oakland County Commissioner (OCC) Charlie Cavell advised the 
Commission that the two Michigan House bills regarding tenants’ rights have been introduced every year 
for the last fifteen years. 
 

5A



5  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner comments were as follows: 
● It would be prudent to have some form of renters’ protections, and it is also important to ensure 

that the requirements are not overly burdensome for either landlord or tenant. A landlord-tenant 
Code of Conduct, in which present protections are listed and mediation is encouraged, might be an 
appropriate first step before legislation; 

○ Landlords could be invited to sign on to such a Code of Conduct, and could be listed as 
such. Tenants could also share comments regarding violations of the Code of Conduct; and, 

● All tenants, regardless of age, should be able to renew their leases unless there is just cause for 
non-renewal. 

 
Public Comment 
 
Diane Anderson described some renters’ recent difficulties with certain landlords in Birmingham and stated 
that Michigan is well-known for being lax in its tenant protections.  
 
Steve Tomkowiak, attorney with the Fair Housing Center of Metropolitan Detroit (FHCMD), listed 13 
Michigan municipalities that have source of income protection. He stated that, to his knowledge, no 
litigation has occurred because of source of income protection in Michigan. He said he could provide training 
and other comments on the matter free-of-charge since the FHCMD is grant-funded. He recommended, in 
concurrence with Commissioner Host, that tenant protections not be restricted by age, noting that it is 
illegal in Michigan for landlords to ask a tenant’s age. 
 
Dorothy Conrad stated the cost of fighting an eviction would often be prohibitive to renters. She stated 
she prevailed in her eviction case because of the support of hundreds of community members, and noted 
that every tenant could not rely on similar levels of advocacy. She noted that her tenant rights’ group had 
not been asked for input on the proposed ordinance changes. She asked that the currently proposed 
ordinance changes not be approved, that the Commission seek comment from tenants, and that the 
Commission reformulate the proposed changes based on those conversations. 
 
Mary Williams said, in concurrence with Commissioner Host, that tenant protections should be available to 
all good tenants. 
 
Jim Gromer, attorney, said limiting auto-renewal and source of income protections to the over 65 groups 
was proper. He spoke in favor of reaching a balance between landlords’ and tenants’ interests. 
 
Mike Santi stated he was a landlord to a tenant that remained in her apartment until she passed away at 
106 years old. He said there were two sides to the story about landlords. 
 
Jenni Scheid, attorney, said she worked for 20 years with the Michigan Department of Civil Rights (MDCR) 
and that age restrictions included in the currently proposed ordinance changes would violate Michigan’s 
Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act. She recommended the City consult the MDCR for their opinion on the 
currently proposed ordinance changes.  
 
Sue Chatlin noted that people with disabilities are another group that could be severely impacted by a lack 
of tenant protections. She asked that tenant protections be extended to all tenants, and not just those 
over the age of 65. 
 
Mary Ryan Taras said she was disappointed with the narrowness of the proposed ordinance changes. She 
said Birmingham had an opportunity to present a moderate ordinance that would balance landlord and 
tenant rights, and that the State could look to for a model for future legislation. She expressed 

5A



6  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

disappointment that tenants were not asked for input on the proposed ordinance changes. She encouraged 
the Commission to be brave and to have a meeting for listening to all affected voices on the topic. She 
said that rights and justice should not be age-limited.  
 
OCC Cavell stated that Oakland County created an Attainable Housing Trust Fund in 2021. He said that 
any increased housing access, fair housing, and/or protection of renters’ rights in the City would enable 
developers working in Birmingham to access funds from the Attainable Housing Trust Fund, which is 
permanently funded. 
 
Seeing no further public comment, the Mayor returned the discussion to the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Boutros said he was not ready to vote on the item. He recommended the City solicit more 
guidance from attorneys who work on these topics and from the MDCR. 
 
The Mayor said there were a minimum of three open issues regarding the matter: the practicality of a Code 
of Conduct as opposed to an ordinance change, whether an age limit in the ordinance would be prohibited 
under the Elliott-Larsen Civil Rights Act, and whether the word ‘citizen’ should be removed. 
 
The Mayor encouraged any interested member of the public to email their opinions on the matter to the 
City Manager for referral to the Commission.  
 
MPT McLain explained all the research and work that goes into consideration of these matters. She also 
encouraged residents to reach out, by email, mailed letters, the GovAlert app, or via voicemail that could 
be transcribed and shared. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by Commissioner Haig: 
To table the proposed ordinance to establish tenants’ rights for senior citizens to a later date. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
 
The Mayor thanked everyone for their participation. 
 

VII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
04-087-23 Amendment to Tennis Facility Lease (Item H) 
 
CM Markus answered informational questions from the Commission. He stated that he believed this 
represented a recreational asset to the community. 
 
Commissioner Baller concurred with CM Markus, and added that he would be supportive of considering 
similar recreational opportunities with other operators on small portions of public land. 
 

5A



7 April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner Boutros concurred with the City Manager as well. He said requiring parking would change 
the operator’s considerations. 

Commissioner Haig said he would like to know if the tennis operator would be charged market rate. He 
said not requiring parking in this case was different from other commercial uses that have been before the 
Commission. 

CM Markus explained that this would be a public-private partnership, which is different from the other 
commercial uses mentioned by Commissioner Haig as potentially precedential. He noted that there would 
be common parking for all recreational uses. He said there was no shortage of parking during the winter 
months unless there was a major hockey tournament, and noted that on-street parking was also available. 

Commissioner Baller said he estimated that the rate was close to market rate, and noted that the City 
was receiving a service in return. 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, seconded by Commissioner Schafer: 
To approve the Fourth Amendment to the Tennis Facility Lease with the Birmingham Racquet Club 
authorizing a second ten (10) year extension to the lease, ending September 30, 2043, in consideration of 
the Lessee making long-term improvements and maintenance of the tennis facility and offering a resident 
discount of 20% across all memberships according to Attachment A. Further, to authorize the Mayor and 
Clerk to sign the agreement upon receipt of the required insurance. 

Public Comment 

Pam Graham recommended the motion not be approved presently because of concerns around 
transparency, competitiveness, meeting the programming needs of everyone in the community, the level 
and prices of services, flexibility, and the measures taken to protect City assets. 

CM Markus noted that one of the courts is striped for pickleball, and agreed with Ms. Graham that it helps 
meet the programming needs of the community. 

Jeff Stassen, CEO of the Birmingham Racquet Club, said the goal is to continue to provide first-rate service 
to Birmingham and the surrounding communities. He said the expense of the maintenance required more 
time to amortize the costs. He said the goal was to install the new domes in August 2024. He explained 
how the Racquet Club benefits the community and noted that tennis was a financially difficult sport to 
provide space for.  

In reply to CM Markus, Mr. Stassen confirmed he was not just amortizing for depreciation purposes. He 
confirmed he was amortizing the cost over the expected life of the facility with the hope that enough 
revenue could be generated to pay the expenses and generate some profit. He stated that the rates being 
charged were competitive and were evidenced by the routinely full courts. 

Commissioner Baller said he appreciated Ms. Graham’s comments, and said it was possible the Parks and 
Recreation Board should have weighed in on the item. He also offered his support for the motion. 

ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 
Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Host 
Mayor Longe 
Commissioner Haig 

5A



8  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
 
04-088-23 Delinquent Special Assessments/Invoices to the Tax Roll (Item K) 
 
Commissioner Haig said the City should discourage those who frequently are delinquent on their Special 
Assessments/Invoices to the Tax Roll from continuing to be so. He noted that previous Commissioner 
Sherman had made a similar comment when the same item had occurred in years prior. 
 
FD Gerber said he was not sure, beyond the 15% penalty, how to encourage residents to pay their bills 
on time. 
 
CM Markus noted the issue may have related more to Consent Agenda Item L. 
 
Commissioner Haig said he picked between Consent Agenda Items K and L to make the comment. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Haig, seconded by Commissioner Boutros: 
To move Consent Agenda Item K as written in the evening’s agenda packet. 

K.            Resolution  WHEREAS, the City Treasurer, in accordance with the provisions in the City Code 
has reported certain special assessments and invoices, including interest and penalty, unpaid and 
delinquent on  May 1, 2023, and 

WHEREAS, the City Code provides that these delinquent special assessments and invoices shall be 
carried to the next annual City tax roll, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the listing of unpaid and delinquent special  assessments 
and invoices, including interest and penalty, be transferred and reassessed to the 2023 City tax roll 
with an additional 15% penalty and authorization be given to remove from the list any bills paid 
after commission approval.  

 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
 
 
 
 
 
04-089-23 Warrant List Dated 04/05/2023 (Item D) 
 

5A



9  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

MPT McLain noted that the warrant list included payments to the 48th District Court, and informed the 
public that she would observe every time the City makes a payment to the 48th District Court since 
concerns have arisen in the past. 
 
MOTION: Motion by MPT McLain, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated April 5, 2023 in the 
amount of $402,708.23. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
 
04-090-23 Temporary Art Installation - Piano in the Park (Item M) 
 
MPT McLain said it would be beneficial to provide signage that encourages members of the public to respect 
the instrument. 
 
CM Markus said he directed Staff to find a way to tether the piano so it could be moved for concerts but 
not removed from the Park. He said other communities also use outdoor furniture covers for their outdoor 
pianos. 
 
MPT McLain said she would be happy to donate an outdoor furniture cover for the piano if allowed. 
 
MOTION: Motion by MPT McLain, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve the art donation and temporary art installation of a piano to be placed in Shain Park beneath 
the Markus Pavilion from the middle of May 2023 to the end of November 2023. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (Cont.) 
04-091-23 Public Hearing - to amend Chapter 126 (Zoning), Article 3, Section 3.04, Article  

3, Section 3.16, Article 4, Section 4.44 and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide clear 
and enforceable outdoor dining standards AND to amend Chapter 98 (Streets, 
Sidewalks and Other Public Places), Article 2 and Article 3, to add language for 
outdoor dining facilities on public property 

5A



10  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 9:42 p.m. 
 
PD Dupuis explained the request to postpone. 
 
Seeing no public comment, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 9:43 p.m. 
 
PD Dupuis answered informational questions from the Commission.  
 
Commissioner Baller said he would like to know the history of, and the reasoning for, the City’s dislike of 
eisenglass when the item returns. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros: 
To postpone consideration of the amendments to Chapter 126 (Zoning), Article 3, Section 3.04, Article 3, 
Section 3.16, Article 4, Section 4.44 and Article 9, Section 9.02 AND the amendments to Chapter 98 
(Streets, Sidewalks and Other Public Places), Article 2 and Article 3, to a date certain of May 22, 2023. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
    

Absent, Commissioner Haig 
 
04-092-23 Proposed Ordinance Amending Chapter 26 – Establishing and Regulating  

Marihuana 
 
CA Kucharek presented the item. CA Kucharek, CM Markus, and PD Dupuis answered informational 
questions from the Commission. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Baller, PD Dupuis clarified that there were a few parcels on Woodward between 
14 Mile and Lincoln that were inadvertently left off the map despite being an area where marihuana 
businesses could be located. 
 
Commissioner comments were as follows: 

● The content of petitions can be misrepresented, and there would be no recourse on the part of the 
City vis-a-vis those misrepresentations; 

● The marihuana laws at the State level were in part formed in response to the lobbying process; 
● Passing a marihuana ordinance preëmptively is a much more prudent step than the other available 

options; and, 
● If additional parks were located in certain areas of the City, it might be impossible to locate a 

marihuana business in Birmingham that would be compliant with State law. 
 
 
 
 

5A



11  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

Public Comment 
 
Aric Klar of Quality Roots said that Birmingham was home to many people knowledgeable in the marihuana 
industry and recommended the City seek out expert advice. He said there was likely to be extensive 
competition to locate a retail marihuana business in the City. He cautioned that the proposed ordinance as 
presently written would likely result in litigation.  
 
Christie Kelly of Sozo concurred with Mr. Klar that marihuana businesses would demonstrate significant 
interest in locating in Birmingham. She said the Commission might want to revisit whether one retail 
location would adequately meet the likely demand. She recommended that the City create an application 
review panel composed of some of the subject matter experts in the City. 
 
Carol Mastroianni, Executive Director of the Birmingham Bloomfield Community Coalition (BBCC), reviewed: 
changes in THC content of marihuana products over time, the use of THC-containing products by high 
schoolers in the BBCC’s served communities, the levels self-reported mental health concerns in teens in 
BBCC’s served communities, and the increased link between mental health distress and the use of THC-
containing products.  
 
Rob Crosby said he runs a financial services business in downtown Birmingham and posited that business 
owners in downton Birmingham would not like having a dispensary close by.  
 
Kelly Michaud of BBCC reviewed: the perception among teens of risk and harm associated with trying 
marihuana, the perception among teens of access to THC-containing products, the likelihood of marihuana 
addiction in teens, and the potential links between marihuana use and long-term mental health difficulties. 
 
Dana LaKritz Marcus said her preference would be that no marihuana retail establishments be allowed in 
the City. She acknowledged that may not be possible, and raised concerns about the appeal of marihuana 
establishments to children and the impact of marihuana on adolescents’ brain development. 
 
Seeing no further public comment, the conversation was returned to the Commission. 
 
Commissioner comments were as follows: 

● The City needs to consult some of the subject experts for advice on this process; 
● It would be worthwhile for the City Attorney to speak with Keego Harbor, Michigan about their 

recent experiences with marihuana businesses; and, 
● It would be worthwhile for the City Attorney to speak with litigators that specialize in defending 

municipalities in cases pertaining to marihuana businesses. 
 
In reply to the Mayor, CA Kucharek said she would be happy to speak with a litigator that specializes in 
defending cities in cases pertaining to marihuana businesses about the proposed ordinance language. 
 
MOTION: Motion by MPT McLain, Commissioner Boutros: 
To table consideration of the issue to a future date. 
 
Commissioner Haig expressed concern about there being an influx of potential marihuana business 
applications based on comments from Mr. Klar. 
 
The Mayor said that was likely to occur regardless of whether the proposed ordinance language was 
presently passed or not. She said her priority was to pass the most defensible ordinance possible. 
 

5A



12  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner Host said he was intrigued by the idea of creating more City parks, and said residents would 
likely appreciate additional parks. 
 
The Mayor noted that the City Manager could consider the feasibility of that option while CA Kucharek also 
conducts her separate research.  
 
Commissioner Baller agreed the City Manager should explore that option. The Commissioner also requested 
an updated map inclusive of all possible locations.  
 
In reply to a request for clarification, CA Kucharek said the ordinance would aim to limit the number of 
available marihuana business licenses in the City. She explained that because aspects of this area of the 
law are still being decided, she could not guarantee that the ordinance would limit the number of available 
marihuana business licenses in the City long-term. 
 
The Mayor said it would be better for the City to be proactive.  
 
Commissioner Schafer said it was appropriate to table the conversation since there seemed to be a number 
of opinions on how the Commission should proceed. She also thanked Ms. Mastroianni and Ms. Michaud 
for their work on behalf of Birmingham youth. 
 
Public Comment 
 
David Bloom concurred with Commissioner Schafer that more information would help the Commission 
navigate the available options, including the potential option of creating new parks. He recommended the 
City create a board to study the options available to the community, and that the board could also serve 
to review marihuana business applications if the City proceeds with that option. 
 
Ms. Kelly said State marihuana law does not set forth parks as a prohibited use or create a buffer space 
around parks.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
04-093-23 Establishment of an Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee 
 
ACM Ecker presented the item and answered informational questions from the Commission.  
 
Commissioner comments were as follows: 

● It would be appropriate to have someone on the committee who studies demographics and data; 
● It might be appropriate to have additional committee members familiar with the needs of the senior 

community; 

5A



13  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

● It would be appropriate to have an additional committee member able to write well for the 
composition of the committee’s action plan; 

● It might be worthwhile to increase the number of committee members to nine, from seven; and, 
● The committee would have the opportunity to speak with Oakland County and SEMCOG experts on 

seniors, which would help address the need for demographic data. 
 
ACM Ecker said that Staff tends to prefer committees of seven instead of nine, and noted the Commission 
has discretion on the committee size. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Baller, the Mayor concurred that Staff could be encouraged to make whatever 
changes deemed necessary based on the Commission’s comments. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Haig, MPT McLain: 
To establish the Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee for a term of 18 months, and to direct staff to advertise 
for upcoming appointments to this committee; further, once established, to direct staff to facilitate the 
requested studies and research needed to develop an action plan to improve the health, safety and welfare 
of senior citizens in Birmingham.  
 
Commissioner Baller said he would support the motion as long as ACM Ecker had the ability to adjust the 
committee roster based on Commission comments. 
 
Commissioner Haig concurred. 
 
The Mayor noted the committee roster would also be informed by the qualifications of the applicants. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
Commissioner Baller 

 
   Nays, None 
 
04-094-23 Public Hearing for 1429 Quarton Road (Parcel # 19-26-203-003) – Lot Division  
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 11:23 p.m. 
 
SP Cowan presented the item. 
 
Jon and Jan Elvekrog, applicants, spoke on behalf of the item. 
 
Public Comment 
 
In reply to Mike Santi, neighbor to the west, SP Cowan stated that further lot splits would be up to the 
future property owner and would have to be checked against the requirements of the municipal code. He 
explained how setbacks in the City are calculated. 
 

5A



14  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

Mr. Santi said he would not be in favor of further lot splits because it could increase the number of adjacent 
homes and decrease the green space visible from this home. 
 
Webb Barnes, neighbor to the east, said he was fine with the lot split and just did not want his property 
taxes to be increased as a result of the lot split. 
 
In reply to Mr. Barnes, CM Markus explained that property taxes are usually based on the value of the 
property determined from comparable sales. CM Markus said that a lot split of one property would not 
cause a different property’s taxes to increase. 
 
The Mayor noted there were five letters on the matter that were entered into the record, with two in 
support and three against the requested lot split. 
 
The Mayor closed the public hearing at 11:44 p.m. 
 
Individual Commissioner comments were as follows: 

● This lot split would adversely impact the interests of the abutting property owners, which is one of 
the criteria the ordinance requires the Commission consider. The neighbor to the south asserted 
this lot split would devalue their property. The lots were probably platted with the depth they have 
to compensate for being located on Quarton, which is a busy road. The letter writers concerned 
about drainage on Pilgrim should consider petitioning for improvements to their unimproved street, 
in order to improve the drainage on the street; 

● The lot complies with the ordinance requirements for a lot split, and consequently should be 
permitted. The left side of Chesterfield between Raynale and Quarton has three lots where one 
previously was; 

● The previous Commission moved lot splits and lot combinations to the Commission so that they 
could be reviewed on a case-by-case basis to determine what was best for the community. Usually 
these proposals come to the Commission with more information, including a proposed house design 
and a developer, which allowed for more certainty in the evaluation; 

● The previous Commission only ran into issues with neighbors regarding lot combinations, since they 
allowed for larger houses. There has not been an issue before with lot splits. There should not be 
an issue with a requested lot split that otherwise meets all of the ordinance requirements; 

● Since neighbors have voiced concerns about the lot split, and the applicant seemed more flexible 
in their request, it would be better to err on the side of the neighbors; 

● The applicant, if interested, could include a covenant for this lot split that would prevent further lot 
splits so as to not adversely affect Mr. Santi. The lot split otherwise meets the ordinance 
requirements. Those on Pilgrim should petition to improve their road to address drainage issues; 
and, 

● The argument that the lot split would devalue a neighboring property is subjective. The argument 
that the increased green space is more pleasing to the neighbors is also not relevant, since each 
property owner is allowed to do what they wish with their own private property. The lot split seems 
to meet the overall intent of the ordinance. In addition, if Mr. Santi wanted to preserve the green 
space on the split lot, he could always purchase the portion without a home. 

 
The Mayor asked Mr. Elvekrog whether he would like the Commission to proceed with a vote or to pend 
the item. 
 
Mr. Elvekrog asked the Commission to proceed with a vote.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, Commissioner Host: 

5A



15  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

To approve the lot division of 1429 Quarton Road, parcel # 19-26-203-003. 
 
Commissioner Boutros addressed Mr. Santi’s concerns, stating that the Commission reviews these requests 
on a case-by-case basis. He said it was unlikely that a further lot split of the property would be as supported 
by the Commission. He noted that some further lot splits might not even meet the requirements of the 
ordinance, given the setbacks and other considerations. Commissioner Boutros said he was moving this 
motion because he believed the present request was fair and met the ordinance requirements. 
 
At the request of Commissioner Baller, the Mayor asked whether any Commissioners had any ex parte 
communication with the applicant. 
 
No Commissioners indicated that they had. 
 
Public Comment 
Mr. Santi stated that the previous owner of his lot had pursued a lot split which was denied. He asked the 
Commission to research why the split of his lot was denied. He said the potential approval of this motion, 
in light of the previously denied split of his lot, was unfair.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 

 
   Nays, MPT McLain 
    Mayor Longe 
    Commissioner Baller 
 
04-095-23 Proposed Ordinance Amending Chapter 2 – Changes to the Ethics Ordinance 
 
CC Bingham presented the item. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, Commissioner Boutros: 
To adopt the ordinance amendments as recommended by the Board of Ethics and to further direct the City 
Clerk to notice the two available alternate Ethics Board member positions and begin the process of filling 
these vacancies. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Mr. Bloom said the ordinance required further revisions, including a way to address the conduct of officials 
outside of their official duties, a way for Commissioners to both engage in advocacy and to be fair and 
impartial where appropriate, and expanding the Ethics Board to five people plus two alternates. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 

Commissioner Haig 
Commissioner Schafer 
MPT McLain 

    Mayor Longe 
    Commissioner Baller 
 

5A



16  April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

   Nays, None 
Commission Items for Future Discussion 
 
04-096-23 Special Assessments for Funding Police and Fire Operations 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Baller, Commissioner Host: 
To have further discussion about how some communities use special assessments to fund Police and Fire 
operations and whether that would be an appropriate funding mechanism for Birmingham to explore. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Baller 
 
   Nays, Commissioner Schafer 

MPT McLain 
    Mayor Longe 
    Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Haig 
 
Commission Discussion On Items From A Prior Meeting 
No items were discussed. 
 
04-097-23 Request for Closed Session Under MCL § 15.268 Sec. 8(d) of the Open Meetings 

Act and MCL § 15.268 Sec. 8(h)  
 
CA Kucharek summarized the item. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host, Commissioner Baller: 
To meet in closed session to discuss the potential purchase of land pursuant to MCL § 15.268 Sec. 8(d) of 
the Open Meetings Act and pursuant to MCL § 15.268 Sec. 8(h) to discuss a written attorney client 
privileged communication. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Host 
    Commissioner Baller 
    Commissioner Schafer 

MPT McLain 
    Mayor Longe 
    Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 
The Commission went into closed session at 12:40 a.m. 
 
The Commission returned from closed session at 1:23 a.m. 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 

1. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Historic District Study Committee 

5A



17 April 24, 2023 - DRAFT 

2. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board
3. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Martha Baldwin Park Board
4. Notice of Intention to Appoint to the Board of Ethics

B. Commissioner Comments

Commissioner Host read a statement explaining his concerns regarding the revised Code of Conduct and 
provided a copy of the statement to the City Clerk to receive and file. 

Commissioner Baller addressed an item in the City Manager’s Report. He clarified that he had no interest 
in having the City involved in the formation or administration of a Foundation. He described further topics 
around event creation and administration that he was interested in exploring and discussing. 

Commissioner Baller then praised the Commission and the City administration. He asked the Commission 
to read the budget thoroughly in advance of the upcoming Budget Hearing and to raise questions and 
concerns. 

MPT McLain asked that the City develop a one-page summary of the Ad Hoc Unimproved Streets Study 
Committee’s report in order to better communicate the information to residents. She said there was a lot 
of resident interest in the topic.  

C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas
D. Legislation
E. City Staff

1. City Manager’s Report

CM Markus reviewed his report. He said Staff would schedule a workshop for the Commission to discuss 
the Code of Conduct. 

2. Code of Conduct

INFORMATION ONLY 

XI. ADJOURN

Mayor Longe adjourned the meeting at 1:23 a.m. 

0BAlexandria Bingham, City Clerk Laura Eichenhorn, City Transcriptionist 

5A



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

04/26/2023

05/08/2023

PAPER CHECK

500.00ALBERT D THOMAS INCBDREFUND291740

4,384.91ALLIED FIRE SALES & SERVICE009372291741

70.24AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126291742

100.00APEX ROOFING INCBDREFUND291743

65.00ARTECH PRINTING INC000500291744

375.00AT&T006759*291745

318.03AT&T006759*291746

155.61AT&T006759*291747

1,187.84AT&T MOBILITY003703*291748

100.00B-DRY SYSTEM OF MICHIGAN INCBDREFUND291749

300.00Ball ConstructionBDREFUND291750

100.00BAZAJ, ADRIANBDREFUND291751

2,500.00BIRMINGHAM BLOOMFIELD CHAMBER002429*291752

464.00BIRMINGHAM LOCKSMITH INC000524*291753

32.60BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS008355291754

200.00BLACK & VEATCHBDREFUND291755

139.86BLOOMFIELD TWP FIRE DEPT002982*291756

200.00DAVID A. BOUTETTE005706*291757

100.00BREWER ROOFINGBDREFUND291758

501.74BRIDGESTONE GOLF, INC006966291759

200.00BRIGHT HOME RENOVATIONBDREFUND291760

1,756.00BS&A SOFTWARE, INC006520291761

13,225.00BS&A SOFTWARE, INC006520*291761

2,677.54CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC009078*291762

57.34CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT004269291763

100.00CLARK BASEMENT WATERPROOFING/DBDREFUND291764

1,615.24CLEAR RATE COMMUNICATIONS, INC008006*291765

100.00COMPLETE CONTRACTING SERVICES, LLCBDREFUND291766

1,579.57CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*291767

1,178.88CORE & MAIN LP008582291768

1,836.00COSTAR REALTY INFORMATION, INC008801*291769

1,850.00DANIEL CRUMP DBA009549*291770

2,275.00DAVEY RESOURCE GROUP, INC.009529291771

180.00DAVID BRUECKMANMISC291772

650.00DEFENSE TECHNOLOGY LLC009643291773

1,710.00DENNIS DEMBIECMISC291774

2,000.00DJL1 LLCBDREFUND291775

7.80DOWNRIVER REFRIGERATION000190*291776

194.16DTE ENERGY000179*291777

9,953.46DTE ENERGY000180*291778

140.00DYNAMIC BRANDS007045*291779

4,572.00EAGLE SECURITY & LIFE SAFETY, INC009575291780

1,170.15EQUATURE000995*291781 5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

04/26/2023

05/08/2023

14.95 ERIKA MCCLOSKEYMISC291782

4,334.36 FARMINGTON COMM. LIBRARY000585291783

277.00 FAST SIGNS001223291784

16.83 FEDEX000936*291785

593.33 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES, INC.007136291786

44.23 FIRST ADVANTAGE OCCUPATIONAL CORP007366*291787

100.00 FORTRESS HOME IMPROVEMENTBDREFUND291788

100.00 FOUNDATION SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN INC.BDREFUND291789

1,500.00 FRANCE MEDIA INC009313*291790

200.00 FULLERTON ENGINEERINGBDREFUND291791

2,223.55 GORDON FOOD004604*291792

225.04 GRID 4 COMMUNICATIONS INC.006666*291793

279.60 GUARDIAN ALARM000249291794

6,594.00 HARRELL'S LLC006346291795

875.00 HASTINGS AIR-ENERGY CONTROL INC003132291796

1,000.00 HATHAWAY, JOSEPH EDWARDBDREFUND291797

263.99 HFF MICHIGAN HOLDINGS INC009527291798

1,400.00 HILLAN HOMES, INCBDREFUND291799

1,400.00 HM HOMES LLCBDREFUND291800

466.80 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*291801

227.68 HOWLEY AGENCY SALES006801*291802

2,976.00 IBM CORPORATION009500*291803

5,284.69 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES001090291804

500.00 J.M. OLSONBDREFUND291806

1,000.00 JOSEPH J GILLETTEBDREFUND291807

1,000.00 K & K COMPANIESBDREFUND291808

500.00 KAMEN, ERICBDREFUND291809

599.29 KATHERINE ROSE COLLINS009238*291810

100.00 KELLETT DEVELOPMENT LLCBDREFUND291811

100.00 KEVIN B FANDOZZI ANN M EVENSONBDREFUND291812

151.00 KGM DISTRIBUTORS INC004088291813

74.85 KROGER COMPANY000362*291814

19.99 LAURA C PHILLIPSMISC291815

78.43 LITHIA MOTORS, INC SUPPORT SERVICES009375291816

500.00 LITTLE GUIDE LLC009350*291817

100.00 LOCHIRCO CUSTOM HOMESBDREFUND291818

1,913.18 LUXE HOMES DESIGN BUILD LLCBDREFUND291819

200.00 MAPLEWOOD EQUITIES LLCBDREFUND291820

20.00 MARC GARRISONMISC*291821

500.00 MASTERWORKS CONTRACTING LLCBDREFUND291822

226.45 MATT DEROUSSEMISC*291823

2,732.50 MCMI000369*291824

14.99 MICHAEL CASEYMISC291825

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

04/26/2023

05/08/2023

120.00 STATE OF MICHIGAN-BOILERS001228*291826

100.00 MIDWEST COLLABORATIVE006349291827

542.30 MIDWEST EXCAVATION LLCBDREFUND291828

1,729.70 MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET INC000230291829

288.00 GINA MOODY005634*291830

100.00 MR ROOF HOLDING CO LLCBDREFUND291831

200.00 MT EVEREST MAINTENANCEBDREFUND291832

100.00 MULLIGAN CONSTRUCTIONBDREFUND291833

3,961.27 MULTISTATE TRANSMISSIONS002010291834

500.00 N A MANS & SONS INCBDREFUND291835

15.99 NARUDEE PHONGADULYASOOKMISC291836

22.49 NATALIE FORDMISC291837

375.00 NATIONAL MAIN STREET008424*291838

792.00 NBS COMMERCIAL INTERIORS008336291839

1,000.00 NCS CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLCBDREFUND291840

10,700.00 NICK'S MAINTENANCE SERVICE004827*291841

100.00 OAKES ROOFING SIDING & WINDOWS INCBDREFUND291842

450.00 OAKLAND COUNTY MOMS008519*291843

563.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370*291844

162.93 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC009478*291845

200.00 OVERLAND CONTRACTING INC.BDREFUND291846

40.00 PAMELA GERBERMISC*291847

40.00 PATRICK OBRIENMISC*291848

500.00 PELLA WINDOWS & DOORS, INC.BDREFUND291849

34.36 PROGRESSIVE PLUMBING SUPPLY CO009614*291850

85.80 PTS COMMUNICATIONS, INC006625291851

500.00 PYTIAK DESIGN & BUILDBDREFUND291852

22.15 REYNOLDS WATER002566291853

1,560.00 ROBERT F RUNCO LODIA A RUNCOBDREFUND291854

2,300.00 ROBERT G WYLIN II009639*291855

200.00 ROBERT J SOWLESBDREFUND291856

100.00 ROMA CEMENT CO INCBDREFUND291857

200.00 MARGARET SCHMALTZ004727*291858

159.20 SCNS INC009601291859

15,450.00 SEEN MEDIA GROUP009282*291860

110.00 SHEARS CONSTRUCTIONBDREFUND291861

600.00 SIGNGRAPHIX, INC.BDREFUND291862

2,255.00 SINCLAIR RECREATION, LLC009641291863

8,478.00 SP+ CORPORATION007907291864

1,949.40 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS INC000260291865

3,040.00 SPECIALIZED STEELWORKS, LLC009338*291866

816.00 SPEEDY TEES INC001716*291867

1,200.00 STEPHEN SHUKWIT009201*291868

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

04/26/2023

05/08/2023

331.50 STRYKER SALES CORPORATION004544291869

845.00 SUCCESS COMMUNICATIONS, INC.005863291870

525.00 SUPERIOR DIESEAL REPAIR INC009618291871

1,440.00 SWNAK MOTION PICTURES, INC007781*291872

6,057.00 TECHHOME BUILDING CO., LLCBDREFUND291873

1,000.00 THOMAS PLUMBING & HEATINGBDREFUND291874

5,630.00 THOMAS SEBOLD & ASSOCIATES, INBDREFUND291875

96.90 TIFFANY FLORIST003173*291876

190.55 UNEMPLOYMENT INS AGENCY005449*291877

520.00 US FIGURE SKATING ASSOC.001279*291878

182.48 VALLEY CITY LINEN, INC007226291879

112.36 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*291880

98.12 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291881

151.22 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291882

316.37 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291883

300.00 VICTOR TALIA ARCHITECTURE LLCBDREFUND291884

122.10 VILLAGE AUTOMOTIVE INC006491291885

247.90 VISIT DETROIT009637*291886

26.94 WEINGARTZ SUPPLY CO.000299291887

100.00 WIRELESS FACILITIES INCBDREFUND291888

86,950.00 WJE-WISS, JANNEY, ELSTNER ASSOC.INC007620291889

500.00 WORK COMPANY LLCBDREFUND291890

100.00 YOUNG HO LEEBDREFUND291891

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $269,056.73

ACH TRANSACTION

26.88 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*39

38.24 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*40

231.93 ALEXANDRIA BINGHAM009323*7857

(88.99)AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267858

45.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7858

165.87 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7859

119.75 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7860

197.46 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267861

20.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267862

69.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267863

31.48 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7864

107.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267865

96.62 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267866

123.27 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267867

44.56 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267868

80.78 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267869

12.50 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267870

82.00 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267871 5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

04/26/2023

05/08/2023

44.19AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7872

792.00BEIER HOWLETT P.C.000517*7873

7.00BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*7874

392.00LISA MARIE BRADLEY003282*7875

761.00BRENNA SANDLES008983*7876

16.50JAIMI BROOK0085457877

5,010.00CANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE INC.0078757878

220.25CHRISTINA WOODS009352*7879

171.06CINTAS CORPORATION0006057880

227.60CINTAS CORPORATION0006057881

11,616.00CLARKE MOSQUITO CONTROL PRODUCT INC0036337882

314.95CONTRACTORS CLOTHING CO0026687883

26.52DETROIT CHEMICAL & PAPER SUPPLY007359*7884

409.32DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*7885

3,878.12EJ USA, INC.0001967886

16.50ERIKA BASSETT009250*7887

1,084.08FIRE DEFENSE EQUIP CO INC000213*7888

199.50FIRE SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN LLC001230*7889

2,424.75FLEIS AND VANDENBRINK ENG. INC007314*7890

512.20FOUR SEASON RADIATOR SERVICE INC0002177891

266.30GRAINGER000243*7892

255.00HAYES PRECISION INC001672*7893

1,200.00ICLEI0096357894

21,281.50J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002617895

304.00JAX KAR WASH002576*7896

500.00JCC CREATIVE LLC009249*7897

313.83JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*7898

2,086.45KONE INC004085*7899

4,116.64KROPF MECHANICAL SERVICE COMPANY005876*7900

722.91MIDWEST TAPE0020137901

1,107.50MILES PARTNERSHIP LLLP009242*7902

562.50NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*7903

502.50OSCAR W. LARSON CO.002767*7904

523.72PEPSI COLA001753*7905

2,750.03ROAD COMM FOR OAKLAND CO000478*7906

153.00ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*7907

1,015.00SIGNS-N-DESIGNS INC003785*7908

25.00NICHOLAS SLANDA007899*7909

73,144.00SOCRRA0002547910

6,740.00TRANSPARENT WINDOW CLEANING004692*7911

1,235.55VOLVIK USA0087117912

2,492.00WM. CROOK FIRE PROTECTION CO.0020887913

249.00YOURMEMBERSHIP.COM, INC0095927914

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

04/26/2023

05/08/2023

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $151,077.26

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $420,133.99

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

05/04/2023

05/08/2023

PAPER CHECK

70.72ACTION MAT & TOWEL RENTAL, INC006638291892

200.23ACUSHNET COMPANY008106*291893

60.00ALEXANDER MICHAEL PUDVAYMISC291894

30.33AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126291895

291.10AT&T006759*291896

721.33AT&T006759*291897

3,037.39AT&T006759*291898

600.00BALIAN LEGAL, PLC009609291899

203.16BECKETT, ROBERT AUBREFUND*291900

20.54BRENDEN MEREDITHMISC*291901

21.93JACQUELYN BRITO006953*291902

163.20CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC009078*291903

909.16CAPITAL ONE BANK003904*291904

2,173.62CASS COLLISION CLAWSON, INC008959291905

4,456.00CDW GOVERNMENT INC000444*291906

1,005.00CGS, INC009137*291907

9,095.00CMP DISTRIBUTORS INC002234291908

1,268.94COMCAST BUSINESS007774*291909

7,528.04CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*291910

1,860.50COOL THREADS EMBROIDERY008512291911

2,709.00ZECO, LLC009557*291912

188.87DEMCO, INC000575291913

1,305.62DOG WASTE DEPOT009130291914

6,487.45DTE ENERGY000179*291915

189.90DTE ENERGY000179*291916

5,559.01DTE ENERGY000179*291917

480.02DTE ENERGY000179*291918

1,987.76DTE ENERGY000179*291919

44.25DTE ENERGY000179*291920

338.40DTE ENERGY000179*291921

6,999.79DTE ENERGY000179*291922

2,068.56DTE ENERGY000179*291923

3,549.37DTE ENERGY000179*291924

14.89DTE ENERGY000179*291925

1,924.43DTE ENERGY000179*291926

42.13DTE ENERGY000179*291927

15.71DTE ENERGY000179*291928

29.62DTE ENERGY000179*291929

123.79DTE ENERGY000179*291930

26.58DTE ENERGY000179*291931

42.34DTE ENERGY000179*291932

142.00DTE ENERGY000179*291933

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

05/04/2023

05/08/2023

14.89DTE ENERGY000179291934

44.95EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITYMISC*291935

58.75GARY EISELE008164291936

350.00CITY OF FARMINGTON HILLS009620291937

175.75FAST SIGNS001223*291938

325.00FUNTASTIC FACESMISC*291939

500.00GLOCK PROFESSIONAL, INC009648291940

265.12GORDON FOOD004604*291941

743.50GREAT LAKES COCA-COLA DISTRIBUTION009275*291942

8,180.30GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY008007*291943

3,326.00GUNNERS METER & PARTS INC001531291944

2,868.94HERITAGE - CRYSTAL CLEAN, LLC007458291945

1,548.97HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*291946

239.00HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES007211*291947

1,647.13INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES001090291948

300.00IRENE S WASSEL009401*291949

346.00JOHN MANDICHMISC*291950

6.00JUDITH SIEGEL-ORRMISC*291951

8.32JUSTIN BURRISMISC291952

600.00JUSTIN ZAYID009403*291953

1,250.00KEATON PUBLICATIONS GROUP LLC002630*291954

73.88KROGER COMPANY000362*291955

2,170.00LAW OFFICE OF BRIAN P. FENECH009386*291956

600.00LAW OFFICE OF PATRICK G. GAGNIUK009388*291957

624.00THE LIBRARY NETWORK000797291958

9,644.00MICHIGAN AUTOMATIC SPRINKLER, INC.002207291959

1,513.00MICHIGAN AUTOMATIC SPRINKLERSMISC291960

195.00STATE OF MICHIGAN-ELEVATOR001677*291961

640.00NORTH BREATHING AIR, LLC008687*291962

1,215.00OAKLAND COUNTY MUTUAL AID ASSOCIATI009461291963

380.46ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC009478*291964

6,045.00ORKIN PEST CONTROL003881291965

26,250.00P.K. CONTRACTING INC001325291966

3,390.39PAGE, WOLFBERG& WIRTH, LLC009649291967

290.00POSTMASTER000801*291968

290.00POSTMASTER000801*291969

808.25R & R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR INC004137291970

38.85RAIN MASTER CONTROL SYSTEMS008342*291971

367.00RAY WIEGAND'S NURSERY INC.007252291972

99.96RYAN KATZMISC*291973

125.17SAM'S CLUB/SYNCHRONY BANK002806*291974

34.00SANFORD STONEMISC*291975

225.00SIGNATURE CLEANING LLC009009291976

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

05/04/2023

05/08/2023

4,937.99 SIGNATURE CLEANING LLC009009*291976

56.64 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC008073*291977

69,071.78 SMITH'S WATERPROOFING LLC009325291978

39,136.30 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS INC000260291979

41,060.76 SPARTAN DISTRIBUTORS INC000260*291979

1,470.00 TIGERPRESS ADMINISTRATION008694291980

18.37 TODD BORSEMISC*291981

1,010.00 TURNER SANITATION, INC004379*291982

102.93 ULINE005806291983

140.45 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*291984

1,471.77 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291985

850.44 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291986

49.06 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291987

147.18 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291988

403.75 WEST SHORE FIRE INC001490291989

36,750.00 WJE-WISS, JANNEY, ELSTNER ASSOC.INC007620291990

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $342,480.68

ACH TRANSACTION

958.00 ROBERT ABRAHAM JR.008649*7918

49.48 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267919

14.57 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7920

50.22 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267921

125.12 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267922

69.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267923

53.74 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267924

62.40 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267925

9.96 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267926

35.76 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267927

30.93 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267928

100.79 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7929

194.00 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267930

32.39 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267931

58.42 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7932

72.58 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7933

74.97 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7934

148,799.36 ANGELO IAFRATE CONSTRUCTION008655*7935

1,280.00 BATTI LAW PLLC009383*7936

9,346.20 BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY0005187937

(265.28)BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY000518*7937

225.37 BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*7938

300.00 CECILIA QUIRINDONGO BAUNSOE009396*7939

736.00 CLAIRE CHUNG009122*7940

171.06 CINTAS CORPORATION0006057941 5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

05/04/2023

05/08/2023

72.40CINTAS CORPORATION0006057942

129.15CINTAS CORPORATION000605*7943

350.00CIVICPLUS, LLC009540*7944

2,081.74CLUB PROPHET008044*7945

209.21CONTRACTORS CLOTHING CO0026687946

69.35CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC0013677947

1,586.50CHRISTOPHER DEMAN006999*7948

378.80DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*7949

3,167.46EQUATURE000995*7950

42.97BRYAN GRULKE009449*7951

2,942.05HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0003317952

600.00IDUMESARO LAW FIRM, PLLC009390*7953

6,143.76INSIGHT INVESTMENT008851*7954

450.00JCC CREATIVE LLC0092497955

496.22JCR SUPPLY INC0092987956

932.82JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*7957

300.00LAMB LEGAL CONSULTING SERVICES009392*7958

1,660.00LAW OFFICE OF MICHAEL J. DICK009385*7959

7,680.00LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.0055507960

1,400.00MARCIA C ROSS PC009398*7961

343.00MICHAEL SIMON009370*7962

585.34MIDWEST TAPE0020137963

1,740.34MOTOR CITY INDUSTRIAL0004627964

654.00NELSON BROTHERS SEWER0011947965

903.00NETWORK SERVICES COMPANY0077557966

654.00NEXT007856*7967

1,345.00NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS0018647968

486.00NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*7969

930.00ORLANDO LAW PRACTICE PC009395*7970

750.00DAVID PAPANDREA003963*7971

135.00QMI GROUP INC0028527972

500.00RABAA PLLC009397*7973

8,000.00RESERVE ACCOUNT005344*7974

17,473.95RKA PETROLEUM003554*7975

79.00ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*7976

31.20TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.0002737977

570.00THOMAS M MARKUS009254*7978

281.45TOTAL ARMORED CAR SERVICE, INC.002037*7979

1,950.00WM. CROOK FIRE PROTECTION CO.002088*7980

4,566.00YELLOW DOOR LAW009379*7981

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $235,255.74

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

05/04/2023

05/08/2023

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $577,736.42

5C



1 
 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 
 
DATE:   May 8, 2023 
  
TO:   Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brooks Cowan, Senior Planner 
 
APPROVED:  Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Set a Public Hearing for a Lot Combination of 36877 Woodward Ave – 

Gasow Veterinary Clinic, Parcels #19-25-101-008, 19-25-101-009, 19-25-
101-010, and 19-25-101-011. 

 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
The property known as 36877 Woodward Ave – Gasow Veterinary Clinic – has operated on four 
separate parcels since the 1960’s. The subject lots are located on the west side of Woodward 
Ave, just south of Quarton Road. The current veterinary building exists on two of southernmost 
parcels while the northern parking lot exists on the northernmost parcels. The applicant is 
applying to combine the four parcels into one in order to construct a new veterinary clinic building.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
On July 25, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the City Commission approved a Special Land Use Permit, 
Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 36877 Woodward – Gasow – to permit the 
applicant to demolish the existing 1-story building and parking lot and construct a new 2-story 
veterinary clinic and associated parking/site improvements. The application was approved with 
the condition that the applicant obtain lot combination approval from the City Commission. 
 
The Combination of Land Parcels Ordinance (Chapter 102, Section 102-83) requires that the 
following standards be met for approval of a lot combination. 
 
(1) The Combination will result in lots or parcels of land consistent with the character of the area 

where the property is located, Chapter 126 of this Code for the zone district in which the 
property is located, and all applicable master land use plans. 
 
The subject properties are zoned TZ-3 with vacant lots located to the north and the west. 
A DTE substation is located to the south and there are single family residential homes to 
the southwest. To the east is Bloomfield Hills with Eddie Merlot’s restaurant and an office 
building. The property was zoned TZ-3 as a transition zone where Woodward Ave 
commercial properties abut single family residential sites. The single story veterinary 

5D

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Basic%20Agendas/2022/20220725%20BIRMINGHAM%20CITY%20COMMISSION%20AGENDA%20PACKET.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2022/20220725%20City%20Commission%20Minutes%20SIGNED.pdf


2 
 
 

clinic with adequate parking and newly proposed screen wall appears to blend with the 
character of the area. 

 
In regards to zoning, the proposed building was approved by the Planning Board on June 
8th, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes). The applicant was required to verify certain design 
elements be met including proper screening, lighting, and signage. Such elements will 
be verified administratively before the applicant may obtain their building permit. 

 
Accordingly, the lot combination proposal meets the requirements of #1. 
 

(2) All residential lots formed as a result of a combination shall be a maximum width of no 
more than twice the average lot width of all lots in the same zone district within 300 feet 
on the same street.  
 
This standard only applies to single family residential zones. The proposed 
combination is zoned for mixed use, commercial and multi-family residential, 
therefore this requirement is not applicable. 
 

(3) All residential lots formed as a result of a combination shall be a maximum area of no more 
than twice the average lot area of all lots in the same zone district within 300 feet on the same 
street.  
 
This standard only applies to single family residential zones. The proposed 
combination is zoned for mixed use, commercial and multi-family residential, 
therefore this requirement is not applicable. 

 
(4) The combination will result in building envelopes on the combined parcels that will allow 

for the placement of buildings and structures in a manner consistent with the existing 
rhythm and pattern of development within 500 feet in all directions in the same zone 
district.  
 
Given the existing conditions and variety of buildings and parcel sizes 
surrounding the subject properties, the proposed lot combination and building 
envelope appear to meet this requirement. 

 
(5) Any due or unpaid taxes or special assessments upon the property have been paid in full. 

 
There are no outstanding taxes due on this property.  
 
The proposal meets this requirement. 
 

(6) The combination will not adversely affect the interest of the public or the abutting property 
owners. In making this determination, the City Commission shall consider, but not be 
limited to the following: 
 
a.) The location of proposed buildings or structures, the location and nature of vehicular 

ingress or egress so that the use or appropriate development of adjacent land or 
buildings will not be hindered, nor the value thereof impaired. 
 
On June 8th, 2022, the Planning Board recommended approval of the Final Site Plan 

5D

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Agenda%20FULL%20-%206-8-22.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/PB%20Minutes%20(APPROVED-PROTECTED)%20-%206-8-22.pdf


3 
 
 

and SLUP for Gasow Veterinary Clinic. The applicant has coordinated with the City’s 
Engineering Department and MDOT to create a safer turning radius from soutbound 
Woodward Ave. The applicant is also constructing a large screen wall to separate the 
vet clinic from neighboring properties in order to minimize its impact.  
 
The proposed lot combination does not appear to hinder the use, 
development, or value of adjacent land. 

 
b.) The effect of the proposed combination upon any floodplain areas, wetlands and other 

natural features and the ability of the applicant to develop a buildable site on the 
resulting parcel without unreasonable disturbances of such natural features.  
 
The property is not located in a floodpain or wetlands, nor adjacent to a 
floodplain or wetlands. Additionally, there are no natural features on the 
site. 
 

c.) The location, size, density and site layout of any proposed structures or buildings as 
they may impact an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent properties and the 
capacity of essential public facilities such as police and fire protection, drainage 
structures, municipal sanitary sewer and water, and refuse disposal. 
 
The proposed two-story veterinary clinic and lot combination does not 
appear to impact the supply of light and air to adjacent properties or the 
ability of the City to provide essential services. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the application and supporting documentation and has no 
objections as to form or process.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for lot combinations, a legal ad will be placed in a newspaper of local circulation to 
advertise the nature of the request in advance of the June 5th, 2023 public hearing at the City 
Commission, and notices will be sent out to all property owners and tenants within 300 ft. of the 
property. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission consider setting a public hearing date of 
June 5th, 2023 for the lot combination of 36877 Woodward Ave, Parcel ID #19-25-101-008, 19-
25-101-009, 19-25-101-010, and 19-25-101-011. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Registered Land Surveys & Parcel Information 
• Combination of Platted Lots Application 
• Approved Site Plans (July 22nd, 2022) 

 
 

5D



4 

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to set a public hearing date of June 5th, 2023 for the 
proposed lot combination of 36877 Woodward Ave, Parcel ID #19-25-101-008, 19-25-101-009, 
19-25-101-010, and 19-25-101-011.

5D



Existing Parcels (4) Proposed Parcel

5D



OFFSITE PARKING AND
OVERALL AREA PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

0 10' 20' 40'

PARTIAL TWO-STORY BUILDING
(9,944 SF FIRST FLOOR FOOTPRINT)

(2,779 SF SECOND FLOOR FOOTPRINT)

SH
A

R
ED

 A
LLEY

 A
C

C
ESS

LOT 35
TZ-3 / R1

LOT 36
R1

LOT 38
R1

LOT 39-40
R1

LOT 43
TZ-3 / R1

LOT 44
R1

LOT 45
R1

LOT 46
R1 / P LOT 18

TZ-3

LOT 17
TZ-3

LOT 28
TZ-3

LOT 29
TZ-3

LOT 30
TZ-3

LOT 31
TZ-3

LOT 32
TZ-3

LOT 33
TZ-3

LOT 34
TZ-3

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 A
V

EN
U

E (M
-1)

(201'-0" R
.O

.W
.)

PA
R

K
IN

G
 A

ISLE

36977 WOODWARD AVENUE
TZ-3

36877 WOODWARD AVENUE
TZ-3

2021-0131

06-03-2022

AS MM

SP-2

02-
23-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W

04-
12-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W 

RE
VIS

IO
NS

06-
03-

202
2A

S
FIN

AL
 SI

TE 
PL

AN
 A

PP
RO

VA
L

GA
SO

W
 V

ET
ER

IN
AR

Y
HO

SP
ITA

L
36

87
7 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
UE

BIR
M

IN
G

HA
M

, M
IC

HI
G

AN
 48

00
9

WWW.LINDENGROUPINC.COM
(708) 799-4400

ORLAND PARK, ILLINOIS     60467
10100 ORLAND PARKWAY  SUITE 110

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR ARCHITECTURE

LAND PLANNING
ARCHITECTURE

DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N
DR

AW
N

DA
TE

PROJECT NUMBER

DATE

DRAWN BY FINAL REVIEW

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

1303 Ogden Ave.
Downers Grove, IL 60515

(630) 734-0883

OFFSITE PARKING
AND OVERALL PLAN

5D



!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

k

Birmingham

Bloomfield Hills

Q U A R T O N  L A K E  E S TAT E S  R E P L AT

B L O O M F IE L D  E S TAT E S  S U B

C O L O N IA L C O U R T

19-23-476-003

19-25-126-001

19-24-353-008

19-25-176-043

19-25-126-025

19-25-151-013

19-24-353-013

19-25-126-003

19-
24-

353
-00

3

19-24-352-001

19-
24-

353
-01

4

19-25-151-008

19-24-353-002

19-25-151-005
19

-24
-35

3-0
09

19-25-101-001

19-25-151-007

19-25-126-021

19-
24-

353
-00

6

19-26-279-024

19-25-126-002

19-25-151-012

19-24-376-003

19-25-151-014

19-26-226-026

19-26-279-018

19-26-227-001

19-24-353-001

19-25-151-090

19-24-353-005

19-25-151-006

19-26-227-002

19-25-101-014

19-26-230-002

19-26-279-005

19-26-227-003

19
-26

-22
6-0

06

19-25-151-003

19-26-227-005

19-25-151-002

19-25-151-004

19-26-227-004

19-25-101-003

19-26-279-001

19-26-279-006

Quarton Rd W Big Beaver Rd

Redding Rd

C olonial Ct

Lakeside Rd

Manor Rd

¬«1

Overview

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

D ate  C re a te d : 7 /1 8 /2 0 22

N
1 in ch  =  2 0 0  fe e t

David Coulter
Oakland County Executive

2  F o o t  C o n to u r s

5  F o o t  C o n to u r s
F E M A  B a s e  F lo o d  E le v a t io n s

F E M A  C ro ss  S e c tio n s

1 0 0  y r  -  F E M A F lo o d p la in

1 0 0  y r  ( d e ta i le d ) -  F E M A F lo o d p la in
5 0 0  y r  -  F E M A F lo o d p la in

F L O O D W AY  -  F E M A  F lo o d p la in

D is c la im e r:  T he  in fo rm a tion  p ro v id e d  h e re w ith h a s b e e n  c o m p ile d fro m  re c o rd e d
de e d s , p la ts , ta x  m a p s, su rv e ys  a n d  o th e r p u b lic  re co rds .  It is  no t a  leg a lly  re co rd e d
m a p  o r su rv e y a n d  is  n o t in te n d e d  to  b e  u s e d a s  o n e .  U s e rs  s h o uld  co n su lt th e
in fo rm a tio n  so u rce s  m e n tio n e d  a b o ve  w h e n  q u e s tio n s a ris e. F E M A F lo o p la in d a ta  m a y
no t a lw a ys  b e p re se n t o n  th e  m a p . 5D

zacharyk
Length Measurement
500'-0"

zacharyk
Polygon

zacharyk
Ellipse

zacharyk
Length Measurement
500'-0"

zacharyk
Length Measurement
500'-0"

zacharyk
Length Measurement
500'-0"



BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

Feet
0 20 40 2202043

ZSK

G
AS

O
W

 V
ET

ER
IN

AR
Y

H
O

SP
IT

AL

36
87

7 
W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

AV
EN

U
E 

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
,

M
IC

H
IG

AN
 4

80
09

7-18-2022

---
- -

---
---

-

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Dr. Al Gonzalez P.E.
DOTec Engineering
424 Jefferson Street

St. Charles, MO 63301
Ph 636-724-9872
Fx 636-724-9032

WWW.DOTECENGINEERING.COM
ALG@DOTECENGINEERING.COM

SHEET NUMBER:

C-1
PROJECT NUMBER:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

ALG

PR
O

JE
C

T:

C
LI

EN
T:

DATE:

SHEET NAME:

EXISTING LOT PLAN

THIS DRAWING IS PRELIMINARY
UNTIL SIGNED AND SEALED BY
THE LICENSED PROFESSIONAL

NOTED BELOW.

THE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER WAIVES ANY AND ALL RESPONSIBILITY
AND LIABILITY FOR PROBLEMS WHICH ARISE FROM FAILURE TO

FOLLOW THESE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND DESIGN INTENT THEY
CONVEY, OR FOR PROBLEMS WHICH ARISE FROM OTHER'S FAILURE

TO OBTAIN AND OR/ FOLLOW THE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
GUIDANCE WITH RESPECT TO ANY ERRORS, OMISSIONS,

INCONSISTENCIES, AMBIGUITIES, OR CONFLICTS WHICH ARE
ALLEGED. BUILDINGS TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN FULL CONFORMANCE
WITH ALL APPLICABLE CODES AND RESTRICTIONS. PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER TO BE NOTIFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION IN THE EVENT
OF CODE REVISION OR CHANGES.

#
R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

EXISTING LOTS

5D

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 46

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 40

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 38

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 19

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 20

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 23

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 25

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 26

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 27

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRMINGHAM DATUM #23

AutoCAD SHX Text
767.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP NUT OF HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRMINGHAM DATUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
769.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.K. NAIL IN U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRMINGHAM DATUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
755.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. 50' FEET OF LOT 29



BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

LOT 19

Feet
0 20 40 2202043

ZSK

G
AS

O
W

 V
ET

ER
IN

AR
Y

H
O

SP
IT

AL

36
87

7 
W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

AV
EN

U
E 

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
,

M
IC

H
IG

AN
 4

80
09

7-18-2022

---
- -

---
---

-

PROFESSIONAL SEAL

Dr. Al Gonzalez P.E.
DOTec Engineering
424 Jefferson Street

St. Charles, MO 63301
Ph 636-724-9872
Fx 636-724-9032

WWW.DOTECENGINEERING.COM
ALG@DOTECENGINEERING.COM

SHEET NUMBER:

C-2
PROJECT NUMBER:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

ALG

PR
O

JE
C

T:

C
LI

EN
T:

DATE:

SHEET NAME:

PROPOSED LOT PLAN

THIS DRAWING IS PRELIMINARY
UNTIL SIGNED AND SEALED BY
THE LICENSED PROFESSIONAL

NOTED BELOW.

THE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER WAIVES ANY AND ALL RESPONSIBILITY
AND LIABILITY FOR PROBLEMS WHICH ARISE FROM FAILURE TO

FOLLOW THESE PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND DESIGN INTENT THEY
CONVEY, OR FOR PROBLEMS WHICH ARISE FROM OTHER'S FAILURE

TO OBTAIN AND OR/ FOLLOW THE PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
GUIDANCE WITH RESPECT TO ANY ERRORS, OMISSIONS,

INCONSISTENCIES, AMBIGUITIES, OR CONFLICTS WHICH ARE
ALLEGED. BUILDINGS TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN FULL CONFORMANCE
WITH ALL APPLICABLE CODES AND RESTRICTIONS. PROFESSIONAL

ENGINEER TO BE NOTIFIED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION IN THE EVENT
OF CODE REVISION OR CHANGES.

#
R

EV
IS

IO
N

 D
AT

E
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

PROPOSED
COMBINED LOTS

5D

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 18

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 28

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 29

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 31

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 46

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 40

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 38

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRMINGHAM DATUM #23

AutoCAD SHX Text
767.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP NUT OF HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRMINGHAM DATUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
769.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.K. NAIL IN U.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIRMINGHAM DATUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
755.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. 50' FEET OF LOT 29



NF

N

1 of 1

PROPOSED
LOT COMBINATION

No. 36877
Woodward Avenue
Part of the NW. 1/4 of
Section 25, T.2N., R.10E.,
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, MI

GASOW VETERINARY
HOSPITAL

April 10, 2023

PROJECT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

REVISIONS

DRAWN BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE ISSUED:

sheet no.

K700
NFE JOB NO.

SCALE:

email:

K.N.

K.N./R.FRAUS

rfraus@nfe-engr.com

NF
civil Engineers
Land Surveyors
Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS
ENGINEERS

46777 WOODWARD AVENUE
PONTIAC, MI 48342
Tel. (248) 332-7931
Fax. (248) 332-8257

email: www.nowakfraus.com

1"=20'

5D



5D



5D



5D



ZONING DATA - 36877 WOODWARD AVENUE

SITE

VICINITY MAP

PARTIAL TWO-STORY BUILDING
(9,944 SF FIRST FLOOR FOOTPRINT)

(2,779 SF SECOND FLOOR FOOTPRINT)

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 10'-0"

0 5' 10' 20'

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 A
V

EN
U

E (M
-1)

36877 WOODWARD AVENUE
TZ-3

2021-0131

06-03-2022

AS MM

SP-1

02-
23-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W

04-
12-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W 

RE
VIS

IO
NS

06-
03-

202
2A

S
FIN

AL
 SI

TE 
PL

AN
 A

PP
RO

VA
L

GA
SO

W
 V

ET
ER

IN
AR

Y
HO

SP
ITA

L
36

87
7 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
UE

BIR
M

IN
G

HA
M

, M
IC

HI
G

AN
 48

00
9

WWW.LINDENGROUPINC.COM
(708) 799-4400

ORLAND PARK, ILLINOIS     60467
10100 ORLAND PARKWAY  SUITE 110

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR ARCHITECTURE

LAND PLANNING
ARCHITECTURE

DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N
DR

AW
N

DA
TE

PROJECT NUMBER

DATE

DRAWN BY FINAL REVIEW

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

1303 Ogden Ave.
Downers Grove, IL 60515

(630) 734-0883

ARCHITECTURAL
SITE PLAN

5D



OFFSITE PARKING AND
OVERALL AREA PLAN

SCALE: 1" = 20'-0"

0 10' 20' 40'

PARTIAL TWO-STORY BUILDING
(9,944 SF FIRST FLOOR FOOTPRINT)

(2,779 SF SECOND FLOOR FOOTPRINT)

SH
A

R
ED

 A
LLEY

 A
C

C
ESS

LOT 35
TZ-3 / R1

LOT 36
R1

LOT 38
R1

LOT 39-40
R1

LOT 43
TZ-3 / R1

LOT 44
R1

LOT 45
R1

LOT 46
R1 / P LOT 18

TZ-3

LOT 17
TZ-3

LOT 28
TZ-3

LOT 29
TZ-3

LOT 30
TZ-3

LOT 31
TZ-3

LOT 32
TZ-3

LOT 33
TZ-3

LOT 34
TZ-3

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

 A
V

EN
U

E (M
-1)

(201'-0" R
.O

.W
.)

PA
R

K
IN

G
 A

ISLE

36977 WOODWARD AVENUE
TZ-3

36877 WOODWARD AVENUE
TZ-3

2021-0131

06-03-2022

AS MM

SP-2

02-
23-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W

04-
12-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W 

RE
VIS

IO
NS

06-
03-

202
2A

S
FIN

AL
 SI

TE 
PL

AN
 A

PP
RO

VA
L

GA
SO

W
 V

ET
ER

IN
AR

Y
HO

SP
ITA

L
36

87
7 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
UE

BIR
M

IN
G

HA
M

, M
IC

HI
G

AN
 48

00
9

WWW.LINDENGROUPINC.COM
(708) 799-4400

ORLAND PARK, ILLINOIS     60467
10100 ORLAND PARKWAY  SUITE 110

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR ARCHITECTURE

LAND PLANNING
ARCHITECTURE

DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N
DR

AW
N

DA
TE

PROJECT NUMBER

DATE

DRAWN BY FINAL REVIEW

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

1303 Ogden Ave.
Downers Grove, IL 60515

(630) 734-0883

OFFSITE PARKING
AND OVERALL PLAN

5D



PRELIMINARY FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4' 8' 16'

10' - 0" x 12' - 0"
SURGERY

10' - 0" x 12' - 0"
STERILIZATION

10' - 0" x 12' - 0"
SURGERY

10' - 0" x 12' - 1"
SURGERY

11' - 0" x 14' - 1"
DENTAL

12' - 0" x 16' - 0"
PREP

10' - 0" x 22' - 10"
RECOVERY

10' - 0" x 12' - 0"
CT

8' - 0" x 10' - 5"
XRAY

70 SF
STORAGE

9' - 8" x 12' - 6"
DOG WARD

6' - 1" x 9' - 6"
ULTRASOUND

19' - 0" x 9' - 6"
DVM OFFICE

8' - 7" x 9' - 6"
MED. DIRECTOR

6' - 0" x 11' - 0"
STORAGE

7' - 6" x 10' - 7"
CAT RECOVERY

104 SF
OFFICE

10' - 0" x 12' - 0"
TOILET

9' - 0" x 19' - 8"
STAIR

8' - 11" x 17' - 1"
LAUNDRY

6' - 9" x 7' - 2"
TOILET

6' - 9" x 7' - 2"
TOILET

10' - 0" x 17' - 1"
CAT TREATMENT 8' - 10" x 15' - 3"

COMFORT

7' - 6" x 10' - 0"
EXAM

7' - 6" x 10' - 0"
EXAM

CAT WAITING

277 SF
RECEPTION/INTAKE

LOBBY

11' - 0" x 19' - 9"
PHARMACY

7' - 6" x 11' - 0"
EXAM

7' - 6" x 11' - 0"
EXAM

7' - 6" x 11' - 0"
EXAM

7' - 6" x 11' - 0"
EXAM

COMFORT ROOM

7' - 6" x 11' - 0"
EXAM

7' - 6" x 11' - 0"
EXAM

7' - 9" x 9' - 6"
VESTIBULE

24' - 6" x 54' - 10"
TREATMENT

6' - 10" x 7' - 2"
TOILET

6' - 10" x 9' - 6"
TOILET

28 SF
STORAGE

7' - 6" x 11' - 0"
EXAM

7' - 6" x 14' - 6"

6' - 10" x 7' - 2"
TOILET

7' - 6" x 11' - 0"
EXAM

PRELIMINARY FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4' 8' 16'

2021-0131

06-03-2022

AS MM

PD1-1

02-
23-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W

04-
12-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W 

RE
VIS

IO
NS

06-
03-

202
2A

S
FIN

AL
 SI

TE 
PL

AN
 A

PP
RO

VA
L

GA
SO

W
 V

ET
ER

IN
AR

Y
HO

SP
ITA

L
36

87
7 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
UE

BIR
M

IN
G

HA
M

, M
IC

HI
G

AN
 48

00
9

WWW.LINDENGROUPINC.COM
(708) 799-4400

ORLAND PARK, ILLINOIS     60467
10100 ORLAND PARKWAY  SUITE 110

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR ARCHITECTURE

LAND PLANNING
ARCHITECTURE

DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N
DR

AW
N

DA
TE

PROJECT NUMBER

DATE

DRAWN BY FINAL REVIEW

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

1303 Ogden Ave.
Downers Grove, IL 60515

(630) 734-0883

FIRST
FLOOR PLAN

5D



9' - 0" x 21' - 8"
STAIR

PRELIMINARY SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

0 4' 8' 16'

6' - 9" x 8' - 3"
TOILET

OPEN TO
BELOW

25' - 10" x 27' - 7"
BREAK ROOM

7' - 4" x 9' - 0"
MECH

6' - 0" x 11' - 0"
CALL ROOM8' - 3" x 10' - 0"

STORAGE
8' - 3" x 10' - 0"
OFFICE 926 SF

CONFERENCE ROOM

AIR HANDLING UNIT SCHEDULE
TAG MANUFACTURER MODEL TONS SEER

/EER

FAN DATA CEILING DATA HTG. DATA ELECTRICAL DATA
MIN O/A

(%)
GAS

CONN.
SIZE

DRAIN
CONN.

SIZE
UNIT WT.

(LB.) REMARKS
CFM ESP RPM HP TOT.

MBH
SENS
MBH

EAT
(db)

EAT
(wb)

MBH
IN

MBH
OUT MCA MOC

P VOLT PH

RT-3

RT-1

RT-2

2021-0131

06-03-2022

AS MM

PD1-2

02-
23-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W

04-
12-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W 

RE
VIS

IO
NS

06-
03-

202
2A

S
FIN

AL
 SI

TE 
PL

AN
 A

PP
RO

VA
L

GA
SO

W
 V

ET
ER

IN
AR

Y
HO

SP
ITA

L
36

87
7 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
UE

BIR
M

IN
G

HA
M

, M
IC

HI
G

AN
 48

00
9

WWW.LINDENGROUPINC.COM
(708) 799-4400

ORLAND PARK, ILLINOIS     60467
10100 ORLAND PARKWAY  SUITE 110

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR ARCHITECTURE

LAND PLANNING
ARCHITECTURE

DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N
DR

AW
N

DA
TE

PROJECT NUMBER

DATE

DRAWN BY FINAL REVIEW

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

1303 Ogden Ave.
Downers Grove, IL 60515

(630) 734-0883

SECOND FLOOR
PLAN

5D



SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

0 3' 5' 11'EAST BUILDING ELEVATION1
PD1-3 3/16" = 1'-0"

1 4 1 1238 45 547 7 59 4 11 5 2 4 126 65 5 5 5

GLAZING AREAS - 1'-0" TO 8'-0" A.F.F.
WALL TOTAL AREA OF WALL (S.F.) TOTAL AREA OF STOREFRONT (S.F.) PERCENTAGE OF WALL AS

STOREFRONT
PERCENTAGE OF WALL AS GLAZING

PER ZONING ORDINANCE

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

0 3' 5' 11'NORTH BUILDING ELEVATION2
PD1-3 3/16" = 1'-0"

5 1 10 3 6 9 4 5 412 4 5 3 112 6 4 5 12 785548

ELEVATION NOTES LEGEND

2

3

5

7

9

1

4

6

8

10

11

12

13

ARCHITECTURAL FLOOR PLAN SYMBOLS

3

ARCHITECTURAL SIGN AREA

2021-0131

06-03-2022

AS MM

PD1-3

02-
23-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W

04-
12-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W 

RE
VIS

IO
NS

06-
03-

202
2A

S
FIN

AL
 SI

TE 
PL

AN
 A

PP
RO

VA
L

GA
SO

W
 V

ET
ER

IN
AR

Y
HO

SP
ITA

L
36

87
7 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
UE

BIR
M

IN
G

HA
M

, M
IC

HI
G

AN
 48

00
9

WWW.LINDENGROUPINC.COM
(708) 799-4400

ORLAND PARK, ILLINOIS     60467
10100 ORLAND PARKWAY  SUITE 110

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR ARCHITECTURE

LAND PLANNING
ARCHITECTURE

DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N
DR

AW
N

DA
TE

PROJECT NUMBER

DATE

DRAWN BY FINAL REVIEW

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

1303 Ogden Ave.
Downers Grove, IL 60515

(630) 734-0883

PRELIMINARY N-E
ELEVATIONS

5D



SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

0 3' 5' 11'SOUTH BUILDING ELEVATION1
PD1-4 3/16" = 1'-0"

7 6 1312 1587 112 65 4 5121255 6 5 6 5 6 5 68

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0"

0 3' 5' 11'WEST BUILDING ELEVATION2
PD1-4 3/16" = 1'-0"

4 5 4 6 12 12 7 5 812 613 13555555 4

ELEVATION NOTES LEGEND

2

3

5

7

9

1

4

6

8

10

11

12

13

ARCHITECTURAL FLOOR PLAN SYMBOLS

3

2021-0131

06-03-2022

AS MM

PD1-4

02-
23-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W

04-
12-

202
2A

S
SIT

E P
LA

N 
RE

VIE
W 

RE
VIS

IO
NS

06-
03-

202
2A

S
FIN

AL
 SI

TE 
PL

AN
 A

PP
RO

VA
L

GA
SO

W
 V

ET
ER

IN
AR

Y
HO

SP
ITA

L
36

87
7 W

O
O

DW
AR

D 
AV

EN
UE

BIR
M

IN
G

HA
M

, M
IC

HI
G

AN
 48

00
9

WWW.LINDENGROUPINC.COM
(708) 799-4400

ORLAND PARK, ILLINOIS     60467
10100 ORLAND PARKWAY  SUITE 110

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE
INTERIOR ARCHITECTURE

LAND PLANNING
ARCHITECTURE

DE
SC

RIP
TIO

N
DR

AW
N

DA
TE

PROJECT NUMBER

DATE

DRAWN BY FINAL REVIEW

SHEET NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

1303 Ogden Ave.
Downers Grove, IL 60515

(630) 734-0883

PRELIMINARY S-W
ELEVATIONS

5D



Gasow Veterinary Hospital 
Woodward Avenue—Birmingham 

PROPOSEDWOODWARD  

AVENUE VIEW 

EXISTING WOODWARD  

AVENUE VIEW 

5D



1 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Department of Public Services 
 

 
DATE:  May 8, 2023 
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
APPROVED: Scott Zielinski, DPS Director 
 
FROM: Carrie Laird, Parks and Recreation Manager 
   
SUBJECT:  Birmingham Little League Agreement 
 
INTRODUCTION 
Birmingham Little League (BLL) would like to enter into an agreement with the City.  This 
agreement would allow for the BLL to procure, install, and maintain shade coverings over players 
benches, a total of four (4) for the two (2) improved fields at Kenning Park. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Birmingham Little League (BLL) has been selected to host the Little League Minors State 
Tournament in 2023.  The Minors division is for teams of 8-10 year olds, and it is set to take place 
from July 28 through August 2, 2023.  Hosting a state tournament is an honorable and expensive 
venture for any Little League organization.  BLL has been approved (March 27, 2023 City 
Commission Meeting) to hold a special event as they plan to host many families and have 
additional items available that far exceed a standard field rental permit.  
 
As described in the attached letter from BLL, permanent field modifications to Field #2 and 
Palmieri Field at Kenning Park were proposed and desired to have in place for the Minors State 
Tournament and beyond for future field rentals and their usage:  
 

•  (4) dugout shade covers to help protect players from the elements, namely heat from 
the sun.  These would require a fair amount of modifications to the current dugout fencing, 
including the addition of cross rails to help support the covers. 
 

• (2) electrical outlets in the existing dugout storage areas.  This feature was discussed and 
planned for during field construction as an alternate but removed from project award in 
2019 as a cost saving measure at the time.  The Department of Public Services (DPS) has 
since budgeted and planned for this enhancement and the electrical was recently installed 
at both fields 
 

• (4) permanent pitching “bullpen” areas in foul territory within the current field fencing 
(adjacent to the field of play).  These areas would each have a mound and plate 
 

5E

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2023/20230327%20City%20Commission%20Minutes%20Signed.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/City%20Commission/Minutes/2023/20230327%20City%20Commission%20Minutes%20Signed.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 

 
 
surrounded by infield mix.  The DPS does not approve this item and is therefore reflected 
in the agreement as not approved. 

 
BLL would assume all liability and would be entirely responsible for the purchase, installation, any 
necessary maintenance (including checking the shade covers after storm events), as well as 
offsite storage for the shade covers.  All work would be completed under City supervision. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the agreement with Birmingham Little League and has no 
objections to form or content. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Electrical improvements were completed this past April as part of a planned for and budgeted 
project totaling $7,680.  The City planned for and budgeted to add electrical outlets into the 
dugout storage areas on Field #2 and Palmieri Field, and in doing so prepped the area during 
field construction back in 2019. 
 
The City has not budgeted for field modifications other than the electrical, and as such the BLL is 
entirely fiscally responsible for the shade covering improvements.  Thus no additional fiscal 
burdens would be seen by the City in relation to this agreement. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICAITONS: 
N/A 
 
SUMMARY: 
The DPS enjoys our relationship and works to accommodate BLL and their requests.  The City 
believes the addition of shade covers in addition to the City installed electricity closer to the fields 
is advantageous for all field users.  Shade coverings were anticipated to be an additional needed 
improvement at some point in the future, even though they were removed from the original 
development of the fields that were completed in 2019. 
 
Initial discussions with BLL about the construction of the fields in 2019 did not include bullpen 
areas, and did not include specs for permanent installation of mounds and plates in foul territory.  
Therefore, bullpens are not approved by the city and the appended agreement reflects this. 
 
The DPS will oversee the work done by an agreed upon contractor, that will obtain all required 
insurances and permits necessary to perform the installation of the four (4) shade coverings over 
the players benches.  Birmingham Little League is to procure the shade coverings, maintain them 
after wind and storm events, and store them in the off-season. 
 
The attached agreement between the City and BLL reflects the desires of both parties in order to 
accomplish the improvements of shade coverings over players benches at Field #2 and Palmeri 
Field at Kenning Park. 
 

5E



3 

The BLL proposal went to the Parks and Recreation Board at their February 7, 2023 meeting for 
comment and feedback as well.  Overall, comments and feedback from the Parks and Recreation 
Board were supportive of the improvements that DPS agrees to have completed. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. The Agreement between the City and Birmingham Little League
2. Birmingham Little League Proposal dated 1/30/23

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the Agreement with Birmingham Little League. 
In addition, to authorize the Mayor and Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 

5E



1 
 

THE BIRMINGHAM LITTLE LEAGUE AGREEMENT 
FOR FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this ___ day of _____________, 2023 by and 
between the CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, whose address is 151 Martin Street, 
Birmingham, MI  48009 (hereinafter referred to as the City) and BIRMINGHAM LITTLE 
LEAGUE, whose address is P.O. Box 2536, Birmingham, Michigan 48012, (hereafter 
referred to as “BLL”) and the foregoing shall collectively be referred to as the parties. 

 
WHEREAS, BLL has approached the City and the representatives from the 

Department of Public Services (“DPS”) to engage in good faith discussions about field 
improvements to Kenning Park, in particular field #2 and Palmeri Field (“Fields”) in 
advance of the 2023 Birmingham Little League season which starts in April and the Little 
League Minor State Tournament taking place from July 27, 2023 through August 2, 2023 
(“State Tournament”); and, 
 

WHEREAS, hosting the State Tournament is believed to be a once in a generation 
opportunity for BLL, and, therefore, are desirous for this event to have, what they believe 
to be, needed improvements; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the representatives of BLL and DPS have been in discussions 

regarding the installation of dugout covers, electricity to the field and bullpen mounds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing preambles, the adequacy 
of which is acknowledged by and between the parties to this Agreement, the parties 
agree as follows: 

1. DUGOUT COVERS:   

A. It is agreed to that the BLL will purchase the dugout covers and is 
completely financially and physically responsible for the installation, maintenance, and 
storage offsite during the off season, which is approximately October through March or 
until the season begins each year, of all four dugout covers which are to be located over 
the players’ benches located on Field #2, which involves two covers and two covers for 
the Palmeri Field. The physical responsibility and financial responsibility will include 
making sure the covers are properly secured and repaired or replaced after any and all 
storm or wind events which alters or changes the dugout covers. 

  
B. The BLL is responsible financially and physically to provide all 

necessary ordering information such as measurements and specifications to the City via 
its DPS Department in advance of placing any order for the City’s review and approval.   

 
C. The BLL is to provide to the DPS Department all schedules, work and 

plans in advance regarding the installation and/or maintenance of the covers to DPS.  The 
DPS will always maintain oversight and inspection regarding the installation and all 
approvals are necessary before installation and continues throughout the life of the 

5E



2 
 

dugout covers and the City, through its DPS, reserves the right to stop or change the work 
should any correction be necessary.  All matters regarding dugout covers will be upon the 
approval and acceptance of DPS, Engineering or Building Departments.    

2. ELECTRICITY: The City is presently pursuing electrical service to the Fields.  
The electrical work was previously budgeted and planned for the Fields.  Therefore, BLL 
will be able to enjoy electricity being provided to the Fields without any cost to the BLL.   

3. BULLPEN MOUNDS: While the BLL would like the placement of bullpens for 
enhancement to the fields for the State Tournament and beyond, the City will not agree to 
bullpen mounds due to concerns for safety issues of anyone utilizing the fields. The fields 
are located in the City of Birmingham for the enjoyment of all people and, therefore, the 
City does not agree to nor consent to bullpen mounds being placed in the City fields.   

4. TERM: This Agreement shall have a term of ___10 years______ from the 
date stated above, and is renewable upon expiration for ______6______month terms.  
The City shall have the right to unilaterally terminate this Agreement, with or without 
cause, on thirty (30) days written notice. In the event of termination, the BLL shall receive 
compensation for services up to the date the termination takes effect and the City shall 
be entitled to retain and use the results of all services, goods and information prepared 
by the BLL through such date.  

5. FEES:  The fees for this entire project, except electricity to the fields, shall be 
borne solely by BLL.  

6. GOOD MORAL CHARACTER: BLL shall employ personnel of good moral 
character and fitness in performing all services under this Agreement. 

7. INSURANCE SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS: The BLL has submitted 
proof to the City that it meets all City insurance requirements. Insurance, with coverage 
amounts at no less than the City's minimum requirements, must be held by the  BLL 
throughout the term of this Agreement. Certificates of insurance as stated below will be 
required no later than five (5) business days from the date of the BLL’s acceptance of the 
terms of this Agreement. 

8. CONFIDENTIAL AND OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION:  The BLL 
acknowledges that in performing services pursuant to this Agreement, certain confidential 
and/or proprietary information (including, but not limited to, internal organization, 
methodology, personnel and financial information, etc.) may become involved.  The BLL 
recognizes that unauthorized exposure of such confidential or proprietary information 
could irreparably damage the City.  Therefore, the BLL agrees to use reasonable care to 
safeguard the confidential and proprietary information and to prevent the unauthorized 
use or disclosure thereof.  The BLL shall inform its employees of the confidential or 
proprietary nature of such information and shall limit access thereto to employees 

5E



3 
 

rendering services pursuant to this Agreement.  The BLL  further agrees to use such 
confidential or proprietary information only for the purpose of performing services 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

9. INDEPENDENT:  The BLL  and the City agree that the BLL is acting as an 
independent contractor with respect to the BLL’s role in providing services to the City 
pursuant to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own actions and neither 
the BLL nor its employees shall be construed as employees of the City.  Nothing contained 
in this Agreement shall be construed to imply a joint venture or partnership and neither 
party, by virtue of this Agreement, shall have any right, power or authority to act or create 
any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the other party, except as specifically 
outlined herein.  Neither the City nor the BLL shall be considered or construed to be the 
agent of the other, nor shall either have the right to bind the other in any manner 
whatsoever, except as specifically provided in this Agreement, and this Agreement shall 
not be construed as a contract of agency.  The BLL shall not be considered entitled or 
eligible to participate in any benefits or privileges given or extended by the City, or be 
deemed an employee of the City for purposes of federal or state withholding taxes, FICA 
taxes, unemployment, workers' compensation or any other employer contributions on 
behalf of the City. 

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The BLL  agrees to fully and faithfully carry 
out the duties of set forth herein using its best efforts in accomplishing all assignments 
from the City, and further, in addition to upholding all federal, and state laws and applicable 
codes of professional conduct to which the BLL is subject, the BLL hereby agrees to be 
bound by all Federal, State, or City of Birmingham ordinances, rules, regulations and 
policies as are amended from time to time, and including without limitation the Fair Labor 
Standards Act, the Equal Employment Opportunity rules and regulations, the 
Transportation Safety Act and the Occupational Safety and Health Acts. 

11. NON-COMPLIANCE WITH INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Failure to 
deliver and maintain insurance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement will be cause 
for the City, by and through its City Manager, to terminate this Agreement, or at the City's 
option, the City may purchase on the open market such required insurance and shall be 
entitled to charge any additional cost to the BLL, either by offset to any amounts due and 
owing the BLL for services provided to the City, or, by separate bill and demand for payment. 
Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to create or be interpreted as establishing a 
“for cause” termination; the BLL agrees and understands that its engagement is at will and 
may be terminated by the City Manager for any cause or no cause. 

12. INDEMNIFICATION:   To the fullest extent permitted by law, the BLL and 
any entity or person for whom the BLL is legally liable, agrees to be responsible for any 
liability, defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Birmingham, 
its elected and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on their 
behalf against any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs and 
reasonable attorney fees connected therewith, and for any damages which may be 

5E



4 
 

asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the City, its elected and appointed officials, 
employees, volunteers or others working on their behalf, by reason of personal injury, 
including bodily injury and death and/or property damage, including loss of use thereof, 
which arise out of the acts, errors or omissions of the BLL including its employees and 
agents, in the performance of this Agreement.  Such responsibility shall not be construed 
as liability for damage caused by or resulting from the sole act or omission of its elected 
or appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the City. 

13. STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:   The BLL shall assure that its 
contractors maintain the following insurance during the life of this Agreement and obtain proof 
for the applicable types of insurance coverage and minimum limits as set forth below: 

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  
 

For Non-Sole Proprietorships: The Contractor shall procure 
and maintain during the life of this Agreement, Workers' 
Compensation Insurance, including Employers Liability Coverage, in 
accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan.  

For Sole Proprietorships: The Contractor shall complete and 
furnish to the City prior to the commencement of work under this 
Agreement a signed and notarized Sole Proprietor Form, for sole 
proprietors with no employees or with employees, as the case may 
be. 

 
B. Commercial General Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall 

procure and maintain during the life of this Agreement, Commercial General 
Liability Insurance on an "Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury 
and Property Damage. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) 
Contractual Liability; (B) Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent 
Coverage; (D) Broad Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent; (E) 
Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and Underground (XCU) Exclusions, if 
applicable. 

 
C. Motor Vehicle Liability: The Contractor shall procure and maintain 

during the life of this Agreement Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including all 
applicable no-fault coverages, with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence combined single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. 
Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired 
vehicles.  

 
D. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle 

Liability Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the 
following Additional Insureds: The City of Birmingham, including all elected 
and appointed officials, all employee and volunteers, all boards, 

5E



5 
 

commissions and/or authorities and board members, including employees 
and volunteers thereof. This coverage shall be primary to any other coverage 
that may be available to the additional insured, whether any other available 
coverage by primary, contributing or excess. 

 
E. Professional Liability: If applicable, professional liability insurance 

with limits of not less than $2,000,000 per claim if the Contractor will provide 
services that are customarily subject to this type of coverage.  

 
F. Coverage Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire during the 

term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or 
policies to the City at least (10) days prior to the expiration date. 

 
G. Proof of Insurance Coverage: The Contractor shall provide the City 

of Birmingham at the time the Agreement is returned for execution, Certificates 
of Insurance and/or policies, acceptable to the City of Birmingham, as listed 
below.  

 
1) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers'  

Compensation Insurance, or a signed and notarized copy of the 
Sole Proprietor Form; 

2) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General 
Liability Insurance;  

3) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability 
Insurance;  

4) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Professional Liability 
Insurance, if applicable; 

5) If so requested, Certified Copies of all policies mentioned above 
will be furnished.  

 
H. Maintaining Insurance: Upon failure of the Contractor to obtain or 

maintain such insurance coverage for the term of the Agreement, the City of 
Birmingham may, at its option, purchase such coverage and subtract the cost of 
obtaining such coverage from the Agreement amount. In obtaining such 
coverage, the City of Birmingham shall have no obligation to procure the most 
cost-effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage. 

 

14. WRITTEN NOTICES:  Written notices regarding this Agreement shall be 
addressed to the following: 

  City:  City of Birmingham 
    P.O. Box 3001 
    Birmingham, Michigan  48012 
    Attn:  Carrie Laird, Parks & Recreation Manager 
 

 

5E



6 
 

League: BLL 
  P.O. Box 2536 

Birmingham, Michigan 48012 
Attention:  Andrew M. Harris, Esq., President 

   

15. COVID:  The Contractor shall follow all of the City’s COVID-19 safety 
protocols while on City property.   Additionally, the Contractor staff which will be in physical 
contact with city staff must have current vaccinations against COVID-19.  The City, at its 
discretion, may ask for proof of vaccination of the Contractor’s staff.  Failure to provide 
proof of vaccination when requested will cause the City to request un-vaccinated 
personnel to leave, request alternate staff, and if the Contractor is unable to comply, this 
violation of safety protocols will constitute a breach of contract by the Contractor. 

16. AMENDMENTS: No amendment, modification or supplement to this 
Agreement shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by authorized representatives 
of the parties. 

17. WAIVER OF BREACH: No waiver by either party of any breach of any of the 
terms, covenants or conditions herein contained by the other party shall be construed as a 
waiver of any succeeding breach of this same or of any other term, covenant or condition. 

18.  COMPLETE AGREEMENT: The parties agree that the conditions set forth 
in this Agreement sets forth all terms and conditions of the BLL’s agreement with the City 
of Birmingham.  This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements or understandings 
between the parties.  There are no promises, conditions or understandings other than those 
stated herein, and, that any prior negotiations, terms or conditions discussed between the 
City and the BLL shall not constitute a part of this Agreement. The term “agreement” as 
used in this clause shall include any future written amendments, modifications, or 
supplements made in accordance herewith. 

19. DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST: If, after the effective date of this 
Agreement, any official of the City, or spouse, child, parent or in-law of such official or 
employee shall become directly or indirectly interested in this Agreement or the affairs of 
the BLL, the City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without further liability 
to the BLL if the disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days after the City 
has given the BLL notice of the disqualifying interest.  Ownership of less than one percent 
(1%) of the stock or other equity interest in a corporation or partnership shall not be a 
disqualifying interest.  Employment shall be a disqualifying interest. 

20. FAILURE TO PERFORM.  If the BLL fails to perform its obligations 
hereunder, the City may take any and all remedial actions provided by the general 
specifications or otherwise permitted by law. 

5E



21. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS: Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating
to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled either by commencement of a 
suit in Oakland County Circuit Court, the 48th District Court or by arbitration. If both parties 
elect to have the dispute resolved by arbitration, it shall be settled pursuant to Chapter 50 
of the Revised Judicature Act for the State of Michigan and administered by the American 
Arbitration Association with one arbitrator being used, or three arbitrators in the event any 
party's claim exceeds $1,000,000. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and 
an equal share of the arbitrator's and administrative fees of arbitration. Such arbitration 
shall qualify as statutory arbitration pursuant to MCL §600.5001 et seq., and the Oakland 
County Circuit Court or any court having jurisdiction shall render judgment upon the award 
of the arbitrator made pursuant to this Agreement. The laws of the State of Michigan shall 
govern this Agreement, and the arbitration shall take place in Oakland County, Michigan. 
In the event that the parties elect not to have the matter in dispute arbitrated, any dispute 
between the parties may be resolved by the filing of a suit in a federal or state court with 
jurisdiction over Oakland County, Michigan. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto agree to be bound by the above 
terms and conditions, and the BLL, by its authorized signature below, expressly accepts 
this Agreement upon the above provided terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement as of the date first above written. 

BIRMINGHAM L
�

UE 

By: C \ C
Andrew M. Harris, President 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

On this l,;,t- day of___.__......,_---+--- __ , 2023, before me personally
appeared Andrew M. Harris, Presi nt who acknowledged that with authority on behalf 
of the Birmingha ittle1= gu to do s he/she signed this Agreement. 

L, 
J}�\:.� ·;J, / o "'"J I 

. 
. 

--l-��.L...!..--=�1.!:3,,.,L.Hll"'9�.l.l£.J.---

\ I\ I Notary Public 

�\J!?jr,e., Cpunty, Michigan 
Acting in Oa.k.Jabol Cou ty, ichigan
My commission expires: b '1 ' 

7 

USA RANDAZZO.SMITH 
NOTARVPUSLIC, ST1'TS OF Ml 

COUNTY OF WAYNE 
MY COMMISSION EXP�ES OIT;Jct 5,202ACTING IN COUNTY OF 

I 

5E



5E



January 30, 2023 

VIA E-MAIL ONLY 
Ms. Carrie Laird 
City of Birmingham-Department of Public Services 
Parks Manager 
851 S. Eton 
Birmingham, MI 48009 

RE: Proposal Between the City of Birmingham Department of Public Services and 
Birmingham Little League 

Dear Ms. Laird: 

Since the summer of 2022, representatives from the Department of Public Services ("DPS") and 
Birmingham Little League ("BLL") engaged in good-faith discussions about field improvements to 
Kenning Park (in particular Field #2 and Palmeri Field ("Fields")) in advance of the 2023 BLL 
season in April as well as the Little League Minors State Tournament, taking place from July 27th
through August 2nd ("State Tournament"). Hosting the State Tournament is a once-in-a-generation 
opportunity for BLL, an event which is fueling some of these needed improvements. 

As you know, the talked-about improvements included Dugout Covers on the Fields ("Covers"), 
powering additional electricity and installation of bullpen mounds/plates ("Bullpens"). During these 
discussions, BLL understood it would be financially responsible for the improvements (but for the 
electricity) due in part to DPS's previously approved budget which did not include these items. 

Initially, the aforementioned discussions produced a plan wherein DPS would negotiate directly with 
a vendor(s) to procure and install the Covers while BLL would prepare a site plan to request the 
Bullpens. Recently, however, DPS underwent significant staffing changes which upended this plan. 

On January 11th, we spoke about a viable alternative wherein the Covers and Bullpens could be 
subject to a separate agreement between DPS and BLL. To move forward with this approach and 
increase the chance the aforementioned improvements could occur before the 2023 season, you 
politely suggested I prepare the following written proposal for consideration by DPS as well as the 
Parks & Recreation Board during its February 7th meeting. 

A. DUGOUT COVERS 

The initial discussions included a decision to procure Covers from Beacon Athletics which mirrored 
the ones at Keith Park in West Bloomfield Township. In fact, you spoke with Chris Frey from West 
Bloomfield in early October, 2022, who in turn provided information about the Covers' 
measurements, maintenance and durability. 

Se ct Eezot aoce deer dete6eO &wee 1947. 
5E



Birmin tam ittCe League 
In exchange for DPS providing BLL the necessary authority, it is willing to procure the Covers, 
facilitate their installation, provide the necessary maintenance (including after weather events), 
oversee set-up/take down each season and provide offsite storage. 

B. ELECTRICITY 

While our discussion on the improvements went through many changes, the initial plan wherein the 
City completes the due diligence necessary to run additional electricity to Kenning (and ensures the 
electricity is installed before the 2023 season) at its own cost in advance of the 2023 season remains. 

C. BULLPEN MOUNDS 

The Bullpens will be a key enhancement for the 2023 season, the State Tournament and beyond. 
There will be four (4) separate Mound set-ups (one each in foul territory (but on the field side of the 
fences) on Field #2 and Palmeri), which will include a dirt area for pitchers, a pitcher's mound, a dirt 
area for a home plate and the home plate itself. The distance from the back of the mound to the plate 
will be roughly fifty (50) feet and start approximately twenty five (25) feet behind where the base 
coaches stand (please see the enclosed diagram marked as Exhibit A). BLL will install the Mounds, 
maintain them throughout the year and store them in the offseason. 

I look forward to further discussion with DPS about this proposal. As you know, the prompt 
implementation of these improvements are important to BLL, the families it serves and the guests it 
will host throughout Michigan during the State Tournament. 

Sincerely, 

Andrew M. Harris, Esq. 
President 

Birmingham Little League 
Enclosure 
cc: Patrick O'Neill (via e-mail w/encl.) 

David Palmeri (via e-mail w/encl.) 
Wendy McIntyre Peard, Esq. (via e-mail w/encl.) 

Sewie9 eS 'zotavaaot cute( titeet deddizeo dioce 1947 
5E



EXHIBIT A 

5E



K
E

N
N

IN
G

 P
A

R
K

 B
A

LL
 F

l 
D

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 
C

IT
Y

 O
F

 B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

 -
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
, 

C
H

IG
A

N
 

0
1
 

- 
a

•-
 

a
m

o
s
m

il
 

 
o

d
a

 m
a
i 

gm
. 

If IA
N 

4.
4.

4 

rg
e!

!! 
. 

•.ii
 , 

I
I

• 

S
H

E
E

TS
 

3
.3

- D
E

M
O

LI
TI

O
N

 P
LA

N
 

• 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 A
D

D
R

E
S

S
: 

23
00

 E
. L

IN
C

O
LN

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 
B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
, M

IC
H

IG
A

N
 4

80
09

 

S
H

E
E

TS
 

2
.1

- S
E

S
C

 P
LA

N
 

I 
3.

1 
- 

D
E

M
O

LI
TI

O
N

 P
L

*4
 

4.
1 

- 
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N
 

9
.1

- G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 

6.
1 

- 
S

TA
K

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 

7.
1 

S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 
L
A

N
 

9.
1 
- R

A
N

T
IN

G
/S

E
E

 E 
N

G
 P

LA
N

 

• 
\ !

 

IM
M

O
. 
.=

=
 

IN
IM

M
 

S
H

E
E

TS
 

2
2

 -
 S

E
S

C
 P

LA
N

 
3.

2 
- D

E
M

O
LI

TI
O

N
 P

LA
N

 
4
.2

- 
S

IT
E

 P
LA

N
 

5.
2 

- 
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 

C
6.

2 
- 

S
TA

K
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 
7.

2 
• 

S
TO

R
M

W
A

TE
R

 P
LA

N
 

9
2
- 

P
LA

N
TI

N
G

/S
E

E
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N
 

O
W

N
E

R
: 

C
IT

Y
 O

F
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A

M
 

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
: L

A
U

R
E

N
 W

O
O

D
 

85
1 

S
. E

T
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

, M
IC

H
IG

A
N

 4
80

09
 

P
H

O
N

E
: 2

48
.5

30
.1

70
2 

E
M

A
IL

: N
ro

od
@

M
um

go
v.

or
g 

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E
 A

R
C

H
IT

E
C

T:
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

 H
IL

L 
LA

N
D

 E
T

H
IC

S
 S

T
U

D
IO

 
C

O
N

T
A

C
T

: M
A

R
K

 R
O

B
IN

S
O

N
 

41
2 

LO
N

G
S

H
O

R
E

 D
R

IV
E

 
A

N
N

 A
R

B
O

R
. M

IC
H

IG
A

N
 4

81
05

 
P

H
O

N
E

: 7
34

.6
68

.7
41

6 
E

M
A

IL
: 

m
ro

bi
ns

on
ah

le
.4

11
.4

1o
.c

om
 

S
H

E
E

T 
IN

D
E

X
: 

S
H

E
E

T
 1

: 
S

H
E

E
T

 2
.1

.2
,2

: 
S

H
E

E
T

 2
.3

: 
S

H
E

E
T

 3
.1

, 3
2
, 3

.3
: 

S
H

E
E

T
 4

.1
, 4

2
: 

S
H

E
E

T
 5

.1
, 5

2
: 

S
H

E
E

T
 6

.1
, 6

.2
: 

S
H

E
E

T
 7

.1
, 7

.2
: 

)S
H

E
E

T
 8

: 
S

H
E

E
T

 9
.1

, 9
.2

: 
S

H
E

E
T

 1
0:

 
I 

S
H

E
E

T
 1

1:
 

S
H

E
E

T
 1

2:
 

/ 
S

H
E

E
T

 1
3:

 
S

H
E

E
T

 1
4:

 

/
S

H
E

E
T

 1
5:

 
S

H
E

E
T

 1
6:

 
S

H
E

E
T

 1
7:

 
S

H
E

E
T

 0
.0

 
S

H
E

E
T

 E
1.

0 

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

 
S

E
S

C
 P

LA
N

 
S

E
S

C
 N

O
T

E
S

 &
 D

E
T

A
IL

S
 

D
E

M
O

LI
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
 

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

 
G

R
A

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 
S

T
A

K
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 
S

T
O

R
M

W
A

T
E

R
 P

LA
N

 
IR

R
IG

A
T

IO
N

 P
LA

N
 

P
LA

N
T

IN
G

 A
N

D
 S

E
E

D
IN

G
 P

LA
N

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 D
E

T
A

IL
S

 
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
A

L 
S

Y
M

B
O

LS
 A

N
D

 IN
D

E
X

 
E

LE
C

T
R

IC
A

L 
P

LA
N

 

—
 9

 

LO
C

A
T

IO
N

 M
A

P
 

N
O

T 
T

O
S

C
..
. 

9
j1 4

.T
P

A
C

T
9
),

)!
E

p
p
lI
S

M
IL

IT
IE

S
.7

1
4
,1c

01
40

01
04

.1
7 

T
H

E
 1

.1
t0

4
E

C
T

 

1.
 
II
*
 

C
O

N
 1

1
.9

 1
01

, 4
4
.4

 7
1

9
, I

N
S

IN
S

W
N

IK
E

tC
* 

C
O

N
 IN

C
 IW

O
 /A

O
 C

O
O

N
:W

.4
19

1G
 1

41
4
0
 

A
LL

 P
E

A
T

IN
0
/1

 M
E

N
 C

O
M

P
 F
M

C
S

 7
2 

N
O

L
A

* I
N

 A
D

V
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 o

W
 0

1
0
4
.4

 7
0
 

fA
A

R
U

A
R

1S
C

 IW
IS

C
L

E
I<

L
R

S
:I

f V
T

I I
 A

LL
 V

M
O

C
A

O
R

01
.1

M
) U

tt
U

llt
.3

. M
K

S
 .°

 
S

T
R

U
C

T
LI

E
F

S
. 

71
49

 C
O

N
TR

A
C

TO
R

 S
M

A
LL

 A
S

S
U

U
S

 S
O

D
S

 R
P

S
P

O
N

11
11

11
1`

11
01

i A
N

Y
 C

O
S

1 
17

IC
IA

R
E

D
 D

V
S

 T
O

 O
N

A
9

0
9

 0
9
 A

N
Y

 0
0

4
7

1
9

S
. 

Z.
 

10
4 

C
O

N
 M

A
L

 !O
R

 S
W

N
I.
1
.4

0
1
W

L
L
N

A
L
Y

 P
R

O
C

E
E

D
 V

A
IN

 1
1

* 
C

O
N

S
 IW

O
 1

1
0

1
 A

S
 

C
E

S
10

04
0 

W
YK

T4
 N

 1
5
0
1
9
1
O

n
 T

H
A

T 
U

N
K

N
O

W
N

 0
95

71
W

C
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 I 

O
R

 O
R

A
D

F 
0
07

17
t1

tO
C

C
S

 (M
S

T
. 

S
O

O
T 

0
0

1
4

0
1

1
0

0
3

 A
N

N
A

 O
E

 .Y
E

O
A

IR
Y

 0
,1

04
10

11
 tO

 
A

T
T

LI
N

T
O

N
 O

f 
11

1E
 1

.4
/1

0S
C

A
P

t A
R

C
IE

N
C

T
. 

TH
E

 0
0

1
.1

0
0

0
1

0
0

 N
O

L
L

 A
S

S
U

M
E

 W
U

. 
R

E
S

E
C

W
S

III
K

A
Y

 F
O

R
 A

LL
 n

t1
;0

11
,A

N
Y

 R
E

V
LS

C
IN

S
 O

LI
E

 T
O

 F
A

K
LO

th
 1

0
 O

N
E

 U
C

H
 

N
O

TI
FI

C
A

TI
O

N
. 

J.
 A

N
Y

 C
tS

C
R

E
P

A
N

C
IE

S
 B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 S
O

K
E

N
S

IC
N

E
0 

LA
Y

O
U

T
A

A
III

N
C

1L
LY

. F
IE

LD
 C

O
N

01
10

11
1 

S
M

A
LL

 O
C

 tw
u
ce

o
tc

, e
lk

o
v
o
.r

r 
TO

 IN
C

 A
N

E
IN

11
00

10
17 

TO
E

 IA
N

D
S

C
A

P
C

 
A

R
0
1
1.

9C
T/

0,
91

49
R

., 
ts

k
 C

O
M

P
A

C
T

O
R

 S
W

A
LL

 A
S

S
IA

1L
 N

A
L

 P
X

5P
O

N
S

IO
R

.IE
Y

 F
O

R
 A

LL
 

N
E

C
E

S
S

A
R

Y
 R

E
V

IS
IO

N
S

 IS
Lt

E 
TO

 F
A

R
 I/

R
E

 T
O

 C
O

E
 *

V
:1

1
 N

O
T

IF
IC

A
T

IO
N

. 

4
. 

TH
E 

C
O

N
N

/9
4
7
0
R

 S
H

A
LL

 S
t 
R

IV
O

N
S

ili
a

 F
O

R
 M

N
 C

O
O

R
01

70
11

03
 W

IT
H

 
S

IA
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
S

A
3 

R
E

C
O

P
E

O
 1

0
 A

C
C

E
N

IP
U

S
14

 C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TI

O
N

 IN
S

T
A

LL
A

T
IO

N
O

P
E

R
A

71
01

4.
 

5.
 7

19
E 

C
0
O

R
A

C
T

O
R

 S
K

91
7 

P
R

O
'W

E
 A

N
S

 K
/A

w
rA

m
P

o
s
In

v
e

 S
o

R
f A

C
E

 

4
. 

IN
K

 C
O

N
 /R

A
C

 IO
N

 N
o

.U
.1

1
9

 w
a

vO
N

S
IN

L
4

 ,O
N

 A
N

Y
 0

,7
15

09
13

 k
o
S

N
O

W
S

 I
 W

.4
 0

4
0

 
0

.4
1

4
.0

$
0

 W
R

IN
G

 O
O

N
S

T
R

IV
C

R
O

N
 W

. 
W

IN
O

 W
I 

N
O

T 
LI

M
IT

E
D

 7
0
11

71
90

.4
71

.4
, 7

K
N

or
S

 
A

N
D

 1
/0

4
9

0
4

1
 

81
1 

lo
o

m
 

D
ai

84
14

4,
44

4i
g.

 

14
 

tt
7
:1

.1
h
n
w

n
 1

2
 

N
O

R
T

H
 

SC
AL

F 
I1

-s
cr

.o
r 

1
8

B
R

M
0

1
 

C
O

V
E

R
 1

 

5E



1 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Police Department 
 

 
DATE:   April 26, 2023  
 
TO:   Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Chris Koch, Investigative Captain 
 
APPROVED:  Scott A. Grewe, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Old Woodward Ventures, LLC doing business at Luxe 

 Requests a transfer of membership in the Class C and SDM 
 License with Sunday Sales (PM) and Outdoor Service Area 
 located at 525 N Old Woodward, Birmingham, Oakland 
 County, MI from 50% Lawrence Bongiovanni Trust and 50% 
 Eunice Bongiovanni to 33.34% Kara Bongiovanni Living Trust, 
 33.33% Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust and 
 33.33% Joseph Bongiovanni.   

 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
The police department received a request from the Law Offices of Adkison, Need, Allen, and 
Rentrop for a transfer of membership in Old Woodward Ventures, LLC.  doing business at Luxe. 
Luxe is a Class C and SDM liquor licensed entity which operates with Sunday Sales (PM) and an 
Outdoor Service Area permit located at 525 N Old Woodward, Birmingham, Oakland County, MI 
48009. Old Woodward Ventures, LLC has paid the initial fee of $1500.00 for a business that serves 
alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises per section 7.33 of the Birmingham City 
Code. Old Woodward Ventures, LLC, is comprised of two members: 
 
Members     Membership 
 
Lawrence Bongiovanni Living Trust   50%  
 
Eunice Bongiovanni Living Trust   50%  
 
Old Woodward Ventures, LLC, pursuant to the last Will and Testament of Lawrence Bongiovanni 
and Eunice Bongiovanni, all their property was poured over to their Living Trust. The membership 
of Old Woodward Ventures, LLC is owned by Lawrence Bongiovanni, Trust, Kara Bongiovanni 
Trustee 50%, and Eunice Bongiovanni, Trust, Kara Bongiovanni Trustee 50%.  
 
 
 

5F



2 
 

Chapter 10 (Alcoholic Liquors), Section 42 of the Birmingham City Code requires that “any and all 
transfers of a liquor license for consumption of intoxicating liquor on premises require the 
approval of the City Commission of any kind including, but not limited to ownership of the license; 
stock in a corporation that owns a license; interest in a license through any entity; or location of 
the licensed premises.”  In this case, the interest in the license through an entity is the reason 
this issue is coming before the City Commission.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
On May 5, 2019, member Lawrence Bongiovanni passed away. Pursuant to the Last Will and 
Testament of Lawrence Bongiovanni, all his property is poured over to his Living Trust. Lawrence 
Bongiovanni was the Trustee of his Trust and his successor Trustee was his wife Eunice 
Bongiovanni.   
 
On November 15, 2020, stockholder Eunice Bongiovanni passed away. Pursuant to the Last Will 
and Testament of Eunice Bongiovanni, all her property was poured over to her Living Trust. 
Eunice Bongiovanni was the Trustee of Eunice’s Trust and her successor Trustee was her daughter 
Kara Bongiovanni.  
 
Eunice Bongiovanni Trust will assign 16.67% membership interest to Kara Bongiovanni Living 
Trust, 16.665% membership interest to Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust, and 
16.665% membership interest to Joseph Bongiovanni.  
 
Lawrence Bongiovanni, Trust will assign 16.67% membership interest to Kara Bongiovanni Living 
Trust, 16.665% membership interest to Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust, and 
16.665% membership interest to Joseph Bongiovanni.  
 
Upon completion of this application, the ownership of Old Woodward Ventures, LLC will be as 
follows: 
 
Member      Membership 
Kara Bongiovanni Living Trust    33.34% 
 
Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust   33.33% 
 
Joseph Bongiovanni      33.33% 
 
The current hours of operation will remain the same, 11:00 am to 11:00 pm Sundays-Tuesdays 
and 11:00 am to midnight Wednesday-Saturday.   There are no changes to the capacity or layout 
of the restaurant.  There are no changes in the Special Land Use Permit (SLUP).  
 
A background check was conducted on Kara Bongiovanni, Lawrence Bongiovanni, Amy 
Bongiovanni, and Joseph Bongiovanni using the Law Enforcement Information Network (LEIN), 
the Court’s Law Enforcement Management Information System (CLEMIS), and the Middle Atlantic-
Great Lakes Organized Crime Law Enforcement Network (MAGLOCLEN) FBI N-DEX national 
database.  No negative information was uncovered.  
 
It should be noted that on November 21, 2014, Luxe was cited by the Birmingham Police 
Department for furnishing alcoholic liquor to a person under the age of twenty-one (21) as part  
 
of the department’s undercover liquor license decoy program.  The Michigan Liquor Control 
Commission (MLCC) issued a fine to Luxe in the amount of $700.00 on March 10, 2015.    

5F



3 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
Non-applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,500.00 liquor license application fee received. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Non-applicable 

SUMMARY: 
 Old Woodward Ventures, LLC is requesting a transfer of its membership interest in doing business 
as Luxe.  Old Woodward Ventures, LLC holds the Class C and SDM License with Sunday Sales 
(PM) and Outdoor Service Area located at 525 N Old Woodward, Birmingham, Oakland County, 
MI, and is requesting that the 50% membership interest owned by Lawrence Bongiovanni Living 
Trust be transferred and divided among Kara Bongiovanni Living trust, Lawrence and Amy 
Bongiovanni Living Trust and Joseph Bongiovanni. The 50% membership interest owned by 
Eunice Bongiovanni Living Trust is to be transferred and divided among Kara Bongiovanni Living 
Trust, Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust, and Joseph Bongiovanni. The applicants, Amy 
Bongiovanni, Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni, and Joseph Bongiovanni, have successfully 
completed the police background check. The current SLUP in place for Luxe is in the name of Old 
Woodward Ventures, LLC this will not change. The police department has not uncovered any 
information that would give cause to deny the applicant’s request.  

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to authorize the City Clerk to complete the Local Approval 
Notice at the request of Old Woodward Ventures, LLC to approve the request of Lawrence and 
Eunice’s Living Trusts to transfer the membership of Old Woodward Ventures, LLC which is owned 
by Lawrence Bongiovanni, Trust, Kara Bongiovanni Trustee 50% and Eunice Bongiovanni, Trust 
Kara Bongiovanni Trustee 50%, which holds the Class C and SDM License with Sunday Sales (PM) 
and Outdoor Service Area located at 525 N Old Woodward, Birmingham, Oakland County, MI to 
33.34% Kara Bongiovanni Living Trust, 33.33% Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust and 
33.33% Joseph Bongiovanni.  

5F



1 
 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Police Department 
 

 
DATE:   April 25, 2023  
 
TO:   Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Chris Koch, Investigative Captain 
 
APPROVED:  Scott A. Grewe, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   Birmingham Ventures, Inc. doing business as Salvatore 

 Scallopini Requests a transfer of shares in the Class C and  SDM 
 License with Sunday Sales (PM) and Outdoor Service Area 
 located at 505 N Old Woodward, Birmingham, Oakland 
 County, MI from Eunice Bongiovanni Living Trust to Kara 
 Bongiovanni Living Trust, 170 Shares Lawrence and Amy 
 Bongiovanni Living Trust 170 Shares and Joseph Bongiovanni 
 170 Shares.    

 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
The police department received a request from the Law Offices of Adkison, Need, Allen, and 
Rentrop for a transfer of shares in Birmingham Ventures, Inc. doing business at Salvatore 
Scallopini. Salvatore Scallopini is a Class C and SDM liquor licensed entity which operates with 
Sunday Sales (PM) and an Outdoor Service Area permit located at 505 N Old Woodward, 
Birmingham, Oakland County, MI 48009. Birmingham Ventures, Inc. has paid the initial fee of 
$1500.00 for a business that serves alcoholic beverages for consumption on the premises per 
section 7.33 of the Birmingham City Code. Birmingham Ventures, Inc. is comprised of one 
stockholder: 
 
Members     Membership 
 
Eunice Bongiovanni Living Trust  510 Shares  
 
Birmingham Ventures, Inc. pursuant to the last Will and Testament of Eunice Bongiovanni all her 
property was poured over to her Living Trust. The Birmingham Ventures, Inc. stock is currently 
held by Eunice Bongiovanni Living Trust, Kara Bongiovanni Trustee. 
 
Chapter 10 (Alcoholic Liquors), Section 42 of the Birmingham City Code requires that “any and all 
transfers of a liquor license for consumption of intoxicating liquor on premises require the 
approval of the City Commission of any kind including, but not limited to ownership of the license; 
stock in a corporation that owns a license; interest in a license through any entity; or location of 

5G



2 
 

the licensed premises.”  In this case, the interest in the license through an entity is the reason 
this issue is coming before the City Commission.    
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On May 5, 2019, stockholder Lawrence Bongiovanni passed away. Pursuant to the Last Will and 
Testament of Lawrence Bongiovanni, all his property is poured over to his Living Trust. Lawrence 
Bongiovanni was the Trustee of his Trust and his successor Trustee was his wife Eunice 
Bongiovanni.   
 
On November 15, 2020, stockholder Eunice Bongiovanni passed away. Pursuant to the Last Will 
and Testament of Eunice Bongiovanni, all her property was poured over to her Living Trust. 
Eunice Bongiovanni was the Trustee of Eunice’s Trust and her successor Trustee was her daughter 
Kara Bongiovanni.  
 
Eunice Bongiovanni, Trust will assign 170 shares to Kara Bongiovanni Living Trust, 170 shares to 
Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust, and 170 shares to Joseph Bongiovanni.  
 
Upon completion of this application, the ownership of Birmingham Ventures, Inc. will be as 
follows: 
 
Member      Membership 
 
Kara Bongiovanni Living Trust    170 Shares 
 
Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust   170 Shares 
 
Joseph Bongiovanni      170 Shares 
 
 
The current hours of operation will remain the same, 1:00 pm to 10:00 pm Sundays 4:00 pm to 
10 pm Monday-Thursday, 4:00 pm to 11:00 pm on Friday, and 3:00 pm to 11:00 pm on Saturday.  
There are no changes to the capacity or layout of the restaurant.  There are no changes in the 
Special Land Use Permit (SLUP).   
 
A background check was conducted on Kara Bongiovanni, Lawrence Bongiovanni, Amy 
Bongiovanni, and Joseph Bongiovanni using the Law Enforcement Information Network (LEIN), 
the Court’s Law Enforcement Management Information System (CLEMIS), and the Middle Atlantic-
Great Lakes Organized Crime Law Enforcement Network (MAGLOCLEN) FBI N-DEX national 
database.  No negative information was uncovered.  
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
Non-applicable 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,500.00 liquor license application fee received.  
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  
Non-applicable 
 
 

5G



3 

SUMMARY: 
 Birmingham Ventures, Inc. is requesting a transfer of its stock interest in doing business as 
Salvatore Scallopini.  Birmingham Ventures, Inc holds the Class C and SDM License with Sunday 
Sales (PM) and Outdoor Service Area located at 505 N Old Woodward, Birmingham, Oakland 
County, MI, and is requesting that stock owned by Eunice Bongiovanni Living Trust be transferred 
and divided among Kara Bongiovanni Living trust, Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni Living Trust 
and Joseph Bongiovanni. The applicants, Amy Bongiovanni, Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni, and 
Joseph Bongiovanni, have successfully completed the police background check. The current SLUP 
in place for Salvatore Scallopini is in the name of Birmingham Ventures, Inc. this will not change. 
The police department has not uncovered any information that would give cause to deny the 
applicant’s request.   

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to authorize the City Clerk to complete the Local Approval 
Notice at the request of Birmingham Ventures, Inc. to approve the request Eunice’s Living Trusts 
to transfer the stock of Birmingham Ventures, Inc. which the stock is currently held by Eunice 
Bongiovanni,  Living Trust Kara Bongiovanni Trustee, which holds the Class C and SDM License 
with Sunday Sales (PM) and Outdoor Service Area located at 505 N Old Woodward, Birmingham, 
Oakland County, MI to Kara Bongiovanni Living Trust, 170 shares, Lawrence and Amy Bongiovanni 
Living Trust 170 shares and Joseph Bongiovanni 170 shares.  

5G



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Police Department 
 

 
DATE:  April 25, 2023  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Scott A. Grewe, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:  Youth Academy Intergovernmental Agreement 
 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
The Birmingham Police Department has decided to collaborate with police departments from 
Auburn Hills, the City of Rochester, and Bloomfield Township to establish a joint youth academy.  
The goal of the police youth academy is to allow students to experience hands-on activities and 
presentations for those interested in the field of law enforcement.  Participating in community 
outreach programs, especially with our youth, is an important part of our community policing 
efforts. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Residents of the four jurisdictions or students who attend schools in our cities are able to apply 
if they are ages 14 to 18 years old.  There is an application process that includes a very brief 
background check in order to be accepted into this program.  Students will learn about many 
aspects of law enforcement including police tactics, investigations, criminal law and procedure, 
basic first aid and CPR certification, firearms safety and scenario-based training.  This year’s 
academy will take place from June 26-June 30, 2023. 
 
It is the goal of all four agencies that this youth academy is an annual program.  Training locations 
each year may change based on program needs and availability but will always be held at one of 
the four participating agencies.   
 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
The attached agreement was written by our City Attorney and reviewed and approved by all four 
agencies participating in this joint youth academy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The academy is free of charge to participants and the cost associated with facilitating the academy 
will be split equally among the four participating agencies.  It is estimated, each agency will be 
responsible for approximately $1,000.00 to fund the academy class annually.   

5H



2 

These funds will be taken from the police department’s Operating Supply Fund – 101.0-301.000-
729.0000. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
This academy will be advertised by all four participating agencies to promote the program.  It 
was also included in the manager’s report at the April 24, 2023, City Commission meeting. 

SUMMARY: 
The Birmingham Police Department is joining with Auburn Hills Police, Rochester Police and 
Bloomfield Township Police to establish a regional youth academy.  This academy will be open to 
all residents and students of schools located in any one of the four municipalities.  Students will 
learn about many aspects of law enforcement including police tactics, investigations, criminal law 
and procedure, basic first aid and CPR certification, firearms safety and scenario-based training. 
This year’s academy will take place from June 26-June 30, 2023. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Intergovernmental Agreement for a Youth Academy Program
2. Promotional Flyer Advertising Program

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement between the 
City of Birmingham, the City of Auburn Hills, Bloomfield Township and the City of Rochester to 
establish a regional youth academy for residents and students of the four communities.  
Furthermore, to authorize the Chief of Police to sign the agreement on behalf of the City of 
Birmingham and the Birmingham Police Department. 

5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



1 
 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
(Police Department) 
 

 

DATE:  April 25, 2023  

 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Chris Koch, Investigative Captain 
 
APPROVED: Scott A. Grewe, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:  PROGRAM YEAR 2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA 

(HIDTA) SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF 
OAKLAND AND CITY OF BIRMINGHAM Data Universal Numbering 
System (DUNS) #: 074239450 

 
 

INTRODUCTION: 
The police department is a member of the Oakland County Sheriff’s Office Narcotic 
Enforcement Team (NET) by an approved inter-local agreement between the City and 
Oakland County. In addition to Birmingham, thirteen other communities are also 
members of NET by the inter-local agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2023, with the permission and cooperation of all thirteen member agencies, the 
Oakland County Sheriff’s Office applied for a grant through the Executive Board for 
Michigan High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) requesting the United States 
Office of Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) grant NET an award of $132,300.00 for the 
program year 2023 (January 1, to December 31, 2023). The grant award will allow partial 
funding for overtime reimbursement of NET investigators for drug investigations. Oakland 
County will reimburse the City up to $5,700.00 for qualifying NET related overtime. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
Legal Counsel reviewed the inter-local agreement and no issues were found to exist. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
If approved, the City would receive grant funding reimbursement from Oakland County 
up to $5,700.00 for qualifying NET related overtime.  
 
 

5I



2 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
None 

SUMMARY: 
In order to receive funds from the grant, the City of Birmingham is required to enter into 
a sub recipient agreement with Oakland County. The purpose of the agreement is to 
delineate the relationship and responsibilities regarding the County’s use of grant funds 
to reimburse municipalities for overtime incurred as it relates to participation in the 
Oakland County Narcotic Enforcement Team (NET). 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Program Year 2023 High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) sub recipient

agreement between the County of Oakland and the City of Birmingham.

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the Program Year 2023 High Intensity 
Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) sub recipient agreement between the County of Oakland 
and the City of Birmingham. Further, to authorize the Mayor to sign the agreement on 
behalf of the City. 

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 1 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

PROGRAM YEAR 2023 
 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA)  

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND AND CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) #: 074239450 
 
 
 
This Agreement is made between Oakland County, a Constitutional Corporation, 1200 North Telegraph, 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341 ("County") and City of Birmingham, 151 Martin St., Birmingham, MI 48009, a 
Michigan Municipal Corporation ("Municipality"). The County and Municipality shall be collectively 
referred to as the “Parties.” 
 
PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT.   
 
The Parties enter into this Agreement for the purpose of delineating their relationship and responsibilities 
regarding the County’s use of Grant funds (defined below) to reimburse the Municipality for overtime 
expenses that it incurred related to its participation in the Oakland County Narcotic Enforcement Team 
(“N.E.T.”), a multijurisdictional drug enforcement task force under the direction and supervision of the 
Oakland County Sheriff’s Office (“OCSO”). 
Under the Parties’ separate N.E.T. agreement, the Municipality is responsible for providing a full-time 
employee for participation in N.E.T. and for all costs associated with that employment, including 
overtime. 

The County, as the legal entity that administers N.E.T., submitted an Initiative Description and Budget 
Proposal (Exhibit A) to the Executive Board for Michigan HIDTA requesting the United States Office 
of National Drug Control Policy (“ONDCP”) to grant N.E.T. an award for program year (PY) 2023 to 
reimburse N.E.T. participating agencies for eligible law enforcement officer overtime. PY 2023 begins 
January 1, 2023 and ends December 31, 2023. 

If ONDCP grants N.E.T. an award for PY 2023, the ONDCP disburses the HIDTA grant funds to the 
Michigan State Police (“MSP”). To receive the Grant funds for overtime costs, N.E.T. must submit 
requests for reimbursement with the required supporting documentation to Michigan HIDTA. If 
Michigan HIDTA approves the N.E.T. overtime reimbursement requests, the MSP should distribute the 
Grant funds to County on behalf of N.E.T. The County has the authority to allocate a portion of the 
Grant funds to reimburse the Municipality for qualifying overtime costs subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

In consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, representations, and assurances in this Agreement, 
the Parties agree to the following: 

1. DEFINITIONS.  The following terms, whether used in the singular or plural, within or without 
quotation marks, or possessive or nonpossessive, shall be defined, read, and interpreted as follows. 

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 2 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

1.1. Claim means any alleged loss, claim, complaint, demand for relief or damages, cause of action, 
proceeding, judgment, deficiency, liability, penalty, fine, litigation, costs, and/or expenses, 
including, but not limited to, reimbursement for attorney fees, witness fees, court costs, 
investigation expenses, litigation expenses, and amounts paid in settlement, which are imposed 
on, incurred by, or asserted against the County or Municipality, or the County’s or 
Municipality’s agents or employees, whether such claim is brought in law or equity, tort, 
contract, or otherwise. 

1.2. Grant funds mean the funds that may be awarded to the County and the other participating 
agencies in N.E.T. pursuant to Michigan HIDTA Initiative Description and Budget Proposal 
Version 2023 (Exhibit A) submitted to Michigan HIDTA by County on behalf of itself and the 
other participating agencies in N.E.T. 

2. EXHIBITS.  The Exhibits listed below are incorporated and are part of this Agreement.  

2.1. Exhibit A – Michigan HIDTA Initiative Description and Budget Proposal Version 2023. 

2.2. Exhibit B - Template Request for HIDTA Overtime Reimbursement (Locals to County). 
2.3. Exhibit C – Sample letter regarding notification of current overtime pay rate. 

 
2.4. Exhibit D – Sample overtime slip, signed by the officer’s supervisor that supports each 

Request for HIDTA Overtime Reimbursement. 
 

2.5. Exhibit E – Sample paystub or payroll report that supports each Request for HIDTA 
Overtime Reimbursement. 
 

3. FEDERAL AWARD PROJECT DESCRIPTION. 

3.1. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (“CFDA”) #: 95.001 

3.2. Federal Awarding Agency: United States Office of National Drug Control Policy (“ONDCP”) 

3.3. Program: High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas (HIDTA) 

3.3.1. HIDTA Objective: To reduce drug trafficking and drug production in the United States by: 
(A) facilitating cooperation among Federal, State, local, and tribal law enforcement agencies 
to share information and implement coordinated enforcement activities; (B) enhancing law 
enforcement intelligence sharing among Federal, State, local, and tribal law enforcement 
agencies; (C) providing reliable law enforcement intelligence to law enforcement agencies 
needed to design effective enforcement strategies and operations; and (D) supporting 
coordinated law enforcement strategies which maximize use of available resources to reduce 
the supply of illegal drugs in designated areas and in the United States as a whole. 

3.4. Period of Performance: January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023. 

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 3 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

3.5. The Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) is provided in the HIDTA Grant Agreement 
between ONDCP and MSP, which is incorporated into this Agreement by reference. 

4. USE OF HIDTA FUNDS.   

4.1. The total amount of the federal award for overtime costs committed to the Municipality and 
obligated by this action by the County to the Municipality is not to exceed $5,700.00 for each 
participating law enforcement officer unless otherwise provided herein. That amount is based 
on the number of N.E.T participating agencies and eligible law enforcement officers at the time 
this Agreement was executed by both Parties. If the number of N.E.T participating agencies 
and/or eligible law enforcement officers changes during the term of this Agreement, the total 
amount of the federal award for overtime costs committed to the Municipality and obligated 
by this action by the County to the Municipality amount may change as funds are available on 
a pro rata basis. Such commitment and obligation for overtime costs is contingent upon the 
ONDCP awarding the Grant funds to N.E.T and the MSP reimbursing the County. 

4.2. The County will reimburse the Municipality up to $5,700.00 for each participating law 
enforcement officer for qualifying N.E.T.-related overtime unless otherwise provided herein. 
That amount is based on the number of N.E.T participating agencies and eligible law 
enforcement officers at the time this Agreement was executed by both Parties. If the number 
of N.E.T participating agencies and/or eligible law enforcement officers changes during the 
term of this Agreement, the maximum reimbursement amount may change as funds are 
available on a pro rata basis.  Such reimbursement shall only be made after the supporting 
documentation is submitted by the Municipality and approved by the County, as described in 
Paragraph 5.1.  Such reimbursement is contingent upon the ONDCP awarding the grant funds 
to N.E.T and the MSP reimbursing the County. 

4.2.1. HIDTA funds shall be used to pay overtime only if the overtime was performed in support 
of a HIDTA-designated Enforcement initiative or Intelligence and information Sharing 
Initiative. HIDTA funds shall not be used to pay overtime related to training attendance, 
financial management, drug treatment, drug demand reduction or prevention, or non-
investigative related administrative work. 

4.2.2. No HIDTA funds shall be used to supplant the Municipality’s funds that would otherwise 
be made available for the same purposes. 

4.3. There is no research and development performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.4. No indirect costs shall be charged or reimbursed under performance of this Agreement.  

5. REIMBURSEMENT OF ELIGIBLE NET OVERTIME.  

5.1. To request reimbursement for eligible N.E.T. overtime costs, the Municipality shall submit to 
the County the documentation described in the following subparagraphs no later than thirty 
(30) days after PY 2023 has expired. If the County, in its sole discretion, determines that the 

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 4 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

documentation submitted by the Municipality does not reconcile, then the Municipality shall 
provide any additional documentation requested by the County in order to process payment. 

5.1.1.  A fully completed and signed Request for HIDTA Overtime Reimbursement attached as 
Exhibit B.  

5.1.2. A letter substantively similar to the sample letter regarding notification of current overtime 
pay rate attached as Exhibit C.  

5.1.3. Overtime slips, signed by the officer’s supervisor, that support each Request for HIDTA 
Overtime Reimbursement. The overtime slips shall be substantively similar to the sample 
overtime slip attached as Exhibit D.  

5.1.4. The paystub or payroll report that supports each Request for HIDTA Overtime 
Reimbursement. The paystub or payroll report shall be substantively similar to the sample 
paystub attached as Exhibit E. 

5.2. County will only reimburse Municipality for approved overtime costs after County has 
received the Grant funds from MSP for that particular reimbursement request. 
 

6. GENERAL COMPLIANCE. 

6.1. The Municipality shall comply with to 28 C.F.R. Part 69 (New Restrictions on Lobbying) 
and 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System of Award Management). 

6.2. The Municipality shall comply with the Government-wide Suspension and Debarment 
provision set forth at 2 CFR Part 180.  

6.3. The Municipality shall perform all activities in accordance with The Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (the “Part 200 
Uniform Requirements”), as adopted and implemented by the Office of National Drug 
Control Policy (ONDCP) in 2 C.F.R. Part 3603. For this award, the Part 200 Uniform 
Requirements supersede, among other things, the provisions of 28 C.F.R. Parts 66 and 70, as 
well as those of 2 C.F.R. Parts 215, 220, 225, and 230.  

6.4. The Municipality shall comply with ONDCP’s HIDTA Program Policy and Budget 
Guidance, all other applicable Federal, state, and local laws and regulations, and the terms 
and conditions contained in this Agreement. 

6.5. The Municipality shall comply with all applicable requirements for subrecipients that are 
provided in the HIDTA Grant Agreement between ONDCP and MSP. The HIDTA Grant 
Agreement between ONDCP and MSP will be provided to the Municipality within a 
reasonable time after the County receives a copy of it. 

6.6. As specified in the HIDTA Program Policy and Budget Guidance, the Municipality must:  

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 5 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

6.6.1. Establish and maintain effective internal controls over the Federal award that provides 
reasonable assurance that Federal award funds are managed in compliance with Federal 
statutes, regulations and award terms and conditions. These internal controls should be in 
compliance with the guidance in “Standards for Internal Control in the Federal 
Government,” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the “Internal 
Control Integrated Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission (COSO).  

6.6.2. Comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
awards.  

6.6.3. Evaluate and monitor compliance with applicable statute and regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of the Federal award.  

6.6.4. Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified, including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings.  

6.6.5. Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identified information (PII) 
and other information ONDCP or the Municipality designates consistent with applicable 
Federal, state, and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.  

7. FINANCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS.    

7.1. The Municipality shall maintain standards of financial accountability that conform to 2 
C.F.R. §200.302 (Financial Management) and 2 C.F.R. §200.303 (Internal Controls).   

7.2. The Municipality shall comply with audit requirements contained in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, 
Subpart F, which requires the Municipality to have an annual audit conducted within nine (9) 
months of the end of their fiscal year, if the Municipality has an aggregate expenditure of 
more than $750,000 in federal funds in a fiscal year.  Any deficiencies noted in audit reports 
must be fully cleared by the Municipality within thirty (30) days after receipt of same. The 
Grant funds spent by the County on behalf of the Municipality for training expenses shall be 
included on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards if the Municipality is required 
to have a single audit performed. Municipalities that are exempt from the Single Audit 
requirements that receive less than $750,000 of total Federal funding must submit a Financial 
Statement Audit prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
(“GAAS”) if the audit includes disclosures that may negatively impact the HIDTA program 
including, but not limited to fraud, financial misstatements, and violations of any contract or 
grant provisions.  The County shall have the right to review and audit all records of the 
Municipality pertaining to any payment by the County. 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  

8.1. The Municipality shall comply with the following ONDCP conflict of interest policies: 

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 6 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

8.1.1. As a non-Federal entity, you must maintain written standards of conduct covering 
conflicts of interest and governing the performance of your employees engaged in the 
selection, award, and administration of subawards and contracts. 

8.1.2. None of your employees may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a 
subaward or contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or apparent 
conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer, or 
agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization 
which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or 
other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from an organization considered for a sub- 
award or contract. The officers, employees, and agents of the non-Federal entity must 
neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from 
subrecipients or contractors or parties to subawards or contracts. 

8.1.3. If you have a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is not a State, local 
government, or Indian tribe, you must also maintain written standards of conduct covering 
organizational conflicts of interest. Organizational conflicts of interest means that because 
of relationships with a parent company, affiliate, or subsidiary organization, you are unable 
or appear to be unable to be impartial in conducting a sub-award or procurement action 
involving a related organization.  

 
9. MANDATORY DISCLOSURE.  

9.1. As a non-Federal entity, the Municipality must disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to 
ONDCP all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery or gratuity violations 
potentially affecting the Federal award. Non-Federal entities that have received a Federal 
award that includes the term and condition outlined in 200 CFR Part 200, Appendix XII 
“Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters,” are required 
to report certain civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings to System for Award 
Management (SAM). Failure to make required disclosures can result in remedies such as: 
temporary withholding of payments pending correction of the deficiency, disallowance of all 
or part of the costs associated with noncompliance, suspension, termination of award, 
debarment, or other legally available remedies outlined in 2 CFR 200.338 “Remedies for 
Noncompliance”. 

10. RECORD RETENTION. 

10.1. The Municipality shall comply with the record retention provisions of 2 C.F.R. 200.333 
(Retention requirements for records). 

10.2. The Municipality should, whenever practicable, collect, transmit, and store Federal award-
related information in open and machine readable formats rather than in closed formats or on 
paper in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.335 (Methods for collection, transmission and storage 
of information).  

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 7 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

11. ACCESS TO RECORDS. 

11.1. The Federal awarding agency, Inspectors General, the Comptroller General of the United 
States, and the County, or any of their authorized representatives, have the right of access to 
any documents, papers, or other records of the Municipal entity which are pertinent to the 
Federal award, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The right also 
includes timely and reasonable access to the Municipality's personnel for the purpose of 
interview and discussion related to such documents. The right of access to the Municipality’s 
records is not limited to the required retention period but last as long as the records are 
retained. 

11.2. The Municipality shall permit the County and auditors to have access to the Municipality’s 
records and financial statements as necessary for the County to meet the requirements of 2 
C.F.R. Part 200. 

12. TERM. 

12.1. This Agreement and any amendments hereto shall be effective when executed by both Parties 
with concurrent resolutions passed by the governing bodies of each Party, and when the 
Agreement is filed according to MCL 124.510. The approval and terms of this Agreement and 
any amendments hereto shall be entered in the official minutes of the governing bodies of each 
Party. This Agreement shall end on December 31, 2023. 

13. ASSURANCES. 

13.1. Each Party shall be responsible for its own acts and the acts of its employees and agents, the 
costs associated with those acts, and the defense of those acts. 

13.2. The Parties have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and 
complete this Agreement.  The persons signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party have 
legal authority to sign this Agreement and bind the Parties to the terms and conditions 
contained herein.  

13.3. Each Party shall comply with all federal, state, and local ordinances, regulations, 
administrative rules, laws, and requirements applicable to its activities performed under this 
Agreement. 

14. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.   

14.1. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part as follows: 

14.1.1. by the County, if the Municipality fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement;  

14.1.2. by the County for cause;  

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 8 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

14.1.3. by the County with the consent of the Municipality, in which case the two parties must 
agree upon the termination conditions, including the effective date and, in the case of partial 
termination, the portion to be terminated;  

14.1.4. by the Municipality upon sending to the County written notification setting forth the 
reasons for such termination, the effective date, and, in the case of partial termination, the 
portion to be terminated. However, if the County determines in the case of partial termination 
that the reduced or modified portion of the subaward will not accomplish the purpose for 
which this Agreement was made, the County may terminate the Agreement in its entirety.  

14.2. The County must provide to the Municipality a notice of termination. Written suspension or 
notice of termination will be sent to the Municipality’s business address. If this Agreement is 
terminated or partially terminated, both the County and the Municipality remain responsible 
for compliance with the requirements at 2 CFR 200.343 Closeout and 2 CFR 200.344 Post-
closeout Adjustments and Continuing Responsibilities. 

15. CLOSEOUT. 

15.1. The County shall close-out this Agreement when it determines that all applicable 
administrative actions and all required work under this Agreement have been completed by 
Municipality.  

15.2.  The Municipality shall comply with the closeout provisions of 2 C.F.R. 200.343 (Closeout).  

16. POST-CLOSEOUT ADJUSTMENTS AND CONTINUING RESPONSIBILITIES.  

16.1. The closeout of this Agreement does not affect any of the following: 

16.1.1. The right of County to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later audit or 
other review. The County must make any cost disallowance determination and notify the 
Municipality within the record retention period; 

16.1.2. The obligation of the Municipality to return any funds due as a result of later refunds, 
corrections, or other transactions including final indirect cost rate adjustments;  

16.1.3. Audit requirements in Subpart F—Audit Requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  

16.1.4. Records retention as required in Subpart D—Post Federal Award Requirements of this 
part, §200.333 Retention requirements for records through §200.337 Restrictions on public 
access to records.  

17. REMEDIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE. 

17.1. If the Municipality fails to comply with federal statutes, regulations, or the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, the County may impose additional conditions, as described in 2 
CFR §200.207 Specific Conditions. If the County determines that noncompliance cannot be 

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 9 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

remedied by imposing additional conditions, the County may take one or more of the following 
actions, as appropriate in the circumstances: 

17.1.1. temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the 
Municipality or more severe enforcement action by the County; 

17.1.2. disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or part 
of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance;  

17.1.3. wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Agreement;  

17.1.4. recommend that the Federal awarding agency initiate suspension or debarment proceedings 
as authorized under 2 CFR Part 180 and Federal awarding agency regulations;  

17.1.5. withhold further funds for the project or program;  

17.1.6. take other remedies that may be legally available.  

18. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  Except as provided for the benefit of the Parties, this 
Agreement does not and is not intended to create any obligation, duty, promise, contractual right or 
benefit, right to indemnification, right to subrogation, and/or any other right, in favor of any other 
person or entity. 

19. DISCRIMINATION.  The Parties shall not discriminate against their employees, agents, applicants 
for employment, or another persons or entities with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, and 
privileges of employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment in violation of 
any federal, state or local law. 

20. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining, 
throughout the term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, certificates, and governmental 
authorizations necessary to carry out its obligations and duties pursuant to this Agreement. 

21. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.  This Agreement does not, and is not intended to waive, impair, 
divest, delegate, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other legal right, privilege, power, 
obligation, duty, or immunity of the Parties. 

22. DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACT/ASSIGNMENT.  Neither Party shall delegate, subcontract, 
and/or assign any obligations or rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 
other Party. 

23. NO IMPLIED WAIVER.  Absent a written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a Party to pursue or 
enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of those rights with 
regard to any existing or subsequent breach of this Agreement.  No waiver of any term, condition, or 
provision of this Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances, shall be 
deemed or construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement.  

5I



2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 10 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

No waiver by either Party shall subsequently affect its right to require strict performance of this 
Agreement. 

24. SEVERABILITY.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term, or condition, of this Agreement 
to be illegal or invalid, then the term, or condition, shall be deemed severed from this Agreement.  All 
other terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force. 

25. CAPTIONS.  The section and subsection numbers and captions in this Agreement are intended for 
the convenience of the reader and are not intended to have any substantive meaning.  The numbers 
and captions shall not be interpreted or be considered as part of this Agreement.  Any use of the 
singular or plural number, any reference to the male, female, or neuter genders, and any possessive or 
nonpossessive use in this Agreement shall be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or possession 
as the context requires. 

26. NOTICES.  Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally delivered, 
sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first-class U.S. mail postage prepaid, and addressed 
to the person listed below.  Notice will be deemed given on the date when one of the following first 
occur: (1) the date of actual receipt; (2) the next business day when notice is sent express delivery 
service or personal delivery; or (3) three days after mailing first class or certified U.S. mail. 

26.1. If Notice is sent to the County, it shall be addressed and sent to: Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners Chairperson, 1200 North Telegraph, Pontiac, Michigan 48341, with a copy to 
Oakland County Sheriff’s Office, Sheriff Fiscal Officer, 1200 N. Telegraph, Bldg. 38E, 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341. 

26.2. If Notice is sent to the Political Subdivision, it shall be addressed to: City of Birmingham 

26.3. Either Party may change the address and/or individual to which Notice is sent by notifying the 
other Party in writing of the change.   

27. CONTACT INFORMATION. 

County of Oakland 

Lieutenant Sean Jennings 
Investigative & Forensic Services Division 
Narcotics Enforcement Team 
Office: 248-858-1722 
Fax: 248-858-1754 
Email: jenningss@oakgov.com 
 

City of Birmingham 
 
Captain Chris Koch 
Birmingham Police Department 
151 Martin 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
248-530-1769 
Email: ckoch@bhamgov.org 
 
 
 

  

5I

mailto:jenningss@oakgov.com
mailto:ckoch@bhamgov.org


2023 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 11 of 11 
Rev. February 2023 

 

 

28. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of 
the State of Michigan, without regard to Michigan’s conflict of laws provisions.   

29. AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS.  Any modifications, amendments, 
rescissions, waivers, or releases to this Agreement must be in writing and executed by both Parties.   

30. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement and understanding 
between the Parties.  This Agreement supersedes all other oral or written agreements between the 
Parties. The language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, 
and not construed strictly for or against any Party. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, David T. Woodward, Chairperson, Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners, acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the Oakland County Board 
of Commissioners, a certified copy of which is attached, to execute this Agreement, and hereby accepts 
and binds the County to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 
EXECUTED: ____________________________________ DATE: ______________ 
 David T. Woodward, Chairperson 
 Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
 
WITNESSED:  _____________________________________ DATE: _______________ 
 Printed Name: 
 Title: 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _______________________, acknowledges that he/she has been authorized 
by a resolution of the Municipality’s governing body, a certified copy of which is attached, to execute this 
Agreement, and hereby accepts and binds the Municipality to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 
EXECUTED: ____________________________________ DATE: ______________ 
 Printed Name: 
 Title:  
 
WITNESSED:  _____________________________________ DATE: _______________ 
 Printed Name: 
 Title: 
 

5I



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Clerk’s Office 
 

 
DATE:  June 5, 2023  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  SOCRRA Board of Trustees Representatives 
 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Article VII of the Articles of Incorporation of South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority 
(SOCRRA) provides that each member municipality shall annually appoint a representative and 
an alternate to the Board of Trustees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Since 2015 the City Commission has appointed the City Manager as the Representative and the 
DPS Director as the Alternate. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
n/a 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
n/a 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Information regarding this appointment will be provided along with the agenda packet on the city 
website. Public comment is welcome in accordance with standard commission procedure. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The City Commission is being asked to appoint Jana Ecker as the Primary Representative and 
Scott Zielinski as the Alternate Representative to the SOCRRA Board of Trustees for the 2023-
2024 fiscal year. 
 
 
 

 

5J



2 

ATTACHMENTS:   

May 2, 2023 letter from SOCRRA 

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to appoint Jana Ecker as Representative and Scott Zielinski 
as Alternate Representative of the City of Birmingham on the SOCRRA Board of Trustee for the 
fiscal year starting July 1, 2023. 

5J



 

 

SOCRRA  3910 W. Webster Road  Royal Oak  Michigan  48073  Phone 248.288.5150  Fax 248.435.0310  Email socrra@socrra.org 

www.socrra.org 

Printed on Post Consumer Recycled Content Paper 

Berkley  Beverly Hills  Birmingham  Clawson  Ferndale  Hazel Park  Huntington Woods  Lathrup Village  Oak Park  Pleasant Ridge  Royal Oak  Troy 

 

 

 

May 2, 2023 
 
 
Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk 
City of Birmingham 
P.O. Box 3001     
Birmingham, MI 48012 
 
Subject:  Appointment of Representative & Alternate 
 
Dear Ms. Bingham: 
 
Article VII of the Articles of Incorporation of SOCRRA provides that each municipality shall annually 
appoint a representative and an alternate to the Board of Trustees.  This representative shall serve during 
the next fiscal year following his appointment and/or until his successor is appointed. 
 
The present representative and alternate representative for the City of Birmingham are as follows: 
 
 Representative  Alternate 
 
 T. Markus  S. Zielinski 
 
It is requested that the City Commission, by resolution, appoint a representative and alternate 
representative to represent the City of Birmingham on the Board of Trustees of SOCRRA for the fiscal 
year beginning July 1, 2023. 
 
Please forward a certified copy of this resolution to SOCRRA, 3910 W. Webster Road, Royal Oak, MI 
48073-6764. 
 
  Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
  Jeffrey A. McKeen, P.E. 
  General Manager 
 

JAM/cf 

5J



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Clerk’s Office 
 

 
DATE:  June 5, 2023   
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: SOCWA Board of Trustees  
 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Article VII of the Articles of Incorporation of Southeastern Oakland County Water Authority 
(SOCWA) provides that each member municipality shall annually appoint a representative and an 
alternate to the Board of Trustees. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Historically, the City Commission has appointed the City Engineer as the Representative and 
Assistant City Engineer as the Alternate.  

 
LEGAL REVIEW:  
n/a. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
n/a 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Information regarding this appointment will be provided along with the agenda packet on the city 
website. Public comment is welcome in accordance with standard commission procedure. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The City Commission is being asked to appoint Melissa Coatta to the SOCWA Board of Trustees 
as the Primary Representative and Jana Ecker as the Alternate Representative for the 2023-2024 
fiscal year. 
 
 
 

 

5K



2 

ATTACHMENTS:   

May 2, 2023 letter from SOCWA 

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to appoint Melissa Coatta as Representative and Jana 
Ecker as Alternate Representative of the City of Birmingham on the SOCWA Board of Trustees 
for the fiscal year starting July 1, 2023. 

5K



 

* Berkley * Beverly Hills * Bingham Farms * Birmingham 
* Clawson * Huntington Woods * Lathrup Village * Pleasant Ridge 

* Royal Oak * Southfield * Southfield Township 
 

 

 

SOCWA  3910 W. Webster Road  Royal Oak  Michigan  48073  Phone 248.288.5150  Fax 248.435.0310  Email socwa@socwa.org 
www.socwa.org 

Printed on Post Consumer Recycled Content Paper 

May 2, 2023 
 
 
Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk 
City of Birmingham 
P.O. Box 3001     
Birmingham, MI 48012 
 
Subject:  Appointment of Representative & Alternate 
 
Dear Ms. Bingham: 
 
Article VII of the Articles of Incorporation of the Southeastern Oakland County Water Authority provides 
that each municipality shall annually appoint a representative and an alternate to the Board of Trustees.  
This representative shall serve during the next fiscal year following his appointment and/or until his 
successor is appointed. 
 
The present representative and alternate representative for the City of Birmingham are as follows: 
 
 Representative  Alternate 
 
 M. Coatta   T. Markus 
 
It is requested that the City Commission, by resolution, appoint a representative and alternate 
representative to represent the City of Birmingham on the Board of Trustees of the Southeastern Oakland 
County Water Authority for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2023. 
 
Please forward a certified copy of this resolution to the Southeastern Oakland County Water Authority, 
3910 W. Webster Road, Royal Oak, MI 48073-6764. 
 
  Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
  Jeffrey A. McKeen, P.E. 
  General Manager 
 
JAM/cf 

5K



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Clerk’s Office 
 

 
DATE:  April 24, 2023  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Christina Woods, Deputy City Clerk 
 
APPROVED:  Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Arts Board Member Resignation 
 
 
INTRODUCTION/BACKGROUND: 

The Public Arts Board Regular Member Jane Schulak submitted her resignation from the 
board effective April 21, 2023. This creates a vacancy for the remainder of her three-year 
term to expire January 28, 2025.  
 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
None 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  

None 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

The City Clerk’s office will publish a notice of intention to appoint to this position, post the 
vacancy on the “board and commission opportunities” portion of the city’s website and 
include it in the city’s digital news vehicles as publication schedules permit. 

 
SUMMARY: 

The City Commission is being asked to accept the resignation of Jane Schulak from the 
Public Arts Board, thank her for her service, and to direct the City Clerk to begin the 
process of filling the vacancy. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   

1. Resignation email dated 4/21/2023 
 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 

To make a motion to accept the resignation of Jane Schulak from the Public Arts Board, 
to thank her for her service and to direct the City Clerk to begin the process of filling the 
vacancy.  

5L



Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org>

Fwd: PAB membership
3 messages

Brooks Cowan <bcowan@bhamgov.org> Fri, Apr 21, 2023 at 2:48 PM
To: Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>, Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org>

Jane Schulak’s resignation from PAB email below.

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Jane Schulak <jane@schulak.com>
Date: Fri, Apr 21, 2023 at 2:46 PM
Subject: Re: PAB membership
To: Brooks Cowan <bcowan@bhamgov.org>

Dear Brooks,

It is with deep regrets that I need to resign from the Birmingham Arts Board.  I am currently engaged in a large
collaboration with the global taste making for Christie’s as well as the Museum of Decorative Arts in Paris - leaving me
little time for the local engagement.  I would always be available to advise as needed and wish the team much success. 

With kind regards,

Jane Schulak

> On Apr 19, 2023, at 6:35 PM, Brooks Cowan <bcowan@bhamgov.org> wrote:
>
> Hi Jane,
>
> No worries about conflicting schedules - it's tough to make midweek evening meetings. If you don't think you'll be able
to make meetings on a consistent basis then I think it's best to resign and allow others an opportunity to join.
>
> resignation just requires an email to me - I can forward it to the Clerk to finalize.
>
> Thanks
>
> --
> Brooks Cowan
> Senior Planner
> (248) 530-1846

--
Brooks Cowan
Senior Planner
(248) 530-1846

Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org> Fri, Apr 21, 2023 at 3:38 PM
To: Brooks Cowan <bcowan@bhamgov.org>
Cc: Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

I'll get a resignation and intention to appoint on the 5/8 meeting. Thank you!

5L

mailto:jane@schulak.com
mailto:bcowan@bhamgov.org
mailto:bcowan@bhamgov.org


MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: May 8, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Melissa A. Coatta, City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Brown Street Paving 
Hearing of Necessity for Sidewalk and Streetscape Special Assessment 
District (SAD)  

INTRODUCTION: 
The design has been completed and bids were accepted on Tuesday, May 2, 2023 for the Brown 
Street Paving Project, which includes the reconstruction of Brown Street from S. Old Woodward 
to Woodward Ave.  The proposed work includes new sidewalk and streetscape features to match 
what was previously completed along Old Woodward and Maple Road.   

BACKGROUND: 
The Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) will improve pedestrian crossings at 
Woodward Ave. and Brown/Forest intersections starting in September 2023.  The City Commission 
approved the reconfiguration of Brown Street from S. Old Woodward to Woodward Ave. to include 
a reduction of one lane eastbound at Woodward Ave., a midblock pedestrian crossing, and an 
additional median island west of Peabody Street.   

The new streetscape on Brown Street will include: 
• Enhanced version of the downtown standard sawcut concrete sidewalk with an exposed

aggregate sidewalk between the main pedestrian sidewalk and the street curb.
• Professional-designed landscaping that includes enlarged raised planter beds framed by a

6-inch exposed aggregate curb, new street trees, and irrigation.

The proposed project is scheduled to start construction June 2023, with substantial project 
completion by August 4, 2023, and final project completion by August 18, 2023.   

The City’s policy has been to assess 75% of the streetscape improvements to the properties that 
share frontage with the improvements. The cost per property will be assessed as an average cost 
per linear foot of frontage for the improvements. The properties with multiple owners will share 
the cost of the frontage, and the amount will be based on the square footage of the building area 

7A



2 

owned.  The City will bill one-tenth of the assessment, as would be done on other special 
assessment districts, plus interest, on an annual basis, to make the cost more manageable for 
the property owners. 

The parcels within the project zone that are subject to the sidewalk and street scape are 

highlighted on the attached map. Appended to this report is a list of properties that the 

department plans to include in the assessment district, along with estimated construction costs.  

LEGAL REVIEW: 
Chapter 94 – Special Assessments of the Birmingham City Code outlines the process by which a 
special assessment is conducted in the City of Birmingham. This project will follow the prescribed 
City Code procedures.  Legal has reviewed and found no issues. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Revenues generated from the Streetscape SAD for the Brown Street Paving will defray the costs 
incurred by the City for the construction of these improvements.  Consistent with previous projects 
of this nature, the City's policy is as follows:  

− 75% of the streetscape improvements to the properties that share frontage with the
improvements.

− Properties with multiple owners will share the cost of the frontage, and the amount will
be based on the square footage of the building area owned.

The City pays for the balance of the costs, 25% of the streetscape improvements. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The Engineering Department held a property owner meeting on Thursday, March 23, 2023 to 
discuss the project, traffic access during construction, and special assessment.   

Notice for the Confirmation of Roll is to be distributed by the Clerk’s Office. The Engineering 

Department has sent all property owners a letter explaining the associated work.  

The Engineering Department did receive phone calls from property owners with questions and 
proposed construction schedule.  

SUMMARY: 
The Engineering Department recommends that the City Commission declare necessity and 
approve a Special Assessment District for the Brown Street Paving. Should the Commission 
approve the Special Assessment District, a public hearing for confirmation of the roll will be held 
at the City Commission meeting on May 22, 2023. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Map of proposed Streetscape Special Assessment District (1 page)

• Brown Street Paving Plans (33 pages)

• Spreadsheet with Estimated Costs of Services (2 pages)

• Clerk’s Confirmation of Public Hearing Notice (7 pages)

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION:

7A



3 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

Notice was given pursuant to Section 94-7 of the City Code, to each owner or 
party-in-interest of property and lots to be assessed, by first class mail, and by 
publication in a newspaper generally circulated in the City; and  

The City Commission has conducted a public hearing and has determined to 
proceed with the project of replacing sidewalks, reconfiguring roadway, and 
streetscape on Brown Street from S. Old Woodward to Woodward Ave.; and 

The City has previously established a policy requiring replacement or 
improvement of sidewalks and streetscape when the City street is open for 
repairs or reconstruction in the Central Business District; and 

The City Commission, after the public hearing, has determined that the Brown 
Street Paving Project is a necessity and is in the best interest of the City; and  

The Commission has approved the detailed plans and estimates of cost prepared 
by the City Engineer; and 

Formal bids have been received and the actual cost for sidewalk and streetscape 
has been determined; and 

The City Engineer has determined the boundaries of sidewalk and streetscape 
located within the limits of the following streets shall be installed as part of the 
Brown Street Paving Project (Contract #5-23(P)): 

Brown Street – S. Old Woodward to Woodward Ave.; and 

The formula used in making the assessment is 75% of the contractor’s charge 
for replacing sidewalks, reconfiguring roadway, and streetscape (calculated at 
the rate of $853.68 per foot of frontage property). 

THEREFORE LET It BE RESOLVED, The City Commission has determined that the scope of the 
public improvement as described is in the best interest of the City and will 
benefit the properties listed in the assessment roll, and the City Commission 
directs the Manager to prepare a Special Assessment Roll and present the same 
to the Commission for confirmation and further set a Public Hearing and give 
notice on May 22, 2023.  

Parcel ID Street Address Parcel ID Street Address 

08-19-36-208-015 325 S Old Woodward 08-19-36-206-021 255 S Old Woodward 

08-19-36-208-016 355 S Old Woodward 08-19-36-207-010 34901 Woodward 

08-19-36-208-004 34745 Woodward 08-19-36-206-024 Chester Parking Structure 

08-19-36-206-023 Alley 

7A



411

136

400

300

355

255

217

294

325

211

370
378

3480234901

34750

34952

34965

34977

34745

S Old Woodward Ave

E Brown St

Peabody St

Daines St

Hazel St

Forest Ave

¬«1

Brown Street Sidewalk and Streetscape SAD

Oakland County One Stop Shop   2100 Pontiac Lake Road  Bldg. 41 West   Waterford, MI 48328    Phone: 248-858-0721  Web: www.advantageoakland.com

Date Created: 4/18/2023

N
1 inch = 100 feet

David Coulter
Oakland County Executive

2 Foot Contours

5 Foot Contours
FEMA Base Flood Elevations

FEMA Cross Sections

100 yr - FEMA Floodplain

100 yr (detailed) - FEMA Floodplain
500 yr - FEMA Floodplain

FLOODWAY - FEMA Floodplain

Disclaimer:  The information provided herewith has been compiled from recorded
deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys and other public records.  It is not a legally recorded
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one.  Users should consult the
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplain data may
not always be present on the map. 7A

mcoatta
PolyLine

mcoatta
PolyLine

mcoatta
PolyLine



Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

R
U

G
B

Y

CONTRACT #5-23(P)

YORKSHIRE

APPROVED DATE
BENCHMARKS SET AND SHOWN PER
SHEET WERE ESTABLISHED OFF OF THE
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM BENCHMARK DATUM.

BENCHMARK NOTE

Oakland County, Michigan
SCALE:

0 400 800

200 600 1000200

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

14 MILE RD.

G
R

EE
N

LA
W

N

G
O

LF
   

-  
   

 V
IE

W

FAIRWAY    D
RIVE

HILL
SID

E

PO
LO

 P
L. D
R

.

NORTHLAWN  DRIVE

FAIR WAY  DR.

LINCOLN AVE

D
O

N
M

AR
 C

T.

LA
R

C
H

LE
A 

   
   

   
   

   
  D

R
IV

E

W
ES

TC
H

ES
TE

R
   

   
   

   
   

   
 W

AY

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST
   

   
   

   
   

 D
R

IV
E

AR
D

EN

LA
N

E

C
AR

O
LW

O
O

D

CT.C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
  R

D
.

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
  A

VE
.

PLEASANT

CT.

M
ER

R
IT

T 
 L

AN
E

BR
YN

 M
AW

R
W

EL
LE

SL
EY

 D
R

.

BE
R

W
YN

  R
D

.

AR
G

YL
E 

  B
LV

D.
G

O
LF

VI
EW

DEVONLANE

RADNOR  DR.
AVON LANE

SAXON

WAKEFIELD

LA
TH

A
M

NORFO
LK WORTH-

INGTON

SOUTHLAWN

NORTHLAWN

CANTERBURY

LA
TH

AM

S
O

U
TH

FI
E

LD

S
H

IP
M

A
N

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

M
A

R
Y

LA
N

D

S
TA

N
LE

Y

W
A

S
H

IN
G

TO
N

B
A

TE
S

H
E

N
R

IE
TT

A

SOUTHLAWN

14   MILE   RD.

WALLACE

PI
ER

C
E

GORDONLANE

TR
AI

L

H
A

W
TH

O
R

N
E

A
S

P
E

N

LI
N

D
E

N

BRANDON

SH
IR

LE
Y 

D
R

.

A
R

LI
N

G
TO

N
 R

D
.

AR
LIN

G
TO

N
 R

D
.

S
H

IR
LE

YMAPLE

RIV
ER

R
O

U
G

E

FAIRVIEW

WINTHROP

PINE

MELBORNE

K
IM

B
E

R
LE

Y C
H

E
S

TE
R

FI
E

LD

PINE

FA
IR

FA
X

SU
FF

IE
LD

PI
LG

R
IM

PU
R

IT
AN

LA
KE

PA
R

K

W
E

S
TW

O
O

D

N
. G

LE
N

H
U

R
S

T

BROOKWOOD

KEN
WOOD

LY
O

N
H

U
R

S
T

B
R

O
O

K
W

O
O

D

OAK

RAY  NALE

MID

LAND

W
IL

LO
W

 L
A

N
E

LA
K

E
S

ID
E

REDDING

ASH
FORD LN.

O
LD

 S
AL

EM

COLONIAL
CT.

BLOOMFIELDCT.

OAK

H
A

ZE
LW

O
O

D

LA
K

E
V

IE
W

B
A

LD
W

IN
 C

T.

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D

A
TE

N
 C

T.

HARMON

B
A

LD
W

IN

M
IL

LR
A

C
E

LAKESIDE

RANDALL

DEWEY

TO
O

TIN
G

LAN
E

BO
N

N
IE BR

IER

VINEWOOD

BRO
O

KSIDE

RA VIN
E

EUCLID

W
OODW

ARDPARK

FERNDALE

OLD W
OODW

ARDWARREN

OAKLAND

SOUTHLAWN

CATALPA

BENNAVILLE
CHAPIN

EMMONS

DAVIS

SMITH

BIRD

C
E

D
A

R

FL
O

Y
D

RUFFNER

HUMPHREY

LINCOLN

W
OODW

ARD

TA
U

N
TO

N

CROFT

PENISTONE

BANBURY

HUMPHREY

MELTON

M
AN

SFIELD

BRADFORD

SHEFFIELD
DUNSTABLE

CHELTENHAM

H
A

N
LE

Y
 C

T.

E
TO

N

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

W
O

R
TH

A
D

A
M

S

LANDON

GEORGE

FL
O

Y
D

C
LA

R
K

LI
N

C
O

LN
C

T.

DORCHESTER

BUCKINGHAM

P
O

P
P

LE
TO

N RIDGEDALE

OAKLAND

O
AK

-
D

AL
E

LA
W

N
 D

A
LE

O
A

K
  D

A
LE

P
O

P
P

LE
TO

N

R
O

S
E

  D
A

LE

WESTBORO DR.

RIVENOAK

KENNESAW

MOHEGAN

O
X

FO
R

D

WIMBELTON

ABBEY

PUTNEY

HE
NL

EY

HENLEY

ABBEY

TW
IN

O
AK

S A
D

A
M

S

DERBY

TOTTENHAM

SHEPARDBUSH

W
A

R
W

IC
K

NORWICH

DERBY

PEMBROKE
CT. PEMBROKE

G
RAEFIELD

G
R

A
E

FI
E

LD
 C

T.

N
. E

TO
N

E
D

E
N

B
O

R
O

U
G

H

DERBY

PEMBROKE

MANCHESTER

WINDEMERE

BUCKINGHAM

DORCHESTER

S
T.

   
A

N
D

R
E

W
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

GRAND  
  TRUNK      W

ESTERN        R.  R.

SPRINGDALE
PARK

16    MILE    ROAD

STRATHMORE

Q
UARTO

N    LAKE

H
ID

D
EN

 R
AV

IN
ES

C
U

M
M

IN
G

S

MADISON

C
O

U
R

T

HANNA

FRANK

SO
UT

HF
IE

LD

W
A

TK
IN

S

C
H

E
R

R
Y

 C
T.

S
TA

N
LE

Y

C
H

E
S

TE
R

B
A

TE
S

H
E

N
R

IE
TT

A

PI
ER

C
E

CO
UR

T

 DR.

V
A

LL
E

Y
V

IE
W

LA
N

E

W
OO

DL
AN

D

V
IL

LA
 C

T.

TOWNSEND

     BROWN

MERRILL

MARTIN
W. M

APLE

CT.

HOLLAND

HAYNES
HAYNES

BOWERS

PALMERHAZEL

VILLA

BOWERS

HAYNES
CT.

PURDY
ANN

FRANK

DAINES

BROWN

HAMILTON
PEABO

DY

HAYNES

BOWERS

HAZEL

CHESTNUT

FORESTE
LM

YOSEMITE

E. MAPLE

KNOX
MAPLE

Y
A

N
K

E
E

C
O

LU
M

B
IA

YORKSHIRE

BENNAVILLE

A
D

A
M

S

WILLITS

LINCOLN

LINCOLN

M
ELTO

N

HUMPHREY

W
O

O
D

LE
A

WILLITS
ALLEY

BROWN STREET  PAVING PROJECT

W
O

R
TH

E. MAPLE

BOWERS

SHEET INDEX

C
H

E
S

TE
R

B
A

TE
S

H
E

N
R

IE
TT

A

FRANK

S. OLD W
OODW

ARD

City of BirminghamNF

N

EW

S

APRIL 26, 2023     ADDENDUM #1

PROJECT
AREAS

B
R

O
W

N
 S

TR
E

E
T 

P
A

V
IN

G
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
C

O
N

TR
A

C
T 

#5
-2

3(
P

)

COLE

WEBSTER

TO
R

R
Y

RUFFNER

ED
G

E
W

O
O

D

COVER SHEET
T1 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY - BROWN STREET STA. P.O.B. TO 2+82
T2 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY- BROWN STREET STA. 2+82 TO P.O.E.
C1 UTILITY PLAN - BROWN STREET STA. P.O.B. TO 2+82
C2 UTILITY PLAN - BROWN STREET STA. 2+82 TO P.O.E.
C3 STORM PROFILE PLAN
C4 GRADING PLAN - BROWN STREET STA. P.O.B. TO 2+82
C5 GRADING PLAN - BROWN STREET STA. 2+82 TO P.O.E.
C6 INTERSECTION GRADING DETAIL (1 OF 2)
C7 INTERSECTION GRADING DETAIL (2 OF 2)
C8 PAVING PLAN - BROWN STREET STA. P.O.B. TO P.O.E.
C9 EXISTING AND PROPOSED CROSS-SECTION
C10 STRIPING AND SIGNAGE PLAN
C11 BROWN STREET DETOUR PLAN
C12 PEDESTRIAN ACCESS & TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN
C13 NOTES AND DETAILS(1 OF 2)
C14 NOTES AND DETAILS(2 OF 2)

IRRIGATION PLANS

IR 1.0 IRRIGATION DESIGN
IR 1.1 IRRIGATION DETAILS

LANDSCAPE PLANS

L0.0 PLANT SCHEDULE AND NOTES
L1.0 OVERALL LANDSCAPE PLAN
L1.1 LANDSCAPE PLAN
L1.2 LANDSCAPE PLAN
L1.3 LANDSCAPE DETAILS
L1.4 LANDSCAPE DETAILS
L1.5 DECORATIVE FENCE ALTERNATE
L2.0 SOILS PLAN
L2.1 SOILS PLAN

Q1 QUANTITIES

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM STANDARD DETAILS

CBD STREETSCAPE STANDARD DETAILS
SIDEWALK RAMPS AND BRICK PAVER SIDEWALKS
SEWER STANDARD DETAILS
WATER MAIN STANDARD DETAILS

N
. G

LE
N

H
U

R
S

T 
D

R
.

W
E

S
TW

O
O

D
 D

R
.

W
A

D
D

IN
G

O
N

 R
D

.

TI
LB

U
R

Y
 R

D
.

Y
A

R
M

O
U

TH
 R

D
.

C
O

V
IN

G
TO

N
 R

D
.

OAK BLVD 

AMBERLY RD

ENDSLEIGH DR.

COVINGTON PI

N. GLENGARRY  RD

S
. I

N
D

IA
N

 M
O

U
N

D
  R

D
.

FO
X

 C
H

A
S

E
   

R
D

.

MIDDLEBURY  LN.

S
. W

ILLIA
M

S
B

U
R

Y
  R

D

S. C
R

AN
BR

O
O

K C
R

O
SS R

D
.

N
. C

R
AN

BR
O

O
K 

R
D

. OAK

RAYNALE

C
IT

Y
 L

IM
IT

S

QUARTON ROAD

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY
DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL AND UTILITY
COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.  THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE
IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS
OR ACCURACY THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY
LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF
CONSTRUCTION.

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

These notes shall apply for all work within this contract:

1. The contractor shall notify MISS DIG 1-800-482-7171 at least 3 working days
excluding Saturday, Sunday, and Holidays before making any excavations and
notify the City of Birmingham Engineering Department a minimum of 24 hours
prior to the start of construction (248-530-1850).

2. See the City of Birmingham drawings "Sewer Standard Details" and "Water Main
Standard Details" for details of manholes, catch basins, inlets, and related sewer
and water main work.

3. All excavation under or within three feet of pavement, public or private, shall be
backfilled and compacted with sand.

4. The joints at the edges of all excavations in the pavement shall be sawcut, or
pavement will be removed to existing joints, as directed by the Engineer.  There is
no separate pay item for saw cutting pavements.

5. The contractor shall be responsible for damage to existing utilities, pavement,
trees, landscaping, gravel, etc., whether located on public or private property.

6. Catch basin and inlet castings scheduled for replacement, or new construction
shall be EJIW 5000Z4 DI / 5000M4 DI Hinged Assembly unless specified
otherwise.  Manhole castings shall be EJIW 1040-A cover as noted on the detail
sheets and plans, unless otherwise specified.

7. Storm, sewer and water main trench shall be backfilled with MDOT Class II sand
and properly compacted to 95% of modified proctor density.

8. The contractor shall coordinate and cooperate with all other utility companies
working in the same area, project related or not, during the same allotted
construction period.

ALL WATER SERVICE, STORM AND
SEWER TRENCH SHALL BE BACKFILLED
WITH COMPACTED GRANULAR CLASS II
(SAND) MATERIAL.

CAUTION!!! LIVE WATER MAIN
PRIOR TO CUTTING IN NEW MAIN FITTINGS, THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
COORDINATING THE EXISTING WATER MAIN
SHUT-DOWN WITH THE CITY. MORE IMPORTANTLY,
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR
SAFELY ENSURING THAT PRESSURES DO NOT EXIST
IN THE MAIN AFTER SHUT-DOWN & PRIOR TO CUTTING
THE MAIN. IF REQUIRED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
UTILIZE A HYDRO-STOP DEVICE TO CLOSE OFF FLOW
WHILE CUTTING IN NEW TEE.

Civil Engineer

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Avenue

Pontiac, MI 48342

Contact: mr. brett buchholz, p.e.

Phone: (248) 332-7931

Contact: mr. paul tulikangas, p.e.

landscape architect

MKSK

4219 WOODWARD AVE., ste. 305

DETROIT, MI 48201

Contact: mS. KRISTYN BOWDEN PLA, LEED GA

Phone: (419) 283-6934

email: bbuchholz@nfe-engr.com

email: ptulikangas@nfe-engr.com

email: KBOWden@MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

7A



BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

#325 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#355 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#255 S. OLD   WOODWARD

CAUTION!!

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

754

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

BROWN STREET PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

OLD WOODWARD AVE.
(100 R.O.W)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

2+
82

PEABO
DY ST.

( 50' W
IDE PUBLIC RO

W
 )

CAUTION!!

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

Topographic Survey
Sta. P.O.B. to Sta. 2+82

T1

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project

December 08, 2022

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

LEGEND

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

N
F

N

7A



BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )
#355 S. O

LD   W
OODWARD

#34745  W
OODWARD AVENUE

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

CAUTIO
N!!

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

PEABODY STREET
(50 R.O.W)

SOUTH BOUND
WOODWARD AVE.

(200'  R.O.W)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

2+
82

BROWN STREET PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

#355 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

CAUTIO
N!!

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

Topographic Survey
Sta. 2+82 to Sta. P.O.E.

T2

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project

December 08, 2022

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

LEGEND

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

7A



756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

754

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

BROWN STREET PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

OLD WOODWARD AVE.
(100 R.O.W)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

2+
82

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

#325 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#355 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#255 S. OLD   WOODWARD

CAUTION!!

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

M
A

TC
H

-L
IN

E
 2

+8
2

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

Pr. Storm Sewer Structure
Schedule

Structure Name
#03B
PR. 6' DIA MANHOLE
CONSTRUCT ONLINE
(RE-CONNECT EX. 30"
N.W. & S.E.)
(FIELD VERIFY INVERT)

#03C
PR. 4' DIA STORM
MANHOLE W/ 2' SUMP
CONSTRUCT ONLINE
(RECONNECT EX. 12"
STORM SE INV. 765.43 -
FIELD VERIFY)

#126A
PR. 4' DIA STORM
MANHOLE

#126Aa
PR. 4' DIA MANHOLE
(FOR FUTURE SE
CONNECTION)

#126B
PR. 4' DIA STORM
MANHOLE

#126Ba
PR. 4' DIA. M.H.
(FOR FUTURE NW
CONNECTION)

#L1
PR. 12" DIA. LANDSCAPE
DRAIN
W/ CAST-IRON BEE-HIVE
COVER

Structure Details

PR. RIM 769.80
EX. 30" NW. INV.  758.54
PR. 15" NE. INV.  763.50
EX.  30" SE. INV. 758.54

PR. RIM 770.04
PR. 15" NE. INV.  763.76
PR.  15" SW. INV. 763.66
EX.  12" SE. INV. 765.43

PR. RIM 772.05
PR. 12" N. INV.  766.85
PR.  15" SW. INV. 764.59
PR.  10" SE. INV. 766.85
PR.  6" NE. INV. 768.70

PR. RIM 771.59
PR. 10" NW. INV.  767.05

PR. RIM 770.98
PR. 15" NE. INV.  764.22
PR.  15" SW. INV. 764.12
PR.  10" NW. INV. 765.75

PR. RIM 770.70
PR. 10" SE. INV.  766.25

PR. RIM 770.66
PR.  4" S. INV. 767.50

PR. 12" DIA. LANDSCAPE
DRAIN
W/ CAST-IRON BEE-HIVE

INSTALL P.V.C. GAS TRAP ON 15"
DOWNSTREAM PIPE (S.W.)

W
OODW

ARD BROW
N

ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  W
OODW

ARD

CAUTION!!

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

M
A

TC
H

-L
IN

E
 2

+8
2

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

PEABO
DY ST.

( 50' W
IDE PUBLIC RO

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

PEABO
DY ST.

( 50' W
IDE PUBLIC RO

W
 )

Utility Plan (1of 2)
Sta. P.O.B. to 2+82

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C1

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

LEGEND

EX. COMB. SEWER
STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

EX. STORM STRUCTURE
SCHEDULE

EX. WATER MAIN SCHEDULE

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY
DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL AND UTILITY
COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.  THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE
IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS
OR ACCURACY THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY
LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF
CONSTRUCTION.

E. BROWN STREET, P.O.B. TO 2+82 

EX. STREET LIGHT REMOVAL SCHEDULE

L.P. REMOVAL LEGEND

7A



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

#355 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

#34745  W
OODWARD AVENUE

CAUTIO
N!!

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

PEABODY STREET
(50 R.O.W)

SOUTH BOUND
WOODWARD AVE.

(200'  R.O.W)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

2+
82

BROWN STREET PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

#355 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

CAUTIO
N!!

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

Pr. Storm Sewer Structure
Schedule

Structure Name
#L2
PR. 12" DIA. LANDSCAPE
DRAIN
W/ CAST-IRON BEE-HIVE
COVER

Structure Details

PR. RIM 772.36
PR.  4" S. INV. 768.01

Utility Plan (2 of 2)
Sta. 2+82 to P.O.E.

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C2

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

NF

N

EX. STORM STRUCTURE
SCHEDULE

EX. COMB. SEWER
STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

EX. WATER MAIN SCHEDULE

E. BROWN STREET, P.O.B. TO 2+82 

EX. STREET LIGHT REMOVAL SCHEDULE

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY
DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL AND UTILITY
COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.  THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE
IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS
OR ACCURACY THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY
LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF
CONSTRUCTION.

WATER SERVICE SCHEDULE

LEGEND

L.P. REMOVAL LEGEND

7A



756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

755

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

126Aa

126A

126Ba
126B

Storm Profile Plan

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C3

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

STORM PROFILE (MH 126B-MH 126Ba) STORM PROFILE (MH 126A-MH 126Aa)

7A



756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

754

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

BROWN STREET PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

OLD WOODWARD AVE.
(100 R.O.W)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

2+
82

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

#325 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#355 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#255 S. OLD   WOODWARD

CAUTION!!

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

M
A

TC
H

-L
IN

E
 2

+8
2

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

1.03%

0.5%

1.03%
1.20%

PV
I

0.58%

PV
I

PV
I

W
OODW

ARD BROW
N

ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  W
OODW

ARD

CAUTION!!

M
A

TC
H

-L
IN

E
 2

+8
2

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

PEABO
DY ST.

( 50' W
IDE PUBLIC RO

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

PEABO
DY ST.

( 50' W
IDE PUBLIC RO

W
 )

Grading Plan (1 of 2)

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C4

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

7A



BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

#355 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

#34745  W
OODWARD AVENUE

CAUTIO
N!!

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

0.5%

1.20%

0.745%

0.745%

0.64%

PVI

0.58%
0.8%

PVI

PVI

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

756

758

760

762

764

766

768

770

772

774

PEABODY STREET
(50 R.O.W)

SOUTH BOUND
WOODWARD AVE.

(200'  R.O.W)

M
AT

CH
LI

N
E 

2+
82

BROWN STREET PROFILE
SCALE:  H 1" = 20'   V 1"=2'

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

#355 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

CAUTIO
N!!

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

Grading Plan (2 of 2)

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C5

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

NF

N

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

7A



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

CAUT Y ST.
IC

 R
O

W
 )

Y ST.
IC

 R
O

W
 )

1.20%

0.745%

0.745%

0.64%

0.58%

0.8%

PVI

PVI

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE
#222 PEABODY ST.

1.03%

0.5%

1.03%
1.20%

PV
I

0.58%

PV
I

Intersection Grading
Detail (1 of 2)

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C6

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

NF

N

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

7A



BENCHMARK

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

0.745%

0.745%

BENCHMARK

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

0.745%

0.745% 1.00%

Intersection Grading
Detail Plan
(2 of 2)

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C7

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

NF

N

BROWN STREET/ WOODWARD AVENUE(M1) INTERSECTION GRADING DETAIL
(CITY CONSTRUCTION LIMITS)

BROWN STREET/ WOODWARD AVENUE(M1) INTERSECTION GRADING DETAIL
(M.D.O.T. CONSTRUCTION LIMITS)

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

7A



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

#34745  W
OODWARD AVENUE

#255 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

CAUTIO
N!!

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

#325 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#355 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#255 S. OLD   WOODWARD

CAUTION!!

M
A

TC
H

-L
IN

E
 2

+8
2

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

Brown Street Paving Plan

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C8

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

LEGEND

PAVING LEGEND

NF

N

PAVING NOTES & LEGEND

REMOVAL NOTES & LEGEND

BROWN STREET P.O.E. to 2+82

NEW PARKING METER POST & NEW STREET LIGHT SCHEDULE

BROWN STREET 2+82 to P.O.E.

NEW PARKING METER POST & NEW STREET LIGHT SCHEDULE

MODIFY STEPS & RAILING AT PEABODY PARKING
STRUCTURE (LUMP SUM)

7A



G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

Exisiting & Proposed
Cross-Section

C9

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

03-16-2023

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

D162-01
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract #5-23(P)

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

03-16-2023  - 90% City review

04-10-2023  - bids

N.T.S.

E. BROWN STREET

EXISTING CONCRETE  PAVEMENT SECTION

E. BROWN STREET

EXISTING ASPHALT  PAVEMENT SECTION

E. BROWN STREET

PROPOSED CONCRETE  PAVEMENT SECTION

E. BROWN STREET

PROPOSED CONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTION

7A



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

#34745  W
OODWARD AVENUE

#255 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

CAUTIO
N!!

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

MATCH-LI
NE 2+

82

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

SO
U

TH
 BO

U
N

D

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 AVE.

( 200' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 VAR

IES )

PEABO
D

Y ST.

( 50' W
ID

E PU
BLIC

 R
O

W
 )

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

#325 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#355 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#255 S. OLD   WOODWARD

CAUTION!!

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

M
AT

C
H

-L
IN

E 
2+

82

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

3 Microsoft Corporation © 2023 Maxar ©CNES (2023) Distribution Airbus DS 

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

Brown Street Striping and
Signage Plan

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

04-26-23  ADDENDUM #1

C10

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

LEGEND

PAVING LEGEND

NF

N

SIGN DETAIL W11-2 DETAIL

SIGN DETAIL W16-7p DETAIL

(30" x 30")

(30" x 18")

SIGN DETAIL-R1-1
(30" x 30")

SIGN DETAIL-R3-62
(36" x 30")

SIGN DETAIL-R3-7R
(30" x 30")

SIGN DETAIL-R10-6
(18" x 24")

7A



PARKFERNDALE

OLD W
OODW

ARD

OAKLAND

W
O

R
TH

LANDON

GEORGE

FL
O

Y
D

C
LA

R
K

LI
N

C
O

LN
C

T.
GEORGE

DORCHESTER

BUCKINGHAM

P
O

P
P

  L
E

TO
N

RIDGEDALE

OAKLAND

O
AK

-

D
AL

E

LA
W

N
 D

A
LE

O
A

K
   

D
A

LE

P
O

P
P

L 
  E

TO
N

R
O

S
E

   
D

A
LE

PI
ER

C
E

PURDY

ANN

FRANK

DAINES

BROWN

HAMILTON

PEABO
DY

HAYNES

BOWERS

E
LM

E. MAPLE

YORKSHIRE

KNOX

A
D

A
M

S

W
O

R
TH

OLD W
OODW

ARD

CITY
HALL

PARK

WILLITS

HAZEL

A
LL

E
Y

ALLEY

CHESTNUT

FOREST

HAZEL

PAR
K

E. MAPLE

MERRILL

ALLEY

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

WORK
AREA

E. B
ROWN ST. 

HAYNES

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D

E. MAPLE

BOWERS

Brown Street -Detour Plan

C11

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

03-16-2023

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

D162-01
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract #5-23(P)

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

03-16-2023  - 90% City review

04-10-2023  - bids

04-26-2023  - ADDENDUM  #1

N.T.S.

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

BROWN STREET CLOSED
OLD WOODWARD TO

WOODWARD

BROWN STREET CLOSED
OLD WOODWARD TO

WOODWARD
FOLLOW DETOUR

ROAD
CLOSED
AHEAD

SIDEWALK
CLOSED

 DETOUR  DETOUR  DETOUR

WOODWARD AVE. (M1)

SB. OLD WOODWARDSB.  WOODWARD (M1)

END
DETOUR

NF

N

EW

S

ADVANCED WARNING SIGN
TYPE III BARRICADES

SYMBOL KEY

DETOUR ROUTE
(N.B./S.B. O.W.W.)
DETOUR ROUTE (N.B./S.B. W.W.)

NB.  WOODWARD (M1)

BROWN STREET CLOSED
OLD WOODWARD TO

WOODWARD
SEEK ALT ROUTE

OTHER ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES AS SHOWN

SPECIAL ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES

7A



N
F

N

S.
 O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

AR
D

 A
VE

(1
00

' W
ID

E 
PU

BL
IC

 R
O

W
 )

E. BROWN ST.
( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

W
OODW

ARD BROW
N

ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  W
OODW

ARD

E. BROW
N ST.

( PUBLIC ROW
 VARIES )

SO
UTH BO

UND

W
O

O
DW

ARD AVE.

( 200' W
IDE PUBLIC RO

W
 VARIES )

#355 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#325 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#355 S. OLD   WOODWARD

#34745  WOODWARD AVENUE

#255 S. OLD   WOODWARD

PEABO
DY ST.

( 50' W
IDE PUBLIC RO

W
 )

N
F

N

Pedestrian Access &
Traffic Maintenance Plan

C12

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

PED. FENCE LEGEND

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract #5-23(P)

SEAL

March 16, 2023

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

D162-01
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  bids

WALK ACCESS TO ADACHI
AND POWER HOUSE GYM

WALK ACCESS TO
PARKING GARAGE AND

ALLEY

SPECIAL ADVANCED WARNING SIGN QUANTITIES

7A



Notes & Details (1 of 2)

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

C13

N.T.S.

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

PAVING NOTES

WATER MAIN NOTES

STORM SEWER NOTES (where applicable)

20" HGT. PLANTER CURB DETAIL

7A



Notes & Details (2 of 2)

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract # 5-23(P)

March 16, 2023

D162-01

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

12-08-22  issued survey

02-04-23  concept plan

02-14-23  UPDATED concept plan

03-16-23  90% city review

04-10-23  BIDS

C14

N.T.S.

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

TYPICAL JOINT LAYOUT CONSTRUCTION JOINT5

1" WIDE EXPANSION
JOINT DETAIL

CONTRACTION JOINT6
EXPANSION JOINT8

7A



8

8

L

8

8

01

0101

0101

01 01

8

8

8

8

8

8

L

S

S

8

88

8

88
88

8
8

8
8

8
8 8 8 8

L
R

SL

R

S

S

S

S
S

S

S

L

R

SS

S

8

8
8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

8

POC
BF

4"

2"

2"

1"

1"

2"

4"

2"

4"

1"

4"

2"

4"

1" 2"

1

51"

2

13.21"

3

9.291"

C RS

FS

BACKFLOW PREVENTER REQUIRES
CAGE ENCLOSURE IN BIRMINGHAM
GREEN, LOCATED IN PLANTER NEXT TO
WATER METER.

1"

1"1"

11
2"

4

20.01"

11
2"

4"
2"

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

PEABODY PARKING STRUCTURE

#222 PEABODY ST.

WOODWARD BROWN
ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  WOODWARD

#355 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

#325 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

#355 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

#34745  W
OODWARD AVENUE

#255 S. O
LD   W

OODWARD

CAUTIO
N!!

CAUTIO
N!!

NN

2"

2"

2"

D1

D1

D1
D1

EXISTING IRRIGATION
SYSTEM, CONTRACTOR TO

PROTECT IN PLACE
DURING CONSTRUCTION

AND GET SYSTEM
RUNNING AFTER PLANTER

CURB CONSTRUCTION IS
COMPLETE.

SYMBOL MANUFACTURER/MODEL QTY

Rain Bird 1812 15 Strip Series 21

Rain Bird 1812 8 Series MPR 38

Rain Bird 1812 10 Series MPR 7

Rain Bird 1804-1400 Flood 10

SYMBOL MANUFACTURER/MODEL QTY

Rain Bird PGA Globe 1" 4

Hunter HQ-44RC 1" 1

Febco 825Y w/Cage enclosure 1" 1

Rain Master EGP-TW-S 1

Irritrol RS1000 1

Rain Master TW-D-1 4

Irritrol FS-B150 1

Point of Connection 1" 1

Irrigation Lateral Line: Polyethylene Pipe 100 PSI 1" 935.5 l.f.

Irrigation Lateral Line: Polyethylene Pipe 100 PSI 1 1/2" 4.5 l.f.

Irrigation Mainline: PVC Class 160 SDR 26 1 1/2" 201.7 l.f.

Pipe Sleeve: PVC Class 160 SDR 26 2" 277.9 l.f.

Pipe Sleeve: PVC Class 160 SDR 26 4" 144.6 l.f.

EST CST SSTRCSLCS

E L R C S

FHTQ
8 8 8 8

Q T H F
01 01 01 01

1408140414021401

BF

C

RS

D1

FS
POC

Valve Number

Valve Flow

Valve Size

Valve Callout

#

##"

IRRIGATION SCHEDULE

IRRIGATION SPECIFICATIONS

1. IRRIGATION SYSTEM DESIGN BASED ON 20 GPM AT 50 PSI.

2. IRRIGATION DESIGN IS FROM THE POINT OF CONNECTION(POC)ONLY. THE DESIGN IS BASED ON

GALLONS PER MINUTE(GPM)AND POUNDS PER  SQUARE INCH(PSI)FURNISHED BY OTHERS.

3. IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR IS TO VERIFY POINT OF CONNECTION IN THE FIELD. INSTALLER IS TO

CONFIRM THE MINIMUM DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS  OF THE POINT OF CONNECTION AS INDICATED

ON THE LEGEND PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

4. THE PRESSURE REQUIREMENT AT THE POINT OF CONNECTION IS BASED ON  NO MORE THAN 5 FEET

OF ELEVATION CHANGE IN THE AREAS OF IRRIGATION.

5. ALL PRODUCTS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUFACTURER'S

RECOMMENDATIONS AND ACCORDING TO LOCAL BUILDING, ELECTRICAL, AND PLUMBING CODES.

6. IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR WILL ARRANGE INSPECTIONS REQUIRED BY LOCAL AGENCIES AND

ORDINANCES DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION AS REQUIRED. ALL WIRING TO BE PER LOCAL

CODE.  BACKFLOW PREVENTION TO BE PER LOCAL CODE.

7. LOCATION OF IRRIGATION COMPONENTS SHOWN ON DRAWING IS APPROXIMATE.  ACTUAL

PLACEMENT MAY VARY SLIGHTLY AS REQUIRED TO ACHIEVE FULL, EVEN COVERAGE.

8. ALL SPRINKLER HEADS SHALL BE INSTALLED PERPENDICULAR TO FINISH GRADES. EXCEPT AS

OTHERWISE INDICATED.

9. INSTALL IRRIGATION MAINS WITH A MINIMUM 18" OF COVER BASED ON FINISH GRADES. INSTALL

IRRIGATION LATERALS WITH MINIMUM 12" OF COVER BASED ON FINISH GRADES.

10. PIPE LOCATIONS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC.  VALVES AND MAINLINE SHOWN IN PAVED AREAS ARE FOR

GRAPHIC CLARITY ONLY.

11. THE IRRIGATION CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH PIPE SIZES AS INDICATED.

12. ALL WIRE SPLICES OR CONNECTIONS SHALL BE MADE WITH APPROVED WATERPROOF WIRE

CONNECTIONS AND BE IN A VALVE OR SPLICE BOX.

13. ALL CONTROL WIRING DOWNSTREAM OF THE CONTROLLER IS TO BE 2-WIRE, UL APPROVED DIRECT

BURY.

14. THE DESIGN IS BASED ON THE SITE INFORMATION AND/OR DRAWING SUPPLIED WITH THE DESIGN

CRITERIA BEING SET(AREA TO BE IRRIGATED, EQUIPMENT  MANUFACTURER AND MODEL TO BE USED,

WATER SOURCE INFORMATION,  ELECTRICAL POWER AVAILABILITY, ETC...). SITEONE LANDSCAPE

SUPPLY BEARS NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR ANY ERRORS IN DESIGN OR INSTALLATION

THAT ARISE DUE TO INACCURACIES IN THE ABOVE REFERENCED INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO

SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY LANDSCAPES IN RELATION TO THIS PROJECT, UNLESS OTHERWISE

NOTED.

0'      10'     20'            40'

SCALE: 1" = 20' - 0"

1-800-347-4272
http://www.projectservices.siteone.com

Project Services

TM

650 Stephenson Highway
Troy, Michigan 48083
Phone   248.588.2100
Fax       248.588.3528
www.Siteone.com
800.347.4272
Project Services Number: 316242

sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision date issued

1 XX.XX.XXXX SET NAME

03.XX.2023 dXXXXX

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET PAVING
PROJECT
CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers
46777 Woodward Ave.
Pontiac, MI 48342
p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305
DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201
313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

IRRIGATION DESIGN

IR 1.0

03.16.2023 90% City Review

04.10.2023 BIDS

BROWN STREET
BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

  Design Date:

  Drawn By:

03/03/23

SW
  Checked By: C. BEST

  Revision Date: 03/16/23, 03/24/23, 04/07/23

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 2" GAS MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 2" GAS MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NF

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" SAN. SVC OFF OLD WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 4" WATER SVC. OFF OLD WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SANITARY OR WATER SERVICE INFORMATION PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WATER SVC.. OF PEABODY

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" D.I. WATER SVC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER SVC. (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SEWER SVC INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER AND SEWER SVC OFF OLD WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SANITARY OR WATER SERVICE INFORMATION PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NF

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC



sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision date issued

1 XX.XX.XXXX SET NAME

03.XX.2023 dXXXXX

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET PAVING
PROJECT
CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers
46777 Woodward Ave.
Pontiac, MI 48342
p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305
DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201
313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

IRRIGATION DETAILS

IR 1.1

1804 SPRAY HEAD WITH SWING PIPE

FINISH GRADE

MODEL 1804 SPRAY HEAD

SWING PIPE:

LATERAL TEE OR ELL

LATERAL PIPE

1
S1-SP-RAI-01

BUBBLER ON POP-UP SPARYHEAD
NTS

2 PGA SERIES ELECTRIC VALVE3
S1-VA-RAI-02

QUICK COUPLING VALVE IN BOX4
S1-QU-01 1" = 1'-0"

REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW DEVICE
FX-IR-FX-BACK-03

5

NOTES:

1. INSTALL BACKFLOW CAGE PER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

2. SEE BACKFLOW PREVENTION DEVICE DETAIL FOR REFERENCE.

3. LOCK BOX SHALL BE LOCATED ABOVE CONCRETE FOOTING

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A LOCK AS APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

BACKFLOW CAGE
3/8" = 1'-0"

SECTION VIEW

PLAN VIEW END VIEW

FLOW
DIRECTION

1

2

3

4

5
1

BACKFLOW PREVENTION
DEVICE (SEE IRRIGATION PLAN
FOR MAKE AND MODEL)

2

3

LOCK BOX4

FINISHED GRADE5

3"
 T

Y
P

.

6" TYP.

1 3

1

4" THICK CONCRETE FOOTING
1" ABOVE FINISHED GRADE

3

BACKFLOW CAGE (SEE
IRRIGATION LEGEND FOR
MAKE AND MODEL)

6
FX-IR-FX-BACK-01

1-800-347-4272
http://www.projectservices.siteone.com

Project Services

TM

650 Stephenson Highway
Troy, Michigan 48083
Phone   248.588.2100
Fax       248.588.3528
www.Siteone.com
800.347.4272
Project Services Number: 316242

BROWN STREET
BIRMINGHAM, MI 48009

  Design Date:

  Drawn By:

03/03/23

SW
  Checked By: C. BEST

  Revision Date: 03/16/23, 03/24/23
04/07/23

03.16.2023 90% City Review
04.10.2023 BIDS

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUBBLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCH 40 TEE OR ELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH MALE NPT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANT MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
  x .490-INCH BARB ELBOW:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLEX PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC LATERAL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE/TOP OF MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
POP-UP SPRAY SPRINKLER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC ADAPTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOTE CONTROL VALVE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
  WIRE, COILED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ID TAG: RAIN BIRD VID SERIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERPROOF CONNECTION:

AutoCAD SHX Text
  RAIN BIRD SPLICE-1 (1 OF 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE BOX WITH COVER:

AutoCAD SHX Text
  (LENGTH AS REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCH 40 ELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCH 80 NIPPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK (1 OF 4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC MAINLINE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
  SCH 40 ELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC LATERAL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCH 80 NIPPLE (2-INCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCH 40 MALE ADAPTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
30-INCH LINEAR LENGTH OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
  RAIN BIRD PGA

AutoCAD SHX Text
  RAIN BIRD VB-STD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE/TOP OF MULCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCH 80 NIPPLE (CLOSE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
  LENGTH, HIDDEN) AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC SCH 40 TEE OR ELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0-INCH MINIMUM DEPTH OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
  3/4-INCH WASHED GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLUSH IN LAWN AREAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" IN SHRUB AREAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL CLAMPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO STAINLESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR OR STEEL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWING JOINT PVC SCH80 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFIED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUICK COUPLING VALVE AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVICE AS SPECIFIED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT EACH SIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED UNIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED RISERS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED NIPPLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND ELL AS REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NIPPLE, TYPICAL EA. SIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN LINE, SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS PER PLANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL EACH SIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOE NIPPLE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHEDULE 80 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC COUPLER AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED ELL AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CODE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEIGHT AS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER LOCAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKS,

AutoCAD SHX Text
90 LBS. OF CONCRETE EACH.



sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
1
.
0
-
O

V
E

R
A

L
L
 
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
0
7
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
8
:
2
9
a
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

PLANT SCHEDULE

AND NOTES

L0.0

P L A N T I N G     N O T E S

1. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY ALL PLANT MATERIAL IN

QUANTITIES SUFFICIENT TO COMPLETE THE PLANTING SHOWN

ON THE DRAWINGS.

2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS IN THE

FIELD.  REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE LANDSCAPE

ARCHITECT PRIOR TO COMMENCING PLANTING.

3. ALL PLANTS SHALL BE APPROVED BY LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

PRIOR TO THEIR INSTALLATION AT THE SITE.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL STAKE ALL TREE LOCATIONS AND LAYOUT

SHRUBS PLANTINGS IN THE FIELD.  OBTAIN APPROVAL OF

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT BEFORE STARTING PLANTING

INSTALLATION.

5. ALL EXISTING PLANT MATERIAL SHOWN ON THIS PLAN IS TO BE

PRESERVED UNLESS SPECIFICALLY NOTED OTHERWISE.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL LEAVE THE SITE CLEAN AND ORDERLY

DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS.  REMOVE FROM SITE

ALL EXCESS MATERIALS, SOIL, DEBRIS AND EQUIPMENT.  STORE

MATERIALS IN AN APPROVED LOCATION.

7. SHOVEL-CUT EDGING: SEPARATE MULCHED AREAS FROM TURF

AREAS WITH A 45-DEGREE, 4- TO 6-INCH-DEEP, SHOVEL-CUT

EDGE, PROVIDE CONTINUOUS SMOOTH EDGE.

SYMBOL QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE ROOT REMARK

DECIDUOUS TREES

TI AM 3 TILIA AMERICANA 'MCKSENTRY' AMERICAN SENTRY LINDEN 3.5" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

UL AM 4 ULMUS AMERICANA 'PRINCETON' PRINCETON ELM 3.5" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

ZE SE 3 ZELKOVA SERRATA 'JFS-KW1' CITY SPRITE ZELKOVA 3.5" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

ORNAMENTAL TREES

MA JE 3 MALUS X 'JEFSPIRE' PURPLE SPIRE COLUMNAR CRABAP 2" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

PERENNIALS

GE RO 24 GERANIUM X 'ROZANNE' ROZANNE GERANIUM #1 CONT. 24" O.C.

PA TE 892 PACHYSANDRA TERMINALIS 'GREEN CARPET' GREEN CARPET PACHYSANDRA 24/FLAT 6" O.C.

PE LI 41 PEROVSKIA 'LITTLE SPIRE' DWARF RUSSIAN SAGE #2 CONT.

RU HI 35 RUDBECKIA HIRTA LITTLE GOLDSTAR BLACK EYED SUSAN #1 CONT.

GRASSES

PE AL 91 PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES 'LITTLE BUNNY' LITTLE BUNNY FOUNTAIN GRASS #2 CONT.

SE AU 48 SESLERIA AUTUMNALIS AUTUMN MOOR GRASS #1 CONT.

SHRUBS

HY PA 31 HYDRANGEA PANICULATA 'JANE' LITTLE LIME HYDRANGEA #5 CONT.

IL GL 6 ILEX GLABRA 'SHAMROCK' SHAMROCK INKBERRY HOLLY #3 CONT.

JU SQ 18 JUNIPERUS SQUAMATA 'BLUE STAR' BLUE STAR JUNIPER #3 CONT.

PI MU 21 PINUS MUGO 'HONEYCOMB' HONEYCOMB MUGO PINE #3 CONT.

OVERALL PLANT LIST

7A



C

I

T

Y

 

O

F

 

B

I

R

M

I

N

G

H

A

M

P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 

P

A

R

K

I

N

G

 

S

T

R

U

C

T

U

R

E

#

2

2

2

 

P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 

S

T

.

W
O

O
DW

ARD B
RO

W
N

ASSO
CIA

TES, L
LC

#34901  W
O

O
DW

ARD

#

3

5

5

 

S

.

 

O

L

D

 

 

 

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

#

3

2

5

 

S

.

 

O

L

D

 

 

 

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

#

3

5

5

 

S

.

 

O

L

D

 

 

 

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

#

3

4

7

4

5

 

 

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 

A

V

E

N

U

E

#

2

5

5

 

S

.

 

O

L

D

 

 

 

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

S

.

 

O

L

D

 

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 

A

V

E

(

1

0

0

'

 

W

I

D

E

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

O

W

 

)

E

.

 

B

R

O

W

N

 

S

T

.

(

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

O

W

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

 

)

E
. 
B

R
O

W
N

 S
T

.

( 
P

U
B

L
IC

 R
O

W
 V

A
R

IE
S

 )

S

O

U

T

H

 

B

O

U

N

D

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 

A

V

E

.

(

 

2

0

0

'
 

W

I

D

E

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

O

W

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

 

)

P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 

S

T

.

(

 

5

0

'
 

W

I

D

E

 

P

U

B

L

I

C

 

R

O

W

 

)

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

1

.

2

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

1

.

1

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

1

.

2

S

H

E

E

T

 

L

1

.

1

L

I

M

I

T

 

O

F

 

W

O

R

K

L

I

M

I

T

 

O

F

 

W

O

R

K

sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
1
.
0
-
O

V
E

R
A

L
L
 
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
0
7
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
8
:
2
9
a
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

OVERALL

LANDSCAPE PLAN

L1.0

SCALE IN FEET

0 20' 40'

N

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 772.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 771.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-206-024

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-207-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-208-016

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-208-015

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-208-016

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-208-004

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-206-021

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 6" SAN. SVC OFF OLD WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 4" WATER SVC. OFF OLD WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SANITARY OR WATER SERVICE INFORMATION PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WATER SVC.. OF PEABODY

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" D.I. WATER SVC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER SVC. (R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SEWER SVC INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER AND SEWER SVC OFF OLD WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SANITARY OR WATER SERVICE INFORMATION PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 770.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 773.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 769.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
x



C

I
T

Y

 
O

F

 
B

I
R

M

I
N

G

H

A

M

P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 
P

A

R

K

I
N

G

 
S

T

R

U

C

T

U

R

E

#

2

2

2

 
P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 
S

T

.

S

.
 
O

L

D

 
W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 
A

V

E

(
1

0

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

O

W

 
)

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

M
A

T
C

H
L
I
N

E
 
-
 
L
1
.
2

PE AL

35

IL GL

6

TI AM

3

HY PA

2

GE RO

10

UL AM

2

HY PA

17

GE RO

10

ZE SE

3

GE RO

4

PI MU

8

PE AL

16

UL AM

1

SE AU

22

RU HI

18

PA TE

160

PA TE

236

PA TE

264

PA TE

232

1 1

1

L1.4

C

L1.3

G

2

2

3

3

4

L1.4

A

L1.4

B

L
I
M

I
T

 
O

F
 
W

O
R

K

5

5

UL AM

1

sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
1
.
1
-
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
0
7
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
8
:
3
0
a
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

LANDSCAPE PLAN

L1.1

P L A N T I N G  L E G E N D

EXISTING BLACK-EYED SUSAN TO

REMAIN

PERENNIALS (MEDIAN)

SEE DETAIL D, SHEET L1.3

ANNUALS (BY OWNER)

GROUNDCOVER

SCALE IN FEET

0 10' 20'

N

SYMBOL QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE ROOT REMARK

DECIDUOUS TREES

TI AM 3 TILIA AMERICANA 'MCKSENTRY' AMERICAN SENTRY LINDEN 3.5" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

UL AM 2 ULMUS AMERICANA 'PRINCETON' PRINCETON ELM 3.5" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

ZE SE 3 ZELKOVA SERRATA 'JFS-KW1' CITY SPRITE ZELKOVA 3.5" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

PERENNIALS

GE RO 24 GERANIUM X 'ROZANNE' ROZANNE GERANIUM #1 CONT. 24" O.C.

PA TE 892 PACHYSANDRA TERMINALIS 'GREEN CARPET' GREEN CARPET PACHYSANDRA 24/FLAT 6" O.C.

RU HI 18 RUDBECKIA HIRTA LITTLE GOLDSTAR BLACK EYED SUSAN #1 CONT.

GRASSES

PE AL 51 PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES 'LITTLE BUNNY' LITTLE BUNNY FOUNTAIN GRASS #2 CONT.

SE AU 22 SESLERIA AUTUMNALIS AUTUMN MOOR GRASS #1 CONT.

SHRUBS

HY PA 19 HYDRANGEA PANICULATA 'JANE' LITTLE LIME HYDRANGEA #5 CONT.

IL GL 6 ILEX GLABRA 'SHAMROCK' SHAMROCK INKBERRY HOLLY #3 CONT.

PI MU 8 PINUS MUGO 'HONEYCOMB' HONEYCOMB MUGO PINE #3 CONT.

PLANT LIST - L1.1

CODED NOTES:

PROPOSED 4'X4' STEEL TREE GRATE FRAME.

REFER TO CIVIL SET FOR DETAILS

PROTECT EXISTING BLACK-EYED SUSAN IN PLACE

UNDER TREE CANOPY. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TO

STAKE LIMITS IN FIELD.

ANNUAL PLANTINGS BY OWNER

EXISTING CRABAPPLE TREES (3) TO REMAIN

EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN, PROTECT IN PLACE,

SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR DETAILS. ALL

DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION WITHIN 15' DIA.

OF TRUNK TO BE DONE BY HAND.

1

2

3

4

5

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-206-024

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SANITARY OR WATER SERVICE INFORMATION PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 770.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 773.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
x



W
OODW

ARD BROW
N

ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  W
OODW

ARD

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

S

O

U

T

H

 
B

O

U

N

D

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 
A

V

E

.

(

 
2

0

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

O

W

 
V

A

R

I
E

S

 
)

P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 
S

T

.

(

 
5

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

O

W

 
)

M

A

T

C

H

L

I

N

E

 

-

 

L

1

.

1

PE LI

9

JU SQ

6

HY PA

12

PE AL

20

PI MU

13

UL AM

2

JU SQ

8

PE LI

14

PE AL

20

MA JE

3

1

L1.4

C

L1.4

B

SE AU

26

RU HI

17

L

I
M

I
T

 
O

F

 
W

O

R

K

JU SQ

4

PE LI

18

sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
1
.
2
-
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
0
7
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
8
:
3
1
a
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

LANDSCAPE PLAN

L1.2

P L A N T I N G  L E G E N D

EXISTING BLACK-EYED SUSAN TO

REMAIN

PERENNIALS (MEDIAN)

SEE DETAIL D, SHEET L1.3

ANNUALS (BY OWNER)

GROUNDCOVER

SCALE IN FEET

0 10' 20'

N

SYMBOL QTY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE ROOT REMARK

DECIDUOUS TREES

UL AM 2 ULMUS AMERICANA 'PRINCETON' PRINCETON ELM 3.5" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

ORNAMENTAL TREES

MA JE 3 MALUS X 'JEFSPIRE' PURPLE SPIRE COLUMNAR CRABAP 2" Cal. B&B MATCH FORM

PERENNIALS

PE LI 41 PEROVSKIA 'LITTLE SPIRE' DWARF RUSSIAN SAGE #2 CONT.

RU HI 17 RUDBECKIA HIRTA LITTLE GOLDSTAR BLACK EYED SUSAN #1 CONT.

GRASSES

PE AL 40 PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES 'LITTLE BUNNY' LITTLE BUNNY FOUNTAIN GRASS #2 CONT.

SE AU 26 SESLERIA AUTUMNALIS AUTUMN MOOR GRASS #1 CONT.

SHRUBS

HY PA 12 HYDRANGEA PANICULATA 'JANE' LITTLE LIME HYDRANGEA #5 CONT.

JU SQ 18 JUNIPERUS SQUAMATA 'BLUE STAR' BLUE STAR JUNIPER #3 CONT.

PI MU 13 PINUS MUGO 'HONEYCOMB' HONEYCOMB MUGO PINE #3 CONT.

PLANT LIST - L1.2CODED NOTES:

EXISTING GINKGO TREES TO REMAIN (4)1

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 772.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-207-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WATER SVC.. OF PEABODY

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" D.I. WATER SVC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER SVC. (R)



NOTE:

1. POSITION CROWN OF ROOT BALL 2" ABOVE FINISHED

GRADE AND ON-CENTER OF EXCAVATED HOLE.

2. PRIOR TO MULCHING, LIGHTLY TAMP SOIL AROUND

THE ROOT BALL IN 6" LIFTS TO BRACE TREE.  DO NOT

OVER COMPACT.  WHEN THE PLANTING HOLE HAS BEEN

BACKFILLED, POUR WATER AROUND THE ROOT BALL TO

SETTLE THE SOIL

3" MULCH LAYER. KEEP CROWN OF TRUNK

CLEAR OF MULCH BY 3".

REMOVE UPPER 

1

3

 OF WIRE BASKET AND

BURLAP. REMOVE TRIMMED PIECES FROM SITE.

ROOT BALL MODIFIED - SEE "TREE ROOT

FLARE CORRECTION" DETAIL.

3x WIDEST DIMENSION OF ROOT BALL

2
"

1x

COMPACT SOIL AT BASE OF ROOT BALL TO

STABILIZE TREE.

SPECIFIED BACKFILL SOIL MIX, UNLESS NOTED

OTHERWISE ON SOILS PLAN.  MAXIMUM 6" LIFTS.

BOTTOM OF ROOT BALL TO REST ON

EXISTING OR RECOMPACTED SOIL.

EXCAVATED TREE PIT.  ROUGHEN SIDE

WALLS BEFORE BACKFILLING WITH SOIL MIX.

FINISHED / ORIGINAL GRADE

EXISTING SOIL

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

TREE PLANTING DETAIL 

sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
1
.
3
-
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L
S

.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
1
0
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
1
1
:
2
6
a
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

LANDSCAPE

DETAILS

L1.3

A

SPACING A OR B

SEE PLANT SPACING DETAIL

1
"

SET ROOT BALL 1-2" ABOVE

FINISH GRADE PROVIDING

POSITIVE DRAINAGE AWAY FROM

CENTER OF PLANT.

MULCH - SEE SPECIFICATION

FOR THICKNESS.  MAINTAIN

MULCH 2-3" OFF TRUNK BASE OF

PLANT.

MOUND SOIL MIX APPROX 1"

HIGH TO TEMPORARILY CONTAIN

WATER OVER ROOT BALL.

MOUND TO SETTLE INTO

PLANTING PIT OVER TIME.

FINISH GRADE - SLOPE TO EDGE

OF PLANTING BED.

REFER TO PLANTING SOIL MIX

INSTALLATION DETAIL AND SOIL

PLANS FOR DEPTH OF SOIL, SOIL

MIX TYPE AND TRANSITION

LAYER INFORMATION.

SUBGRADE.

2-3"

TYP

1
"

SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL  (MASS PLANTING AND HEDGES)

TRANSITION LAYER:

TYPICAL 3 INCHES  OF PLANTING

SOIL BLENDED INTO EXISTING

"RIPPED" SOIL  MIN. DEPTH OF 3

INCHES.

3" MINIMUM SPECIFIED MULCH,

KEEP MULCH AWAY FROM

STEMS.

PLANTING SETBACK 'C'

SEE PLANT SPACING DETAIL.

PERENNIAL PLANT, SET ROOT

BALL  

1

2

" - 1" HIGHER THAN FINISH

GRADE.

BED EDGE.  CONDITIONS VARY.

REFER TO LAYOUT PLANS.

FINISH GRADE.

PLANTING SOIL AT 6" MAXIMUM

LIFTS. SEE PLANTING SOIL MIX

INSTALLATION DETAIL.

V
A

R
I
E

S
,
 
S

E
E

S
O

I
L

S
 
P

L
A

N

SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

PERENNIAL PLANTING

TRANSITION LAYER:

TYPICAL 3 INCHES  OF PLANTING

SOIL BLENDED INTO EXISTING

"RIPPED" SOIL  MIN. DEPTH OF 3

INCHES.

B C

A

A

A

C

NOTE:

LAYOUT PLANTS ALONG PERIMETER OF PLANTING

BED FIRST, PARALLEL TO AND UNIFORMLY OFFSET

FROM EDGE OF BED. FILL OUT INTERIOR OF BED ON

UNIFORM GRID AS SHOWN.

CENTER OF PLANT

EDGE OF PLANTING AREA

TRIANGULAR

SPACING = A

TOTAL AREA

(SF) PER PLANT

DISTANCE

BETWEEN ROW = B

30" SETBACK FOR SHRUBS

18" SETBACK FOR PERENNIALS

12" SETBACK FOR GROUNDCOVER

"C"=

B
B

C

ADJACENT PLANTING TYPE

0.21

0.39

0.50

0.59

0.88

1.35

1.94

2.63

3.50

5.42

7.80

13.84

5"

7"

8"

8 1/2"

10 1/2"

13"

15 1/2"

18"

21"

26"

31"

42"

6"

8"

9"

10"

12" (1')

15"

18"

21"

24"  (2')

30"

36"  (3')

48"  (4')

C

L

C

L

C

L

C

L

SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

PLANT SPACING, TYPICAL

PLANTING SOIL MIX BACKFILL.

ROOT BALL.

SUBGRADE.

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

TREE ROOT BALL STABILIZATION

PROPRIETARY ROOT BALL

STABILIZATION DEVICE:

BELOW-GRADE.

ROOT BALL

ED

CONCRETE PLANTER CURB,

EXPOSED AGGREGATE

REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS

FOR DETAILS

SCALE: 3" = 1'-0"

12" HGT. SHALLOW PLANTER CURB DETAIL

6"

4
"

3"

2
"

4" BAR EPOXY COATED

1" X 1" REVEAL

DOWEL IN CONCRETE CURB

W/ #4 x 12" LG @18" O.C. W/

4" SLEEVED EMBED

CONCRETE SIDEWALK (BROOM

FINISH), TAPER THICKENED

EDGE TO 4" AT NEAREST

CONTRACTION JOINT

1

2

" FIBER JOINT

COMPACTED AGGREGATE

BASE

SUBGRADE

R

1

/

2

"

6
"

9" MIN.

F

G

EQ.

1. SET TREE PLUMB IN PLANTING PIT.

2. EACH TREE MUST BE PLANTED SUCH THAT  THE TRUNK FLARE

IS VISIBLE AT THE TOP  OF THE ROOT BALL. TREES WHERE THE

TRUNK  FLARE IS NOT VISIBLE SHALL BE REJECTED.  DO NOT

COVER THE TOP OF THE ROOT BALL WITH SOIL.

NOTES:

REMOVE WIRE BASKET FROM UPPER

HALF OF ROOT BALL

EQ.

2
4

"
 
M

i
n

.

COMPACTED SOIL MIX.  EXTEND UP

1/3 OF ROOTBALL.

C

L

6
"

4
"

TREE PLANTING SOIL MIX AT TREE GRATE

REFER TO PLAN FOR

CONCRETE FINISH

R
O

O
T

B
A

L
L

 
D

E
P

T
H

SEE DETAIL

ENLARGEMENT THIS

SHEET

STEEL TREE GRATE FRAME & ADA TREE GRATE UNDIPPED

MANUFACTURER: EAST JORDAN IRON WORKS, INC.

PRODUCT #: 00858110 AND 00858131

COLOR: FLAT BLACK RUSTOLEUM COATING

STEEL TREE GRATE  ANGLE FRAME

SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH

2
"

A
I
R

G
A

P

3"

6
"

TREE ROOTBALL

PLANTING SOIL MIX

PROVIDE ANCHORS PER

MANUFACTURER RECOMMENDATIONS.

REFER TO PLAN FOR CONCRETE

FINISH

6
"

6" 3"

48 

3

4

"

10 

5

16

"

TRANSITION DEPTH

OVER1'-0"

SCALE: 3/4" = 1'-0"

TREE PLANTING IN TREE GRATE DETAIL ENLARGEMENT

SCALE: 1 

1

2

" = 1'-0"

7A



sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
1
.
3
-
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L
S

.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
1
0
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
1
1
:
2
6
a
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

LANDSCAPE

DETAILS

L1.4

2
"

SEE PLANS FOR EXTENTS

2
'
-
6
"

1'-0"

3" HARDWOOD MULCH

ORGANIC PLANTING SOIL MIX

2% MIN.

2% MIN.

1

1

PLANT TRUNK FLARE 1"

ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

REMOVE BURLAP, ROPE AND

CAGE FROM TOP 

1

2

 OF

ROOTBALL.

EXPOSED AGGREGATE

PLANTER CURB - SEE CIVIL

SET FOR DETAIL

SAND BASED

STRUCTURAL SOIL

EXISTING SUBGRADE

4" PIPE UNDERDRAIN SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS;

SLOPE AND CONNECT TO STORM DRAINS

COMPACT SOIL AT BASE OF ROOT BALL TO

STABILIZE TREE.

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

TREE PLANTING IN STRUCTURAL SOIL AND PLANTER DRAINAGE DETAIL

±
4
'
-
6
"

4
"

M
I
N

.

NOTES:

1. FIELD VERIFY ALL EXISTING UTILITIES,

STRUCTURAL SOIL DEPTHS MAY VARY DUE TO

UTILITY LOCATIONS. ACTUAL LIMITS OF SAND

BASED STRUCTURAL SOIL MAY VARY BASED ON

FIELD CONDITIONS. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN

APPROXIMATE 1,000 CF OF SOIL VOLUME PER

TREE.

2. SEE TYPICAL SECTION SHEETS FOR ALL PAVEMENT

THICKNESS AND CURB DETAILS.

3. ADJUST INVERT OF 6" PIPE ARMS TO PROVIDE THE

CATCH BASIN & OUTLET PIPE INVERT.

1

1

BACKFILL WITH MDOT 34R OPEN GRADED

ANGULAR AGGREGATE, OR APPROVED

EQUAL. CIRCULAR PEA STONE NOT ALLOWED.

6" DIA. SLOTTED SCHEDULE 40 PVC PIPE

(SLOTS DOWN) OR TRAFFIC RATED

PERFORATED HDPE, WITH END CAPS AS

REQUIRED. PIPE WRAPPED WITH GEO-FABRIC

SOCK IS NOT ALLOWED. TIE INTO CATCH

BASIN

WRAP TRENCH WITH NONWOVEN

GEOTEXTILE MIRAFI 1404, BP AMOCO 4547, OR

EQUAL

VARIES6"

NDS NYOPLAST DRAIN

STRUCTURE, 12" DIA. (BLACK,

CAST IRON BEE HIVE GRATE)

RIM ELEVATION 4-6" BELOW

TOP OF WALK

NOTES:

1. SEE CIVIL SHEETS FOR ALL PAVEMENT

THICKNESS AND CURB DETAILS

12" HEIGHT SHALLOW

CONCRETE PLANTER CURB,

EXPOSED AGGREGATE -

REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS

EXISTING SUBGRADE

4" PIPE UNDERDRAIN SEE

CIVIL DRAWINGS; SLOPE AND

CONNECT TO STORM DRAINS

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

PLANTER DRAIN & AGGREGATE SECTION AND PLAN ENLARGEMENT

SURROUND DRAIN WITH 3"-6"

NATIVE MICHIGAN STONE,

CHOKED IN WITH

DECORATIVE AGGREGATE

2
'
-
6
"

6
"

SURROUND DRAIN WITH 3"-6"

NATIVE MICHIGAN STONE,

CHOKED IN WITH

DECORATIVE AGGREGATE

CONSTRUCTED SOIL LIMITS

TO MAINTAIN PLANTER CURB

DURING LANDSCAPE WORK

ORGANIC PLANTING SOIL MIX

FILTER FABRIC

PROPOSED AGGREGATE

BASE DOUBLE WASHED

STONES (0.5-1.0" NOMINAL

SIZE) MDOT 4AA, 6A, OR 6AA

±
4
'
-
6
"

4
"

M
I
N

.

PLAN VIEW

11'-6"

A

C

2
4

"
6

"
3

"

TRANSITION LAYER NOTE:

DEPTH OF PLANTING SOIL MIX TYPE AND BLENDING DEPTHS OF  PLANTING

MIX INTO RIPPED SUBGRADE MAY VARY.  REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS.

TRANSITION LAYER:

TYPICAL 3 INCHES  OF PLANTING

SOIL BLENDED INTO EXISTING

"RIPPED" SOIL  MIN. DEPTH OF 3

INCHES.

ORGANIC PLANTING SOIL MIX:  24"

DEPTH (30" DEPTH IN BIO-SWALE

PLANTERS).  INSTALL AT 6 INCH

LIFTS.  REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS

FOR SOIL TYPE.

FINISH GRADE AFTER SETTLEMENT.

PLANT MATERIAL VARIES.

EXISTING SUBGRADE RIPPED TO

DEPTH AS SPECIFIED.

EXISTING SUBGRADE.

SCALE: 1" = 1'-0"

ORGANIC PLANTING SOIL MIX INSTALLATION

D

B

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'-0"

TYPICAL AGGREGATE - CURB CUT PLAN ENLARGEMENT

CURB CUT

SURROUND DRAIN WITH 3"-6"

NATIVE MICHIGAN STONE,

CHOKED IN WITH

DECORATIVE AGGREGATE

1
'
-
6
"
 
T

Y
P

.

±
2
'
-
0
"

±2'-0"

PLANTER CURB, TYP.

SHRUB, PERENNIAL, AND

GRASS PLANTINGS, TYP.

7A



L

I
M

I
T

 
O

F

 
W

O

R

K

NOTES:

PRODUCT: PROTO PLANTER FENCE

PRODUCT ID: PPFP

DIMENSIONS: 18" HIGH

MATERIAL: CAST IRON

STANDARD FINISH: POWDER COAT (BLACK)

MANUFACTURER: IRON AGE DESIGNS

PROPOSED LOW DECORATIVE FENCE (PROTO PLANTER FENCE)

SURFACE MOUNT TO CONCRETE PER MANUFACURER RECOMMENDATIONS

126 LF OF FENCE MATERIAL

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

6
"

FENCE POST TO

BE SURFACE MOUNTED

6" OFF EDGE OF

WALK

2'-6" TYP.

sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
1
.
5
-
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
 
E

N
L
A

R
G

E
M

E
N

T
.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
0
7
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
1
:
5
5
p
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

DECORATIVE FENCE

ALTERNATE

L1.5

SCALE IN FEET

0 5' 10'

N

PROTO PLANTER FENCE PROTO PLANTER FENCE - CUT SHEET

DECORATIVE FENCE ALTERNATE

DECORATIVE FENCE ALTERNATE - PLAN ENLARGEMENT

SCALE IN FEET

0 1' 2'

N

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W



C

I
T

Y

 
O

F

 
B

I
R

M

I
N

G

H

A

M

P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 
P

A

R

K

I
N

G

 
S

T

R

U

C

T

U

R

E

#

2

2

2

 
P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 
S

T

.

S

.
 
O

L

D

 
W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 
A

V

E

(
1

0

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

O

W

 
)

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

M
A

T
C

H
L
I
N

E
 
-
 
L
2
.
1

S3

S3

S3

S3

S2

S2

S2

S2

S2

S2

S2

C

L

±41'

1

1

9
'
-
0
"

L
I
M

I
T

 
O

F
 
W

O
R

K

sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
2
.
0
-
S

O
I
L
S

 
P

L
A

N
.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
0
7
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
8
:
4
7
a
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

SOILS PLAN

L2.0

SCALE IN FEET

0 10' 20'

N

S1

S O I L S   L E G E N D

SOIL TYPE 1  -  EXISTING PLANTING BEDS

ORGANIC PLANTING SOIL MIX - (DEPTH

VARIES, NOT ON ROOTBALL / TREE TRUNK)

S2

SOIL TYPE 2  -  PERENNIALS, SHRUBS & TREES

ORGANIC PLANTING SOIL MIX - 24"

SEE DETAIL D, SHEET L1.4

S3

SOIL TYPE 3:

SAND BASED STRUCTURAL SOIL MIX - 30" SEE

DETAIL C, SHEET L1.4

S O I L S     N O T E S

1. DO NOT EXCAVATE WITHIN SOIL PRESERVATION/TREE

PROTECTION AREAS UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED. REFER TO

DEMOLITION PLAN AND/OR TREE PROTECTION PLANS FOR

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

2. EXISTING SITE SOILS TO BE EXCAVATED AND REMOVED FROM

SITE.

3. SUBGRADE SOILS FOR PLANTING AREAS MUST BE

DECOMPACTED BY RIPPING SOILS AS DESCRIBED IN EACH

PLANTING SOIL MIX SPECIFICATION.

4. AREAS WITHIN GRADING LIMITS OR DISTURBED BY

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES SHALL HAVE EXISTING SOILS

DECOMPACTED AND REPAIRED TO ORIGINAL STATE OR

PROPOSED PROJECT CONDITIONS. OWNER’S REPRESENTATIVE

TO REVIEW AND APPROVE SOILS AND REPAIRS PRIOR TO

REPAIR WORK COMMENCING.

5. PLANTING SOIL MIX DEPTHS INDICATED ARE POST COMPACTION

AND SETTLEMENT DEPTHS REPRESENTING FINAL GRADE

WITHIN SPECIFIED COMPACTION AND GRADING TOLERANCES.

COMPENSATE FOR SETTLING AND COMPACTION AS

NECESSARY.

6. EXCAVATE AND CONFIRM PLANTING AREA SUBGRADES ARE TO

THE DEPTHS NOTED ON SOIL DRAWINGS AND DETAILS. WHERE

EXCAVATION IS TOO DEEP, BACKFILL WITH EXISTING SOILS AND

COMPACT TO 85 - 90% PROCTOR. DO NOT START THE SOIL MIX

INSTALLATION UNTIL SUB-GRADE CONDITIONS HAVE BEEN

CORRECTED AND APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

7. PROJECT MANUAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR PLANTING SOIL MIX

AND FINISH GRADING APPLY.

CODED NOTES:

NO NEW SOIL TO BE ADDED BENEATH TREE

CANOPY, VERIFY LIMITS IN FIELD

1

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-206-024

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO SANITARY OR WATER SERVICE INFORMATION PROVIDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 770.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"  TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"  TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FDC

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 773.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"  TR

AutoCAD SHX Text
x



W
OODW

ARD BROW
N

ASSOCIATES, LLC

#34901  W
OODW

ARD

E. BROWN ST.

( PUBLIC ROW VARIES )

S

O

U

T

H

 
B

O

U

N

D

W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 
A

V

E

.

(

 
2

0

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

O

W

 
V

A

R

I
E

S

 
)

P

E

A

B

O

D

Y

 
S

T

.

(

 
5

0

'
 
W

I
D

E

 
P

U

B

L

I
C

 
R

O

W

 
)

M

A

T

C

H

L

I

N

E

 

-

 

L

2

.

0

S2

S1

S2

S3

S2

1

2

L

I
M

I
T

 
O

F

 
W

O

R

K

S3

sheet number

sheet name

issue date project number

revision

date issued

03.16.2023 90% CITY REVIEW

03.16.2023 d23106

client / owner

project name

project address

BROWN STREET

PAVING PROJECT

CONTRACT #5-23P

seal

Birmingham, MI

consultant 1

Nowak & Frauss Engineers

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342

p 248.332.7931

City of Birmingham

Issued for Construction

T
:
\
P

r
o
j
e
c
t
s
\
2
0
2
3
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
B

i
r
m

i
n
g
h
a
m

 
M

I
,
 
B

r
o
w

n
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
 
S

t
r
e
e
t
s
c
a
p
e
\
B

I
M

_
C

A
D

_
G

I
S

\
C

A
D

\
S

h
e
e
t
s
\
d
2
3
1
0
6
-
L
2
.
1
-
S

O
I
L
S

 
P

L
A

N
.
d
w

g
 
A

p
r
 
0
7
,
 
2
0
2
3
 
-
 
8
:
4
8
a
m

-
j
g
o
f
f

4219 WOODWARD AVENUE, SUITE 305

DETROIT, MICHIGAN 48201

313.652.1101     MKSKSTUDIOS.COM

CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

04.10.2023 BIDS

SOILS PLAN

L2.1

SCALE IN FEET

0 10' 20'

N

S1

S O I L S   L E G E N D

SOIL TYPE 1  -  EXISTING PLANTING BEDS

ORGANIC PLANTING SOIL MIX - (DEPTH

VARIES, NOT ON ROOTBALL / TREE TRUNK)

S2

SOIL TYPE 2  -  PERENNIALS, SHRUBS & TREES

ORGANIC PLANTING SOIL MIX - 24"

SEE DETAIL D, SHEET L1.4

S3

SOIL TYPE 3:

SAND BASED STRUCTURAL SOIL MIX - 30" SEE

DETAIL C, SHEET L1.4

CODED NOTES:

NO NEW SOIL TO BE PLACED OVER ROOTBALL OF

EXISTING TREES

BACKFILL EXCAVATED HOLES DUG FOR NEW

PLANT MATERIAL WITH ORGANIC PLANT MIX AS

NEEDED

1

2

7A

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. 772.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"  TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"  TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"  TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"  TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"  TR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
19-36-207-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" WATER SVC.. OF PEABODY

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" D.I. WATER SVC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. WATER SVC. (R)



G. Viju

G. Viju

B. Buchholz

Quantities

Q1

SCALE:

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

03-16-2023

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

D162-01
NFE JOB NO.

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.nfe-ENGR.COM

Part of the Northeast 1 4
of Section 36
Town 2 North,
Range 10 East
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Brown Street Paving Project
Contract #5-23(P)

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

03-16-2023  - 90% City review

04-10-2023  - bids

04-26-2023  - ADDENDUM  #1

N.T.S.

7A



7A



7A



7A



7A



 

 

 

 

 UNIT BID COST 
 UNIT COST 

X QTY 

30 Removing Concrete Sidewalk & Ramp (sawcutting included) 835 SY 51.75$                             43,211.25$    

35 Concrete Sidewalk, 4", Scoring Treatment 6445 SF 12.25$                             78,951.25$    

36 Concrete Sidewalk, 6", Scoring Treatment (Includes Ramps) 855 SF 14.25$                             12,183.75$    

37 Concrete Sidewalk, 8", Scoring Treatment 400 SF 15.25$                             6,100.00$      

38 Concrete Sidewalk, 4", Exposed Aggregate, Scoring Treatment 1698 SF 25.50$                             43,299.00$    

39 Concrete Sidewalk, 6", Exposed Aggregate, Scoring Treatment 217 SF 30.50$                             6,618.50$      

40 Handicap Ramp Truncated Domes (per ramp) 192 SF 107.00$                          20,544.00$    

60 Maintenance Aggregate 1 LS 19,500.00$                    19,500.00$    

33 Concrete Pavement, Non-reinforced, 9", incl. integral Detail F2 Curb & Gutter 1585 LF 156.00$                          247,260.00$ 

41 Concrete Curb & Gutter, 18", MDOT Type F2, Modified 231 LF 51.00$                             11,781.00$    

31 Removing Pavement Full Depth (Curb & Gutter included) 1970 SY 51.75$                             101,947.50$ 

Paving Subtotal 591,396.25$ 

Per/LFT 732.04$          

73 Structural Soil Mix (30" depth) 5,073 CFT 3.00$                        15,219.00$    

74 Organic Plant Soil Mix - Plant Beds (24" depth) 3,713 CFT 3.50$                        12,995.50$    

75 Native MI Stone (3"-6") choked in w/ decorative aggregate 1 LS 2,000.00$                  2,000.00$      

76 Shredded Hardwood Mulch (3" depth) 24 CY 80.00$                      1,920.00$      

77 TILIA AMERICANA 'MCKSENTRY' (3-3.5" CAL.) 3 EA 1,000.00$                  3,000.00$      

78 ULMUS AMERICANA 'PRINCETON' (3-3.5" CAL.) 4 EA 900.00$                    3,600.00$      

79 ZELKOVA SERRATA 'JFS-KW1' (3-3.5" CAL.) 3 EA 900.00$                    2,700.00$      

80 MALUS X 'JEFSPIRE' (2" CAL.) 3 EA 700.00$                    2,100.00$      

81 HYDRANGEA PANICULATA 'JANE' (#5) 31 EA 95.00$                      2,945.00$      

82 ILEX GLABRA 'SHAMROCK' (#3) 6 EA 95.00$                      570.00$          

83 JUNIPERUS SQUAMATA 'BLUE STAR' (#3) 18 EA 70.00$                      1,260.00$      

84 PINUS MUGO 'HONEYCOMB' (#3) 21 EA 75.00$                      1,575.00$      

85 GERANIUM X 'ROZANNE' (#1) 24 EA 20.00$                      480.00$          

86 PACHYSANDRA TERMINALIS 'GREEN CARPET' (24/FLAT) 892 EA 2.75$                        2,453.00$      

87 PEROVSKIA 'LITTLE SPIRE' (#2) 41 EA 20.00$                      820.00$          

88 RUDBECKIA HIRTA (#1) 35 EA 20.00$                      700.00$          

89 PENNISETUM ALOPECUROIDES 'LITTLE BUNNY' (#2) 91 EA 30.00$                      2,730.00$      

90 SELSERIA AUTUMNALIS (#1) 48 EA 20.00$                      960.00$          

Landscape Subtotal 58,027.50$    

Per/LFT 71.83$            

61 Meter Pit 1 EA 8,700.00$                  8,700.00$      

62 Sprinkler Assembly 76 EA 100.00$                    7,600.00$      

63 Valve Assembly 4 EA 800.00$                    3,200.00$      

64 1-1/2 inch PVC Mainline 202 LF 18.25$                      3,686.50$      

65 1-1/2 inch Polyethylene lateral line 5 LF 9.00$                        45.00$            

66 1 inch Polyethylene lateral line 936 LF 1.20$                        1,123.20$      

67 Communication Cable - two wire 202 LF 2.00$                        404.00$          

68 Irrigation Controller 1 EA 6,000.00$                  6,000.00$      

69 Rain Sensor 1 EA 300.00$                    300.00$          

70 Two Wire Decoders 4 EA 625.00$                    2,500.00$      

71 4" PVC Sleeve 145 LF 25.00$                      3,625.00$      

72 2" PVC Sleeve 278 LF 11.00$                      3,058.00$      

Irrigation Subtotal 40,241.70$    

Per/LFT 49.81$            

TOTAL 689,665.45$ 

TOTAL PER/LFT 853.68$          

BROWN STREET PAVING

PAVING PAY ITEMS

LANDSCAPE ITEMS 

NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION  Qty Units

IRRIGATION ITEMS 

 PROJECT CONTRACT #5-23 (P)

7A



 

 

 

Street Address Sidwell 

Frontage 

Length 

(LFT) 

Assessable 

Frontage 

Length 

(LFT) (75%)

Bid Unit  

Cost for 

Assessment

Estimate SAD Assessment for 

Street with Frontage City Cost

325 S Old Woodward 08-19-36-208-015 141.01 105.76 853.68$   90,283.45$                                   30,094.48$           

355 S Old Woodward 08-19-36-208-016 48.00 36.00 853.68$   30,732.61$                                   10,244.20$           

34745 Woodward 08-19-36-208-004 189.00 141.75 853.68$   121,009.66$                                40,336.55$           

255 S Old Woodward 08-19-36-206-021 82.00 61.50 853.68$   52,501.55$                                   17,500.52$           

34901 Woodward 08-19-36-207-010 208.60 156.45 853.68$   133,558.81$                                44,519.60$           

*Chester Parking Structure 08-19-36-206-024 119.26 119.26 853.68$   101,810.32$         

*Alley 08-19-36-206-023 20.00 20.00 853.68$   17,073.67$           

Total 807.87 640.72 428,086.09$                                $261,579.36

* - City Property Does not get assesment 

 PROJECT CONTRACT #5-23 (P)

BROWN STREET PAVING

 Breakdown 

 SAD COST

7A



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Clerk’s Office 

DATE: May 3, 2023 

TO: Melissa Coatta, City Engineer 

FROM: Christina Woods, Deputy Clerk 

SUBJECT: Clerk’s Confirmation of Public Hearing Notice:  Brown Street 
Sidewalk and Streetscape 

The public hearing notice process has been completed for Brown Street Sidewalk and Streetscape. 
Please see attachments for further confirmation. 

Mailing Date:4/25/2023 
Test Mail Return Date: 
Publishing Dates in the Oakland Press: April 28, 2023 and May 5, 2023 
Posted on www.bhamgov.org/publicnotices: 4/25/2023 

Attachments: 
1. Public Hearing Notice
2. Addresses
3. Mailing Letter
4. Mail Machine Counter Report
5. Proof of publishing for 4/28/2023. Second publishing date will be 5/5/2023

7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/publicnotices


 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING OF NECESSITY 

PUBLIC HEARING OF CONFIRMATION 
Meeting Date, 
Time, Location: 

HEARING OF NECESSITY FOR SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 
Monday, May 8, 2023, 7:30 PM 
Municipal Building, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI 48009 

Meeting Date, 
Time, Location: 

HEARING FOR CONFIRMATION OF THE ROLL 
Monday, May 22, 2023, 7:30 PM 
Municipal Building, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI 48009  

Project Location: 

 
 

Nature of 
Improvement: 

For the purpose of a Special Assessment District for sidewalk and 
streetscape improvements adjacent to all properties within the project 
area on Brown Street, from S. Old Woodward Ave. to Woodward Ave 

City Staff Contact: Melissa Coatta, City Engineer 
mcoatta@bhamgov.org, (248)530-1839  

Notice 
Requirements: 

Mail to affected property owners 
Publish April 28 2023 and May 5 2023 

Approved minutes 
may be reviewed 
at: 

City Clerk’s Office or www.bhamgov.org/commissionagendas  

Should you have any statement regarding the above, you are invited to attend the meeting in person 
or virtually through ZOOM:  https://zoom.us/j/655079760       Meeting ID: 655 079 760 
You or your agent may appear at the hearings to express your views; however, if you fail to protest 
either in person or by letter received on or before the date of the hearing, you cannot appeal the amount 
of the special assessment to the Michigan Tax Tribunal.  Mail any correspondence to:  City Clerk, P.O. 
Box 3001, Birmingham, MI 48012. 
 
The property owner may file a written appeal of the special assessment with the State Tax Tribunal 
within 30 days after the confirmation of the special assessment roll if that special assessment was 
protested at the hearing held for the purpose of confirming the roll. 
 
All special assessments, including installment payments, shall, from the date of the confirmation 
thereof, constitute a lien on the respective lots or parcels assessed, and until paid shall be charged 
against the respective owners of the lots or parcels assessed. 

Persons  with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk's Office at  248.530.1880 (voice) or 248.644.5115 (TDD) at least one day in 

advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance. 
 

7A

mailto:mcoatta@bhamgov.org
http://www.bhamgov.org/commissionagendas


Number Parcel Name 1 Name 2 Address City State Zip 

1 1936206021 PARK PLAZA OF BIRMINGHAM LLC 210 S OLD WOODWARD AVE STE 230 BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

2 1936206023 CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 151 MARTIN ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

3 1936206024 CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 151 MARTIN ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

4 1936207010 WOODWARD BROWN ASSOCIATES LLC 32820 WOODWARD AVE STE 200 ROYAL OAK MI 48073

5 1936207010 LJ PROPERTIES MI LLC 34915 WOODWARD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

6 1936207010 DAVID J CONNELL REVOC TRUST DAVID J CONNELL TRUSTEE 34901 WOODWARD AVE STE 500 BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

7 1936207010 WOODWARD BROWN ASSOCIATES LLC 32820 WOODWARD AVE STE 200 ROYAL OAK MI 48073

8 1936208004 BMW KAR WASH LLC 28845 TELEGRAPH RD SOUTHFIELD MI 48034

9 1936208015 325 S OLD WOODWARD LLC 330 HAMILTON ROW STE 300 BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

10 1936208016 FULLER CENTRAL PARK PRPRTS 112 PEABODY ST BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

11 1936206021 Occupant 255 S OLD WOODWARD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

12 1936207010 Occupant 34901 WOODWARD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

13 1936207010 Occupant 34901 WOODWARD AVE # 200 BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

14 1936207010 Occupant 34901 WOODWARD AVE # 3 BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

15 1936208004 Occupant 34745 WOODWARD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

16 1936208015 Occupant 325 S OLD WOODWARD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

17 1936208016 Occupant 355 S OLD WOODWARD AVE BIRMINGHAM MI 48009

18 City of Birmingham City Clerk's Office 151 Martin Birmingham MI 48009

7A



 

     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 
        (248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  

 

      
Tuesday, April 25, 2023 
 
 
TO:  
 City of Birmingham 

City Clerk's Office  
151 Martin 
Birmingham, MI 48009 

 
 
RE: Brown Street Paving Project 

Sidewalk and Street Scape Special Assessment District  
 
As part of the improved pedestrian crossing by the Michigan Department of Transportation 
(MDOT) at the Woodward Avenue and Brown Street/Forest Avenue intersection, the City will 
reconstruct the pavement along Brown Street between S. Old Woodward Avenue to Woodward 
Avenue.  The proposed work will include new concrete pavement and sidewalk and streetscape 
features from the new back of curb to the limits of the road right-of-way.   
 
The streetscape improvements will consist of an enhanced version of the downtown standard 
sawcut concrete sidewalk with an exposed aggregate sidewalk between the main pedestrian path 
and the street curb.  Elements of the new streetscape design to be constructed as part of this 
project include:  

• All new concrete and exposed aggregate sidewalks from the building face to the back of 
the curbs. 

• Enlarged, raised planter beds, framed by a 6-inch high exposed aggregate curb, with 
irrigation, and professionally designed landscaping. 

 
Construction on this project is anticipated to start in the summer of 2023 and be completed by 
the end of August 2023.   
 
With this letter you are receiving a notification for a public hearing, with the Public Hearing of 
Necessity being scheduled to occur on Monday, May 8, 2023 at the regularly scheduled City 
Commission meeting at 7:30 p.m. This is to consider a Special Assessment District (SAD) for 
sidewalk and streetscape improvements as part of the Brown Street Paving Project. 
 
Consistent with previous projects of this nature, it has been the City’s policy to assess 75% of the 
streetscape construction to the properties that share frontage with the improvements.  The cost 
per property will be assessed as an average cost per linear foot of frontage for the improvements.  
The properties with multiple owners will share the cost of the frontage, and the amount will be 
based on the square footage of the building area owned.  The City will bill one-tenth of the 
assessment, as would be done on other special assessment districts, plus interest, on an annual 
basis, to make the cost more manageable for the property owners. 

7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


 

     151 Martin Street • P.O. Box 3001 • Birmingham, MI 48012-3001 
        (248) 530-1800  •  Fax (248) 530-1080  •  www.bhamgov.org  

 

 
If you have any questions or concerns, please contact the Engineering Office at (248) 530-1850. 
You have the opportunity to speak directly to the City Commission at the Public Hearing of 
Necessity that will be held on May 8, 2023.   
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Melissa A. Coatta, P.E. 
City Engineer 
 

7A

http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/
http://www.bhamgov.org/


Mail Machine Counter Report

7A



7A



MEMORANDUM 
Finance Department 

DATE: May 3, 2023  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Finance Director/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: 2023-2024 Budget Appropriations Resolution 

INTRODUCTION: 
As required by state law and city charter, the City Commission must annually approve a budget 
for the following fiscal year and approve the property tax millage to be assessed on July 1st. 

BACKGROUND: 

The City held a public hearing on April 29, 2023, to review the 2023-2024 recommended budget 
and to receive comments and revisions from the City Commission and the general public.  
Based on the comments received, there were no revisions made to the manager’s recommended 
budget or to the recommended property tax millage.  Below are some updates to the 
recommended budget, some of which were presented at the public hearing and others based 
on information which was received after the public hearing. 

Sewage Disposal Fund Budget 

The City has received final sewage and storm water costs from the Oakland County Water 
Resources Commissioner for fiscal year 2023-2024.  Based on this information, sewage disposal 
costs increased $116,030 and storm water increased $61,650.  As a result, adjustments to the 
appropriate revenue accounts will increase revenues by $177,680. 

Baldwin Library Fund Budget 

The proposed budget that was presented did not include a contribution of $260,000 from the 
library trust.  This adjustment increased total revenues to $5,591,430 and leaves the fund with 
a projected positive fund balance at the end of fiscal year 2023-2024.   

LEGAL REVIEW: 

None needed. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The impact of these adjustments to the recommended budget are as follows: 

7B



2 

Sewage Disposal Fund Manager 
Recommended Budget 

Adjusted 
Recommended Budget 

Revenues: 

 Charges for Services $11,105,440 $11,283,120 

Expenditures: 

 Sewage Disposal Fund $13,695,250 $13,872,930 

Baldwin Library Fund Manager 
Recommended Budget 

Adjusted 
Recommended Budget 

Revenues: 

 Other Revenue $0 $260,000 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The budget hearing was noticed in the newspaper and was included in the 2023 City calendar. 

SUMMARY: 
It is recommended that the City Commission approve the budget appropriations resolution 
adopting the City of Birmingham’s budget and establishing the total number of mills for ad 
valorem property taxes to be levied for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2023 and ending June 
30, 2024. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

The budget appropriations resolution with the changes noted above is attached to this report. 

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting the budget appropriations resolution for the City of Birmingham’s 
budget and establishing the total number of mills for ad valorem property taxes to be levied for 
the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2023 and ending June 30, 2024. 

7B



Taxes 33,524,900$     

656,810 

2,720,510         

53,000 

State Grants 2,833,900         

Local Contributions 151,650 

3,557,890         

1,957,340         

756,500 

250,130 

100,000 

Total General Fund 46,562,630$     

 $ 35,000 

23,000 

Total Greenwood Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 58,000$  

 $       1,841,950 

35,180 

          3,500,000 

Draw from Fund Balance           1,958,990 

Total Major Streets Fund 7,336,120$       

BUDGET APPROPRIATIONS RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the 2023-2024 Budget, and;

WHEREAS, the City Commission has held a Public Hearing on the 2023-2024 Budget;

WHEREAS, Chapter VII, Section 14 of the Birmingham City Charter requires that the City 

Commission pass an annual appropriations resolution, and;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Commission does hereby adopt the following 

estimated revenues for the City of Birmingham for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2023, and ending 

June 30, 2024:

Special Assessments

Other Revenue

Other Financing Sources

MAJOR STREETS FUND:

State Grants

Interest and Rent

Other Financing Sources

GREENWOOD CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND:

Charges for Services

Interest and Rent

GENERAL FUND:

Licenses & Permits

Federal Grants

Charges for Services

Fines and Forfeitures

Interest and Rent

WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted the proposed 2023-2024 Budget, and:

7B



 $          237,740 

State Grants 752,340 

42,000 

5,000 

          3,500,000 

Draw from Fund Balance 261,130 

Total Local Streets Fund 4,798,210$       

Taxes 2,343,860$       

4,000 

100 

20,000 

300 

Total Solid Waste Disposal Fund 2,368,260$       

Taxes 481,830$          

880 

20,000 

Total Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund 502,710$          

 $       1,201,500 

25,000 

5,420 

220,000 

Draw from Fund Balance 40,690 

Total Principal Shopping District Fund 1,492,610$       

 $ 36,910 

220$  

State Grants 494,100$          

Local Contributions 17,600 

Interest and Rent 3,000 

Total Indigent Defense Fund 514,700$          

Special Assessments

Interest and Rent

LOCAL STREETS FUND:

INDIGENT DEFENSE FUND:

Interest and Rent

Interest and Rent

Interest and Rent

Interest and Rent

Other Revenue

Other Financing Sources

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FUND:

State Grants

Charges for Services

Other Revenue

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND:

Other Revenue

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT FUND:

Special Assessments

Charges for Services

Other Revenue

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND:

Federal Grants

TRIANGLE DISTRICT CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY FUND:

7B



Other Revenue 50,000$  

 $ 25,000 

29,790 

Total Law and Drug Enforcement Fund 54,790$  

Taxes  $       4,165,640 

42,000 

Local Contributions           1,093,140 

20,650 

Fines and Forfeitures 5,000 

5,000 

Other Revenue 260,000 

Draw from Fund Balance           2,203,880 

Total Baldwin Library Fund  $       7,795,310 

Taxes  $       1,637,910 

2,770 

5,500 

Total Debt Service Fund  $       1,646,180 

 $ 20,000 

Other Financing Sources 600,000 

Draw from Fund Balance 580,000 

Total Capital Projects Fund  $       1,200,000 

PARK SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION FUND:

Interest and Rent 25,000$  

Other Financing Sources 6,237,900         

Total Park System Construction Fund 6,262,900         

 $       8,099,860 

Interest and Rent 350,000 

          7,140,200 

Total Automobile Parking System Fund  $     15,590,060 

Interest and Rent

Draw from Fund Balance

Charges for Services

AUTOMOBILE PARKING SYSTEM FUND:

Charges for Services

Draw from Net Position

Interest and Rent

DEBT SERVICE FUND:

Intergovernmental

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND:

LAW AND DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND:

Fines and Forfeitures

BALDWIN LIBRARY FUND:

State Grants

Interest and Rent

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND:

7B



Taxes  $          314,680 

2,000 

550 

        11,283,120 

Interest and Rent 63,190 

          2,209,390 

Total Sewage Disposal Fund  $     13,872,930 

Taxes  $          399,280 

          1,305,680 

State Grants 720 

          5,717,570 

Interest and Rent 150,000 

          2,027,000 

Total Water-Supply System Fund  $       9,600,250 

 $          900,600 

Interest and Rent 37,710 

600 

Total Lincoln Hills Golf Course Fund  $          938,910 

 $          611,700 

25,870 

114,750 

Total Springdale Golf Course Fund  $          752,520 

Interest and Rent  $       1,081,300 

-   

550,080 

Total Computer Equipment Fund  $       1,631,380 

 $       6,557,920 

Judicial           1,999,280 

        19,893,160 

Public Works           6,209,820 

SEWAGE DISPOSAL FUND:

Special Assessments

Draw from Net Position

AND, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Commission does hereby adopt on a budgetary 

GENERAL FUND:

General Government

Public Safety

Charges for Services

Other Revenue

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT FUND:

Other Revenue

SPRINGDALE GOLF COURSE:

Charges for Services

Interest and Rent

Draw from Net Position

Draw from Net Position

WATER-SUPPLY SYSTEM RECEIVING FUND:

Charges for Services

Draw from Net Position

Federal Grants

LINCOLN HILLS GOLF COURSE:

State Grants

Charges for Services

7B



217,630 

Community and Economic Development 731,720 

          7,600,000 

Contribution to Fund Balance 295,760 

Total General Fund  $     46,562,630 

Expenditures  $ -   

58,000 

Total Greenwood Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund  $ 58,000 

 $       7,336,120 

 $       4,798,210 

 $       2,363,390 

Contribution to Fund Balance 4,870 

Total Solid Waste Disposal Fund  $       2,368,260 

 $          501,830 

880 

Total Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund  $          502,710 

 $       1,492,610 

Health and Welfare  $ 36,910 

 $ 220 

INDIGENT DEFENSE FUND:

Health and Welfare 514,700$          

OPIOID SETTLEMENT FUND:

Health and Welfare 50,000$  

 $ 54,790 

Health and Welfare

TRIANGLE DISTRICT CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY FUND:

Contribution to Fund Balance

LAW AND DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND:

Transfers Out

GREENWOOD CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE FUND:

Contribution to Fund Balance

MAJOR STREETS FUND:

Community and Economic Development

Contribution to Fund Balance

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT FUND:

Community and Economic Development

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND:

LOCAL STREETS FUND:

Public Works

Public Safety

Public Works

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL FUND:

Public Works

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND:

7B



 $       7,795,310 

 $       1,646,180 

Capital Outlay           1,200,000 

PARK SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION FUND:

Recreation and Culture 498,000$          

Capital Outlay 150,000 

Contribution to Fund Balance 5,614,900         

Total Park System Construction Fund 6,262,900$       

Public Works  $     15,590,060 

Public Works 13,872,930$     

Public Works  $       9,600,250 

Recreation and Culture 812,750$          

Contribution to Net Position 126,160 

Total Lincoln Hills Golf Course 938,910$          

Recreation and Culture 752,520$          

General Government  $       1,631,380 

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT FUND:

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the budget summary above be approved as the 2023-2024 City 

Budget and that this resolution shall be known as the City of Birmingham 2023-2024 General 

Appropriations Act.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Commission does hereby designate $34,326,980 to be 

raised by 10.7501 mills levied for General Purposes on the taxable valuation of all real and personal 

property subject to taxation in the City.

SPRINGDALE GOLF COURSE:

AUTOMOBILE PARKING SYSTEM FUND:

SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM FUND:

WATER-SUPPLY SYSTEM RECEIVING FUND:

LINCOLN HILLS GOLF COURSE:

Recreation and Culture

DEBT SERVICE FUND: 

Debt Service

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND:

BALDWIN LIBRARY FUND: 

7B



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Commission does hereby designate $2,357,840 to be 

raised by 0.7384 mills levied on the taxable valuation of all real and personal property subject to 

taxation in the City for the purpose of the collection and removal of garbage and trash of the City as 

authorized by MCL 123.261, et. seq.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to make budgetary transfers 

within the budgetary centers established through the adoption of this budget, and that all transfers 

between budgetary centers may be made only by further action of the City Commission pursuant to the 

provisions of the Michigan Uniform Accounting and Budgeting Act.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the 2023-2024 budget shall be automatically amended on July 1, 

2023, to re-appropriate encumbrances outstanding and reserved at June 30, 2023.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED that the City Treasurer be authorized to add to all taxes paid after  

August 31, 2023, three-fourths of one percent (3/4 of 1%) penalty each and every month, or fraction 

thereof, that remains unpaid.  On all taxes paid after February 14, 2024, and through February 29, 2024, 

there shall be added a late penalty charge equal to three percent (3%) of such tax.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Commission does hereby designate $4,196,470 to be 

raised by 1.3142 mills levied for Library Operations on the taxable valuation of all real and personal 

property subject to taxation in the City.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Commission does hereby designate $1,640,340 to be 

raised by 0.5137 mills levied for Debt Service Requirements on the taxable valuation of all real and 

personal property subject to taxation in the City.

7B



MEMORANDUM 
Parking System 

DATE: 5/08/23 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Aaron Ford, Parking Systems Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Parking Rate Increase 

INTRODUCTION: 
After six years, the City has budgeted and planned to increase the monthly parking rate at all five 
City garages. The Parking Department has multiple capital improvement projects scheduled over 
the next five years. A rate increase at each garage starting in July of 2023 is being requested to 
help pay for these projects. 

BACKGROUND: 
April of 2017 was the last time the City increased the rate for monthly parking. At the time the 
rates were increased from $35 to $50 at the Chester St. Garage and from $50 to $70 at the 
remaining four garages. Due to COVID-19, the City waived the fee for parking from March 2020 
until June 2021.  

Monthly parking passes are available on a first come first serve bases at each of the five City 
garages. Passes are available to anyone who might find them convenient. A combination of 
residents, employees, and employers buy monthly passes, however the majority of monthly 
passes are purchased by companies looking to provide parking to their colleagues. Those people 
who don’t have monthly parking must pay the going rate based on the amount of time they are 
parked. All five City garages have a tiered rate schedule with a maximum rate of $10 per day.  

The Parking Department is in the middle of numerous capital improvement projects to help 
improve the efficiency and maintenance of the City’s parking facilities. Some of these projects 
include the installation of new parking equipment, ongoing concrete repairs, façade assessment 
of the Park St. garage, ADA compliance upgrades, painting, installation of LED lights, wayfinding 
signage, and making each garage compatible to support future EV charging. To help offset the 
cost of these projects the City is proposing to increase the rate of monthly parking at the start of 
the next fiscal year, which is July 1, 2023. 

7C



2 

For comparison, the City of Ann Arbor has increased their monthly parking rate by $5 each year. 
Below is a table showing the current monthly rate and the new proposed monthly rate, along 
with the rates of some of our local communities.  

Current Rate Per Day Rate (21 Days) Per Day Rate (30 Days) 
Chester Garage $50.00 $2.38 $1.67 
Old Woodward $70.00 $3.33 $2.33 
Park Garage $70.00 $3.33 $2.33 

Peabody 
Garage $70.00 $3.33 $2.33 

Pierce Garage $70.00 $3.33 $2.33 

Proposed Rate Per Day Rate (21 Days) Per Day Rate (30 Days) 
Chester Garage $70.00 $3.33 $2.33 
Old Woodward $90.00 $4.29 $3.00 
Park Garage $90.00 $4.29 $3.00 

Peabody 
Garage $90.00 $4.29 $3.00 

Pierce Garage $100.00 $4.76 $3.33 

Monthly Rates 
Royal Oak $40-50 
Rochester $20.00 

Gross Pointe $40.00 
Detroit $182 Avg 

Ann Arbor $200.00 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
None 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
The Following chart shows a comparison of what the 2023-2024 fiscal year revenue would be for 
monthly parking if the rate were to remain at the current rate vs. with the new projected rate.  

The current Automobile Parking System fund balance as of March 31st is $25,360,625. 

7C



3 

P0UBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
None 

SUMMARY: 
The City is proposing to increase the monthly parking rate at all five City garages. The proposed 
rate increase is the first increase in six years. The proposed increase ($20) except at Pierce, is 
the same amount that occurred in 2017 and still provides monthly parkers a significant discount 
from what they would pay if they were to pay the daily rate.  

Staff recommended a flat $20 increase at all five garages, however during review, the Advisory 
Parking Committee recommended that the monthly rate at the Pierce Garage be increased to 
$100 due to the centralized location and popularity of the garage.  

The Automobile Parking System Fund, which is an enterprise fund, is in the middle of multiple 
capital improvement projects over the next five years. Increasing the monthly rate for parking 
will help pay for these needed repairs and improvements. 

Grand Total % Increase
Projected 2022-2023 657,840.00$     
Proposed 2023-2024 848,880.00$     

Grand Total % Increase
Projected 2022-2023 449,160.00$     
Proposed 2023-2024 578,040.00$     

Grand Total % Increase
Projected 2022-2023 753,240.00$     
Proposed 2023-2024 969,000.00$     

Grand Total % Increase
Projected 2022-2023 720,480.00$     
Proposed 2023-2024 926,880.00$     

Grand Total % Increase
Projected 2022-2023 679,440.00$     
Proposed 2023-2024 952,560.00$     

Projected 2022-2023 3,260,160.00$  
Proposed 2023-2024 4,275,360.00$  

N. Old Woodward

Chester

Total 31%

Pierce

29%

29%

29%

40%

Peabody

Park

29%

7C



4 

ATTACHMENTS: 
None 

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution amending the Birmingham Fee Schedule to increase the rate 
for monthly parking at the City’s five parking garages from $50 to $70 at the Chester St. garage, 
from $70 to $90 at the N. Old Woodward, Park, and Peabody garages, and from $70 to $100 
at the Pierce garage. 

7C



City of Birmingham 2023 Fee Schedule 

  Police Fee Schedule Version 2.0 printed 5/3/2023     Page 1 of 29

FEE PROPOSED 
FEE

 CHANGE 
CODE 

 STAFF 

$500.00  
$500.00  

 
no charge

$50.00
 

$10.00

$1.50
$1.00

$18.00

$360.00
$540.00
$88.29

$264.87
$441.45

$10/20
$30/40
$10/20
$15/25
$30/40
$30/40
$10/20
$10/20
$30/40
$30/40
$30/40

$100/125
$50/75
$30/40
$30/45

$210.00
$150.00
$180.00
$120.00
$180.00
$180.00

$8.00

$20.00
$30.00
$30.00

$50.00 $70.00 A AF
$70.00 $100.00 A AF
$70.00 $90.00 A AF

free
$2.00
$4.00
$6.00
$8.00

$10.00
$10.00
$10.00
$5.00

$20.00

Ann St. North

Hourly Meter Rates
High Demand (Areas Inside Central Core of Business District)

Monthly Outdoor Dining Meter Rental Fee for $1.00/Hour Meter
Monthly Outdoor Dining Meter Rental Fee for $1.50/Hour Meter
Removal of parking meter housing and/or posts - minimum fee (cost)
Removal of parking meter housing and/or posts - 1 meter space (cost)
Removal of parking meter housing and/or posts - 2 meter spaces (cost)

Keys in ignition or ignition unlocked
Other illegal parking
No parking here to corner

Expired meter: eight offenses or more in calendar year
Overtime in non-metered zone

Expired meter: first seven offenses in calendar

Stopping, standing or parking where prohibited
Overtime in a time zone: 2 hours or longer
Overtime in a time zone: less than 2 hours

Residential Permit Parking (110-136 - 110-150)
Lot 12 - SE Corner Maple & Woodward

South Old Woodward
Lot 11 - NW Corner Maple & Woodward

Less than 4 hours
Less than 5 hours

Less than 2 hours
Less than 3 hours

Residential parking permit per household (includes 2 resident and 3 visitor permits for a two-year 
period)

Permit Parking - Pierce St. Structure

Parking for Valet Licenses

Valet parking card deposit, per card

Permit Parking - Chester St. Structure

Permit Parking - All Others

Lower Demand (Areas Outside Central Core of Business District)

Parking Meters

Parking Structure Rates

Meter Bags

Outdoor Dining Metered Space for Platform
Daily Fee

Parking Offenses & Fines (If paid before 10 days/If paid after 10 days)

Parking Permits

Less than 6 hours
Over 6 hours
Over 7 hours
Over 8 hours
Maximum Fee After 10:00PM

Valet Parking in City Owned Structures

POLICE  DEPARTMENT                               
Alcohol*:
 Specially Designated Distributor 
 Specially Designated Merchant 

False Alarm fees (74-31):
 First false alarm per calendar year 
 All subsequent false alarms per calendar year 

*Fee for liquor license inspection may be waived at the discretion of the City Manager where an applicant 
seeks to change the liquor license by the removal of a licensee from the license and the licensed 
establishment is not in operation.

Fingerprints
 Full set of fingerprints; said fee shall be in addition to any license or permit fee which requires fingerprints to 
be taken and/or submitted to the Michigan State Police or the Federal Bureau of Investigation 

Activation fee per AVI card
Returned checks

Illegal parking in permit area
Illegal parking on private property

Parking Structure Permit Parking
Deposit (any cards returned after six-months not eligible for refund)

Meter Permit Parking (3 Months)
Lot 6 - Regular
Lot 6 - Restricted

Handicap zone
Violation of snow emergency parking ordinance

Parking over the meter line
Back into parking lot space

7C



City of Birmingham 2023 Fee Schedule 

  Police Fee Schedule Version 2.0 printed 5/3/2023     Page 2 of 29

$500.00
$750.00

$1,000.00

$216.00

$50.00

 
$500.00

$10.00

$25.00
$50.00
$25.00
$25.00
$25.00

101-200 cars, pre-paying for six months in advance, per month
1-100 cars, pre-paying for six months in advance, per month

201 and above cars, pre-paying for six months in advance, per month
Valet Parking Meter

Valet Monthly Bag fee

Vehicle Identification Number Inspection Fee
Vehicle Impounding Fee
Vehicle Inspection Fee

Fees per car:

Annual Application Fee
Insurance:  The owner of every pedicab or commercial quadricycle shall procure and file with the city clerk a 
liability insurance policy or similar proof of insurance issued by an insurance company authorized to do 
business in the state.  The amount of such liability insurance for each pedicab or commercial quadricycle 
shall be as follows:  An amount of not less than $2,000,000 because of bodily injury to or death of any one 
person; in an amount of $2,000,000 because of bodily injury of two or more persons in any one accident; in 
an amount of not less than $2,000,000 in medical coverage for each passenger.  Such policy of insurance 
may be in the form of a separate policy for each pedicab or commercial quadricycle, or may be in the fleet 
policy covering all pedicabs or commercial quadricycles operated by such owner; provided, however, that 
such a policy provide for the same amount of liability for each pedicab or commercial quadricycle operated.  
Provided further, such policy shall name the City of Birmingham as an additional insured, and no such policy 
as required above may be cancelled until the expiration of 30 days after notice of intent to cancel has been 
given in writing to the city clerk of the City by registered mail or personal delivery of such notice and a 
provision to that effect is made a part of such policy.
Precious Metals  Dealers 26-161
 Annual License Fee 

Annual criminal background check - per person (to be provided by applicant using the Michigan State 
Police ICHAT system)

Preliminary breath test (PBT) each
Stray Animal Fines:

Licensed pet properly immunized, first offense
Second offense within twelve month period

Pedi-cabs & Commercial 

7C



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
MUSEUM BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, June 26, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint to the Museum Board three regular members to serve a three-year term to 
expire July 6, 2026, and one alternate member to serve a three-year term to expire July 
6, 2026. 

Interested parties may submit an application available at the City Clerk's office on or before 
noon on Wednesday, June 21, 2023. These applications will appear in the public agenda for 
the regular meeting at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and may 
make nominations and vote on appointments. 

Board Duties 
The Museum Board is charged with collecting, arranging, cataloguing and preserving historical 
material. The Board may locate and erect plaques or markers at historic sites, buildings or 
properties in the City of Birmingham with the consent of the owner or owners of any such 
property and subject to the approval of the City Commission with respect to properties 
that, in the opinion of the Board, have historic significance. Further, the Board shall have 
the power to develop, operate and maintain the Allen House as a museum and to exercise 
authority, control and management over the Hunter House and John West Hunter Memorial 
Park. 

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon)

Date of 
Interview 

Shall be qualified electors of the City 6/21/2023 6/26/2023 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement. 

10A1



MUSEUM BOARD
 Chapter 62 - Section 62-26 
 Terms - Three years - expiring first Monday in July 
 Eight Members: Six are electors and appointed by city commission 
   One member is an Alternate 

One is owner of a business and appointed by the city manager 
 
The Museum Board is charged with collecting, arranging, cataloguing and preserving historical material.
The board may locate and erect plaques or markers at historic sites, buildings or properties in the City of
Birmingham with the consent of the owner or owners of any such property and subject to the approval 
of the city commission with respect to properties that, in the opinion of the board, have historic
significance. Further, the board shall have the power to develop, operate and maintain the Allen House
as a museum and to exercise authority, control and management over the Hunter House and John West
Hunter Memorial Park. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Ashleigh Caroline

800 E Lincoln St

(248)613-4056

info@appraiseyourart.com

Alternate Member
12/5/2022 7/5/2023

Barrett Kristy Hull

915 Harmon St

(248)504-1981

kristybarrett1@yahoo.com

Regular Member
4/2/2022 7/5/2023

Erickson Bev

1841 Maryland

(248) 561-4178

beverickson@comcast.net

Regular Member/BHS/Friends
7/26/2021 7/5/2024

Wednesday, March 1, 2023 Page 1 of 2

 
BIRMINGHAM HISTORICAL MUSEUM & PARK, 556 West Maple, Birmingham, MI  48009   

phone: 248.530.1928     fax: 248.530.1685  www.bhamgov.org/museum  
Leslie Pielack, Museum Director: lpielack@ci.birmingham.mi.us 

10A1

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Harris Alexandria

2600 Buckingham

(248) 686-4077

akharrisart@gmail.com

Regular Member/BHS
7/26/2021 7/5/2023

Hughes Patrick J

915 Kennesaw

(248)417-0470

phughes@brickstory.com

City manager Appointee/Business Owner
9/23/2019 7/5/2025

Keefer Judith

505 E. Lincoln #4

(248)249-0996

jlwk2014@gmail.com

Regular Member/BHS
7/11/2016 7/5/2025

Logue Marty

2010 Buckingham

(248) 649-4921

gtfieros@comcast.net

Regular Member/BHS/Friends
9/26/2011 7/5/2023

Motea Alex
Student representative
2/27/2023 12/31/2023

Schaufler Alexandria
Student representative
2/27/2023 12/31/2023

Shell Jay R.

1121 Northlawn

(248) 890-6333

jay.shell@gmail.com

Regular Member/BHS/Friends
8/9/2021 7/5/2024

Wednesday, March 1, 2023 Page 2 of 2

 
BIRMINGHAM HISTORICAL MUSEUM & PARK, 556 West Maple, Birmingham, MI  48009   

phone: 248.530.1928     fax: 248.530.1685  www.bhamgov.org/museum  
Leslie Pielack, Museum Director: lpielack@ci.birmingham.mi.us 

10A1

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, June 5, 2023 the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint to the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board two regular members to serve three-year 
terms to expire July 6, 2026, and one regular member to serve the remainder of a three-year 
term to expire July 6, 2024.   

Members must be chosen from among the citizens of Birmingham and, insofar as possible, 
represent diverse interests, such as persons with family members interred in Greenwood 
Cemetery; owners of burial sites within Greenwood Cemetery intending to be interred in 
Greenwood Cemetery; persons familiar with and interested in the history of Birmingham; 
persons with familiarity and experience in landscape architecture, horticulture, law or 
cemetery or funeral professionals.  

Interested citizens may submit a form available at the City Clerk's Office on or before noon on 
Wednesday, May 31, 2023.  These applications will appear in the public agenda for the regular 
meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and vote on the appointments. 

Committee Duties 
In general, it shall be the duty of the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board to provide 
recommendations to the City Commission on: 

1. Modifications. As to modifications of the rules and regulations governing Greenwood
Cemetery.

2. Capital Improvements.  As to what capital improvements should be made to the
cemetery. Future Demands. As to how to respond to future demands for cemetery
services.

3. Day to Day Administration. The day to day administration of the cemetery shall be
under the direction and control of the City, through the City Manager or his/her designee.

4. Reports. The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board shall make and submit to the City
Commission an annual report of the general activities, operation, and condition of the
Greenwood Cemetery for the preceding 12 months. The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory
Board shall, from time to time, as occasion requires, either in the annual report, or at
any time deemed necessary by the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board, advise the City
Commission in writing on all matters necessary and proper for and pertaining to the
proper operation of Greenwood Cemetery and any of its activities or properties.

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, Article 
IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

10A2



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 
 

Date of 
Interview 

Must be a resident of Birmingham and, insofar as possible, 
represent diverse interests, such as persons with family 
members interred in Greenwood Cemetery; owners of 
burial sites within Greenwood Cemetery intending to be 
interred in Greenwood Cemetery; persons familiar with 
and interested in the history of Birmingham; persons 
with familiarity and experience in landscape architecture, 
horticulture, law or cemetery or funeral professionals. 

5/31/2023 6/5/2023 

10A2



        GREENWOOD CEMETERY         
ADVISORY BOARD

Resolution No. 10-240-14 October 13, 2014. 

The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board shall consist of seven members who shall serve without compensation.
Members must be chosen from among the citizens of Birmingham and, insofar as possible, represent diverse
interests, such as persons with family members interred in Greenwood Cemetery; owners of burial sites within
Greenwood Cemetery intending to be interred in Greenwood Cemetery; persons familiar with and interested in the
history of Birmingham; persons with familiarity and experience in landscape architecture, horticulture, law or
cemetery or funeral professionals. The City Manager or his/her designee shall serve as ex official, non-voting
members of the Board. 

Term: Three years. 

In general, it shall be the duty of the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board to provide recommendations to the City 
Commission on: 

1. Modifications. As to modifications of the rules and regulations governing Greenwood Cemetery.
2. Capital Improvements. As to what capital improvements should be made to the cemetery.

Future Demands. As to how to respond to future demands for cemetery services.
3. Day to Day Administration. The day to day administration of the cemetery shall be under the direction and

control of the City, through the City Manager or his/her designee.
4. Reports. The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board shall make and submit to the City Commission an annual

report of the general activities, operation, and condition of the Greenwood Cemetery for the preceding 12
months. The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board shall, from time to time, as occasion requires, either in the
annual report, or at any time deemed necessary by the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board, advise the City
Commission in writing on all matters necessary and proper for and pertaining to the proper operation of
Greenwood Cemetery and any of its activities or properties.

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Buchanan Linda

1280 Suffield

(248) 646-3297

lgbfeb23@gmail.com

Chair

Birmingham 48009

7/7/202512/14/2015

DeWeese Pam

932 Purdy Street

(248) 642-4256

pamdeweese@comcast.net

Plot Owner

Birmingham 48009

7/6/20238/24/2020

Monday, April 24, 2023 Page 1 of 2

10A2

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Peterson Linda

1532 Melton

(248) 894-9010

lpeterson02@comcast.net

Vice Chair

Birmingham 48009

7/6/202411/24/2014

Schreiner Laura

591 Bird

(248) 593-0335

laschreiner@yahoo.com

owner of burial site in Greenwood; person 
familiar with and interested in the history of 
Birmingham.

Birmingham 48009

7/6/202411/24/2014

Suter Margaret

1795 Yosemite

(248) 644-5925

maasuter@gmail.com

owns a plot, relative buried in Greenwood 
Cemetery

Birmingham 48009

7/7/20255/23/2016

Vacated 4/14/2023 7/6/2024

Vercellone Joseph

572 W. Lincoln

(248) 798-0460

jvercellone@gmail.com

Plot Owner

Birmingham 48009

7/6/20238/10/2020

Monday, April 24, 2023 Page 2 of 2

10A2

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
AD HOC AGING IN PLACE COMMITTEE 

At the regular meeting of Monday, June 26, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends to appoint 5 
regular members to the Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee to serve 18-month terms expiring January 31, 
2025. 

The Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee consists of seven members appointed by the City Commission. A 
majority of the members shall be residents of Birmingham and qualified voters. When available, preferred 
qualifications/areas of professional expertise and experience include: gerontologist, senior health or 
nutrition, adult education, elder law, representative of Birmingham NEXT, and intergenerational specialist. 
Staff from the Managers Office will serve as ex-officio member(s) of the committee.  

The function of the Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee (AIP) is to study current demographic trends, 
evaluate the needs of the City’s aging population, and to prepare a City-wide action plan outlining the 
vision and goals to improve the health, safety and welfare of senior citizens and encourage residents to 
age comfortably in Birmingham. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s Office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk’s Office on or 
before noon on June 21, 2023. These documents will appear in the public agenda for the regular meeting 
at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and may make nominations and voter 
on appointments. 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, Article IX, Ethics 
and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

The majority of members must be Birmingham 
Residents and Electorates.  
Preferred qualifications / areas of professional expertise 
and experience include: gerontologist, senior health or 
nutrition, adult education, elder law, representative of 
Birmingham NEXT, and intergenerational specialist. 

6/21/2023 6/26/2023

10A3



Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee
Resolution # 04-093-23  
 
The Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee consists of seven members appointed by the City
Commission. A majority of the members shall be residents of Birmingham and qualified voters.
When available, preferred qualifications/areas of professional expertise and experience include:
gerontologist, senior health or nutrition, adult education, elder law, representative of Birmingham
NEXT, and intergenerational specialist. Staff from the Managers Office will serve as ex-officio
member(s) of the committee.  
 
The function of the Ad Hoc Aging in Place Committee (AIP) is to study current demographic
trends, evaluate the needs of the City’s aging population, and to prepare a City-wide action plan
outlining the vision and goals to improve the health, safety and welfare of senior citizens and
encourage residents to age comfortably in Birmingham. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Ex-Officio From 
Manager's Office

1/31/2025

Representative 
from Baldwin 
Library

1/31/2025

Representative 
of Birmingham 
Museum

1/31/2025

Thursday, April 27, 2023 Page 1 of 2

10A3



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Vacant
Representative of NEXT Senior 
Services

1/31/2025

Vacant
Intergenerational Connection

1/31/2025

Vacant
Gerontologist / Aging Specialist

1/31/2025

Vacant
Elder Law / Estate Planning

1/31/2025

Vacant
Senior Health/ Nutrition

1/31/2025

Thursday, April 27, 2023 Page 2 of 2

10A3

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
BOARD OF ETHICS 

At the regular meeting of Monday, June 26, 2023 the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint one regular member to the Board of Ethics to serve a three-year term to expire June 
30, 2026.  

Board members are to serve as an advisory body for the purposes of interpreting the Code of 
Ethics. The board consists of three regular members and two alternates who serve without 
compensation.  The members shall be residents and have legal, administrative or other 
desirable qualifications. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, June 21, 2023.  These documents will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointment.  

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Members shall be residents and have legal, 
administrative or other desirable qualifications.  

6/21/2023 6/28/2023 

10A4

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


BOARD OF ETHICS
Ordinance 1805 Birmingham Code of Ordinances Sec. 2-320 through 2-326
Ordinance 1805, Ordinance 2378
The board shall serve as an advisory body for purposes of interpreting the Code of Ethics.  The 
board consists of three regular members and two alternate members who serve without 
compensation.  The members shall be residents and have legal, administrative, or other 
desirable qualifications. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Fierro-Share Sophie

1040 Gordon Lane

(248) 642-7340

Sfierro-share1@comcast.net

7/14/2003 6/30/2023

Robb James

1533 Pleasant Court

(517)712-3469

jamesdrobb55@gmail.com

8/11/2003 6/30/2025

Schrot John

1878 Fairway

(248) 646-6513

jschrot@berrymoorman.com

7/14/2003 6/30/2024

Vacant
Alternate Member

6/30/2026

Vacant
Alternate Member

6/30/2026

Wednesday, April 19, 2023 Page 1 of 1

10A4

cwoods
Rectangle



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
PUBLIC ARTS BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, June 26, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint to the Public Arts Board one regular member to serve the remainder a three-year 
term to expire January 28, 2025, and one alternate member to serve a three-year term to 
expire January 28, 2025. 

In so far as possible, the members shall represent a major cultural institution, a registered 
architect of the State of Michigan, an artist, an art historian, and an art consultant.  Members 
may also be members of the Historic District Commission, Design Review Board, the Parks 
and Recreation Board, or the Planning Board.  At least four members of the Board shall be 
residents of the City of Birmingham.   

The objectives of the Public Arts Board are to enrich the City's civic and cultural heritage; to 
promote a rich, diverse, and stimulating cultural environment in order to enrich the lives of 
the City's residents, business owners, employees, and all visitors; and to establish an 
environment where differing points of view are fostered, expected, and celebrated by 
providing the opportunity for such expression through the display of public art. 

Interested citizens may apply for this position by submitting an application available from the 
City Clerk's office.  Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's office on or before noon 
on Wednesday, January 19, 2023.  These applications will appear in the public agenda for the 
regular meeting at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and may make 
nominations and vote on the appointments.  

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Members shall, in so far as possible, represent a 
major cultural institution, a registered architect of 
the State of Michigan, an artist, an art historian, 
and an art consultant.  Members may also be 
members of the Historic District Commission, 
Design Review Board, the Parks and Recreation 
Board, or the Planning Board.   

At least four members of the Board shall be 
residents of the City of Birmingham.   

6/21/2023 6/26/2023 

10A5



PUBLIC ARTS BOARD
City Code - Chapter 78, Article V 
Terms - 3 years 
7 regular members - At least 4 members shall be residents of the City of Birmingham.  The remaining
members may or may not be residents of Birmingham.  In so far as possible, the members shall
represent a major cultural institution, a registered architect of the State of Michigan, an artist, an art
historian, and an art consultant.  Members may also be members of the Historic District Commission,
Design Review Board, the Parks and Recreation Board, or the Planning Board. 
2 alternate members - must meet one of the already established criteria for regular members  
Objectives -  
 to enrich the City's civic and cultural heritage;  
 to promote a rich, diverse, and stimulating cultural environment in order to enrich the lives of the

City's residents, business owners, employees, and all visitors;  
 to establish an environment where differing points of view are fostered, expected, and celebrated

by providing the opportunity for such expression through the display of public art. 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Andi Harris

1819 Washington Blvd

(248)765-3202

andi.celeste.harris@gmail.com

Alternate Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20263/27/2023

DeSanto Luca
Student representative

12/31/20232/27/2023

Eddleston Jason

892 Purdy

(248) 703-3808

jason28e@yahoo.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/202512/5/2016

Graham Pam

884 Knox

(248) 408-6277

pamcracker@gmail.com

Regular member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20262/27/2023

Monday, April 24, 2023 Page 1 of 2

10A5



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Heller Barbara

176 Linden

(248) 540-1310
(313) 833-7834

bheller@dia.org

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20241/28/2002

McLean Andrew
Student representative

12/31/20232/27/2023

Neville Monica

1516 E. Melton

(248) 321-1776

monica.neville1@gmail.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20242/27/2017

Ritchie Anne

1455 South Eton

(248) 635-1765

anneritchie7@yahoo.com

Resident Member

Birmingham 48009

1/28/20259/12/2016

Vacant Vacated 1/2020
Alternate Member

1/28/2025

Vacated 4/21/2023
Regular Member

1/28/2025

VanGelderen Annie

3795 Loch Bend

(248) 408-6132

annievangelderen@bbartcenter.org

Artist/Major Cultural Institution

Commerce Twp. 48382

1/28/20261/13/2020

Monday, April 24, 2023 Page 2 of 2

10A5

cwoods
Rectangle

cwoods
Rectangle



BIRMINGHAM AREA CABLE BOARD 
ANNUAL REPORT 

FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 

  Submitted By: 

           Cathy K. White 

           Executive Director 

           December, 2022 

10C1



 

                                                                                                                               

 

 

 

CABLE BOARD MEMBERS 
As of December 31, 2022 

 

 

 

BIRMINGHAM     BINGHAM FARMS                                         

Michael Fenberg-Treasurer                                             D.E. Hagaman 

David Eick- Vice Chair & Personnel Committee Chair 

George Abraham- Cable Action Committee Chair 

Donovan Shand 

Jim Cleary 

Robert Whittington 

 

FRANKLIN 

Rick David 

BEVERLY HILLS 

Christopher Dobies 

Gilbert Gugni- Chairman 

Shane Henry 

Ray Kamoo- Secretary & PEG Committee Chair 

 

 

 

10C1



Introduction 

Each year upon the completion of the BACB annual audit, prepared by Plante & Moran, PLLC, we 
submit an update to our four community members: Birmingham, Beverly Hills, Franklin and Bingham 
Farms. The purpose of this annual report is to keep these communities apprised of the work of the BACB 
during the previous calendar year.   

As Chairman of the BACB I am pleased to report that during the previous year we have continued to 
perform our mandated duties with great pride and distinction. Franchise fees have been timely paid to the 
community members in the form of administrative grants. Grant requests have been received and moved 
upon in a speedy and effective process. All complaints received from residents regarding service from the 
three providers (Comcast, AT&T and WOW) were resolved expeditiously, primarily due to the efforts of 
the BACB’s Executive Director, Cathy White. 

By the end of this reporting period, all twelve positions of the BACB were filled for the first time since 
prior to the start of the pandemic. These twelve individuals are highly motivated to continue the duties 
and responsibilities of the BACB in a professional manner. I am very confident that this will occur.  

Gil Gugni                                                                                                                                                                               
Chairman, Birmingham Area Cable Board 

 

 BCTV Contract 

The contract with BCTV for public and governmental programming, which originally expired on June 30, 
2019, has been extended until December 31, 2026.  Carrie LeZott currently serves as Director of Cable 
and Community Relations and Greg Black currently serves as manager. The cost for BACB production 
and associated services in FY 2021-22 was $262,350.00. BCTV has been taping three additional 
Birmingham public meetings: the Board of Zoning Appeals, the Advisory Parking Committee and the 
Multi-Modal Transportation Board. In addition, we utilize PEG funds for BCTV to tape local high school 
sports events.  

Board Committees 

The Board has three standing committees: PEG (Public Educational Governmental), CAC (Cable Action) 
and Personnel committees. 

 

PEG Committee 

The PEG Committee is charged with oversight and development of programming on the public access 
and governmental channels as well as reviewing proposed grants for PEG infrastructure. Ray Kamoo is 
the Chairman; membership is open to any Board member, and representatives of BCTV and the 
Birmingham Public Schools participate on a regular basis. Live broadcast, as well as rebroadcast, of local 
governmental meetings continues on the Governmental channel. The Public channel provides 
opportunities for local citizens to produce their own programs, as well as to broadcast/rebroadcast 
parades, lectures, concerts and other events of community interest. The rebroadcast of Groves versus 
Seaholm athletic contests, both boys and girls, is now in its ninth year and is an especially popular 
undertaking. Comprising its contribution to the “E” in PEG, the Cable Board has made significant 
contributions to help fund the broadcast infrastructure for the Birmingham Public Schools and, 
specifically, the Birmingham Public School Education and Administration Center. We are actively 

10C1



seeking new PEG grant requests to include community equipment upgrades and enhancements to the 
school facilities within our footprint. 

CAC Committee 

The Cable Action Committee was formed to follow up on Board initiatives and cable provider 
commitments at the monthly meetings and drive special projects. Subscriber complaints are reviewed, and 
legal/legislative issues and new initiatives are discussed. George Abraham is the Chairman. Discussions 
involved PEG and municipal support services grants, financial matters, cable TV industry developments, 
review and improvement of the new BACB website, FCC rule-making proceedings and long- term 
planning. We are continuing to expand our outreach to assist more members of the community in 
resolving customer service issues. 

Personnel Committee 

The Personnel Committee was formed to address personnel issues, fill Board vacancies and complete 
performance evaluations of the Executive Director. David Eick is the Chairman. The Personnel 
Committee met in May of 2022 to conduct the annual review of the Executive Director’s job 
performance.   

Audit 

Plante & Moran, PLLC conducted the annual audit of Board financial operations. The audit included a 
review of the financial activities performed by Beverly Hills, which acts as the BACB fiduciary agent. 
The audit also reviewed activity on the Michigan United Credit Union (designated funds to purchase 
capital equipment for PEG-related activities) and our Multi Bank Securities account (institutional 
investments). The Independent Auditor’s Report indicated that the BACB’s financial statements received 
an unmodified audit opinion for 2021-2022, which is the highest level given.  

Grants 

The Board paid a total of $3,158.00 in grants during the fiscal year. This amount includes a municipal 
support services grant to the Franklin Bingham Fire Department in the amount of $2,699. A PEG grant 
was awarded to the Village of Beverly Hills for work done by a contractor (Advanced Lighting & Sound) 
to enable hybrid meetings to be conducted as a result of the global pandemic.  

In addition, Administrative Grants from franchise fees, per our Interlocal Agreement, were also returned 
proportionally to each BACB community.  

 

 

Complaints 

Written complaints to the BACB decreased in FY 2021-22. There were approximately 28 formal 
complaints, compared to 40 complaints the previous year. Our Executive Director accepts all calls and 
website complaints including informal actions wherein residents decline to record formal action. 
Complaints involved pricing/billing, poor service, service interruptions, long wait times on Comcast 1-
800 numbers, calls being shifted overseas, missed appointments (without compensation) and 
downed/unburied wires in the rights-of-way. Subscribers are still encouraged to call their provider first to 
try to resolve disputes. The BACB continues to accept and process complaints from our residents. We 

10C1



have streamlined the escalation process. WOW!, Comcast and AT&T have escalation teams to promptly 
deal with residents’ problems and are often resolved within 24 hours. 

The Michigan Public Service Commission also addresses complaints against cable providers (as well as 
disputes between local units of government and cable providers). The MPSC process is rather difficult 
and time-consuming for residents; the BACB, however, continues to address all local complaints 
immediately. 

 

 Fiscal Year Budget 

The Board is expected to receive $688,005.00 in franchise and PEG fees this upcoming fiscal year. This 
includes $248,005.00 in franchise fees and $440,000.00 in PEG fees. PEG fees are designated funds and 
may only be used for purchase and maintenance of capital equipment.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

10C1



Birmingham Area Cable Board

Proposed Budget

Year Ended June 30, 2023

Current Budget Proposed Budget

Year Ended June 30, 2022 Year Ended June 30, 2023

Franchise Fee Income:

Beverly Hills Franchise Fee 43,320   60,000  

Bingham Farms Franchise Fee 7,600   12,626  

Birmingham Franchise Fee 157,225  158,374 

Franklin Franchise Fee 17,005   17,005  

Total Franchise Fee Income 225,150  248,005 

Board Expenses:

Accounting Expenses 2,400   2,400  

Administrative Grants 96,390   120,145 

Advertising ‐ Community Outreach 500 500

Bank Service Charges 60  60 

Conferences 900 900

Contract labor 1,500   1,000  

Executive Director 40,000   40,000  

HR Services 900 1,100  

Insurance 3,000   3,000  

Mileage 800 700

Memberships 1,500   1,500  

Office Expense 4,500   4,500  

Telephone 1,100   1,100  

Website 3,500   3,500  

Auditing 9,500   12,000  

Legal Fees 28,000   25,000  

Technical Support 600 600

Total Board Expenses 195,150  218,005 

Municipal Support Services 30,000   30,000  

Total Franchise Fee Expenses 225,150  248,005 

Net Franchise Fee Income 0 0

PEG Revenue:

Total PEG Revenue 396,125  440,000 

Other Income

Interest Income 25  15 

Other Income 1,000   100

MBS Gains  6,100   900

Total PEG Income 403,250  441,015 

PEG Operations

Cable Contractor 245,800  308,300 

Communications Expense 2,200   5,000  

Equipment Purchases 20,000   3,000  

Grants 84,800   78,000  

Production Truck 10,000   198,015 

Production Crew Uniforms 450 1,000  

Program Expense 40,000   40,000  

Total PEG Operations 403,250  633,315 

Net PEG Income 0 (192,300)

Anticipated drawdown from Fund Equity 192,300 

10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



10C1



MEMORANDUM 
Finance Department 

DATE: April 20, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Finance Director/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: 3nd Quarter Investment Report 

Public Act 213 of 2007 requires investment reporting on the City’s general investments to be 
provided to the City Commission on a quarterly basis.  This information is also required to be 
provided annually, which the City has and will continue to include within the audited financial 
statements. 

General investments of the City are governed by State law and the City’s General Investment 
Policy which is approved by the City Commission.  The services of an outside investment advisor 
are utilized to assist the Treasurer in determining which types of investments are most appropriate 
and permitted under the investment policy, maximize the return on the City’s investments within 
investment policy constraints and provide for cash flow needs.  

The two primary objectives for investment of City funds are the preservation of principal and 
liquidity to protect against losses and provide sufficient funds to enable the City to meet all 
operating requirements that might be reasonably anticipated. Investment activities include all City 
funds except the retirement and retiree health-care funds as follows: 

 General Fund
 Permanent Funds

 Special Revenue Funds
 Capital Projects Fund
 Enterprise Funds
 Debt Service Funds
 Component Unit Funds
 Internal Service Funds

Overall, the City has $102.4 million invested in various securities according to its general 
investment policy as of March 31, 2023. 

10E1



2 

The City has two pooled funds (CLASS Pool and J-Fund), which are used to meet payroll, 
contractor and other accounts payable needs.  As indicated on the attached schedule, there is 
approximately $7.3 million invested in pooled funds at the end of quarter.  A maximum of 50% 
of the portfolio may be invested in pooled funds that meet state guidelines.  The amount currently 
invested in pooled funds is 7%.    

The City also holds approximately $51.9 million, or 51%, of its investments in treasury notes and 
bills, which are obligations of the United States. The maximum amount of investments that may 
be held in government securities is 100%. 

Investments in federal agencies total approximately $43.3 million, or 42%, of the City’s 
investments.  The maximum amount of the portfolio that may be invested in federal agencies is 
75%. 

The Investment Policy requires that the average maturity of the portfolio may not exceed two 
and one-half years.  The current average maturity of the portfolio is 1.57 years.  

10E1



                                                                     CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

                                               GENERAL INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

3/31/2023

MATURITY CURRENT YEARLY % OF

YEAR DATE DESCRIPTION % YIELD * ISSUER PAR VALUE COST MARKET VALUE TOTAL TOTAL

2023 3/31/2023 CLASS POOL 4.852% CITY MICHIGAN CLASS 2,222,012.40 2,222,012.40 2,222,012.40

3/31/2023 J FUND 4.466% CITY COMERICA BANK 5,057,278.52 5,057,278.52 5,057,278.52

4/15/2023 TR NOTE 0.207% INSIGHT U.S. 3,000,000.00 3,001,992.34 2,995,680.00

5/15/2023 TR NOTE 1.578% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,509,028.46 1,494,750.00

5/17/2023 AGENCY 0.360% INSIGHT FNMA 1,000,000.00 999,800.00 952,060.00

6/16/2023 AGENCY 0.500% INSIGHT FNMA 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 937,120.00

6/19/2023 AGENCY 1.851% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,550,467.50 1,493,325.00

6/26/2023 AGENCY 0.233% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,705.00 1,484,910.00

6/30/2023 AGENCY 0.390% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,499,025.00 1,401,135.00

8/15/2023 TR NOTE 4.130% INSIGHT U.S. 3,000,000.00 2,957,822.55 2,973,990.00

9/8/2023 AGENCY 1.466% INSIGHT FHLB 2,000,000.00 2,070,800.00 1,979,860.00

9/12/2023 AGENCY 1.591% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,573,410.00 1,486,455.00

10/31/2023 TR NOTE 1.423% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,587,954.24 1,484,415.00

10/31/2023 TR NOTE 0.307% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,054,928.58 1,964,680.00

11/2/2023 AGENCY 0.320% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,459,785.00

11/15/2023 TR NOTE 1.572% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,570,258.93 1,481,250.00

11/15/2023 TR NOTE 0.320% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 1,997,037.95 1,945,160.00

11/27/2023 AGENCY 0.202% INSIGHT FNMA 500,000.00 500,690.00 485,530.00

33,299,395.92 32.50%

2024 1/19/2024 AGENCY 0.241% INSIGHT FFCB 1,000,000.00 999,670.00 964,190.00

2/5/2024 AGENCY 1.572% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,558,201.50 1,471,230.00

2/29/2024 TR NOTE 1.637% INSIGHT U.S. 1,750,000.00 1,785,621.10 1,709,732.50

3/8/2024 AGENCY 4.396% INSIGHT FHLB 2,900,000.00 2,868,825.00 2,870,420.00

4/15/2024 TR NOTE 0.434% INSIGHT U.S. 3,000,000.00 2,995,546.88 2,871,570.00

5/31/2024 TR NOTE 0.462% INSIGHT U.S. 1,000,000.00 1,040,823.66 971,720.00

6/14/2024 AGENCY 0.377% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,556,520.00 1,448,715.00

6/14/2024 AGENCY 4.343% INSIGHT FHLB 2,500,000.00 2,481,025.00 2,478,400.00

7/2/2024 AGENCY 1.719% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,502,037.00 1,446,735.00

8/19/2024 AGENCY 0.450% INSIGHT FNMA 2,000,000.00 1,999,500.00 1,889,780.00

9/13/2024 AGENCY 1.729% INSIGHT FHLB 1,750,000.00 1,843,345.00 1,715,665.00

9/30/2024 TR NOTE 0.569% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,541,020.65 1,438,650.00

10/31/2024 TR NOTE 0.465% INSIGHT U.S. 1,000,000.00 1,032,695.31 948,043.80

10/31/2024 TR NOTE 0.557% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,057,741.08 1,924,816.20

10/31/2024 TR NOTE 2.476% INSIGHT U.S. 1,000,000.00 994,378.35 968,670.00

11/15/2024 TR NOTE 0.560% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,578,637.84 1,452,360.00

26,570,697.50 25.94%

2025 1/7/2025 AGENCY 0.362% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,580,434.50 1,433,250.00

1/28/2025 AGENCY 0.550% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,400,805.00

2/12/2025 AGENCY 0.344% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,575,136.50 1,427,160.00

2/26/2025 AGENCY 0.680% INSIGHT FHLB 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 933,000.00

2/28/2025 TR NOTE 0.508% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,533,925.38 1,417,620.00

3/28/2025 AGENCY 1.250% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,370,835.00 1,395,525.00

3/28/2025 AGENCY 0.450% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,391,280.00

3/31/2025 TR NOTE 0.669% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,491,215.96 1,398,405.00

6/30/2025 AGENCY 0.750% INSIGHT FHLB 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 1,855,180.00

7/15/2025 TR NOTE 4.233% INSIGHT U.S. 3,000,000.00 2,903,095.99 2,933,790.00

8/15/2025 TR NOTE 3.037% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 1,937,506.70 1,911,800.00

9/15/2025 TR NOTE 4.187% INSIGHT U.S. 3,000,000.00 2,942,939.74 2,969,310.00

10/15/2025 TR NOTE 4.457% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,491,386.71 1,510,605.00

10/31/2025 TR NOTE 3.167% INSIGHT U.S. 2,500,000.00 2,487,020.09 2,443,350.00

11/15/2025 TR NOTE 3.025% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 1,951,959.82 1,917,120.00

26,338,200.00 25.71%

2026 2/25/2026 AGENCY 3.577% INSIGHT FFCB 1,500,000.00 1,487,659.50 1,469,865.00

3/31/2026 TR NOTE 4.144% INSIGHT U.S. 3,000,000.00 2,816,142.86 2,866,980.00

6/16/2026 AGENCY 4.203% INSIGHT FFCB 3,000,000.00 2,928,240.00 2,953,470.00

7/27/2026 AGENCY 4.412% INSIGHT FFCB 1,500,000.00 1,504,590.00 1,522,320.00

8,812,635.00 8.60%

2027 3/31/2027 TR NOTE 4.071% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,406,430.81 1,431,330.00

6/30/2027 TR NOTE 3.701% INSIGHT U.S. 3,000,000.00 2,943,867.19 2,945,400.00

9/30/2027 TR NOTE 4.005% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,507,851.56 1,526,715.00

12/1/2027 AGENCY 3.803% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,520,295.00 1,522,590.00

7,426,035.00 7.25%

2.209% 105,179,290.92 105,369,333.15 102,446,963.42 102,446,963.42 100.00%

AVERAGE MATURITY (YEARS): 1.57

POOLS $7,279,290.92 7.11%

TR NOTES $51,897,912.50 50.66%

AGENCIES $43,269,760.00 42.24%

   TOTAL $102,446,963.42 100.00%

COMPARATIVE RETURNS

City Portfolio 1-Yr TR 2-Yr TR

Current Month 2.21% 3.73% 3.70% * INSIGHT: $95,167,672.50 92.89%

Previous Month 2.33% 3.45% 3.50% *ASSIGNED TO CITY: $7,279,290.92 7.11%

1 Year Ago 0.82% 0.32% 0.59% $102,446,963.42 100.00%

32.50%

25.94% 25.71%

8.60% 7.25%

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15

0.20

0.25

0.30

0.35

2023                       2024                      2025                        2026                        2027            

TOTAL INVESTMENTS PER YEAR

7.11%

50.66%

42.24%

ASSET MIX

POOLS

TR NOTES

AGENCIES

copies:

Treasury

Finance Director/Treasurer

Finance

Audit

Deputy Treasurer

Cutwater Asset Management 10E1



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Finance Department 

DATE:  April 28, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: Third Quarter Financial Reports  

Background 
Chapter 7, section 3(b) of the City charter requires the Director of Finance to report on the 
condition of the City quarterly.  Quarterly reports are prepared for the first 3 quarters of the year 
with the annual audit serving as the 4th quarter report.  Only the following funds are reported 
quarterly because by State law they require a budget:  General Fund, Greenwood Cemetery 
Perpetual Care Fund, Major and Local Street Funds, Solid Waste Fund, Community Development 
Block Grant Fund, Law and Drug Enforcement Fund, Michigan Indigent Defense Commission 
Fund, Opioid Settlement Fund, Baldwin Public Library Fund, Principal Shopping District Fund, 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund, Triangle District Corridor Improvement Authority 
Fund, and the Debt Service Fund.   

Overview 
Attached is the third quarter 2022-2023 fiscal year financial reports.  The reports compare budget 
to actual for the current fiscal year and the prior fiscal year for the same quarter.  The previous 
year’s budget and actual have been restated using the required state chart of account groupings. 
This allows meaningful comparisons between fiscal years as well as percentage of budget 
received/spent for the year.  The budget categories used for each fund are the same ones 
approved by the Commission when they adopted the 2022-2023 budget.  Budget discussions that 
follow will focus on each fund individually. 

At this point, 75% of the fiscal year has lapsed. 

General Fund 
Revenues are approximately $5.6M higher than the previous year as a result of an increase in tax 
revenue of approximately $2.1M, an increase in licenses and permits of $2.1M, and an increase 
in interest and rent of $.4M, an increase in charges for services of $.3M, and an increase in special 
assessments of $.3M.  Taxes increased as a result of an increase in taxable value.  Licenses and 

10E2



2 

 
 

Permits increased as a result of an increase in construction activity, especially some large scale 
projects.  Interest and Rent increased as a result of higher interest rates.  Charges for services 
has increased as a result of higher ice arena revenues.  Special assessments increased as a result 
of sidewalk assessments from downtown projects. 
 
State and Local grant funds and Fines and Forfeitures are below expected budget due to timing 
of when the revenues are received.  Special Assessments are at 39% due to timing of when these 
are billed.  Licenses and Permits are at 144% due to large construction projects this fiscal year.  
Fines and Forfeitures are at 54% due to a timing difference in receiving court revenues.  Federal 
grants are at 778% due to FEMA grant activity. 
 
Total current year-to-date expenditures for the General Fund are higher than the prior year by 
approximately $3.4M.  The increase is due to sidewalk improvements made on S. Old Woodward.  
Judicial is at 103% of budget as a result of a higher allocation of court expenditures to the City.  
This budgetary center will need to be adjusted during the 4th quarter budget amendment.  All 
other functional expenditures are comparable to the previous year both in dollar amount and 
percentage of budget spent. 
 
Greenwood Cemetery Fund 
Cemetery perpetual care revenues are approximately $20,000 higher than the previous year 
mostly due to higher plot sales than the previous year.  No expenditures have been budgeted for 
this fiscal year. 
   
Major Street Fund 
Total revenues are approximately $1,800,000 less than the prior year as a result of lower 
budgeted transfers from the General Fund.  State grant revenue is at 61% as a result of February 
and March road funding being received until after the quarter ended.   
 
Overall expenditures are $1,200,000 higher than the previous year as a result of higher road 
construction expenditures through the end of the quarter compared to the prior year.       
 
Local Street Fund 
Total revenues for the year are approximately $200,000 higher than the prior fiscal year mostly 
due to higher scheduled transfers from the General Fund.  We anticipate 2 large road special 
assessments which will be billed after those roads have been cape sealed (likely in the spring).  
As with the Major Street fund, state grants are generally received 2 months after the close of the 
month which explains the low budget to actual variance.     
 
Total expenditures are approximately the same as the prior year.  Two large local street projects 
will start in the 4th quarter.   
  
Solid Waste Fund 
Revenues are approximately $82,000 higher than the previous year as a result of higher property 
tax revenue and interest income.  
 
Expenditures are approximately the same as the prior fiscal year.   
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund 

10E2



3 

 
 

Revenues are approximately $330,000 more than the prior year.  This is the result of higher 
property tax revenue as a result of more property value subject to tax capture. 
 
The increase in expenditures are due to increased reimbursements to developers as a result of 
higher tax revenue capture.   Expenditures are at 73% of budget due to the winter tax distribution 
to the developers not occurring until after the quarter end. 
  
Principal Shopping District 
Revenues are up slightly from the prior year due to an increase in special assessment revenue.  
The special assessment rate was increased for this fiscal year.  Special assessments were billed 
in January.   
 
Expenditures for the year are slightly down from the prior year due to vacancy of the department 
head position for a portion of the fiscal year. 
 
Community Development Block Grant Fund 
Revenues and expenditures are approximately in line with the previous fiscal year.  The City 
Commission just approved the grant contract with NEXT for this program year, so expenditures 
should increase in the 4th quarter.    
 
Triangle District Corridor Improvement Authority 
The City is attempting to re-engage with the County regarding tax capture for the district.  To-
date no property taxes have been captured and no funds spent on this activity. 
 
Michigan Indigent Defense Fund 
This fund records the revenues and expenditures of providing legal defense to indigent 
defendants at the 48th District Court.  The legal costs are funded mainly through a grant from the 
State of Michigan.  The City of Birmingham assumed control of this fund from the 48th District 
Court on January 1, 2022, so there is only activity from January to March in the previous fiscal 
year.   
 
Baldwin Library 
Revenue has increased approximately $180,000.  This is primarily the result of an increase in 
property tax revenue. 
 
Expenditures are approximately $400,000 more than the prior fiscal year primarily due to building 
design services for the next phase of building improvements, and increase in online database 
services, and personnel costs.    
 
Law and Drug Enforcement Fund 
Revenues are approximately the same as the prior year.  Revenues are the result of forfeited 
property proceeds from prosecutions of drug cases. 
  
Debt Service Fund 
Budgeted revenues and expenditures are based on scheduled debt service payments.  
Expenditures are at 100% spent for the year as a result of making all of the debt payments for 
the fiscal year.   

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

TAXES 30,327,140          30,350,341        100% 28,293,010          28,283,081        100%

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 1,265,360            498,161              39% 575,420                154,315              27%

LICENSES AND PERMITS 2,678,930            3,866,953           144% 2,708,260            1,736,588          64%

FEDERAL GRANTS 51,500                  400,556              778% 941,900                286,843              30%

STATE GRANTS 2,446,470            1,473,344           60% 2,664,910            1,299,552          49%

LOCAL CONTRIBUTIONS 90,240                  45,148                50% 286,300                45,127                16%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 3,159,460            2,560,877           81% 3,106,030            2,276,737          73%

FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,372,250            741,950              54% 1,085,250            671,708              62%

INTEREST AND RENT 417,320                622,934              149% (601,940)              240,234              -40%

OTHER REVENUE 51,650                  83,406                161% 51,150                  86,872                170%

TRANSFERS IN 100,000                75,000                75% 100,000                75,000                75%

TOTAL REVENUES 41,960,320          40,718,670        97% 39,210,290          35,156,057        90%

EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 5,657,570            3,639,302           64% 6,093,911            3,721,994          61%

JUDICIAL 1,243,770            1,282,461           103% 1,357,820            1,018,316          75%

PUBLIC SAFETY 18,779,602          13,350,872        71% 18,321,399          12,804,182        70%

PUBLIC WORKS 10,979,849          6,132,704           56% 4,739,620            2,095,493          44%

HEALTH AND WELFARE 179,040                128,158              72% -                         -                       0%

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 764,854                382,950              50% 751,801                413,444              55%

RECREATION AND CULTURE 3,226,608            1,931,820           60% 2,819,171            1,658,847          59%

TRANSFERS OUT 3,835,968            2,898,468           76% 6,190,000            4,642,500          75%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 44,667,261          29,746,735        67% 40,273,722          26,354,776        65%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE (2,706,941)           10,971,935        (1,063,432)           8,801,281          

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

GENERAL FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



2022-2023 2021-2022

AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 60,000 48,900 82% 60,000                31,846                  53%

INTEREST AND RENT 22,500                  21,987                  98% 24,500                18,577                  76%

  TOTAL REVENUES 82,500                  70,887                  86% 84,500                50,423                  60%

EXPENDITURES:

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC SERVICES -                         -                         0% -                       -                         0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES -                         -                         -                       -                         

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

GREENWOOD CEMETERY FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 31,900 -                       0% -                        450                     

STATE GRANTS 1,786,350 1,085,311 61% 1,794,280 1,034,228 58%

INTEREST AND RENT 38,590 75,815 196% (160,420) 27,039 -17%

OTHER REVENUE -                        27,129                0% -                        1,245                  0%

TRANSFERS IN 1,500,000            1,125,000          75% 4,100,000            3,075,000          75%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,356,840            2,313,255          69% 5,733,860            4,137,961          72%

EXPENDITURES:

PUBLIC WORKS:

ADMINISTRATIVE 19,640 15,433 79% 20,570                  15,852                77%

TRAFFIC CONTROLS & ENGINEERING 993,067 187,157 19% 579,755               176,359             30%

CONSTRUCTION OF ROADS & BRIDGES 4,098,064            2,462,875          60% 4,834,022            1,139,934          24%

MAINTENANCE OF ROADS & BRIDGES 447,520 174,429 39% 595,840               320,140             54%

STREET CLEANING 237,990 130,898 55% 236,770               138,436             58%

STREET TREES 456,420 281,811 62% 352,680               240,641             68%

SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL 274,550               90,648                33% 216,770               100,368             46%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,527,251            3,343,252          51% 6,836,407            2,131,730          31%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE (3,170,411)           (1,029,997)         (1,102,547)           2,006,232          

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

MAJOR STREETS

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 521,730 92,339                18% 174,730 131,594             75%

STATE GRANTS 729,630 436,288 60% 683,860 417,724 61%

INTEREST AND RENT 28,950 41,351 143% (119,400) 16,877 -14%

OTHER REVENUE 5,000                    18,398                368% 5,000 12,511 250%

TRANSFERS IN 2,250,000            1,687,500          75% 1,950,000            1,462,500          75%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,535,310            2,275,876          64% 2,694,190            2,041,207          76%

EXPENDITURES:

PUBLIC WORKS:

ADMINISTRATIVE 27,680 21,375 77% 28,960                  22,167                77%

TRAFFIC CONTROLS & ENGINEERING 66,100 40,631 61% 68,700                  49,732                72%

CONSTRUCTION OF ROADS & BRIDGES 1,626,892 461,324 28% 1,989,241            586,415             29%

MAINTENANCE OF ROADS & BRIDGES 1,073,210 335,976 31% 589,333               289,566             49%

STREET CLEANING 258,350 110,555 43% 255,550               141,988             56%

STREET TREES 946,370 666,731 70% 739,630               572,193             77%

SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL 175,490               89,177                51% 173,780               80,676                46%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 4,174,092            1,725,769          41% 3,845,194            1,742,737          45%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE (638,782)              550,107              (1,151,004)           298,470             

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

LOCAL STREETS

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

TAXES 2,245,000 2,248,764 100% 2,175,000            2,179,167          100%

STATE GRANTS 3,990 4,180 0% 3,990                    4,063                  0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 17,100 11,770 69% 17,100                  13,062                76%

INTEREST AND RENT 15,440 24,072 156% (40,000)                 8,744                  -22%

OTHER REVENUE -                         208                      0% -                         1,500                  0%

TOTAL REVENUES 2,281,530            2,288,994           100% 2,156,090            2,206,537          102%

EXPENDITURES:

PUBLIC WORKS 2,274,210            1,645,626           72% 2,119,200            1,563,122          74%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE 7,320                    643,368              36,890                  643,415              

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

SOLID WASTE

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 1,101,370            1,063,654           97% 1,054,970            959,974              91%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 25,000 -                       0% 25,000                  -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 5,310                    10,723 202% (19,300)                 3,615                  -19%

OTHER REVENUE 160,000                185,426              116% 100,000                163,896              164%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,291,680            1,259,803           98% 1,160,670            1,127,485          97%

EXPENDITURES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 1,464,815            757,058              52% 1,235,230            901,532              73%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE (173,135)              502,745              (74,560)                 225,954              

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

TAXES 627,240 691,568 110% 428,000                369,787              86%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES -                         -                       0% -                         -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 770 2,034                   264% (3,000)                   643                      -21%

OTHER REVENUE 20,000                  5,394                   27% 20,000                  351                      2%

TRANSFERS IN -                         -                       0% -                         -                       0%

TOTAL REVENUES 648,010                698,996              108% 445,000                370,781              83%

EXPENDITURES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 647,240                471,787              73% 448,000                301,147              67%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE 770                        227,208              (3,000)                   69,634                

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

PROPERTY TAXES -                         -                       0% -                         -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 190                        254                      134% 470                        98                        21%

TOTAL REVENUES 190                        254                      134% 470                        98                        21%

EXPENDITURES

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT -                         -                       0% -                         -                       0%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE 190                        254                      470                        98                        

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

TRIANGLE DISTRICT CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

STATE GRANTS 493,960                207,016              42% 515,257                167,159              32%

LOCAL CONTRIBUTIONS 17,600 -                       0% 17,293                  -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 480                        3,037 633% -                         515                      #DIV/0!

TOTAL REVENUES 512,040                210,053              41% 532,550                167,674              31%

EXPENDITURES

HEALTH AND WELFARE 514,900                237,788              46% 532,550                59,860                11%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE (2,860)                   (27,736)               -                         107,814              

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

MICHIGAN INDIGENT DEFENSE FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

FINES & FORFEITURES 25,000                  42,410                170% 25,000                  37,844                151%

INTEREST AND RENT 580                        2,487                   429% 2,000                    703                      35%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                       0% -                         3,851                  0%

TOTAL REVENUES 25,580                  44,897                176% 27,000                  42,398                157%

EXPENDITURES:

PUBLIC SAFETY 5,430                    3,635                   67% 119,590                -                       0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                         -                       0% -                         -                       0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,430                    3,635                   67% 119,590                -                       0%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE 20,150                  41,262                (92,590)                 42,398                

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

LAW & DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

TAXES 3,854,880 3,867,794           100% 3,663,280            3,676,830          100%

FEDERAL GRANTS -                         6,400                   0% -                         -                       0%

STATE GRANTS 36,000 26,175                73% 35,000                  7,058                  20%

LOCAL CONTRIBUTIONS 1,062,390 644,701              61% 1,030,710            723,595              70%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 21,000 23,667                113% 18,400                  19,145                104%

FINES AND FORFEITURES 6,000 3,265                   54% 3,000                    3,957                  132%

INTEREST AND RENT 30,000                  52,315                174% 30,000                  16,943                56%

TOTAL REVENUES 5,010,270            4,624,317           92% 4,780,390            4,447,528          93%

EXPENDITURES:

RECREATION AND CULTURE 4,531,340            3,189,353           70% 4,208,760            2,783,327          66%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE 478,930                1,434,964           571,630                1,664,201          

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

BALDWIN LIBRARY

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

INTEREST AND RENT -                         -                       0% -                         -                       0%

OTHER REVENUE -                         35,598                0% -                         -                       0%

TOTAL REVENUES -                         35,598                -                         -                       

EXPENDITURES

HEALTH AND WELFARE -                         -                       0% -                         -                       0%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE -                         35,598                -                         -                       

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

OPIOID SETTLEMENT

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

FEDERAL GRANTS 36,670                  5,666                   15% 36,100                  4,311                  12%

EXPENDITURES

HEALTH AND WELFARE 36,670                  5,666                   15% 36,100                  4,311                  12%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE -                         -                       -                         -                       

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

TAXES 1,508,190 1,513,248 100% 1,566,100            1,565,468          100%

STATE GRANTS 5,200 2,982 57% 3,300                    5,249                  159%

INTEREST AND RENT 1,740                    3,172                   182% (5,000)                   1,591                  -32%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,515,130            1,519,402           100% 1,564,400            1,572,308          101%

EXPENDITURES:

DEBT SERVICE 1,515,130            1,514,623           100% 1,566,900            1,566,386          100%

CONTRIBUTION TO (USE OF) FUND BALANCE -                         4,779                   (2,500)                   5,922                  

2022-2023 2021-2022

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

DEBT SERVICE FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  MARCH 31, 2023 AND MARCH 31, 2022
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  75%

10E2



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Finance Department 

DATE:  

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

April 25, 2023 

Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

Mark Gerber, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

Recent Amendments to PA 33 - Police and Fire Protection Act 

Background 
In December of 2022, the Governor signed an amendment to Public Act 33, known as the Police 
and Fire Protection Act.  The public Act allows a municipality to levy a special assessment to every 
property in its jurisdiction for public safety costs.  The amendment changes which municipalities 
are qualified to levy special assessments as a funding source for public safety expenditures. 

Under this Act, a city with a population of over 15,500 may use a special assessment to fund 
public safety related costs if the question of raising money by special assessment and the amount 
to be levied under the special assessment are approved by a majority of the electors.  Like any 
other special assessment, there is a public hearing process to identify the special assessment 
area and amount to assess.  Unlike other special assessments which are allocated based on a 
proportion of benefit received, like property frontage for instance, this special assessment is 
allocated based on taxable value of the property.   

Analysis 
According to the Act, it appears that the funding generated from this Act is restricted for use to,  
motor vehicles, apparatus, equipment, and housing for police and fire.  It cannot be used to 
replace the operating costs of the police and fire departments.   

At this time, given our fund balances and millage capacity (difference between the Headlee 
maximum and what we are currently levying), I do not see that the City needs to adopt this 
strategy in the near future in order to provide relief from Headlee.  One item of possible benefit 
from this legislation is if we need to replace several large pieces of fire equipment in a limited 
period of time.  The cost of new fire equipment has increased sharply in price due to limited 
supply of parts and vendor capacity issues.  This strategy could be employed to generate funds 
quickly and could be an alternative to bonding.  In either case, whether utilizing this Act or special 
assessments, or bonding as a source of revenue for public safety expenditures, the funding choice 

10E3



2 

must be approved by the electors.  The maximum that can be specially assessed is 10 mills per 
year.  One mill is approximately $3 million dollars based on our current taxable value.   

10E3



POLICE AND FIRE PROTECTION (EXCERPT)
Act 33 of 1951

41.801 Purchase of police and fire motor vehicles, apparatus, equipment, and housing;
appropriation; special assessment; bonds; election; estimate of cost and expenses;
special assessment district; hearing; publication or posting of notice; distribution of
special assessment levy; transfer or loan of money from general fund; repayment;
exercise of powers; assessment after December 31, 2018; “taxable value” defined; finding
of invalid assessment; bonds subject to revised municipal finance act.
Sec. 1. (1) The township board of a township, or the township boards of adjoining townships acting jointly,

whether or not the townships are located in the same county, may purchase police and fire motor vehicles,
apparatus, equipment, and housing and for that purpose may provide by resolution for the appropriation of
general or contingent funds. Before January 1, 1999, the appropriation for fire motor vehicles, apparatus,
equipment, and housing in a 1-year period must not exceed 10 mills of the assessed valuation of the area in
their respective townships for which fire protection is to be furnished. After December 31, 1998, the
appropriation for fire motor vehicles, apparatus, equipment, and housing in a 1-year period must not exceed
10 mills of the taxable value of the area in their respective townships for which fire protection is to be
furnished. Before January 1, 1999, the appropriation for police motor vehicles, apparatus, equipment, and
housing in a 1-year period must not exceed 10 mills of the assessed valuation of the area in their respective
townships for which police protection is to be furnished. After December 31, 1998, the appropriation for
police motor vehicles, apparatus, equipment, and housing in a 1-year period must not exceed 10 mills of the
taxable value of the area in their respective townships for which police protection is to be furnished.

(2) The township board of a township, or the township boards of adjoining townships acting jointly,
whether or not the townships are located in the same county, may provide annually by resolution for the
appropriation of general or contingent funds for maintenance and operation of police and fire departments.

(3) The township board, or the township boards of adjoining townships acting jointly, may provide that the
sums prescribed in subsection (2) for purchasing and housing equipment, for the operation of the equipment,
or both, may be defrayed by special assessment on the lands and premises in the township or townships to be
benefited, except, beginning in 2002, lands and premises exempt from the collection of taxes under the
general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155, and may issue bonds in anticipation of the
collection of these special assessments. The question of raising money by special assessment may be
submitted to the electors of the township or townships by the township board, or township boards acting
jointly, at a general election or special election called for that purpose by the township board or township
boards. The question of raising money by special assessment must be submitted by the township board, or
township boards acting jointly, if in the affected township, or in each of the affected townships, the owners of
10% of the land to be made into a special assessment district petition the township board or boards.

(4) If a special assessment district is proposed under subsection (3), the township board, or township
boards acting jointly, shall estimate the cost and expenses of the police and fire motor vehicles, apparatus,
equipment, and housing and police and fire protection, and fix a day for a hearing on the estimate and on the
question of creating a special assessment district and defraying the expenses of the special assessment district
by special assessment on the property to be especially benefited, except, beginning in 2002, property exempt
from the collection of taxes under the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155. The
hearing must be a public meeting held in compliance with the open meetings act, 1976 PA 267, MCL 15.261
to 15.275. Public notice of the time, date, and place of the meeting must be given in the manner required by
the open meetings act, 1976 PA 267, MCL 15.261 to 15.275. In addition, the township board, or township
boards acting jointly, shall publish in a newspaper of general circulation in the proposed district a notice
stating the time, place, and purpose of the meeting. If there is not a newspaper of general circulation in the
proposed district, notices must be posted in not less than 3 of the most public places in the proposed district.
This notice shall be published or posted not less than 5 days before the hearing. On the day appointed for the
hearing, the township board, or township boards acting jointly, shall be in session to hear objections that may
be offered against the estimate and the creation of the special assessment district. Before January 1, 1999, if
the township board, or township boards acting jointly, determine to create a special assessment district, they
shall determine the boundaries by resolution, determine the amount of the special assessment levy, and direct
the supervisor or supervisors to spread the assessment levy on all of the lands and premises in the district that
are to be especially benefited by the police and fire protection, according to benefits received, except,
beginning in 2002, lands and premises exempt from the collection of taxes under the general property tax act,
1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155, to defray the expenses of police and fire protection. After December

Rendered Thursday, April 20, 2023 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 19 of 2023

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

10E3



31, 1998, if the township board, or township boards acting jointly, determine to create a special assessment
district, they shall determine the boundaries by resolution, determine the amount of the special assessment
levy, and direct the supervisor or supervisors to spread the assessment levy on the taxable value of all of the
lands and premises in the district that are to be especially benefited by the police and fire protection,
according to benefits received, except, beginning in 2002, lands and premises exempt from the collection of
taxes under the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155, to defray the expenses of
police and fire protection. The township board, or township boards acting jointly, shall hold a hearing on
objections to the distribution of the special assessment levy. This hearing must be held in the same manner
and with the same notice as provided in this section. The township board, or township boards acting jointly,
shall annually determine the amount to be assessed in the district for police and fire protection, shall direct the
supervisor or supervisors to distribute the special assessment levy, and shall hold a hearing on the estimated
costs and expenses of police and fire protection and on the distribution of the levy. The assessment may be
made either in a special assessment roll or in a column provided in the regular tax roll. The assessment must
be distributed and must become due and be collected at the same time as other township taxes are assessed,
levied, and collected, and must be returned in the same manner for nonpayment. If a township has a July
property tax levy, not more than 2 mills of the assessment may be collected at the same time and in the same
manner as the July levy. If the collections received from the special assessment levied to defray the cost or
portion intended to be defrayed for police and fire protection are, at any time, insufficient to meet the
obligations or expenses incurred for the maintenance and operation of the police and fire departments, the
township board of the township, or township boards acting jointly, may, by resolution, authorize the transfer
or loan of sufficient money from the general fund of the township or townships, to the special assessment
police and fire department fund. This money must be repaid to the general fund of the township or townships
out of special assessment funds when collected.

(5) The powers granted by this act with respect to police and fire protection may be exercised with respect
to police protection alone, fire protection alone, or police and fire protection in combination.

(6) After December 31, 1998, an ad valorem special assessment levied under this act must be levied on the
taxable value of the property assessed. After December 31, 2018, a special assessment levied under this act
must be spread on the taxable value of the property assessed based on the special benefit provided to the
property assessed and may not be based on police and fire protection provided in a prior year to assessed
property.

(7) A special assessment imposed under this act must be levied on all properties within the special
assessment district established pursuant to this act other than properties exempt from the collection of taxes
under the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155.

(8) As used in this section, "taxable value" means that value determined under section 27a of the general
property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.27a.

(9) If the levy of an ad valorem special assessment on the property's taxable value is found to be invalid by
a court of competent jurisdiction, the levy of the ad valorem special assessment must be levied on the
property's state equalized value.

(10) Bonds issued under this act are subject to the revised municipal finance act, 2001 PA 34, MCL
141.2101 to 141.2821.

History: 1951, Act 33, Imd. Eff. May 8, 1951;Am. 1955, Act 221, Eff. Oct. 14, 1955;Am. 1970, Act 134, Imd. Eff. July 29,
1970;Am. 1978, Act 101, Imd. Eff. Apr. 6, 1978;Am. 1989, Act 81, Imd. Eff. June 20, 1989;Am. 1998, Act 545, Imd. Eff. Jan.
20, 1999;Am. 2002, Act 308, Imd. Eff. May 13, 2002;Am. 2002, Act 501, Imd. Eff. July 15, 2002;Am. 2018, Act 484, Eff. Jan. 1,
2019.

Rendered Thursday, April 20, 2023 Page 2 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 19 of 2023

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

10E3



POLICE AND FIRE PROTECTION (EXCERPT)
Act 33 of 1951

41.810 Fire protection for townships, villages, and qualified cities; "qualified city" defined.
Sec. 10. (1) This act applies to townships and adjoining townships and incorporated villages and qualified

cities. If reference is made in this act to townships, that reference applies to townships and incorporated
villages and qualified cities. If reference is made in this act to township boards, that reference applies to
township boards and the legislative bodies of incorporated villages and qualified cities. A township,
incorporated village, or qualified city shall not use this act to lessen the number of paid full-time firefighters
in that township, incorporated village, or qualified city.

(2) As used in this act, "qualified city" means either of the following:
(a) A city with a population of less than 15,500.
(b) A city with a population of 15,500 or more if the question of raising money by special assessment and

the amount of the special assessment to be levied annually under this act is approved by a majority of the
electors in the special assessment district. The amount of the special assessment to be levied annually under
this act that was approved under this subdivision must not be increased unless that increase is first approved
by a majority of the electors in the special assessment district.

History: Add. 1960, Act 51, Eff. Aug. 17, 1960;Am. 1966, Act 105, Imd. Eff. June 22, 1966;Am. 2004, Act 463, Imd. Eff. Dec.
28, 2004;Am. 2020, Act 64, Imd. Eff. Mar. 17, 2020;Am. 2021, Act 113, Imd. Eff. Nov. 10, 2021;Am. 2022, Act 228, Eff. Mar.
29, 2023.

Rendered Thursday, April 20, 2023 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 19 of 2023

 Courtesy of www.legislature.mi.gov

10E3



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Department of Public Services 

DATE: May 8, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Scott D. Zielinski, DPS Director 
Carrie A. Laird, Parks & Recreation Manager 

SUBJECT: Pat Andrews Tribute 

INTRODUCTION: 
Based on Commission direction from the March 13, 2023 City Commission meeting, a seating 
plaza with a little free library/or book box in order to honor Patricia “Pat” Andrews is described in 
this report along with a cost estimate. 

BACKGROUND: 
To celebrate and honor the life of Patricia “Pat” Andrews (November 5, 1921-September 1, 2021), 
a beloved and active in the community resident of Birmingham, a retired teacher and historian, 
and lifelong learner, staff under Commission direction has put together a schematic and cost 
estimate for a plaza and gathering area with an opportunity for reading and learning for all. 

The plaza area will mimic the circular plaza that is located at the corner of Chesterfield and Maple 
(pictured below) and be located on the eastern corner (Maple and Fairfax) of the Station 2 
property. 

10E4

https://vimeo.com/807722625


2 

Site of proposed Pat Andrews plaza with Little Library (Maple & Fairfax): 

10E4



3 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Engineering has put together an opinion of probable costs for this streetscape improvement, 
attached.  The total cost for a new plaza with two (2) benches, landscaping and a custom built 
library book box to replicate the Andrews’ residence is estimated to be at this time $36,380.00. 
Should more time be required for funding purposes, this estimate may change. 

Members of the community, family and friends of Pat Andrews have contributed $1,075 to date. 
The City has not budgeted to accomplish this project. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The City has a donation page and it’s possible to add this project as a potential donation 
opportunity bhamgov.org/donate.   

SUMMARY: 
In order to provide a tribute location for Patricia Andrews, staff recommends a streetscape plaza 
with a little library at the corner of Maple and Fairfax.  This location is appropriate as it’s located 
in the right of way and would not interfere with any future expansion of the Fire Department or 
training activities that currently take place in the open green space, yet it’s still near to the Fire 
Department.  Pat Andrews was a lifelong advocate for the outstanding services of the Birmingham 
Fire Department and lived nearby, close enough to walk over fresh homemade cookies! 

A custom built little library box, replicating the residence of and commemorating the life of Pat 
Andrews would be located in the landscape bed, at the entrance to the plaza, near the existing 
sidewalk (Andrews residence pictured below).  One could gather together with neighbors, pick 
out a book to read, find a shady spot in the lawn, or sit on one of the benches located in the 
plaza.  A plaque to honor Pat Andrews would be placed in a visible location as well. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Cost
• Streetscape Sketch
• Examples of Little Free Library’s built by the DPS

10E4

https://bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/public_services/parks___recreation/donate.php


4/28/2023

NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION PAY
UNIT

TOTAL
QUANTITY

UNIT
PRICE

TOTAL 
AMOUNT

PAVING PAY ITEMS
1 Earth Excavation CY 10 $20.00 $ 200.00
2 Concrete Sidewalk, 4" SF 190 $10.00 $ 1,900.00
3 Concrete Sidewalk, 4", Exposed Aggregate, Scoring 

Treatment
SF 40 $15.00 $ 600.00

4 Concrete Curb, Exposed Aggregate, 6", Planters LF 70 $125.00 $ 8,750.00
SUBTOTAL PAVING PAY ITEMS $ 11,450.00
STREETSCAPING

5 Benches EA 2 $2,500.00 $ 5,000.00
6 Custom Built Little Library Installed Including Plaque EA 1 $8,580.00 $ 8,580.00
7 Planting Allowance LS 1 $500.00 $ 500.00

SUBTOTAL STREETSCAPING $ 14,080.00
GENERAL PAY ITEMS

8 Topographic Survey LS 1 $2,500.00 $ 2,500.00
9 Design (One Concept and One Construction Drawing) LS 1 $4,700.00 $ 4,700.00
10 Construction Staking LS 1 $2,500.00 $ 2,500.00
11 Mobilization LS 1 $1,000.00 $ 1,000.00
12 Topsoil, 3" SY 10 $5.00 $ 50.00
13 Inlet Filter EA 1 $100.00 $ 100.00

SUBTOTAL GENERAL PAY ITEMS $ 10,850.00

OVERALL TOTAL - ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST PRELIMINARY DESIGN $36,380.00

ENGINEER'S OPINION OF PROBABLE COST PRELIMINARY DESIGN
STREETSCAPE AT NORHTWEST CORNER OF MAPLE AND FAIRFAX

10E4



10E4



10E4



10E4



O

Illustration by Bénédicte Muller

Essay

The Curious Side Effects of Medical
Transparency

When we peer into our patient portals, we don’t always see ourselves more clearly.

By Danielle Ofri

April 29, 2023

ne afternoon not long ago, I sat entering notes into a patient’s medical
record. She was in her forties, and her labs showed anemia. The causes of

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/news/essay
https://www.newyorker.com/contributors/danielle-ofri


anemia range from menstruation to cancer, and so pinpointing the correct

underlying diagnosis is critical. Physicians are trained to formulate a full roster of
possibilities, known as the differential diagnosis, and then to work down the list

systematically. We’re taught to cast a wide net—celiac disease, parasitic infections,
thalassemia, lead poisoning, liver disease, B12 de�ciency, myeloma, sickle-cell

disease, G6PD de�ciency—because you’ll never make a diagnosis if you haven’t
included it in your differential.

But I hesitated before entering my differential into the computer system. Should I
include the more serious possibilities, even though they were much less likely? In

the past, I wouldn’t have thought twice about it, as the chart served primarily as a
tool for the medical team to communicate among ourselves. But a new law, the

21st Century Cures Act, had recently been fully implemented, making medical
records open to patients by default, in real time, including doctors’ notes. My in-

box was already jammed with panicked messages from people convinced that they
had catastrophic illnesses, based on minuscule lab discrepancies and panic-

inducing Google searches. How would my patient react to seeing my ruminations
about possible colon cancer or duodenal ulcer in the note?

Sign up for The Daily.
Receive the best of The New Yorker, every day, in your in-box.

By signing up, you agree to our User Agreement and Privacy Policy & Cookie Statement.

One of the earliest known medical records—an account of wound treatment—

was written on papyrus in Egypt, around 1600 B.C. Its intended audience seems
to have been fellow-healers, who could learn from it. More than a thousand years

Your e-mail address

Sign up

E-mail address

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.condenast.com/user-agreement
https://www.condenast.com/privacy-policy


later, Hippocrates helped develop the concept of the medical-case history, which

was likely geared toward educating and informing other practitioners. This
contributed to a physician-centric view of the medical record, which has endured.

Into the nineteen-seventies, patients in most U.S. states could obtain their medical
records only with the help of a lawyer. In 2000, the ����� Privacy Rule—which

clari�ed how the health-care industry should implement the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996—required organizations to disclose

most kinds of medical information to patients upon request. But health-care
organizations were under no obligation to eliminate the paperwork, fees, or surly

clerks that stood between patients and their records.

As medical records inched from paper to computer during the nineteen-nineties, a

few institutions began experimenting with patient portals—Web sites for patients
to access their records. These sites, which began appearing more widely in the

two-thousands, were clunky to use, and there wasn’t much in there beyond
appointments and some test results. But, in 2009, as part of its attempt to drag the

U.S. economy out of recession, the federal government offered incentive payments
to medical organizations that could demonstrate “meaningful use” of electronic

medical records. Requirements for the funding came to include the ability for
patients to “view, download, and transmit” their medical information. With

money now on the table, patient portals proliferated.

In 2010, Jan Walker and Tom Delbanco, who have backgrounds in nursing and

internal medicine, respectively, founded a research collaborative called OpenNotes,
based at Beth Israel Deaconess Medical Center in Boston. This initiative went a

step further and experimented with allowing patients to read the actual notes that
their doctors were writing. Patients in the initial studies were overwhelmingly

enthusiastic about the idea. For physicians, this was a radical change: lab values
and radiology reports were neutral information, but notes felt personal. The Cures

Act went into full effect in the spring of 2021, granting patients access to their
records by default, so that they didn’t have to request it. In the brief lull between

INFORMATION ONLY



I

�����-19’s soul-crushing winter and the start of the deadly Delta wave, the

medical profession abruptly found itself staring into a two-way mirror.

Transparency has always been seen as a hallmark of honesty and integrity. The

logic is familiar: democracies aspire to be transparent, but dictatorships are
opaque; faithful spouses are guileless, while philanderers lie; reputable businesses

operate in the open, but shady operations literally draw the shades. Collectively,
we’ve embraced Louis Brandeis’s dictum that sunlight is the best disinfectant. We

demand transparency in government, charitable institutions, nutrition labels, and
middle-school grading rubrics. The medical record should be no different.

And yet, in writing the medical note for my patient with anemia, I felt an
awkwardness creeping in. There was something disquieting about knowing that

my every word might be scrutinized. The academic purist in me pressed for a
thorough differential and a full accounting of my thought process—to avoid error,

but also to accurately inform the next physician about the current state of affairs. I
worried, however, about downstream angst, both for me and for the patient. She

had been transparent with me, sharing her story, her body, her blood chemistry.
She’d answered personal questions about her medical history, sexual partners, drug

and alcohol use, and dietary habits. Still, I hesitated when it came time for me to
be fully transparent with her.

In the end, I dashed off something like “anemia eval” —a pathetic skeleton of a
note that I wouldn’t have tolerated from a medical student—and tore off the

exam-table paper in preparation for the next patient. I felt rushed, annoyed, and
frankly disgusted at my dumbing down of the chart. And I couldn’t tamp a rising

coil of unease. Why had a system designed to encourage transparency resulted in
my drawing the curtain?

n 2008, Ethan Bernstein, an associate professor at Harvard Business School,
travelled with a team of students to a vast mobile-phone-manufacturing plant

in southern China. Managers scanned stadium-sized production �oors, surveying
INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/science/annals-of-medicine/how-will-the-coronavirus-evolve


entire assembly lines at a glance. Ubiquitous digital monitors provided real-time

data for all to see. A rainbow palette of hats and uniforms instantly pegged the
position and rank of fourteen thousand employees, among whom Bernstein’s

undergrads were discreetly embedded.

The students, who’d been born in China, lived, worked, ate, and socialized with

their colleagues. They found that, as in any high-pressure workplace, employees
were constantly fashioning more agile strategies for getting the job done, often

bypassing procedures handed down by bureaucrats from on high. What amazed
Bernstein was the lengths to which workers went to conceal their innovations.

One told him, “It’s most efficient to hide it now and discuss it later.” Ironically, the
plant’s transparency enabled this subterfuge: the colored hats that allowed

management to identify each worker’s position also let workers spot managers
from across the �oor, giving them time to camou�age their improvisations. As the

managers made their rounds, they became loci of decreased productivity.

Bernstein’s team hung a curtain in the factory, preparing to conduct an experiment

that involved observing assembly lines on one side, and then comparing them
with the control lines on the other. But when a worker offhandedly mused about

how much better it would be if the curtain completely closed them in on all sides,
Bernstein went with her idea, instead. In just a week, the mere shielding of these

assembly lines increased productivity by as much as ten to �fteen per cent—a
change that persisted for the �ve months that Bernstein was able to continue

observing. Instead of hiding their various tweaks and improvements, the workers
behind the curtains could share them with their colleagues without fear of

drawing unwanted attention; they even sometimes cross-trained one another,
making it easier for people who worked different positions to cover for one

another. “When you get watched, you lose autonomy,” Bernstein told me. The
result is what he calls the transparency paradox: well-intentioned measures meant

to increase transparency and promote productivity, creativity, and compliance

INFORMATION ONLY



T

often accomplish the opposite. Observation is not a neutral process; human beings

react.

ransparency in government, to the extent that it exists, has been hard-won.

For most of its history, Congress could be witnessed only by the few
members of the public lucky or connected enough to snag seats in the gallery.

From time to time, radio broadcasts captured Congress at work; in 1947, a single
live-television broadcast of the opening session of the House of Representatives

served as the �rst salvo in the �ght for fuller public access. It was followed by
spotty televised coverage of the occasional Presidential speech, and then by an

outright ban on television cameras in Congressional sessions and committee
hearings, in 1952. In the Watergate-chastened nineteen-seventies, calls for

transparency led to a brief test of closed-circuit television, in 1977.

That year, a journalist named Brian Lamb submitted a proposal to the governing

body of the newly emerging cable-television industry suggesting the creation of a
public-affairs channel to show gavel-to-gavel coverage of congressional

proceedings. The Cable-Satellite Public Affairs Network (C-����) launched in
1979. It touted itself as “your un�ltered view of government”; the comedian

Elayne Boosler has referred to it as “Wild Kingdom but with congressmen.” C-
���� was hailed as a win for transparency and accountability. Representative Al

Gore, who was the very �rst lawmaker to appear on C-����, argued that it offered
“a solution for the lack of con�dence in government.” Because it does not �lter or

edit coverage, C-���� is generally considered unbiased—a transparent view.

Along with other lawmakers, Newt Gingrich—who arrived in Congress shortly

after C-���� did—quickly realized the potential of the medium. Members of
Congress delivered more pugnacious speeches at the end of the day, which

appeared to stun their opponents into silence—sometimes because nearly
everyone had gone home, a fact that the cameras didn’t reveal. (Later, cameras

started panning the room.) The researchers Gloria Gennaro and Elliott Ash have

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/tag/al-gore
https://www.newyorker.com/news/q-and-a/the-passion-of-newt-gingrich
https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2023/01/16/c-span-unleashes-its-inner-scorsese


T

examined the so-called C-���� effect, demonstrating a correlation between the

“emotionality” of lawmakers’ rhetoric and the levels of C-���� viewership in their
districts. They also found that exposure on C-���� has no measurable effect on

legislative efforts—perhaps because such efforts often require detailed deal-
making and uncomfortable trade-offs that are easier managed in quiet backrooms.

C-����, therefore, might not be showing us lawmakers in the wild so much as
encouraging them to grandstand to the camera in ways that can be antithetical to

the actual work of governing. (By contrast, increased coverage by local news does
appear to correlate with legislative progress, though without impact on the

emotionality of lawmakers’ oratory.)

hese counterintuitive effects sit awkwardly alongside our valorization of

transparency. David Pozen, a soft-spoken law professor at Columbia
University, told me point-blank that “transparency has a proven track record of

failing to deliver on its ostensible bene�ts.” Open-�le discovery, for example, is a
transparency effort intended to level the playing �eld during litigation; it requires

prosecutors to share the results of their investigations with defense teams, so that
defendants can make more informed decisions about plea bargains. These

disclosures also protect defendants from being surprised during trial by witnesses
or evidence for which they haven’t prepared. But analyses have found that these

laws haven’t always resulted in meaningful improvements for defendants. This
might be because most defendants are poor, and their overworked, underpaid

public defenders can’t effectively utilize the additional information. But police and
prosecutors may also change their behavior once they know that whatever they

uncover will be shared with the defense.

Transparency, Pozen told me, “invites conceptual confusion about whether it’s a

�rst-order good that we’re trying to pursue for its own sake, or a second-order
good that we’re trying to use instrumentally to achieve other goods.” In the �rst

case, we might feel that transparency is an ideal always worth embracing, whatever

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.research-collection.ethz.ch/bitstream/handle/20.500.11850/597696/CLE_WP_2023_01.pdf?sequence=1
https://www.newyorker.com/news/us-journal/is-this-the-worst-place-to-be-poor-and-charged-with-a-federal-crime


the costs. In the second, we might ask ourselves what it’s accomplishing, and how

it compares with other routes to the same end.

“There is a standard view that transparency is all good—the more transparency,

the better,” the philosopher C. Thi Nguyen, an associate professor at the
University of Utah, told me. But “you have a completely different experience of

transparency when you are the subject.” In a previous position, Nguyen had been
part of a department that had to provide evidence that it was using state funding

to satisfactorily educate its students. Philosophers, he told me, would want to
describe their students’ growing re�ectiveness, curiosity, and “intellectual humility,”

but knew that this kind of talk would likely befuddle or bore legislators; they had
to focus instead on concrete numbers, such as graduation rates and income after

graduation. Nguyen and his colleagues surely want their students to graduate and
earn a living wage, but such stats hardly sum up what it means to be a successful

philosopher.

In Nguyen’s view, this illustrates a problem with transparency. “In any scheme of

transparency in which you have experts being transparent to nonexperts, you’re
going to get a signi�cant amount of information loss,” he said. What’s meaningful

in a philosophy department can be largely incomprehensible to non-philosophers,
so the information must be recast in simpli�ed terms. Furthermore, simpli�ed

metrics frequently distort incentives. If graduation rates are the metric by which
funding is determined, then a school might do whatever it takes to bolster them.

Although some of these efforts might add value to students’ learning, it’s also
possible to game the system in ways that are counterproductive to actual

education.

Transparency is often portrayed as objective, but, like a camera, it is subject to

manipulation even as it appears to be relaying reality. Ida Koivisto, a legal scholar
at the University of Helsinki, has studied the trade-offs that �ow from who holds

that camera. She �nds that when an authority—a government agency, a business,
a public �gure—elects to be transparent, people respond positively, concluding

INFORMATION ONLY



F

that the willingness to be open re�ects integrity, and thus confers legitimacy. Since

the authority has initiated this transparency, however, it naturally chooses to be
transparent in areas where it looks good. Voluntary transparency sacri�ces a

degree of truth. On the other hand, when transparency is initiated by outside
forces—mandates, audits, investigations—both the good and the bad are revealed.

Such involuntary transparency is more truthful, but it often makes its subject
appear �awed and dishonest, and so less legitimate. There’s a trade-off, Koivisto

concludes, between “legitimacy” and “the ‘naked truth.’ ”
Finn Janning, a Danish philosopher based in Barcelona, studies the gap between

self-knowledge and self-deception. Under the guise of transparency, he told me,
we can deceive ourselves, reasoning that we are good because we are open about

what we are doing. (Modern-day autocrats often present themselves as
“transparent.”) He also noted that transparency is not necessarily a positive

motivating force. “Transparency does not lead to you acting better,” Janning said.
“On the contrary, you try to �t into the norm. You act in a predictable way.”

rom my end of the stethoscope, it’s always seemed obvious that patients
should own their medical records, and be able to see them. But openness can

be challenging in practice. When our hospital initially rolled out its patient portal,
a few of my older patients asked that I remove references to erectile dysfunction

from their medical records. Their adult children handled the household tech, they
explained, and my patients preferred to keep their Viagra prescriptions private. In

other cases, multiple family members can access a patient’s chart, messaging me
about test results and treatment plans, and it can be complicated to deduce the

hierarchy of responsibility. Advocates have raised increasing concerns about the
ease with which abusers can gain access to victims’ medical records; health-care

settings have traditionally been secure places for people experiencing domestic
violence, elder abuse, and human trafficking, but, with medical records becoming

more accessible, patients may feel less certain that their words are safe.

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2022/05/23/how-to-build-a-twenty-first-century-tyrant-the-revenge-of-power-spin-dictators


At the same time, there are remarkable upsides to the transparent medical record.

Patients are able to review their diagnoses, medications, and treatments at their
own pace. They are able to share information with family members if they choose.

They can spot errors—medications they are no longer taking, medical history
that’s missing, allergies that aren’t noted. They can prepare for their next visit, and

perhaps feel on more equal footing with their doctor. And they can obtain test
results without the interminable wait for the doctor’s call.

Medicine is a highly specialized �eld, and like philosophy it involves the challenge
of bridging the gap between experts and nonexperts. Regulations coming out of

the Cures Act prohibit “information blocking,” and in effect require that test
results and doctors’ notes be released immediately to patient portals. In practice,

this means that patients often see results before their doctors do and are presented
with a �re hose of raw data, shorn of context. And yet on many patient portals,

because of algorithms that offer only a binary distinction between normal and
abnormal, lab values that stray a meaningless half percentage point out of range

are labelled as “abnormal” along with results that have grave portent. Doctors’
ubiquitous use of multicomponent lab panels, which bundle together many

different tests, virtually guarantees that every patient receives at least one
“abnormal,” which, in our hospital’s system, is written in blood-red letters with

garish yellow highlighting, plus an exclamation point, just in case the takeaway
hasn’t been fully conveyed. Even seemingly straightforward yes-or-no results, such

as those from H.I.V. or ����� tests, can be easily misinterpreted, since false
positives and false negatives occur depending on the course of the disease and the

operating characteristics of the test. Meanwhile, results such as CT scans and
MRIs often contain paragraphs’ worth of information that looks alarming but

isn’t. Try reading the CT report of your lumbar spine and not coming away
convinced that you’ll be paralyzed for life.

Patients turn from the portal to Google, then �ood doctors’ in-boxes with
messages, panicked by the possibility that they have cancer or multiple sclerosis or

INFORMATION ONLY



H

any of an assortment of inglorious diseases that appear on the Internet grossly out

of proportion to their actual prevalence. But some abnormal test results will
indeed be real, and some will be seriously concerning. In our current transparent

system, tests showing brain atrophy or liver masses are released to the portal in the
same manner as cholesterol levels and blood-pressure readings. For some patients,

discovering these results on their own can be empowering; for others, it can be
catastrophic. In one devastating stretch of twenty-four hours, two of my patients

learned of their cancers’ metastatic reappearance by way of the portal. Their in-
boxes pinged with new test results; they read them before either their oncologist

or I had even seen the scans, let alone called.

Each morning, I log into our medical-record system with a certain amount of

dread. Which will I tackle �rst—the torrent of test results or the deluge of
responses it’s inspired? Some patients will have to be talked down from a ledge

over a minor lab abnormality. Far worse is the serious result to which I haven’t yet
had time to formulate a response: a biopsy result for which I’ve not yet tracked

down the appropriate specialist to sketch a road map, or an adrenal mass on a CT
scan for which I’ve not yet orchestrated the intricate endocrine evaluation. In the

past, I’d do the legwork before I called the patient. Now that buffer is gone, and I
am pressured to act immediately: the patient has seen the result, and further delay

would be unconscionable. This timbre of rush imperils thoughtful analysis, and I
worry incessantly about missteps.

istorically, the medical profession has had little use for transparency. Grave
diagnoses were routinely withheld, on the assumption that they would

further patient suffering. The Black men who participated in the infamous
syphilis study at Tuskegee, in 1932, were not told that the trial aimed to study

untreated syphilis, nor were they made aware of—or offered—penicillin, which
became widely available the following decade. Generations of patients with

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2023/01/30/nobody-has-my-condition-but-me
https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2018/11/12/why-doctors-hate-their-computers


mental illness were often institutionalized with little or no information released to

them or their families.

There are strong ethical reasons, therefore, to pursue transparency in the medical

record. But, as Pozen points out, we should not be lulled into treating
transparency as a �rst-order good, like compassion, respect, avoiding harm, or

putting the patient �rst. In a recent survey of more than eight thousand patients
conducted by OpenNotes, nearly all the respondents said that they preferred

immediate access to their test results, even if their doctors hadn’t yet reviewed
those results. This was true even for the vast majority of people who said that

they’d experienced increased worry in the face of results that were abnormal. It’s
an understandable preference—one that every patient has the right to hold. But

simply throwing open the medical record and calling it a day allows us to rest on
our laurels without doing the hard work of �xing what’s inside. Police

departments often point to body cameras as evidence of accountability without
actually addressing the problem of police violence. Lawmakers can laud

themselves for their transparency via C-���� without having to engage in the
gritty compromise needed to move legislation forward. Transparency might better

be viewed as one possible means to desirable ends—not an end in and of itself.

It might also be wise to recognize that there are times when patients themselves

may want to draw the curtain. Some years ago, I cared for an elderly man who’d
been admitted to the hospital with weight loss and a swollen abdomen. A CT

scan revealed an aggressive cancer that had already spread to multiple organs. It
was clear that he was at a terminal stage. The patient’s son insisted that I not tell

his father anything. It would crush his spirit, I remember him saying. The son
explained that, in his culture, families didn’t tell elders that kind of news.

On a slate-gray winter afternoon, I pulled a chair up to my patient’s bedside and
asked him what he understood thus far. He told me he had a stomach illness that

was preventing him from eating. I explained that we now had more information.

INFORMATION ONLY



Ordinarily, this would be where I’d gently work my way into what is by far the

hardest conversation a doctor can have with a patient. This time, though, I started
with a question: “How much would you like to know?” I told him that he could

have as much or as little detail as he wanted, or none at all. I assured him that I
could keep his answer—and even how much he chose to know—con�dential from

his family.

He was silent for a few moments. Our gazes drifted out the window, toward the

barges trundling down the East River. Then he replied that he wasn’t interested in
the names of the medications we were prescribing or the details of the treatments.

He didn’t want to know the results of the CT scan or the biopsy.

I took his hand and reassured him that we would take care of his stomach illness.

The son handled the paperwork, the phone calls, the medications, and the
necessary arrangements. The father watched television and napped. Several weeks

later, he died at home, by all accounts peacefully. ♦

New Yorker Favorites

A security camera for the entire planet.

Cargo ships are among the dirtiest vehicles in existence. Can an ancient
technology clean them up?

Saving the climate will depend on blue-collar workers. Can we train enough of
them before time runs out?

In India, a clean-power plant the size of Manhattan could be a model for the
world—or a cautionary tale.

Seeking a heat shield for the most important ice on Earth.

A case for climate optimism, and pragmatism, from John Podesta.

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/news/annals-of-climate-action/a-security-camera-for-the-planet
https://www.newyorker.com/news/annals-of-a-warming-planet/the-climate-crisis-gives-sailing-ships-a-second-wind
https://www.newyorker.com/news/dept-of-energy/the-great-electrician-shortage
https://www.newyorker.com/news/dept-of-energy/indias-quest-to-build-the-worlds-largest-solar-farms
https://www.newyorker.com/news/the-control-of-nature/a-heat-shield-for-the-most-important-ice-on-earth
https://www.newyorker.com/news/q-and-a/a-case-for-climate-optimism-and-pragmatism-from-john-podesta


The climate solutions we can’t live without.

Sign up for our daily newsletter to receive the best stories from The New Yorker.

Danielle Ofri is a primary care doctor at Bellevue Hospital and the author of “When We Do
Harm: A Doctor Confronts Medical Error.”

More: Transparency Medical Records Patients Doctors Information Health Care Medicine

The Daily

The best of The New Yorker, every day, in your in-box, plus occasional alerts
when we publish major stories.

E-mail address

By signing up, you agree to our User Agreement and Privacy Policy & Cookie Statement.

Read More

Your e-mail address

Sign up

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/news/annals-of-a-warming-planet/the-climate-solutions-we-cant-live-without
https://www.newyorker.com/newsletter/daily
https://www.newyorker.com/contributors/danielle-ofri
https://www.amazon.com/When-We-Do-Harm-Confronts/dp/0807037885
https://www.newyorker.com/tag/transparency
https://www.newyorker.com/tag/medical-records
https://www.newyorker.com/tag/patients
https://www.newyorker.com/tag/doctors
https://www.newyorker.com/tag/information
https://www.newyorker.com/tag/health-care
https://www.newyorker.com/tag/medicine
https://www.condenast.com/user-agreement
https://www.condenast.com/privacy-policy
https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2023/05/08/jackie-kennedy-camera-girl-carl-sferrazza-anthony-book-review#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1


Books

The Making of Jackie Kennedy
As a student in Paris and a photographer at the Washington Times-Herald, the future First
Lady worked behind the lens to bring her own ideas into focus.

By Thomas Mallon

Crossword

The Crossword: Thursday, April 27, 2023
A beginner-friendly puzzle.

By Patrick Berry

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2023/05/08/jackie-kennedy-camera-girl-carl-sferrazza-anthony-book-review#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1
https://www.newyorker.com/puzzles-and-games-dept/crossword/2023/04/27#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1
https://www.newyorker.com/magazine/2023/05/08/jackie-kennedy-camera-girl-carl-sferrazza-anthony-book-review#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1
https://www.newyorker.com/puzzles-and-games-dept/crossword/2023/04/27#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1
https://www.newyorker.com/culture/the-front-row/the-greatest-independent-films-of-the-twentieth-century#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1


The Front Row

The Greatest Independent Films of the Twentieth Century
A counter-canon of masterworks by �lmmakers who took control of the means of production.

By Richard Brody

Name Drop

Name Drop: Thursday, April 20, 2023
Can you guess the notable person in six clues or fewer?

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.newyorker.com/culture/the-front-row/the-greatest-independent-films-of-the-twentieth-century#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1
https://www.newyorker.com/puzzles-and-games-dept/name-drop/2023/04/20#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1
https://www.newyorker.com/culture/the-front-row/the-greatest-independent-films-of-the-twentieth-century#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1
https://www.newyorker.com/puzzles-and-games-dept/name-drop/2023/04/20#intcid=_the-new-yorker-bottom-recirc_0c35e275-38a1-42cb-b6f7-961a00a04071_similar2-3_fallback_popular4-1


By Will Nediger

Cookies Settings

INFORMATION ONLY



�����������	�
� �������������������������������������������������������

����������� ���!��"����� ����������������#���#��#�����$������$��������$�����������$��������$�����$�$������� %�	

&'()&�*+,-(./0�12341.5�677829:;�8:18:6/.2465�<68.=3646�;>27;�.4?60528@AB�CDE�FGHB�IJKKBL�HAB�MGNONP�GQLONJNRB�JSSGTONP�QBRQBJHOGNJS�UJQOVWJNJ�KJSBK�ON�@JXSGQYZ[\]̂_̀â�bcZa[̀de�fghijkgjlcZamna�oZcce�pqrqkst�uivkgvk�wjixyzgjwy{tq|}gx~��Z����������Z�����������hxskgx~��Z����������Z�����������sr|~��Z�_nc���Z�â�on]a��

)�

������������������� ����������������� ����������������%%�$� ����������������� ���������������� ����

���� � ¡¢��£¤ ��¢¥¦�§ �̈ §¥� ©�¢¥ª§�� �«¬��«��¥¦�� ¢���¢§® § ������¥¥�§� ¡ �¥¢¡¥

���� � ¡¢��£¤ ��¢¥¦�§ �̈ §¥� ©�¢¥ª§�� �«¬��«��¥¦�� ¢���¢§® § ������¥¥�§�
INFORMATION ONLY



�����������	�
� �������������������������������������������������������

����������� ���!��"����� ����������������#���#��#�����$������$��������$�����������$��������$�����$�$������� ��	

%&'()*+�,-./0�1�23456�7894:;�83�98�<=4>89?�4:5�@ABC�DE�FGCHDI�>;�895�;45J�=K8;56�48�8J59>9L�65=65<4>89<K�7<6>MN<9<�;:8J;OP<QK86�R>4Q�R8N9=>K�J<;;5S�4T8�7<6>MN<9<�86S>9<9=5;�PN5;S<Q�UV<Q�WX�9>L:4�<3456�Y8456;�<JJ68Y5S�4:5�75<;N65�K<;4�3<KKO

P:5�J6>7<6Q�86S>9<9=5�38=N;5S�89�Z89>9L?�<KK8T>9L�<9QT:565�3687�4:655�48�[Y5�65=65<4>89<K�7<6>MN<9<�S>;J59;<6>5;�48�8J59�>9�<JJ68Y5S>9SN;46><K�<65<;�83�4:5�=>4QO\]4̂;�984�L8>9L�48�_5�89�5Y56Q�=86956?̀�;<>S�R8N9=>K�R:<>67<9�a8NL�b5>;;O�\]4̂;�65<KKQ�984�L8>9L�48�_5�Y56Q�Y>;>_K5?�_N4�4:5�<65<;�4:<4�T5�=:8;5<65�L8>9L�48�_5�=K8;5�48�3655T<Q;?�;8�>4�T>KK�_5�<==5;;>_K5�386�J58JK5�48�=875�48�P<QK86�48�JN6=:<;5�U65=65<4>89<K�7<6>MN<9<X?�_N4�<K;8�386�8N665;>S594;?�984�:<Y>9L�48�S6>Y5�[Y5�48�459�7>K5;ÒP:565�T<;�;875�JN;:_<=c�3687�65;>S594;�<_8N4�65Y>;>9L�4:5�W?dee�3554�6NK5OP:5�_<KK84�75<;N65�<JJ68Y5S�_Q�Y8456;�;4<45S�4:<4�65=65<4>89<K�7<6>MN<9<�3<=>K>4>5;�T8NKS�_5�<�7>9>7N7�83�W?dee�3554�3687�J6845=45S�<65<;K>c5�;=:88K;�<9S�=:N6=:5;O\PT594Qf[Y5�:N9S65S�3554�T8NKŜY5�75<94�4:<4�4:565�T565�98�J<6=5K;?̀�b5>;;�;<>SO�\g8�T:<4�T5�S>S�>;�N;5�9<4N6<K�_<66>56;O�2�3655T<Q�>;�<9<4N6<K�_<66>56Ò

h i j k l

mnog pqR2p�rs on2Ptnu gvquPg wn2Pxung p]yn�]m�Ptn�a 2mm�2uzqu mnogpnPPnug
INFORMATION ONLY



�����������	�
� �������������������������������������������������������

����������� ���!��"����� ����������������#���#��#�����$������$��������$�����������$��������$�����$�$������� ��	

%&'�()*+,-(.�*�'(/'(*01&2*-�+*'134*2*�50&'(�/*2�6(�-&/*0(7�&2�08(�&08('�517(�&9�08(�9'((:*;�9'&+�*�'(517(201*-�*'(*.�(<(2�19�08(�0:&�-&/*01&25*'(�2&0�=.>??�9((0�*,*'0@A8&5(�*B*1250�08(�&'712*2/(�(),'(55(7�/&2/('2�*6&40�715,(25*'1(5�6(12B�0&&�/-&5(�0&�/81-7'(2@CD<(';:8('(�;&4�04'2.�08('(�*'(�,&0�50&'(5.�*27�08*0�15�<(';�5*7�9&'�/81-7'(2.E�&2(�'(517(20�5*17�:81-(�*77'(5512B�08(�/&42/1-�A4(57*;�21B80@F2�08(�&08('�517(�&9�08(�7(6*0(.�*7<&/*0(5�9&'�'(/'(*01&2*-�+*'134*2*�5*-(5�:('(�()/10(7�*6&40�08(�&'712*2/(5�,*55(7@CG0�9((-5�B'(*0.E�5*17�H*<17�I(--('0@�CJ(K<(�6((2�:&'L12B�&2�10�9&'�*�<(';�-&2B�01+(.�*27�:(�+*7(�5&+(�/&2/(551&25.�640�:(�*'(�&2�08(�'1B80,*08@EA8(�/10;�:1--�6(B12�*//(,012B�*,,-1/*01&25�&2�F/0@�M@NOPQRSTUV�WXWY�ZQ�[\]̂�N_S̀abc\dVROSV�e�f__�RSTUVg�RdgdRhdijklmno�opq�knopmrstuvwxyz{|}z�~�v}w|��*/�4(-12(�%'*2/15�15�*2�*:*'7�:12212B�3&4'2*-150�:8&�3&12(7�08(�JHG��0(*+�12��(,0(+6('�=?==@��'1&'�0&��&/*-��.�58(�'(,&'0(7�9&'�08(�����*�-1*0(�12�J(50�I1/81B*2@J8(2�58(K5�2&0�&2�08(�3&6.��*/�4(-12(�(23&;5�0*L12B�*7<*20*B(�&9�*--�08(�:&27('5�I1/81B*2�8*5�0&�&99('.�9'&+�5L1�0'1,5�4,�2&'08�0&�6(*/8�7*;5�:108�8('�7&B.��/(@z�v|{ ��|��z���v}��}��v���'*27&2��*''�15�*�71B10*-�/&20(20�,'&74/('�9&'��-1/LF2H(0'&10�*27�8*5�6((2�:108�JHG���&/*-���512/(��&<(+6('�=?=M@��'*27&2�15�08(�=?M>��&-&+&2��12-&/8�4+*210*'1*2�*:*'7�'(/1,1(20�9&'��&++4210;��('<1/(@z�v|{ ��|��z�

������������ ��¡���¡�¢ ¢�£��¡£¤�¥¡¢���¡��¦��§ ̈�©��¥�ª���� ̈��� ¢¢̈ £��§�«̈ �¤���£�©¬
k®̄°�±²³?�³́?.???³́M.???�³µ?.???³µM.???�³M=?.???³M=M.???¶�'(9('�2&0�0&�*25:('· ¹̧º�»¼�½¾¿À�º¾º¹Á�¹ÂÂ¿¹Á�»ÂÃ¾ÄÅÆ

ÇÈÉ¹ºÅ�DJ� �F�����¶ JD�A�DÊ ��FÊA� %D�AËÊD� �G�D�G��A�D�H �����Ê�FÊ �DJ��DAADÊ�
INFORMATION ONLY



Read in browser

The Daily Briefing
YOUR MORNING NEWS ROUNDUP

Mon Apr 24 2023

Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

Fwd: How DTE, Consumers Energy operate
1 message

Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org> Mon, Apr 24, 2023 at 8:02 AM
To: Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

Copy DTE article to next info only 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: thomas markus <tmsquared20@gmail.com>
Date: Mon, Apr 24, 2023 at 8:01 AM
Subject: Fwd: How DTE, Consumers Energy operate
To: Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org>

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Daily Briefing by Freep.com <noreply@reply.freep.com>
Date: Mon, Apr 24, 2023 at 7:03 AM
Subject: How DTE, Consumers Energy operate
To: <tmsquared20@gmail.com>

INFORMATION ONLY

https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b06d807ab9a910ca2625d926588e3f9abb1552fcbd28baa4ab607f95db7cf51780f83274ea56cf2d6b31c39975ca1fd5bda6e65319cea428c9
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b0ed8d2e3f08b38f11744c16768e5904aead1b805f01ee66d4dbe18d57401773fae09aca9b4a46d44643983daf8886abd4f23cf53fc7f9613e
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b0c1a4b0433553796f75bfc660e1e6a06b6499c955f3742a7cb6539985a6fdb50ab554024c08c996e3afb41b0597b151fe77e1755755b562a4
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b04aa7a4ecc2eef077ed7a73e7e09f790f08988468050174513e3835c663a97924ed3cf19c34b0e87c5202a09bd34ce6957a1edd00cf504566
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b095d4bccb3d9d8c4cbebd64fdaf68d3f770bf950a9f8b804e2b93507d1e4f1bf2e0ee997198088d7f28f78386e774e0082120a0e803ddbe92
mailto:tmsquared20@gmail.com
mailto:tmarkus@bhamgov.org
mailto:noreply@reply.freep.com
mailto:tmsquared20@gmail.com


Leah Olajide | Newsletter editor

DTE crew members worked on downed power lines behind houses off of
Thomas Avenue in Warren in Feb. 2023.
Mandi Wright, Detroit Free Press

Good morning, today is Monday. Our week begins with the
following news ...

Detroit-based DTE Energy Co. and Jackson-based Consumers
Energy are in the spotlight after an ice storm hit the state in late
February and left more than 700,000 customers without electricity.
This was followed by a winter storm in early March.

Executives appeared before Michigan lawmakers to defend their
response to the storms. The Michigan Public Service Commission, a
state agency that regulates the utilities and approves rate increases,

INFORMATION ONLY

https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b0c5e45680384403b9888a9814bf40faf105e1ae1c43db476a2ab96cf8fe6ed71959703d4105f3b5a3750184aa67d0ad8d7c082815ebecc506


held a series of public town halls last month to hear from customers 
affected by power outages.

It's likely these two companies will receive further scrutiny as they are 
undergoing transformational change. More severe storms are 
expected and the grid continues to age. This story provides an inside 
look at the companies and explains how they plan to improve 
reliability .

INFORMATION ONLY

https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b04237533918e435b94b17168124df19ee96a8c33f296ed379bf29c2870cc11018d20f0d77a76f25b59ab2ab0798e85c4ce18ced2049194f95
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b00aeb8df39803ecf4a24fe36cd8f5ffd427783ac00cac3fd78192d1c7ec8ec61ca016cf9e2732cf36cb45900cbbd9553b2a80422cf1991ff0
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b03d34aa2b161aec837d3db26a3c8b1cc0012fd363da50222bc16b432d1325e552452430b6bdd36a868cfcc4b3034121897a58c7e4ddfc8be5
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b0061f75c674af8029dd2fb7b566575399b265395d80317fc72c66de20926cdf98cc5f574daf449470c5c4748353623de85366dcbe8c054e68
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b0e23a18f2e37d188c14b25a2bc7a867f174eb67deff9313785fa53da665d22b76a7bd647b0f80c722809210efdead4408b7da71daaaa6a634
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b0e380ac39b27364f4446eac508ad94f6428c1d6c3c0e166c7c7960177e2fbeb3ad3957cda6d43abe6aa83b505fe147a97c6e2f11eec7d8929
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b097a3dc8e4280c6c2b143bfb84ddffd6661fb43141f66dc2fa17a7af649ddeaaebdcdd9d3c2518cf912c108300766bab72907e7add2390cf5
https://cl.exct.net/?qs=e9c5fc8df7e845b0a80e964a31482770672d5c79f9a639bac88b2c46bd9fd5eace915dd8f725dfb5172d19d5100b1c7aacd96f960a437cca71f5e9fe64266792


��������������	
 ������������������
��
�������������	� !"	#�����$������$��%���&���%�$�������������%�$���%�&%����������$'�%��

�'$�������(�����%()��������*�+�,�-.���%%�/�/012�%�.'1$%��)�.���1'%���$���.�$�����/03/+34+/��3/��/��1$��'�.�$�����/03/+34+/��3/��/�� ���

5678�9:;<=>?�@>A:;<=>?BA=>?<CDECF<GHIJK�LM5�NOP5QK�9>;R�C;�<>R�67>S�A6CI7FR�>;J�6>I;�?CI7FR�>F7�A7<:;;:;<�TCRUF7>JV66:7�W�X����%%�3Y�����()��Z 
����
�������+��������+[�	
���)���)����$$���Y&�����2(���\����
�����������������$$���%�$(�	$���)��)%��%��)��]%���&�*��%��$$*%����̂!��#�����_!̀ �̀ �̂\���$��%���&���%�$��$�)�*������%�%(��a���������$��%������&�*���)������%,� �%�%���$���-���)%��&�*���2�������%�$����������%%-��%�%��%����%������&%�*$%��&*������b�-����������%�������%�%(�	�$�����*�)�*���'*�����%�&�������$��������&%�*$%���%��/'���������2%$��%����-����'%�$�����)���)%����������%�����-(����������%�������$*�&%�������%�)��$���&*]]��������&��$��������%$%����%�*$���)���%$c��*���%���&����)��$$��%�$�%%��$��%�����������%�&����'%��%)����$���������������$��������$)�%%�%�����'��)���$�������)��$$�������%�(�#%$����*$%��%���)%�����)%��'����������2���c��%�����b�)��%��&�*��%�'%�)%�����%��%���&���������[��+�'�(�	���������-�����%��*��%d%������%���'���*������ef�2�����%����$$�$���*$������)���%�)������$��%���&���%�����������*�'���*)%$�%��$$���$�%g*��������2���������"%�2%����̀�$�	��%�%$(e��$�g*�%������%����)�%( ���-���*�������*���%����(f���%�̂�&�%��0+�̀�-%�_��-�"�(������������������%���%$$��%����������������V66:7�WCA67�X����%%�3Y�����()��Z"�%��
����
�������+�����4���h	
�*&i%)����	� !"	#�����$������$��%���&���%�$�������������%�$���%�&%����������$'�%�� ���f���%�̂�&�%�X����%%�3Y�����()��Z9>;R�C;�<>R�67>S�A6CI7FR�>;J�6>I;�?CI7FR�>F7�A7<:;;:;<�TC�RUF7>J �%�&��$��'�)������''������%��%g*�'�%��������%�'�''����*'������j%�����������������(�_��'��%�$�$����b$����������%�)����%���%�����������$%(k%��������	� !"	#���'$����''�%(�%�$�	�ll"""�kj��
���#��m	����%�������	''�%�̂%�$�%�����������_���%��#�*��%)%�2%����$��%$$��%�&%)�*$%���*���%�$*&$)��&%�����%�\����%�\��*'$�e���������$$���e����*'( ��*�$*&$)��&%��������$����*'�����$�'��%)%�2����%����$���������$%������%�������)���)����$$���n*�$*&$)��&%Y&�����2(���( ��2�%����$���$)*$$��������%��%&�2�$���'$������*'$(�����%()�����&�����2(�������$����)���)����$$�����	�%� g�o_���p%�����3�\�]33k/%/�l
���a_di���!�#f��q3+����(�����()��(
INFORMATION ONLY



��������������	
 �������������������������������������������������������������

���������� !�����" �������"�������������#���#$��#���%����%������%�����%���%�����%!%�����%�������%���������&$'()�##�� ��$

*+,-.*/01�2304�5267381�09:�2079�;67381�0831<6=>?9@2A�50:�468�B<3�C2093BD�E091�08353@?99?9@�B6�1C830:DFGHIJKLMN�NKO�PNQRS�K�JITTMUJQKV�SKN�VMKW�XVIYMU�WIU�KR�ZIPU�[UIGPJMN�MTQNNQIRN�M\PKV�LIGUQHQRS�WUIT�]MRHMU�LI�̂IN�FRSMVMN_!̀���������##�� � �ab�	������#���#�� cdefghe�ijkl�fmnm�op�qfr�st�kukv,83w68�xy@<31z{|�}~�|�����������������������������������������������������������������|����������|������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���|�������|������������������������������������������¡�¢���������£�¤���������¥��������£����¦���������¥���¢�����������¥�¤�������¢�������¥��������������������������������¦��������������������������������������������������������������������������¥�����������������������¥����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������}����������������������������������������������������������¦�����������§����������������������������¥����������������������|��������������̈�¥§������{�����~�����¥����������������������������̈���������������������������������������������������������©ª«�¬ª®�̄°±²³́�̄µ³¶·�³̧ ̧̄ �́¹ªº»{�����������������������¢�������¼���������������½¾¿À�ÁÂ½¾ �������������������������������z{|�}~�|�

ÃÄÅnfgh�ÃÆfÇÈh Éee�pÊdÅË

INFORMATION ONLY



��������������	
 �������������������������������������������������������������

���������� !�����" �������"�������������#���#$��#���%����%������%�����%���%�����%!%�����%�������%���������&$'()�##�� ��$

*+,-�.-,-/.�,01�23-3/.�+,4/�564/1�-6�7,0�8,.9,:0�/;<3=5/0->?@ABCDEFB@�G@H�@AEI@JK�L@MIF�LGI�NBOOIHL�HLIP�BF�N@FFBFO�LGI�IFOBFIHQ�RGBSG�@EI�CDET@AAKMFDRF�@H�UHT@AA�DCC�ED@J�IFOBFIHQU�DE�VWXYHZ�?@ABCDEFB@[H�N@F�PG@HIH�BF�FI\L�KI@E�@FJPEDGBNBLH�LGI�H@AI�DC�FIR�HT@AA�O@H�IFOBFIHZ�]IDPAI�S@F�MIIP�̂HBFO�LGI�DFIH�LGIK�@AEI@JKDRF�@FJ�S@F�EIHIAA�̂HIJ�DFIHZ_@HGBFOLDFQ�̀Z?ZQ�G@H�@�T ŜG�HLEBSLIE�N@FQ�N@EEBFO�LGI�̂HI�DC�O@HaPDRIEIJ�AI@C�NADRIEH�NK@FKDFI�RBLGBF�LGI�JBHLEBSL�@H�DC�b@FZ�cQ�deddQ�@FJ�AIfKBFO�ghee�CBFIH�CDE�fBDA@LDEHQ�̂FAIHHLGIK[EI�DF�CIJIE@A�PEDPIELKZ�iGI�N@F�@AHD�@AADRH�@FKDFI�RGD�HIIH�DE�GI@EH�@�O@HaPDRIEIJ�AI@CNADRIE�LD�CBAI�@�SDTPA@BFL�j�LGIK�JDF[L�FIIJ�@�SBLK�BFHPISLDE�LD�RBLFIHH�BLZ�ÌFfIEa@EI@�EIÔA@LDEH�@EI�SDFHBJIEBFO�EIHLEBSLBDFH�LG@L�PEBT@EBAK�L@EOIL�A@EOI�SDTTIESB@A@FJ�T F̂BSBP@A�̂HIEH�N̂L�PEDfBJI�I\ITPLBDFH�CDE�GDTIDRFIEHZ�iGI�̀IFfIEa@EI@�N@F�BHCDŜHIJ�DF�EIĴSBFO�DkDFI�PDAÂLBDFQ�RGBSG�S@̂HIH�NEI@LGBFO�JBCCBŜALBIH�@FJ�SDFLEBN̂LIH�LDSABT@LI�SG@FOIZiGI�EIHBJIFLB@A�EIL@BA�T@EMIL�BH�@AEI@JK�EIHPDFJBFOQ�@FJ�TDHL�G@EJR@EI�@FJ�NBOaND\�HLDEIHFDR�HIAA�IAISLEBS�Il̂BPTIFLZmnDE�LGI�T@oDEBLK�DC�EIHBJIFLH�RGD�DRF�HBFOAI�C@TBAK�GDTIHQ�BLpH�ODBFO�LD�NI�@AA�IAISLEBSQ�@AAJ@K�ADFOQU�H@BJ�̀@FBIA�q@NIQ�CD̂FJIE�@FJ�PEIHBJIFL�DC�LGI�rTIEBS@F�sEIIF�tDFI�rAAB@FSIZrstr�@JfBHIH�DEO@FBk@LBDFH�@FJ�ODfIEFTIFLH�DF�NIHL�PE@SLBSIH�LD�@JDPL�RGIF�LE@FHBLBDFBFOLD�IAISLEBS�Il̂BPTIFL�N̂L�JDIHF[L�L@MI�@�PDHBLBDF��DF�N@FH�DE�EIHLEBSLBDFHZ*+u�3.�8,.�9,:0�/;<3=5/0-�7/308�7,00/1>Y\PIELH�H@K�A@RF�@FJ�O@EJIF�Il̂BPTIFL�EIPEIHIFLH�@ND̂L�vhw�DC�@AA�VWXYH�BF�DPIE@LBDFLDJ@K�F@LBDF@AAKQ�@FJ�LGDHI�IFOBFIH�@EI�LKPBS@AAK�T@F̂C@SL̂EIJ�RBLGD̂L�LGI�PDAÂLBDF�SDFLEDAHĤIJ�DF�S@EHZxyz{|y}�~y��rPPI@AH�SD̂EL�DfIEL̂EFH�?@ABCDEFB@�SBLK[H�@LLITPL�LD�N@F�FIR�F@L̂E@A�O@HGDDM̂PH
INFORMATION ONLY



��������������	
 �������������������������������������������������������������

���������� !�����" �������"�������������#���#$��#���%����%������%�����%���%�����%!%�����%�������%���������&$'()�##�� ��$

*+,�,-./0�1+2,�0345+620789:;�<=>?:=@�A=B�B>CD;B�=E>?=@@F�=�GH=I=:JGK�LHF�=:;�>H;FB?JJ;<@F�EC<>:CD;:BM=@KNM:>?=@@F�=@@�BO=@@�;<AM<;B�=:;�>PCQB>:CR;S�PHMEH�T?:<�=�JM:>M;:�U?;@�OMV�>H=<�D;HME@;B�JCW9JDCE=>;B�B=F�>H=>�M<�=JJM>MC<�>C�>H;�E@MO=>;QEH=<AM<A�;OMBBMC<B�:;@;=B;J�TF�>H;�;<AM<;BSPC:R;:B�=:;�;VXCB;J�JM:;E>@F�>C�>H;M:�;VH=?B>�=<J�:=:;@F�P;=:�UM@>;:B�>C�X:C>;E>�>H;M:�@?<ABWY>H;:�X;CX@;�ECOX@=M<�=TC?>�>H;�<CMB;�>H;F�O=R;S�;BX;EM=@@F�PH;<�BC�O=<F�B?T?:T=<:;BMJ;<>B�<CP�PC:R�U:CO�HCO;WZ[:=<BM>MC<M<A�>C�T=>>;:FQXCP;:;J�@=<JBE=XM<A�;\?MXO;<>�MB�=�OC:;�B?B>=M<=T@;�=@>;:<=>MD;>H=>�PC?@J�OCD;�?B�E@CB;:�>C�O;;>M<A�E@MO=>;�=E>MC<�AC=@B�=<J�:;J?E;�H=:OU?@�H;=@>H;UU;E>BSZ�B=MJ�>H;�]=@MUC:<M=QT=B;J�A:C?X�̂=<�_M;A=<B�UC:�̂?B>=M<=T@;S�̀\?M>=T@;�a�b?M;>\̀?MXO;<>�M<�c=<JBE=XM<AWdefghi�gej�klmniokj�lp�jqjrgsor�qfmnjtuovwjngx]:M>MEB�B=F�T=>>;:FQXCP;:;J�O=EHM<;B�=:;<G>�=B�B>:C<A�=B�A=BQXCP;:;J�C<;BS�=<J�BCO;�X;CX@;=@BC�PC::F�=TC?>�H=DM<A�>C�T?F�<;P�;\?MXO;<>S�PHMEH�MB�A;<;:=@@F�OC:;�;VX;<BMD;Wy=T;�B=FB�BCO;C<;�B>=:>M<A�=�BO=@@�@=<JBE=XM<A�T?BM<;BB�EC?@J�T?F�>H;�<;E;BB=:F�A=BQXCP;:;J�;\?MXO;<>�UC:�=TC?>�z{S|||S�T?>�>H;�;@;E>:ME�;\?MD=@;<>B�EC?@J�ECB>�>H:;;�>MO;B>H=>W};�=JJB�>H=>�C:A=<MI=>MC<B�BPM>EHM<A�>C�;@;E>:MEB�PM@@�<;;J�OC:;�BX=E;�>C�B>C:;�=<J�EH=:A;T=>>;:M;B�=<J�O=F�=@BC�H=D;�>C�?XA:=J;�>H;M:�;@;E>:MEM>F�B;:DME;�>C�O;;>�CD;:<MAH>�EH=:AM<AJ;O=<JW9JDCE=>;B�B=F�>H=>�H=DM<A�=�TMA�B>=>;�@MR;�]=@MUC:<M=�BPM>EH�>C�;@;E>:ME�;\?MXO;<>�PM@@�E:;=>;�=O=:R;>X@=E;�>H=>�M<>;:<=>MC<=@�O=<?U=E>?:;:B�E=<�EC?<>�C<S�@CP;:M<A�X:ME;B�CD;:=@@�=B�C>H;:B>=>;B�=<J�EM>M;B�;<=E>�BMOM@=:�T=<BW�cMR;�>H;�_MB>:ME>�CU�]C@?OTM=S�]=@MUC:<M=�MB�AMDM<A�A:=<>B>C�BO=@@�T?BM<;BB;B�>H=>�:;X@=E;�A=BQXCP;:;J�;\?MXO;<>�PM>H�;@;E>:MEW
INFORMATION ONLY



��������������	
 �������������������������������������������������������������

���������� !�����" �������"�������������#���#$��#���%����%������%�����%���%�����%!%�����%�������%���������&$'()�##�� $�$

*+,-�./�0�1,2-�-3�4556�78�9,:�;,12�7315<�3<;5,/�=;315<>?@AB�CDEABEFG�HI@H@AJKA�L@MKN�@FKO�KEPEB�BQC�AJKC�@R�FCL�GJASH@LCICN�CTMEHPCFBU�JKK@LEFGHC@HKC�B@�VCCH�MAEFG�LQJB�BQCO�JKICJNO�@LFWXMB�YKCJFSJEI�JNZ@YJBCA�AJO�BQC�BIJFAEBE@F�B@�CKCYBIEY�CTMEHPCFB�EA�EFCZEBJ[KC�JA�BQC�\FEBCN]BJBCA�L@IVA�B@�KEPEB�CPEAAE@FA�@R�GICCFQ@MAC�GJACA�JFN�JEI�H@KKMBE@FW�̂IKEFA�AJEN�AQC�K@JFCNQCI�KJLF�YJIC�L@IVCIA�P@FCO�A@�BQCO�Y@MKN�ALEBYQ�B@�[JBBCIOSH@LCICN�CTMEHPCFBW_̀ C�NCYENCN�LC�QJN�B@�BJVC�BQJB�REIAB�ABCHU�JFN�LC�JIC�JKK�A@�HKCJACNU_�AQC�JNNCNW

INFORMATION ONLY



CITY CLERK 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

P.O. BOX 3001, 151 MARTIN STREET 

BIRMINGHAM, Ml 48012 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BEFORE THE MICHIGAN PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION NOTICE OF 

HEARING 

FOR THE ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS OF 

DTE ELECTRIC COMPANY 

CASE NO. U-21051 

• DTE Electric Company requests Michigan Public Service Commission's approval for reconciliation
of its power supply cost recovery plan (Case No. U-21050) for the twelve months ending December 31,
2022.

• The information below describes how a person may participate in this case.

• You may call or write DTE Electric Company, One Energy Plaza, Detroit, MI 48226, (800) 477-
4747, for a free copy of its application. Any person may review the documents at the offices of
DTE Electric Company or on the Commission's website at: michigan.gov/mp cedockets.

• A pre-hearing will be held:

DATE/TIME: 

BEFORE: 

LOCATION: 

PARTICIPATION: 

Tuesday, May 16, 2023 at 10:00 AM 

Administrative Law Judge Sally Wallace 

Video/Teleconferencing 

Any interested person may participate. Persons needing any 
assistance to participate should contact the Commission's 

Executive Secretary at (517) 284-8096, or by email at 

mp cedockets@mjch.igan.gov in advance of the hearing. 

The Michigan Public Service Commjssion (Commission) will hold a pre-hearing to consider 
DTE Electric Company's (DTE Electric) March 31, 2023 application requesting the Commission to: 1) 
approve DTE Electric's 2022 Power Supply Cost Recovery (PSCR) reconciliation as proposed; 2) 
authorize DTE Electric to collect its total PSCR under-recovery at year-end 2022 of $420,616,238 
including interest, from all PSCR customers via a roll-over of such under-recovery as the January 
2023 starting balance for the 2023 PSCR Reconciliation; and 3) grant DTE Electric further additional 
relief and authority as the Commission may deem necessary. 

INFORMATION ONLY





 

INFORMATION ONLY



INFORMATION ONLY



LOCAL

Why rubber roads are likely to become increasingly common
in Michigan

Published 9:30 p.m. ET April 27, 2023

LANSING — They won't be bouncy but Michigan's next roads are increasingly bound to be made with old tires, including a "road lasagna"
technique already used in Ingham County.

State officials announced $2 million in grants last month for a variety of road projects using old tires.

Ingham County received a nearly $38,000 grant, enough to do about 750 feet of road built on top of a shredded tire base at Fitchburg and
Parman roads near Leslie.

The projects tend to be small and on local roads. Most big projects use federal funding and tire rubber is considered experimental and
generally can’t be used on roads that get federal funding, said Kelly Jones, managing director of Ingham County’s roads department.

Today's projects generally use rubber in the asphalt mix or rubber as a base and tend to be fairly small in scale, said M. Emin Kutay, an
engineering professor at Michigan State University who works on rubber-modified roads.

"Typically our paving industry is slow to new things," he said. "They want to see it long-term first."

Based on his research, Kutay said experiments from the past decade or more are showing good techniques for producing mixes that can
make quieter and longer lasting roads but may not be quite as good as other premium additives like polymers. When rubber-modified
roads fail, it's usually a construction or mix problem and not the rubber itself, he said.

Keeping tires out of the landfill is the main reason to use rubber but there are other benefits to using their rubber for roads. Kutay said the
surface can keep a dark black hue longer, and there's less noise and infirmities when the repurposed rubber is mixed properly.

Kirsten Clemens, scrap tire coordinator for Michigan's Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy, said Michigan residents go
through about 10 million tires a year.

"So there's a lot of tires," she said of the recycling possibilities.

Reusing tires has long been a goal and they are reused in a variety of ways: Some are burned for energy with special smoke scrubbers at
landfills. Other tires get small-scale reuses like playground equipment or as planters.

There are potential hazards from scrap tire piles, she said, that lead to mosquito breeding grounds, visual nuisances and fire risks.

Tires also can't go into landfills as normal tires, Clemens added, because they could inflate with methane gas and rise to the surface, which
causes problems for landfills.

Dave Ouwinga and his Porous Pave Inc. company, based in Grant, use truck tires to make porous surfaces like golf cart paths, driveways
and rings around trees in cities.

Those metal grates around trees can be a liability for tripping and a maintenance time-killer for cities, Clemens said.

Like Ingham County, his company is one of several entities that were part of the $2 million EGLE grant announced in March. Ouwinga
company's $60,000 will go toward a washing system and tests of porous pavement technology.

Ouwinga said he sometimes has to work around not having enough tires. They typically use semi tires, which don't have the nylon that
consumer tires do.

"We've been having a little bit of a problem with truck tires," he said.

Ouwinga shared that his suppliers grind the tires into a small mix using 1/4-inch to 5/16-inch chunks held together with urethane glue.
When they're low on tires, they either need to wait a few weeks to get more semi tires or mix in some consumer tires.

Mike Ellis

Lansing State Journal

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.lansingstatejournal.com/
https://www.lansingstatejournal.com/staff/4382561002/mike-ellis/


"There's a lot of demand," Ouwinga said. "You're seeing a number of new applications for tires."

Ouwinga has learned that football fields are moving over to using a smaller mix, crumb size, instead of sand underneath artificial turf.

"You'll see a black streak when a player drags their foot," he said.

EGLE's $2 million grant will go to a half dozen projects:

$577,000 to Cobolt Holdings for equipment to process off-road tires that could be used for agricultural mats
$60,000 for Porous Pave for a rock washing system and a project with Goodwill locations in West Michigan that will be providing
plastic
About $420,000 for a 2.3-mile rehabilitation of Dixie Highway in Saginaw County
Nearly a half million dollars for two 16-mile pavement sealing projects, in Bay and Joseph counties
About as much for a one mile stretch of paving on Midland Road in Bay County.
$38,000 this year for Fitchburg Road in Ingham County

The Ingham County project, expected to be completed in 2024, would use tire shreds as a base and would use about 250,000 commercial
tires.

She said a Belleview Road project, which used tires as a base over wetlands, "is performing well."

That project is called a "road lasagna" for the way it stacks materials, Clemens said. She said the road once had 30 inches of asphalt and
was paved over whenever it sank, despite the extra weight only making it sink faster.

Contact Mike Ellis at mellis@lsj.com or 517-267-0415.

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.michigan.gov/egle/newsroom/press-releases/2023/03/29/egle-awards-more-than-2mil

	A1 20230508 Jewish American Heritage Month proclamation
	A2 Proclamation_Astreins 50-Year_05082023
	3A 20230508 BBTA NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPOINTMENT PACKET
	mcl-125-1514.pdf
	125.1514 Section&&&&125.1514 &&&&Construction board of appeals; creation; appointment, qualifications, and terms of members; appeal to board; hearing; decision; statement of reasons for decision; appeal to commission; copy of decision; additional powers or duties; procedures; conducting business at public meeting; notice; availability of certain writings to public.


	3B 20230508 BRA NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
	BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

	3C 20230508 PARKS & REC NOTICE TO APPOINT PACKET
	ARTICLE II SEC 78 PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD.pdf
	ARTICLE II. PARKS AND RECREATION BOARD0F
	Sec. 78-26. Created; composition.
	Sec. 78-27. Terms of members; vacancies.
	Sec. 78-28. Organization.
	Sec. 78-29. Compensation.
	Sec. 78-30. Meetings and quorum.
	Sec. 78-31. Objectives and duties.
	Sec. 78-32. Regulations.
	Sec. 78-33. Scope of authority.
	Secs. 78-34—78-55. Reserved.


	Alternate Members.pdf
	Commission Approval 052217 Excerpt alternates
	Ordinance Enacting Alternate members
	Alternates Policy Statement


	3D 20230508_Introduction_Engineering_New_Employee
	5A 20230508 - DRAFT 4_24_23 Minutes
	Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

	5B 04262023 warrant list 05082023
	5C 05032023 warrant list 05082023
	5D 20230508 Set PH - 36877 Woodward Ave - Gasow Vet Lot Combo - FINAL
	20230508 Set PH - 36877 Woodward Ave - Gasow Vet Lot Combo -  Memo DRAFT
	Presentation1
	20230508 Set PH - 36877 Woodward Ave - Gasow Vet Lot Combo - FULL
	20230508 Set PH - 36877 Woodward Ave - Gasow Vet Lot Combo - FULL
	20230508 Set PH - 36877 Woodward Ave - Gasow Vet Lot Combo - FULL
	20230508 Set PH - 36877 Woodward Ave - Gasow Vet Lot Combo Attachments


	20220725 PH - 36877 Woodward Ave - Gasow Vet - SLUP, FSP & DR - FULL - 07.20.22


	5E 20230508 Birmingham Little League Agreement
	5F 20230508 Transfer of Ownership - Liquor License for Luxe
	5G 20230508 Transfer for Ownership - Liquor License - Salvatore Scallopini
	5H 20230508 Youth Academy Agreement
	5I 20230508 Sub Recipient Agreement Btw Oakland County and the City of Birmingham for 2023 HIDTA Program Year
	5J 20230508 SOCRRA Rep & Alt
	20230508 SOCRRA rep & alt DRAFT
	BI Clerk Request SOCRRA

	5K 20230508 SOCWA Rep & Alt
	20230508 SOCWA rep & alt DRAFT
	BI Clerk Request SOCWA

	5L 20230424 PAB Resignation Memo Schulak
	7A 20230508_Brown_Street_Hearing_of_Nec_CC_Memo_w_attachments
	7B 20230508 FY 2023-2024 Budget Appropriations Resolution
	7C 20230508 Monthly Parking Rate Increase
	Memo - Monthly Parking Rate Increase
	20230210 Birmingham Fee Schedule POLICE ONLY
	Police


	10A1 20230508 Museum Board Notice of Intent-PRE-APPT
	10A2 20230508 GCAB NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE-APPT
	10A3 20230508 AIPC NOTICE OF INTENT PRE-APPOINTMENT PACKET
	10A4 20230508 Ethics NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE-APPT
	10A5 20230508 PAB NOTICE OF INTENTION-PRE APPT
	PUBLIC ARTS BOARD

	10C1a 20230508 BACB Annual Report 2021-22
	10C1b 20230508 Final Approved Budget YE 6 30 2023 v2
	10C1c 20230508 Birmingham Area Cable Board - 0622-Financial Statement
	10E1 20230508 3rd Quarter Investment Report
	10E2  20230508 3rd Quarter Budget Report 22-23
	10E3 20230508 Public Act 33 Police and Fire Protection Act
	mcl-41-801.pdf
	41.801 Section&&&&41.801 &&&&Purchase of police and fire motor vehicles, apparatus, equipment, and housing; appropriation; special assessment; bonds; election; estimate of cost and expenses; special assessment district; hearing; publication or posting of notice; distribution of special assessment levy; transfer or loan of money from general fund; repayment; exercise of powers; assessment after December 31, 2018; “taxable value” defined; finding of invalid assessment; bonds subject to revised municipal finance act.

	mcl-41-810.pdf
	41.810 Section&&&&41.810 &&&&Fire protection for townships, villages, and qualified cities; "qualified city" defined.


	10E4 20230508 Staff Report Pat Andrews Tribute
	20230413_Maple_Fairfax_Cost_Estimate.pdf
	Sheet1


	20230502 INFORMATION ONLY The Curious Side Effects of Medical Transparency _ The New Yorker
	20230508 IO City council approves recreational marijuana shops in Taylor
	20230508 IO City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd_ How DTE, Consumers Energy operate
	20230508 IO City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd_ USA T..
	20230508 IO DTE electric PSCR plan hearing notice
	20230508 IO Mich. renters need more protection
	20230508 IO Rubber roads likely to become increasingly common in Michigan



